
ADAM A. HOUSE 
Fire Chief 

Grant Goold 
Board President 
Division 2 

Ted Wood 
Board Vice President 
Division 4 

Jennifer Sheetz 
Board Secretary 
Division 5 

Cinthia Saylors 
Board Member 
Division 1 

Robert Webber 
Board Member 
Division 3 

D'Elman Clark 
Board Member 
Division 6 

Brian Rice 
Board Member 
Division 7 

Gay Jones 
Board Member 
Division 8 

John Costa 
Board Member 
Division 9 

Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District 
10545 Armstrong Ave., Suite 200 • Mather, California 95655 • Phone (916) 859-4300 • Fax (916) 859-3700 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS - REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

Thursday, September 12, 2024- 6:00 PM 
Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District 

10545 Armstrong Avenue 
Board Room - Second Floor 

Mather, California 
& 

Remotely Via Zoom 
Webinar ID: 827 3461 0232 # 

Passcode: metro2101 
Phone: 1 (669) 444-9171 or 1 (669) 900 6833 

1i Passcode: 838771796 # 
https://us06web .zoom. us/j/82734610232?pwd=SFI LQ1 Znd25RSmlhdXZVQVh4d 1 VWZz09 

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54953: 
Board President Goold will be participating remotely from the following location: 
605 North Loafer Canyon Rd., Elk Ridge UT, 84651 

The mission of the Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District is to provide professional 
and compassionate protection, education and service to our community. 

The Public's health and well-being are the top priority for the Board of Directors of 
the Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District and you are urged to take all 
appropriate health safety precautions. To view the meeting via the Zoom 
Application, please click on the link above. 

Members of the public seeking to attend and to address the Board who require 
reasonable accommodations to access the meeting, based on disability or other 
reasons, should contact the following person at least forty-eight (48) hours in 
advance of a Regular meeting to make arrangements for such reasonable 
accommodations: 

Marni Rittburg 
Board Clerk 

(916) 859-4305 
rittburg.marni@metrofire.ca.gov 

The Board will convene in open session at 6:00 p.m. 

Serving Sacramento and Placer Counties 



Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District 
10545 Armstrong Ave., Suite 200 • Mather, Califo rn ia 95655 • Phone (916) 859-4300 • Fax (916) 859-3700 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 12, 2024 

► CALL TO ORDER 

► ROLL CALL 

► PLEDGE TO FLAG 

METRO CABLE ANNOUNCEMENT: 
This meeting of the Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District will be cablecast on Metro Cable 
14, the local government affairs channel on the Comcast and AT&T U-Verse cable systems. 
This meeting is also webcast at metro14Iive.saccounty.gov. Today's meeting replays at 
6:00 p.m. on Monday, September 16, 2024 and again at 9:00 a.m. on Wednesday, 
August 18, 2024, on Channel 14. The recording of this meeting can also be viewed at 
voutube. comlmetrocable 14. 

PUBLIC OPPORTUNITY TO DISCUSS MATTERS OF PUBLIC INTEREST WITHIN 
DISTRICT JURISDICTION INCLUDING ITEMS ON OR NOT ON AGENDA: 
The Board of Directors of the Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District appreciates and 
encourages public interest and welcomes questions and opinions at its meetings. Public 
members wishing to address the Board are requested to first be recognized by the presiding 
officer and identify themselves for the record. The presiding officer may, in the interest of 
time and good order, limit the number of public member presentations. Speakers' comments 
will be limited to three (3) minutes (Per Section 31 of the Board of Directors Policies and 
Procedures). 

In accordance with Section 31 of the Board of Directors Policies and Procedures, members 
of the Public requesting their written comments be read into the meeting record must be 
present or have a representative present to read their comments during the time allotted. 

CONSENT ITEMS: 
Matters of routine approval including but not limited to action summary minutes, referral of 
issues to committee, committee referrals to the full Board, items that require yearly approval, 
declaration of surplus equipment, and other consent matters. The Consent Agenda is acted 
upon as one unit unless a Board member requests separate discussion and/or action. 

CONSENT ITEMS 

1. Action Summary Minutes 
Recommendation: Approve the Action Summary Minutes for the Regular 
Board Meeting of August 8, 2024. 

Page No. 

7 

2. Purchase Approval - FUR K65 Thermal lmagers 11 
Recommendation: Approve the purchase of FUR K65 thermal imaging cameras 
and accessories from W.S. Darley & Co. using Sourcewell contract #020124-WSD. 



Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District 
10545 Armstrong Ave., Suite 200 Mather, California 95655 • Phone (916) 859-4300 • Fax (916) 859-3700 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 12, 2024 

3. Adopt Resolution - Reimbursement for Tax Exempt Debt 13 
Recommendation: Adopt Resolution to reimburse the District for funds that have 
been or may be expended prior to issuing tax-exempt debt. 

4. Purchase Approval - Four (4) North Star Ambulances 16 
Recommendation: Approve the purchase of four North Star Ambulances from Braun 
Northwest, Inc. utilizing HGACBuy Contract Number AM10-23. 

5. Adopt Resolution - Cooperative Purchase Agreement for Fuels 22 
Recommendation: Adopt Resolution authorizing the purchase of automotive fuels 
from Hunt & Sons LLC using the SACOG cooperative purchasing agreement and to 
allow the Fire Chief or his designee to execute the Participating Agency Sub 
Agreement documents required for utilizing the referenced SACOG agreement. 

6. Adopt Resolution - Fiscal Year 2024/25 Gann Appropriations Limit 89 
Recommendation: Adopt the Resolution approving the Gann Appropriations Limit in 
Fiscal Year 2024/25 in the amount of $452,663,227. 

7. Purchase Approval - Personal Protective Equipment 94 
Recommendation: Approve the purchase of structural firefighting turnouts from MES 
using Sourcewell contract #010424-MES and authorize the continued utilization of 
this contract for future purchases until the contract expires or is terminated. 

8. Adopt Resolution - McClellan Business Park, LLC 96 
Recommendation: Adopt Resolution delegating authority to the Fire Chief or his 
designee to execute and administer an agreement with McClellan Business Park, 
LLC for providing aircraft rescue and firefighting services at McClellan Airport. 

9. Adopt Resolution - FY 2023 State Homeland Security Grant Program 173 
(SHSGP) Award 
Recommendation: Adopt the Resolution accepting the FY 2023 SHSGP Grant and 
authorize the Fire Chief or his designee to execute all required documents for the 
administration of the grant award. 

10. Adopt Resolution - Economic Development Initiative - Community Project 175 
Funding Award 
Recommendation: Adopt the Resolution accepting the FY 2024 Economic 
Development Initiative - Community Project Funding Grant from the U.S. 
Department of Housing and Urban Development and authorize the Fire Chief or his 
designee to execute all required documents for administration of the grant award. 

11. Adopt Resolution - Opioid Remediation Activities Agreement - County of 178 
Sacramento 
Recommendation: Adopt the Resolution authorizing the Fire Chief or his designee 



Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District 
10545 Armstrong Ave., Su ite 200 • Mather, California 95655 • Phone (916) 859-4300 • Fax (916) 859-3700 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 12, 2024 

to execute and administer and agreement with the County of Sacramento for opioid 
remediation activities. 

12. Adopt Resolution -Amendment to the FY 2024/25 - 2028/29 Capital 208 
Improvement Program (CIP) Plan 'ED Separate Attachment 

Recommendation: Adopt the Resolution amending the Capital Improvement 
Program Plan for FY 2024/2025 - 2028/2029. 

PRESENTATION ITEMS: 

1. 

2. 

City of San Diego Workers Compensation Presentation 
(Battalion Chief Picone & Work Comp Program Manager Joseph Sousa) 
Recommendation: Receive presentation 

Wellness, Health & Safety Division 
(Battalion Chief Anthony Peck) 
Recommendation: Receive presentation. 

ACTION ITEMS: 

** 

210 

1. Adopt Resolutions - 2024/25 Final Budget 'Im! Separate Attachment 216 
(CFO Dave O'Toole) 
A. Resolution - 2024/25 Final Budget for the General Operating Fund 212A 
B. Resolution - 2024/25 Final Budget for the Capital Facilities Fund 212D 
C. Resolution - 2024/25 Final Budget for the Grants Fund 212G 
D. Resolution - 2024/25 Final Budget for the Development Impact Fees Fund 2121 
E. Resolution - 2024/25 Final Budget for the Leased Properties Fund 212L 
F. Resolution - 2024/25 Final Budget for the IGT Fund 212M 
G. Resolution - 2024/25 Final Budget fo r the Special Projects Fund 212S 
Recommendation: Receive presentation and Adopt the Fiscal Year 2024/25 Budget 
Resolutions. 

2. Industrial Disability Retirement - Engineer James Lee ** 
Recommendation: After discussion in Closed Session, consider adopting a 
Resolution finding Engineer James Lee has suffered job related injuries and is 
eligible for an Industrial Disability Retirement. 

REPORTS: 

1. PRESIDENT'S REPORT - (President Goold) 

2. FIRE CHIEF'S REPORT - (Chief House) 
OPERATIONS REPORT - (Deputy Chief Mitchell) 
ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT - (Out-of-Class Deputy Chief Johnson) 
SUPPORT SERVICES REPORT - (Deputy Chief Bailey) - No Report 



Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District 
10545 Armstrong Ave., Suite 200 • Mather, California 95655 • Phone (916) 859-4300 • Fax (916) 859-3700 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 12, 2024 

3. SMFD - FIREFIGHTERS LOCAL 522 REPORT - Captain Sean Scollard, Local 
522 Vice President) 

4. COMMITTEE AND DELEGATE REPORTS 
All Committee Meetings will be held at the Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District Board 
Room, 10545 Armstrong A venue, Mather, California unless otherwise specified. 

A. Executive Committee - (President Goold) 
Next Meeting: TBD 

B. Communications Center JPA - (Deputy Chief Bailey) 
Next Meeting: September 10, 2024 at 9:00 AM 

C. Finance and Audit Committee - (Director Jones) 
Next Meeting: October 24, 2024 at 5:30 PM 

D. Policy Committee - (Director Costa) 
Next Meeting : October 10, 2024 at 5:30 PM 

BOARD MEMBER QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 

CLOSED SESSION: 
The Board will convene in closed session to meet on the following matters: 

1. PURSUANT TO CALIFORNIA GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION § 54956.9 (A) -
ONE (1) MATTER OF INDUSTRIAL DISABILITY RETIREMENT: 

1. James Lee and the Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District 
Claim# 4A2310B4L5K00001 - Industrial Disability Retirement 
Michael Johnson, Interim Deputy Chief Administration 

2. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION -
Significant Exposure to litigation pursuant to California Government Code 
Section 54956.9 (b): One Case 

1. Claim Against Public Entity Pursuant to Government Code Section 910 
Autumn Gilmore. v. Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District 
General Counsel John Lavra & Board Clerk Marni Rittburg 

CLOSED SESSION REPORT OUT 

ADJOURNMENT 



Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District 
10545 Armstrong Ave., Suite 200 • Mather, California 95655 • Phone (916) 859-4300 • Fax (916) 859-3700 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 12, 2024 

NEXT BOARD MEETING(S): 
Unless specified differently, all meetings of the Board are held at Sacramento Metropolitan Fire 
District at 10545 Armstrong Avenue, Mather, CA 

• Regular Board Meeting - September 26, 2024 at 6:00 PM 

Posted on September 9, 2024, by 4:30 p.m. 

Marni Rittburg~MC,CPM 
Clerk of the Board 

** No written report 
'm:i Separate Attachment 

DISABILITY INFORMATION: 
In compl iance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to 
participate in th is meeting, please contact the Clerk of the Board at (916) 859-4305. Notification 
at least 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the District to make reasonable arrangements to 
ensure accessibility to this meeting. 



Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District 

10545 Armstrong Ave., Suite 200 • Mather, CA 95655 • • Phone (916) 859-4300 • Fax (916) 859-3702 

ADAM A. HOUSE 
Fire Chief 

ACTION SUMMARY MINUTES - REGULAR MEETING 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

CALL TO ORDER 

SACRAMENTO· METROPOLITAN FIRE DISTRICT 
Thursday, August 8, 2024 

Held at the following locations: 
10545 Armstrong Avenue - Board Room 

Mather, California 
& 

Remotely Via Zoom 

The meeting was called to order at 6:01 pm by President Goold. Board members present: 
Clark, Costa, Goold, Jones, Saylors, Sheetz, Wood and Webber. Board members absent: 
Staff present: Rice. Chief House and Board Clerk Rittburg. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Public comment was received. 

CONSENT ITEMS 

Moved by Director Wood seconded by Sheetz and carried unanimously by members present 
to adopt the consent calendar as follows: 

1. Action Summary Minutes 
Recommendation: Approve the Action Summary Minutes for the Regular Board Meeting 
of July 11, 2024. 
Action: Adopted the Action Summary Minutes. 

2. Purchase Approval - Fire-Dex TECGEN51 Single-Layer Garments 
Recommendation: Approve the purchase of Fire-Dex TECGEN51 Garments from 
Municipal Emergency Services, Inc. using Sourcewell agreement #010424-MES for 
the Metro Medic Program. 
Action: Approved purchase. 

3. Purchase Approval - Storage Area Network (SAN) 
Recommendation: Allow the District to procure the SAN from Dell Marketing L.P. 
using the NASPO ValuePoint Master Agreement #23026, participating addendum #7-
23-70-55-01. 
Action: Approved purchase. 

P7 



4. Joint Proclamation Commending Supervisor Sue Frost 
Recommendation: Approve the joint Proclamation with Rio Linda Elverta Recreation 
and Park District commending Supervisor Sue Frost. 
Action: Approved the joint Proclamation. 

PRESENTATION ITEMS: 

1. Health & Safety Division & Metro Fire Cancer Task Force 
(Battalion Chief Anthony Peck) 
Recommendation: Receive presentation . 
Action: Presentation received. President Goold requested an update two Board 
meetings from now on how the implementation is going. 

2. Health & Wellness Program 
(Health & Wellness Program Manager Patrick Gallagher) 
Recommendation: Receive presentation. 
Action: Presentation received . 

ACTION ITEMS 

1. Disclosure of Material Expenditure - Excess General Liability Insurance - Vantage 
Risk Specialty Insurance Company and Westchester Surplus Lines Insurance 
Company 
(Brad Svennungsen, US/ Insurance Services) 
Recommendation: Authorize payment of $284,776 to Vantage Risk Specialty 
Insurance Company and $199,137 to Westchester Surplus Lines Insurance 
Company for Excess General Liability Insurance. 
Action: Moved by Director Webber, seconded by Clark, and carried unanimously by 
members present to authorize payment of $284,776 to Vantage Risk Specialty Insurance 
Company and $199,137 to Westchester Surplus Lines Insurance Company for Excess 
General Liability Insurance. 

2. Adopt Resolution - Contract Award to Ready Rebound, Inc. for Rapid 
Intervention Injury Management and Navigation Services 
(Health & Wellness Program Manager Patrick Gallagher) 
Recommendation: Adopt Resolution approving a contract award to Ready Rebound 
Inc. and authorize the Fire Chief or his designee to execute and administer an 
agreement materially similar to the attached agreement. 
Action: Moved by Director Clark, seconded by Wood, and carried unanimously by 
members present to adopt Resolution 2024-104 approving a contract award to Ready 
Rebound Inc. and authorize the Fire Chief or his designee to execute and administer an 
agreement materially similar to the attached agreement. 

REPORTS 

1. PRESIDENT'S REPORT - (President Goold) 

No Report 

2. FIRE CHIEF'S REPORT - (Chief House) 

No Report 
8.8.2024 Board Meeting Action Summary Minutes 

PB 
Page 2 of 4 



OPERATIONS REPORT - (Deputy Chief Mitchell) 

Squad 53 Implementation 

• Our call volume has grown exponentially over time, resulting in our members and 
apparatus becoming busier and busier. 

• One way we have been able to adapt to the growth in demand for services is through 
implementation of the squad response model, and we have seen great success with 
this model. 

• Fortunately, through consistent exploration of budget efficiencies and the work of 
multiple divisions, we have been able to find innovative and fiscally responsible ways 
to support our members in the field. This has resulted in our ability to deploy a 4th 

squad unit. 
• I'm happy to announce to the Board tonight that through collaboration with a number of 

folks, Operations has determined that Squad 53 will be implemented as our 4th squad 
unit on or before September 4, 2024 as an additional first responder. 

• We are not done. We still need more resources in the streets. We look forward to 
continuing adapting to the needs of our community, and pursuing innovative ways of 
delivering service to the public through the right resource, with the right capabilities, at 
the right time. 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT- (Out-of-Class Deputy Chief Johnson) 

Deputy Chief Johnson introduced himself to the Board and provided a brief background of his 
22 years at Metro Fire. 

SUPPORT SERVICES REPORT - (Deputy Chief Bailey) 

No Report 

3. SMFD - FIREFIGHTERS LOCAL 522 REPORT (Captain Sean Scollard, Local 522 Vice 
President) 

Captain Scollard thanked staff for their fantastic presentations tonight on the wellness 
front and we appreciate the collaboration on the health and wellness vis_its. The PPGMT 
wellness funds that we secured in contracts negotiations are being utilized by members 
for PTSI or substance abuse treatments so the money is going to great use. This is a 
result of the collaborative efforts between labor and management. 

4. COMMITTEE AND DELEGATE REPORTS 
All Committee Meetings will be held at the Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District Board Room, 
10545 Armstrong Avenue, Mathe,; California unless otherwise specified. 

A. Executive Committee - (President Goold) 

No Report 

8. Communications Center JPA - (AC Greene) 

No Report 

C. Finance and Audit Committee - (Director Jones) 

No Report 
8.8.2024 Board Meeting Action Summary Minutes Page 3 of 4 

pg 



D. Policy Committee - (Director Saylors) 

Met tonight and reviewed the new Administrative Policy 02.022.01, 56 Hour 
Alternate Assignment Position Policy which came out of a pilot program. 

BOARD MEMBER QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 

No comments. 

CLOSED SESSION: 
The Board recessed to Closed Session at 7:49 p.m. on the following matters: 

1. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL- PENDING LITIGATION
Pursuant to California Government Code Section§ 54956.9(d): One Case 

1. Anthony Benelisha and the Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District 
Claim No. 23-173286 
Colin Connor of Lenahan, Slater, Pearse & Majernik, LLP 

2. Public Employee Performance Evaluation: Fire Chief 
Pursuant to Government Code Sections 54957(b)(1) and 54954.S(e) 

CLOSED SESSION REPORT OUT: 

The Board reconvened to open session at 8:26 p.m. General Counsel John Lavra reported 
the Board met in closed session on two matters: 1. Workers' Compensation Claim of Anthony 
Benelisha, no reportable action was taken. 2. Public Employee Performance Evaluation of 
the Fire Chief, no reportable action was taken 

To view the video of .the meeting, please visit the Metro Fire Website or our YouTube 
channel: 

https://metrofire.ca.gov/2024-08-08-board-meeting 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UC9t-uKlc oOUGNrmogdQ QA 

ADJOURNMENT 

The meeting was adjourned at 8:27 p.m. 

Grant Goold, President Jennifer Sheetz, Secretary 

Marni Rittburg, CMG, Board Clerk 

8.8.2024 Board Meeting Action Summary Minutes Page 4 of 4 
P10 



Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District 
10545 Armstrong Ave., Suite 200 • Mather, CA 95655 • Phone (916) 859-4300 • Fax (916) 859-3702 

ADAM A. HOUSE 
Fire Chief 

DATE: 

TO: 

09-12-2024 

Board of Directors 

SUBJECT: Purchase Approval - Purchase of FUR K65 Thermal lmagers from 
W.S. Darley & Co. Using Sourcewell Cooperative Contract #020124-
WSD 

TOPIC 

Staff requests Board approval for the purchase of FUR K65 Thermal Imaging Cameras 
(lmagers) and accessories from W.S. Darley & Co. using Sourcewell contract #020124-
WSD. These lmagers are part of a 2-year plan to replace the aging ISG/INFRASYS Elite 
XR imagers that were purchased through a grant in 2012. 

BACKGROUND 

Currently the Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District (District) supplies captains and truck 
members with ISG/INFRASYS Elite XR imagers and Seek Reveal FirePROs for all riding 
positions. After conducting a review of both current imagers, it was determined that the 
District was in need of a larger, more rugged NFPA-certified imager designed explicitly as a 
decision-making imager. The needed imager would give a company officer essential 
thermal information to assist in making tactical decisions for their crews. 

To determine which imager would best meet the needs of the District, the District's Safety 
Division, in conjunction with the District's Purchasing Division, issued a Request for 
Information (RFI) for an NFPA-certified thermal imager. Five lmager manufacturers 
responded to the RFI: Bullard Safety, Seek Thermal, Teledyne FUR, Avon Protection, and 
MSA Safety Sales, LLC. As a part of the evaluation process, each interested proposer was 
required to present their proposed imager to a group of evaluators. The evaluators included 
members of the District's Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) Team. Each proposer was 
allowed 60 minutes to present their proposed lmager and answer questions from the 
evaluators. Based upon presentation scores, three manufacturers were invited to continue 
in the evaluation process and participate in field-trials; those manufacturers were Seek 
Thermal, Bullard Safety, and Teledyne FUR. 

Seek Thermal, Bullard Safety, and Teledyne FUR were asked to provide three of their 
proposed lmagers for live-fire testing. All imagers were issued to evaluators three weeks 
prior to live-fire testing for familiarization in the field before live-fire testing. Evaluators could 
use the lmagers in the field and during training and give other members exposure during 
drills and other activities. Live-fire testing took place at Station 52 on September 27, 2023. 
The Training Division, in addition to the reserve firefighters and the Fire Behavior Cadre 

Serving Sacramento and Placer Counties 

P11 

I 

I I 

I 
I 



Page2 

were asked to participate. The evaluators were broken up into groups, with members of 
each group simultaneously evaluating each lmager in the same environment. To better 
recreate the changing environments within a structure fire, the evaluation team designed a 
course of activities based upon multiple conditions and tactics to take place inside the live
fire training Drager Phase 5 Prop. The FUR K65 imager received the highest score in field
trial evaluations. 

DISCUSSION 

The PPE Team recommends that the District purchase the FUR K65 to replace the 
District's current lmagers. Each lmager comes with a standard warranty and free in-service 
training by a FLIR factory representative. An enhanced warranty is available for an 
additional $1,800 per lmager, however, the PPE Team does not foresee the cost to repair 
damaged lmagers exceeding the cost of the enhanced warranty and has therefore decided 
to decline the enhanced warranty at this time. Budgeted funds in the Fiscal Year (FY) 24/25 
Final Budget would replace lmagers on front-line RIC engines and trucks, lmagers used in 
the Training Division, and lmagers used for fire academies. These funds would also be 
used to build a stock of imagers and accessories in the Safety Division. Funds will be 
requested in FY 25/26 to outfit the remaining engines within the District's fleet. 

Sourcewell cooperative agreement #020124-WSD will be utilized to purchase these 
lmagers. Sourcewell is a State of Minnesota local government unit and service cooperative 
that facilitates competitive public solicitations and contract award processes for the benefit 
of its 50,000+ participating entities across the United States and Canada. Cooperative 
purchasing provides participating agencies increased administrative efficiencies and the 
power of combined purchasing volume that results in overall cost savings. Purchasing has 
reviewed the documents from Sourcewell in relation to contract #020124-WSD and has 
confirmed the District may utilize this cooperative agreement. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

The proposed cost for the FLIR K65 imagers is $225,358.73. This cost is included in the 
District FY 2024/2025 Final Budget. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff Recommends that the Board authorize the purchase of FLIR K65 thermal imaging 
cameras and accessories from W.S. Darley & Co. using Sourcewell contract #020124-
WSD. 

Submitted by: 

Name Anthony Peck 
Out-of-Class Assistant Chief Health, 
Wellness and Safety 

Approved by: 

MlchaeUohnson{sip 3, 20H 08:35 PDT) 

Name Michael Johnson 
Out-of-Class Deputy Chief, 
Admin 

Serving Sacramento and Placer Counties 

P12 



ADAM A. HOUSE 
Fire Chief 

DATE: 

TO: 

Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District 
10545 Armstrong Ave., Suite #200, Mather, CA 95655 • (916) 859-4300 • Fax (916) 859-3700 

September 12, 2024 

Board of Directors 

SUBJECT: Adopt Resolution: Reimbursement For Tax Exempt Debt 

TOPIC 

Staff recommends adoption of the attached reimbursement resolution to reimburse the 
Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District ("District") for funds that have been or may be expended 
prior to issuing tax-exempt debt. The recommended action is in anticipation of the District entering 
into a capital lease transaction to fund the purchase of budgeted capital expenditures. 

DISCUSSION 

In order to legally reimburse expenditures made prior to the issuance of tax-exempt debt, a 
reimbursement resolution must be in place pursuant to U.S. Treasury regulation Section 1.150-2. 
Adoption of a reimbursement resolution does not bind the District to issuing future debt. Instead, 
a reimbursement resolution allows the District to use its own funds for capital expenditures and 
later repay itself from the financing proceeds. 

Purchases made after the reimbursement resolution adoption and those made no more than 
60 days prior to adoption are eligible for reimbursement. Staff anticipates the recommendation to 
finance not more than $15,300,000 of capital purchases in accordance with the Capital 
Improvement Program (CIP) and the FY 2024/25 Final Budget. The capital purchases expected 
to be financed and received in the current fiscal year includes medical equipment, storage 
appliance replacements, squad vehicles, ambulances, ambulance remounts, ambulance 
replacements, a Type I engine replacement, a Type Ill engine replacement, a ladder truck and a 
fleet service truck. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

Adoption of the resolution will allow reimbursement of qualified District expenditures up to 
$15,300,000. These purchases are included in the District's FY 2024/25 Final Budget. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends adoption of the attached reimbursement resolution. 

Submitted by: 

'Rd-bf/; tv Atu2et:Wtv 
Roby Anderson 
Grant Specialist 

ATTACHMENTS: 

Attachment 1: Resolution 

~ c"7L 
Adam A. House 
Fire Chief 

SeNing Sacramento and Placer Counties 

P13 



Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District 
l I 10545 Armstrong Ave., Suite 200, Mather, CA Phone (916) 859-4300 Fax (916) 859-3700 

~~ 
ADAM A. HOUSE 

Fire Chief 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-XXX 

A RESOLUTION OF THE SACRAMENTO METROPOLITAN FIRE DISTRICT 
DECLARING THE OFFICIAL INTENT OF THE DISTRICT TO REIMBURSE ITSELF 
FOR CERTAIN CAPITAL AND OTHER EXPENDITURES FROM THE PROCEEDS 

OF PROPOSED INDEBTEDNESS 

WHEREAS, the Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District ("District") is a political 
subdivision of the State of California ("State") and is duly organized and existing pursuant 
to the State constitution and laws; and 

WHEREAS, the District expects to expend some of its own funds to purchase the 
Capital Assets (Reimbursement Expenditures) prior to the issuance of indebtedness for 
the purpose of financing costs associated with the Capital Assets on a long-term basis; 
and 

WHEREAS, the District reasonably expects that the debt obligations for the Capital 
Assets will be issued in total for not more than $15,300,000 and that certain of the 
proceeds of such debt obligations will be used to reimburse the Reimbursement 
Expenditures. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the 
Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District, as follows: 

1. Compliance with Treasury Regulations 

This declaration is made solely for purposes of establishing compliance with 
requirements of Section 1.150-2 of the Treasury Regulations. This declaration does not 
bind the District to make any Capital Asset expenditure or incur any indebtedness. 

2. Intent to Reimburse the District from Proceeds of Indebtedness 

The District hereby declares its official intent to use proceeds of indebtedness to 
reimburse itself for Reimbursement Expenditures as follows: 

a) The District will allocate the proceeds of such debt obligations to 
Reimbursement Expenditures no later than 18 months after the latter of 
(i) the date the cost is paid or (ii) the date the Capital Asset is placed in 
service or abandoned (but in no event more than three (3) years after the 
cost is paid). 

Serving Sacramento and Placer Counties P14 



RESOLUTION NO. 2024-XXX 
Page2 

b) The District intends, and reasonably expects, to be reimbursed with the 
proceeds of the Debt for expenditures made on and after July 30, 2024, 
which date is no more than 60 days prior to the date hereof. 

3. Effective Date. 

This Resolution shall take effect from and after the date of its passage and 
adoption. 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 12th day of SEPTEMBER 2024. 
I, MARNI RITTBURG, BOARD CLERK OF SACRAMENTO METROPOLITAN FIRE 
DISTRICT HEREBY CERTIFY the foregoing Resolution was introduced and passed 
at a regular meeting of the Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District Board by the 
following roll call vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

ATTEST: 

Marni J. Rittburg, CMC, CPMC 
Clerk of the Board 

SACRAMENTO METROPOLITAN FIRE DISTRICT 

By: -------------
President, Board of Directors 

P15 



Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District 

10545 Armstrong Ave., Suite 200 • Mather, CA 95655 • Phone (916) 859-4300 • Fax (916} 859-3702 

ADAM A. HOUSE 
Fire Chief 

DATE: September 12, 2024 

TO: Board of Directors 

SUBJECT: Purchase Approval - Fou~ (4) North Star Ambulances 

TOPIC 

Staff seeks Board approval for the purchase of four (4) North Star Ambulances from Braun 
Northwest, Inc. 

SUMMARY 

These vehicles will be replacing Ambulances which are at the end of their service life due to age 
and mileage. 

DISCUSSION 

The District intends to fulfill this purchase utilizing Houston-Galveston Area Council (HGACBuy) 
contract number AM10-23. HGACBuy is a government agency which provides a cooperative 
purchasing program as part of its service to other government agencies. Local governments are 
eligible to become participating members of HGACBuy, and Metro Fire is a member. Products 
and services are contracted with HGACBuy after having been subjected to a competitive 
solicitation process. The Purchasing Division has reviewed has reviewed the contract and 
determined it is consistent with Metro Fire purchasing policies and procedures. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

The total cost of the purchase for the four (4) North Star Ambulances Is $1,323,258.92. The 
funding for this purchase is included in the FY 2024/25 Final Budget. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff respectfully recommends the Board appr_ove the purchase of these four (4) North Star 
Ambulances from Braun Northwest, Inc. utilizing HGACBuy contract number AM10-23. 

Submitted by: 

Shea Pursell 
Fleet Manager 

Approved by: 

tyb,11,y~ 

Ty Bailey 
Deputy Chief, Administration 

Serving Sacramento and Placer Counties 

P16 

I 
I 
I 
l 
1 ,. 
I 

I 
I 

! 
i
i 



I :ff;, «i UiV~ ~;uv-v inc. 
~ . • . ' . 

• '._L .: • • • :-· ~, 

. 150}l6~fKist.ar Drive/ PO Box 1204 / Chehalis, WA 98532 / 360.748.0195 I 800.245.6303 I fax 360.748.0256 

•• -~ ;"j(~~;;::;.:.:~<'.> HGAC PROPOSAL II 
·<'tfi{fatii0111 2024 

• : ··J :t,:,::\ '. ' 
·, . ,Sifohirii'erito Metropolitan Fire District 

. . :_ . . f,>:'.,: .;.·:·-·r":.:.~::,-c,., 

· . :·: : Attii~;Sliea Pursell 
· '.: ··· 4425·:nhaiey Blvd. 
• •. iW~~t~y_aµ, CA 95652 

• ,puH'elbii'ea@metrofire.ca.gov 

;~ ·;;ff~~fit~) 2025 North Star 147-1 Ambulances 

Braun Northwest is pleased to offer the following proposal which is based upon HGAC contract 
AMl0-23: 

Four (4) 2025 North Star 147-1 Ambulances on a 2025 Chevrolet Silverado 3500HD 4x2 Ambulance 
Prep diesel chassis based upon enclosed NS Vehicle #4013-1 "As Built" specifications dated 7/2/24 and 
drawings dated 7/8/24 with the following change: . . . . 

• Utilize 2025 Chevrolet 3500 4x2 Ambulance Prep diesefchassis ivith current model year 
options 

iB!l.~e price HGAC AM23CA04 .................... .. .......................... ... ..... .... ......... $ 
• P~~,J~µe~/PH~tw1}iz!l#Q.n options taken ........................................... .............. $ 
~aiiitax.:,'b~s~ii Qf 1;15% .... '., .,. .. ~ ..................... I ........................ ............. . ..... $ 
California Tire Tax (non-taxable) ................................................................. $ 

211,873.00 
97,688.00 
23,990.98 

12.75 
Multi Vehicle Discount·················~··:•.~·-; .. ."-.:.~ .. :. ................. .................... . ..... <$ 1,500.00> 
HGAC Buy discount ................... ~-.. ·'. .... _;; ................................................... <$ 1,500.00> 
Subtotal for one (1) vehicle .... -;·,•;~; ,-,-;,:.-:.·._.. .................... ... ...... ...... ...... .. ........... $ 330,564.73 
Subtotal for four (4) vehicles;;;~. ;;;~;;,; ................................... . ...................... $1,322,258.92 

l . ~ .; • • ·•.. • • • 

HGAC Fee····· ·· ···••.~•.•··~-~.~ .... ·.-; .. ·~· ........................................... . .. . ...... ............. $ 1,000.00 
Total F.O.B. McCiei°Iari/CA '.~ :·.· ..................................... ............................... $1.323,258.92** 

F.O.B.: 

Delivery: 

, . ... '., .- . 

MtCietlaxi, California 
, .. ;·.• 

A.pproximately 530 - 580 days, based upon current manufacturing plan and receipt of 
chassis. 

·-- --Tej:D1~:- •. ---- Niµety percent (90%) payment due upon receipt of vehicle. Balance due in thirty (30) 
cJ~rs, 

*No.le: A~qve prid11g bzc/udes a chassis jloori11g fee. You will be notified as soon as the cit as sis arrives at Brmm 
Nortliwe~t. Ijilte qlt~ssis is pair/ i11 full wit/till 30-days of arrival a credit will be issued (See Options Page). 
**Note_:'.°Tlie·~6d~e pi'ici11g includes ro1111d-trip tmvel clwrgesfor two (2) people jlyiug iufor Final I11spectio11. 
Bi·awi Noril11ve$t,{11c. is a Califomia dealer (#16055) with insurance information available upon request. 

Respec . lilly Subxµitted by: 
Braun ••. we ·1, Inc. 

We agree to accept the above proposal: 
Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District 

f Sales Signature Date 

EMERliENC\' VEHICLES 

Printed Name 
TM 
cc BC/LM 
Enclosures: Option page, specifications, drawings. 

Title 

www.braunnw.conf 1 7 



HGAC8uy CONTRACT PRICING WORKSHEET 
For MOTOR VEHICLES Only 

Contract 
No.: 

AMl0-23 
Date 

Prepared: 
8/20/2024 

Due to global supply chain constraints, any delivery date contained herein is a good faith estimate as of the date of this 
order/contract. As needed, delivery updates will be provided as soon as possible. 

Buying 
Agency: 

Contact 
Person: 

Phone: 

Fnx: 

Email: 

Product 
Descrintion 

lSacramento Metropolitan Fire District 

! Shea Pursell 

1(916) 859-4140 

1pursell.shea@metrofire.ca.gov 

Contrnctor: 

Prepared 
By: 

Phone: 

Fnx: 

Email: 

!Braun Northwest, Inc. 

!Tami Mccallum 

\(800) 245-6303, ext. 1014 

\(360) 748-0256 

\tamimccallum@braunnw.com 

AM23CA04 Description North Star -Type 1 - GMC K3500 4x4 - Diesel Engine -147"L x 94"W x 72" HR 

A:.·J:!roduct Item Base Unit Price Per Contractor's H-GAC Contl'act: $ 211,873.00 

!J. Published Options - Itemize below - Attach additional sheet(s) if necessary. 
(Note: Published Options are "manufacturer standard options" which were submitted and priced in Contractor's proposal.) 

Description Cost Description Cost 

{ I ' .. .. j ~~~ : I 
I I I , 

) r I I I ' 
i \ ' 

f I ' fl I ' ) /\ 
I 

: . I ' J i ' ' I ' 
:; 

L ,' '\ 
, 

' 
-, I Cl ; { j 

l I \ 
I J : 

I ' ! I .. / J , \ ' } 
! - ' 

....... ~ ---

Subtotal From Additional Shcet(s): $ 51,580.00 1 

I Subtotal B: $ 51,580.001 

C. Customization Category Totals - Itemize below/ Attach additional sheet(s) if necessary. 
(Note: Customization options are "manufacturer non-standard options" which were submitted and priced in Contractors's proposal.) 

Description Cost Description Cost 

Subtotal From Additional Shcct(s): $ 46,108.00 1 

I Subtotal C: $ 46,108.00 1 

Check: Total cost of Customization Categories (C) cannot exceed 25% of the total of the Base j 
Unit Price plus Published Options (A+B). j 

For this transaction the percentage is: 

o: Total Cost Before Any Applicable Trade-In/ Other Allowances/ Discounts (A+B+C) 

Quantity Ordered: II 4 II X Subtotal of A+ B + C: I 309,561 II I Subtotal D: 1 $ 1,238,244.00 I 
I Subtotal E: j $ 1,000.00 I ~- H-GAC Orde1· Processing Charge (Amount Per Current Policy) 

F,_Trade-lns I Special Discounts I Other Allowances/ Freight/ Installation I Miscellaneous Charges 

Description Cost Description 

HGAC Buy Discount <$1,500> per unit, total of (4) i $ (6,000.00) Multi Vehicle Discount, <$1,500> per unit, total of 4 

Sales Tax, total of (4) 

Tire Tax, total of (4) 

Delivery Date:j 

1 s 95,963.92 

i $ 51.00 ........ . . 

Approx. 530-58011 
days __ 

G. Total Purchase Price (D+E+F): I $ 

Cost 

(6,000.00) 

84,014.92 I 
1,323,258.92 

P18 



Code or Published Option 
Offered 

Part No. Price 

1.02.14 Liquid Suspension - Dodge, Ford, GM - standard chassis $ 13,425.00 

1.02.36 Auxilia1y Compressor with bracket and fittings Ford F-450/550 $ 4,500.00 

2.02 Drop Skirt 4" (on modules up to 167" in length) $ 700.00 

2.08 Compartment -Additional Compartment, total of (2) $ 1,200.00 

2.09.08 Stainless steel on Entrance Doors, all $ 950.00 

2.10 Standard Cabinet - adjustable divider, total of 12 $ 600.00 

2.10 Standard Cabinet - additional, total of(3) $ 900.00 

2.10 Double polycarbonate side-hinged doors w/ Eberhard/paddle latches $ 805.00 

2.11 Recessed Double Doorstep $ 100.00 

2.13 Walk-thru Sliding Partition Door - Polycarbonate $ 625.00 

3.04 Module Re/Paint - Color other than White $ 1,000.00 

3.04 Paint roofofthe module white (down to drip rails on 147" - 167" module) $ 1,200.00 

3.04 Chevrons, Standard Red/Yell ow - Entire Rear $ 1,400.00 

4.01 Bumper - Standard 7" - Open Grate, delete $ (500.00) 

4.01 Bumper - Standard 10" - Flip Up Grip Strut Step $ 1,100.00 

4.16 License Plate - Oval Bezel LED, Whelen 0AC0EDCR / 0SC0EDCR $ 125.00 

4.17 Zico Electric Step $ 2,475.00 

5.10 Attendant Seat - Wise 1655 with 4 point - Cabinet or Pedistal Base $ 2,125.00 

5.11 Oxygen Systems - Electric - price to upgrade to Electric 02 $ 1,500.00 

5.14 Seatbelt, 4 Point $ 825.00 

5.17 Second Condenser $ 1,800.00 

5.17 Hypothermic Hose $ 400.00 

5.32 Glove Butler - Cabinet Mount, per position, total of (7) $ 1,050.00 

5.34 Bench End Web Restraint $ 600.00 

6.09 Console/Mapbox - F Series $ 3,075.00 

6.15 Whelen 3" LED, 3SC0CDCR with Flange $ 200.00 

6. 16 Module Interior Lighting Timer with Momenta1y Rocker Switch - InPower, total of(2) $ 700.00 

6.17 Brake/Tail. Turn, Backup Lights - Whelen M6 Series $ 2,025.00 

6.18 Radio Install - Customer Supplied, Dual Head Radio $ 1,750.00 

P19 



6.21 Shoreline Power - 120 VAC GFCI Duplex Ground Outlets, (2) additional $ 400.00 

6.24 (2) 31 ECL with stud mount terminals (with cables to battery drawer) $ 1,200.00 

6.24 Battery boost switch $ 400.00 

6.25 12-VoltReceptacles -(2) standard in build, (2) additional $ 250.00 

6.25 Auxiliary Bud $ 250.00 

6.25 InPower disconnect switch $ 250.00 

6.30 Prima1y/Secondary position and dimmer $ 525 .00 

6.48 Opticom - Front Lightbar $ 1,650.00 

Total Changes $ 51 ,580.00 

P20 



Offered 
Category Customization Description Price 

1.01. Chassis 
Change in model year and price increase associated with it, additional chassis options, or 

changing to "customer supplied" chassis 
$ 3,519.00 

1.02. Chassis Installation of additional eqipment/parts (not covered by Published Options Parts List), or $ (550.00) 
Modifications deletion of specified items, additional labor associated with changes 

2. Modular Changes to overall module size and design, cost of materials, non-standard equipment $ 16,549.00 
Construction installed/utilized in Compartments and Cabinets 

3. Coatings and Graphics/Lettering by third party, non-standard material usage, additional paint cost based on $ 185.00 
Finishes module size and design 

Changes to cost of materials, overall module size and equipment installed/utilized, deletion . 

4. Module Exterior of spec'ed equipment which is part of the vehicles' build up cost, installation of additional $ 3,135.00 

non-standard eqipment/parts 

5. Module Interior 
Deletion ofspec'ed equipment which is part of the vehicles' build up cost, installation of $ 4,935.00 
additional non-standard eqipment/parts 

6. Electrical 
Change in cost .based on items/parts/radios used in custom build, or deletion of standard 

equioment which is part of the vehicles' build up cost 
$ 3,740.00 

6.30. Emergency Installation of flashers/scenelights/sirens/masts/inverters etc., which are not in Published $ 11,970.00 
Warning System Options Parts List 

8.01 Loose Any additional non-standard items/parts shipped loose with the vehicle $ 2,625.00 
Equipment 

Total Changes $ 46,108.00 

P21 



Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District 
1 I 

lfiu,'.# 10545 Armstrong Ave., Suite 200 • Mather, CA 95655 • Phone (916) 859-4300 • Fax (916) 859-3702 

ADAM A. HOUSE 
Fire Chief 

DATE: 

TO: 

September 12, 2024 

Board of Directors 

SUBJECT: Consider Approving Resolution to Utilize Sacramento Area Council 
of Governments Cooperative Purchasing Agreements for Fuels 

TOPIC 
Staff requests approval to utilize the Sacramento Area Council of Governments (SACOG) 
cooperative agreement with Hunt & Sons LLC. for the purchase of automotive fuels. 

BACKGROUND 
To ensure continuous service delivery, the Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District has an 
ongoing need to purchase various types of fuels for the District's various types of vehicles 
and apparatus. Since 2019, the District has been utilizing SACOG's current cooperative 
purchasing agreement for fuels and lubricants. This agreement expired on August 30, 2024. 

DISCUSSION 
On May 7, 2024, SACOG issued a new Request for Proposals (RFP) to procure automotive 
fuel and lubricants. This RFP was designed as a cooperative purchasing agreement where 
SACOG will be administering the agreement for government agencies within the 
Sacramento Region. Additionally, the District was listed in the RFP as one of 40 
participating agencies. 

On August 8, 2024, SACOG informed the District that they will be awarding an agreement 
for all fuel products to Hunt and Sons, LLC and an agreement to Hunt & Sons, Inc for 
lubricants and propane as a result of their RFP. The agreements will be for a period of three 
years with the option to negotiate for an additional two years. On August 26, 2024, the 
District received notice from SACOG that their contracts had been fully executed by the 
vendors. 

Utilizing the cooperative purchasing procurement method provides participating agencies 
increased administrative efficiencies and the power of combined purchasing volume that 
results in overall cost savings. 

FISCAL IMPACT 
$1,415,000 for automotive fuels is already included in the District's FY 2024/2025 Final 
Budget. 

Serving Sacramento and Placer Counties 

P22 



Page2 

RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the Board authorize the purchase of automotive fuels from Hunt & 
Sons LLC. using the SACOG cooperative purchasing agreement and to allow the Fire Chief 
or his designee to execute the Participating Agency Sub Agreement documents required for 
utilizing the referenced SACOG agreement. 

Submitted by: 

Mark Siebert 
Logistics Manager 

ATTACHMENTS: 

Attachment 1: SACOG Agreement 

Approved by: 

ty bailey~~ 

Ty Bailey 
Deputy Chief, Support Services 

Attachment 2: Form of Participating Agency Sub Agreement 
Attachment 3: Resolution 

Serving Sacramento and Placer Counties 

P23 



ADAM A. HOUSE 
Fire Chief 

Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District 
10545 Armstrong Ave., Suite 200, Mather, CA Phone (916) 859-4300 Fax (916) 859-3700 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-XXX 

A RESOLUTION OF THE SACRAMENTO METROPOLITAN FIRE DISTRICT 
ENTERING INTO A PARTICIPATING AGENCY SUB AGREEMENT WITH HUNT & 

SONS LLC FOR THE PURCHASE OF AUTOMOTIVE FUELS 

WHEREAS, the Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District ("District") is a political 
subdivision of the State of California ("State") and is duly organized and existing pursuant 
to the State constitution and laws; and 

WHEREAS, the District has an ongoing need to purchase various types of fuels 
for the District's various types of vehicles and apparatus; and 

WHEREAS, the Sacramento Area Council of Governments (SACOG) issued a 
Request for Proposals (RFP) to procure automotive fuels and lubricants; and 

WHEREAS, the District was listed as a Participating Agency in SACOG's RFP; 
and 

WHEREAS, SACOG has awarded an agreement for all fuel products to Hunt & 
Sons, LLC as a result of this RFP; and 

WHEREAS, Hunt & Sons LLC has the experience and expertise necessary to 
competently perform the services set forth in the SACOG agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the District desires to enter into a sub agreement with Hunt & Sons 
LLC for the purchase of fuel products. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the 
Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District does hereby: 

1. Approve the purchase of automotive fuels from Hunt & Sons LLC using the 
SACOG cooperative purchasing agreement; and 

2. Authorize the Fire Chief or his designee to execute the Participating Agency 
Sub Agreement documents required for utilizing the referenced SACOG 
agreement. 

Serving Sacramento and Placer Counties P24 



RESOLUTION NO. 2024-XXX 
Page2 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 12th day of September 2024. I, 
MARNI RITTBURG, BOARD CLERK OF SACRAMENTO METROPOLITAN FIRE 
DISTRICT HEREBY CERTIFY the foregoing Resolution was introduced and passed at a 
regular meeting of the Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District Board by the following roll 
call vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

ATTEST: 

Marni J. Rittburg, CMC, CPMC 
Clerk of the Board 

SACRAMENTO METROPOLITAN FIRE DISTRICT 

By:---- ---------
President, Board of Directors 

P25 



Contract#: CT250004 
Funding Source: Local Agencies 

Project Code: SAC135 

SACRAMENTO AREA COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 
JOINT PURCHASING AGREEMENT 

For 
FUEL 

THIS AGREEMENT, is made and entered into on Augu5t23, 2024 , at 
Sacramento, California, by and between the SACRAMENTO AREA COUNCIL OF 
GOVERNMENTS, a joint powers agency (hereinafter "SACOG"), through its duly appointed 
Executive Director, and HUNT & SONS LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, (hereinafter 
"Contractor" or "Consultant"). 

RECITALS: 

1. Contractor represents that it is specially trained and/or has the experience and 
expertise necessary to competently perform the services set forth in this Agreement; and 

2. Contractor is willing to perform the services and work described in this Agreement 
under the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement; and 

3. SACOG desires to contract with Contractor to perform the services and work 
described in this Agreement under the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

1. Time of Performance: Contractor shall commence work upon receipt of a notice 
to proceed from SACOG and in accordance with the Scope of Work, attached hereto as Exhibit 
A and incorporated herein. Contractor shall complete work as expeditiously as is consistent with 
generally accepted standards of professional skill and care and the orderly progress of work. 
Work shall be completed and this Agreement shall expire on August 31, 2027, unless otherwise 
terminated as provided for in this Agreement or extended by written agreement between the 
parties. SACOG in its sole discretion may elect to extend this Agreement for up to two (2) 
additional years upon written notice to Contractor. 

2. Scope of Work: Contractor agrees to fully perform the work described in Exhibit 
A - Scope of Work. In the event of any inconsistency between Exhibit A and other terms and 
conditions of this Agreement, Exhibit A shall control. SACOG reserves the right to review and 
approve all work to be performed by Contractor in relation to this Agreement. Any proposed 
amendment to the Scope of Work must be submitted by Contractor in writing for prior review and 
approval by SACOG's Executive Director or designee. Approval shall not be presumed unless 
such approval is made by SACOG in writing. 

3. Standard of Quality: All work performed by Contractor under this Agreement shall 
be in accordance with all applicable legal requirements and shall meet the standard of quality 
ordinarily to be expected of competent professionals in Contractor's field of expertise. 

4. Compliance with Laws: Contractor shall comply with all applicable Federal, State, 
and local laws, codes, ordinances, regulations, orders and decrees. Contractor warrants and 
represents to SACOG that Contractor shall, at its own cost and expense, keep in effect or obtain 
at all times during the term of this Agreement, any licenses, permits, insurance and approvals that 

P26 



Contract#: CT250004 
Funding Source: Local Agencies 

Project Code: SAC135 

are legally required for Contractor to practice its profession or are necessary and incident to the 
performance of the services and work Contractor performs under this Agreement. Contractor 
shall provide written proof of such licenses, permits, insurance and approvals upon request by 
SACOG. SACOG is not responsible or liable for Contractor's failure to comply with any or all of 
the requirements contained in this paragraph. 

5. Consideration: The Participating Agencies (defined in Exhibit A) shall pay for all 
fuel as set forth in the fee schedule in Exhibit A. In no instance shall SACOG be liable for any 
payments to Contractor or Participating Agencies. 

6. Invoicing, Costs and Payment: 

a. Contractor shall submit monthly invoices in arrears to Participating Agencies 
(defined in Exhibit A) no later than the 15th of each month and in accordance with 
the Scope of Work. Contractor shall be notified within fifteen ( 15) working days 
following receipt of its invoice by Participating Agency of any circumstances or data 
identified by Participating Agency in Contractor's written billing which would cause 
withholding of approval and subsequent payment. Contractor shall be paid within 
thirty (30) days after the Participating Agency's approval of each billing. 

7. Independent Contractor: Contractor, and the agents and employees of Contractor, 
in the performance of this Agreement, shall act as and be independent contractors and not officers 
or employees or agents of SACOG. Contractor, its officers, employees, agents, and 
subcontractors, if any, shall have no power to bind or commit SACOG to any decision or course 
of action, and shall not represent to any person or business that they have such power. Contractor 
has and shall retain the right to exercise full control of the supervision of the services and work 
and over the employment, direction, compensation and discharge of all persons assisting 
Contractor in the performance of services under this Agreement. Contractor shall be solely 
responsible for all matters relating to the payment of its employees including, but not limited to, 
compliance with social security and income tax withholding, workers' compensation insurance 
and all regulations governing such matters. 

8. 

a. 

b. 

Termination: 

SACOG shall have the right to terminate this Agreement for any reason, with or 
without cause, at any time, by giving Contractor fifteen (15) days written notice. 
The notice shall be deemed served and effective for all purposes on the date it is 
deposited in the U.S. mail, certified, return receipt requested, addressed to 
Contractor at the address indicated in Section 17. 

If SACOG issues a notice of termination: 

(1) Contractor shall immediately cease rendering services pursuant to this 
Agreement. 

(2) Contractor shall deliver to SACOG copies of all Writings, whether or not 
completed, which were prepared by Contractor, its employees or its 
subcontractors, if any, pursuant to this Agreement. The term "Writings" 
shall include, but not be limited to, handwriting, typesetting, computer files 
and records, drawings, blueprints, printing, photostatting, photographs, and 

P27 



Contract#: CT250004 
Funding Source: Local Agencies 

Project Code: SAC135 

every other means of recording upon any tangible thing, any form of 
communication or representation, including, letters, works, pictures, 
sounds, symbols computer data, or combinations thereof. 

(3) Participating Agency shall pay Contractor for work actually performed up 
to the effective date of the notice of termination, subject to the limitations in 
Section 5, less any compensation to Participating Agency for damages 
suffered as a result of Contractor's failure to comply with the terms of this 
Agreement. Such payment shall be in accordance with Section 6. 
However, if this Agreement is terminated because the work of Contractor 
does not meet the terms or standards specified in this Agreement, then 
Participating Agency shall be obligated to compensate Contractor only for 
that portion of Contractor's services which is of benefit to the Participating 
Agency. SACOG shall not be responsible for any payments to Contractor. 

9. Assignment: The parties understand that SACOG entered into this Agreement 
based on the professional expertise and reputation of Contractor. Therefore, without the prior 
express written consent of SACOG, this Agreement is not assignable by Contractor either in 
whole or in part. 

10. Binding Agreement: This Agreement shall be binding on the parties hereto, their 
assigns, successors, administrators, executors, and other representatives. 

11. Time: Time is of the essence in this Agreement. 

12. Amendments: No alteration or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be 
valid unless made in writing and signed by the parties hereto, and no oral understanding or 
agreement not incorporated herein, shall be binding on any of the parties hereto. 

13. Contractors and Subcontractors: Contractor shall not subcontract any portion of 
the work without the prior express written authorization of SACOG. If SACOG consents to a 
subcontract, Contractor shall be fully responsible for all work performed by the subcontractor and 
shall adhere to all applicable state procurement requirements for procuring subcontractor 
services. 

a. SACOG reserves the right to review and approve any contract or agreement to be 
funded in whole or in part using funds provided under this Agreement. 

b. Any contract or subcontract shall require the contractor and its subcontractors, if 
any, to: 

(1) Comply with applicable State and Federal laws that pertain to, among other 
things, labor standards, Non-Discrimination, the Americans with Disabilities 
Act, Equal Employment Opportunity, and the Drug-Free Workplace Act. 

(2) Maintain at least the minimum State-required Workers' Compensation 
Insurance for those employees who will perform the work or any part of it. 

(3) Maintain unemployment insurance and disability insurance as required by 
law, along with liability insurance in an amount to be determined by SACOG 

P28 



Contract#: CT250004 
Funding Source: Local Agencies 

Project Code: SAC135 

) that is reasonable to compensate any person, firm, or corporation who may 
be injured or damaged by Contractor or any subcontractor in performing 
work associated with this Agreement or any part of it. 

(4) Retain all books, records, computer records, accounts, documentation, and 
all other materials pertaining to the performance of this Agreement for a 
period of three (3) years from the date of termination of this Agreement, or 
three (3) years from the conclusion or resolution of any and all audits or 
litigation relevant to this Agreement and any amendments, whichever is 
later. 

(5) Permit SACOG and/or its representatives, upon reasonable notice, 
unrestricted access to any or all books, records, computer records, 
accounts, documentation, and all other materials pertaining to the 
performance of this Agreement for the purpose of monitoring, auditing, or 
otherwise examining said materials. 

14. Indemnity: Contractor specifically agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless 
SACOG and Participating Agencies, their directors, officers, members, agents, and employees 
(collectively the "lndemnitees") from and against any and all actions, claims, demands, losses, 
costs, expenses, including reasonable attorneys' fees and costs, damages, and liabilities 
(collectively "Losses") arising out of or in any way connected with the performance of this 
Agreement, excepting only Losses caused by the sole, active negligence or willful misconduct of 
an lndemnitee. Contractor shall pay all costs and expenses that may be incurred by SACOG or 
Participating Agencies in enforcing this indemnity, including reasonable attorneys' fees. The 
provisions of this Section shall survive the expiration, termination, or assignment of this 
Agreement. 

15. Insurance Requirements: Contractor hereby warrants that it carries and shall 
maintain, at its sole cost and expense, in full force and effect during the full term of this Agreement 
and any extensions to this Agreement, the following described insurance coverage: 

POLICY MINIMUM LIMITS OF LIABILITY 

(1) Workers' Compensation; Employer's Statutory requirements for Workers' 
Liability. Compensation; $1,000,000 Employers' 

Liability. 

-
(2) Comprehensive Automobile: Insurance Bodily Injury/Property Damage $1,000,000 

Services Office, form CA 0001 each accident. 
covering Automobile Liability, code 8 
(hired autos) and code 9 (non-owned 
autos). 

P29 



(3) General Liability: Insurance Services 
Office Commercial General Liability 
coverage (occurrence form #CG 0001). 

(4) Errors and Omissions/Professional 
Liability (errors and omissions liability 
insurance appropriate to the 
Contractor's profession as defined 
by SACOG). 

Contract #: CT250004 
Funding Source: Local Agencies 

Project Code: SAC135 

$2,000,000 per occurrence. If Commercial 
General Liability Insurance or other form with 
a general aggregate limit, such limit shall 
apply separately to this projecUlocation or the 
general aggregate limit shall be twice the 
required occurrence limit. 

Limit of no less than $2,000,000 per 
occurrence or claim. 

If the Contractor maintains broader coverage and/or higher limits than the minimums 
shown above, SACOG requires and shall be entitled to the broader coverage and/or the higher 
limits maintained by the contractor. Any available insurance proceeds in excess of the specified 
minimum limits of insurance and coverage shall be available to SACOG. 

a. 

b. 

Deductibles and Self-insured Retentions: Any deductibles or self-insured 
retentions in excess of $5,000 must be declared to and approved by SACOG. 

Required Provisions: The general liability and automobile liability policies are to 
contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions: 

(1) For any claims related to this Agreement, Contractor's insurance coverage 
shall be the primary insurance with respects SACOG, its directors, officers, 
employees and agents. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by 
SACOG, its directors, officers, employees or agents shall be in excess of 
Contractor's insurance and shall not contribute to it. 

(2) Any failure by Contractor to comply with reporting or other provisions of the 
policies including breaches of warrants shall not affect coverage provided 
to SACOG, its directors, officers, employees or agents. 

(3) Contractor's insurance shall apply separately to each insured against 
whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of 
the insurer's liability. 

(4) Each insurance policy required by this Agreement shall be endorsed to 
state that SACOG will be notified by certified mail, return receipt requested, 
if coverage has been or will be suspended, voided, canceled by either 
party, reduced in coverage or in limits. 

(5) Contractor hereby grants to SACOG a waiver of any right to subrogation 
which any insurer of said Contractor may acquire against SACOG by virtue 
of the payment of any loss under such insurance. Contractor agrees to 
obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to affect this waiver of 

P30 



Contract#: CT250004 
Funding Source: Local Agencies 

Project Code: SAC135 

subrogation, but this provision applies regardless of whether or not SA COG 
has received a waiver of subrogation endorsement from the insurer. 

c. Acceptability of Insurers: Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current 
A.M. Best's rating of no less than A:VII, unless otherwise approved by SACOG. 

d. Certificate of Insurance and Additional Insured Requirement: Contractor shall 
furnish to SACOG an original Certificate of Insurance on a standard ACORD form, 
or other form acceptable to SACOG, substantiating the required coverages and 
limits set forth above and also containing the following: 

(1) Written notice to SACOG of the cancellation, non-renewal or reduction in 
coverage of any policy listed on the Certificate; and 

(2) The following statement with respect to the Commercial General Liability 
policy: "SACOG and its directors, officers, agents and employees, are made 
additional insureds, but only insofar as the operations under this Agreement 
are concerned." 

e. Contractor's Responsibility: Nothing herein shall be construed as limiting in any 
way the extent to which Contractor may be held responsible for damages resulting 
from Contractor's operations, acts, omissions, or negligence. Insurance coverage 
obtained in the minimum amounts specified above shall not relieve Contractor of 
liability in excess of such minimum coverage, nor shall it preclude SACOG from 
taking other actions available to it under this Agreement or by law including, but 
not limited to, actions pursuant to Contractor's indemnity obligations. 

16. Audit, Retention and Inspection of Records: 

a. SACOG or its designee shall have the right to review, obtain, and copy all books, 
records, computer records, accounts, documentation and any other materials 
(collectively "Records") pertaining to performance of this Agreement, including any 
Records in the possession of any subcontractors, for the purpose of monitoring, 
auditing, or otherwise examining the Records. Contractor agrees to provide 
SACOG or its designee with any relevant information requested and shall permit 
SACOG or its designees access to its premises, upon reasonable notice, during 
normal business hours, for the purpose of interviewing employees and inspecting 
and copying such Records to determine compliance with any applicable Federal 
and State laws and regulations. Contractor further agrees to maintain such 
Records for a period of three (3) years after final payment under the Agreement or 
three (3) years from the conclusion or resolution of any and all audits or litigation 
to this Agreement and any amendments, whichever is later. 

b. If so directed by SACOG upon expiration of this Agreement, Contractor shall cause 
all Records relevant to the Scope of Work to be delivered to SACOG as depository. 

17. Project Manager: SACOG's Project Manager for this Agreement is Katie 
Brunetti, unless SACOG otherwise informs Contractor. Any notice, report, or other 
communication required by this Agreement shall be emailed or mailed by first-class mail to the 
SACOG Project Manager as follows: 

P31 



Katie Brunetti, Senior Management Analyst 
Sacramento Area Council of Governments 
1415 "L" Street, Suite 300 
Sacramento, CA 95814 
Telephone: (916) 340-6229 
Email: kbrunetti@sacog.org 

Contract#: CT250004 
Funding Source: Local Agencies 

Project Code: SAC135 

Contractor's Project Manager for this Agreement is Brad McGhee. No substitution of 
Contractor's Project Manager is permitted without the prior written agreement of SACOG, which 
agreement shall not be unreasonably withheld. With the exception of notice pursuant to Section 
8(a) above, any notice, report, or other communication to Contractor required by this Agreement 
shall be emailed or mailed by first-class mail as follows. 

Brad McGhee, Sales Manager 
Hunt & Sons LLC 
5725 Alder Ave 
Sacramento, CA 95829 
Telephone: (209) 345-8062 
Email: bmcghee@huntnsonsllc.com 

18. Successors: This Agreement shall be binding on the parties hereto, their assigns, 
successors, administrators, executors, and other representatives. 

19. Waivers: No waiver of any breach of this Agreement shall be held to be a waiver 
of any prior or subsequent breach. The failure of SACOG to enforce at any time the provisions 
of this Agreement or to require at any time performance by Contractor of these provisions, shall 
in no way be construed to be a waiver of such provisions nor to affect the validity of this Agreement 
or the right of SACOG to enforce these provisions. 

20. Litigation: Contractor shall notify SACOG immediately of any claim or action 
undertaken by it or against it that affects or may affect this Agreement or SACOG, and shall take 
such action with respect to the claim or action as is consistent with the terms of this Agreement 
and the interests of SACOG. 

21. National Labor Relations Board Certification: Contractor, by signing this 
Agreement, does swear under penalty of perjury that no more than one final unappealable finding 
of contempt of court by a Federal court has been issued against Contractor within the immediately 
preceding two-year period because of Contractor's failure to comply with an order of a Federal 
court which orders Contractor to comply with an order of the National Labor Relations Board 
(Public Contract Code § 10296). 

22. Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990: By signing this Agreement, 
Contractor assures SACOG that it complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 
1990 (42 U .S.C. § 12101, et seq.), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability, as well 
as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued pursuant to the ADA including, but not limited 
to, those found within the Code of Federal Regulations, Title 49, parts 27, 37, and 38. 

23. Compliance with Non-Discrimination and Equal Employment Opportunity Laws: It 
. is SACOG's policy to comply with State and Federal laws and regulations including Title VI of the 
Civil Rights Act of 1964, Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA) and other Federal 

P32 



Contract#: CT250004 
Funding Source: Local Agencies 

Project Code: SAC135 

discrimination laws and regulations (including 49 CFR Part 21 through Appendix C, 23 CFR part 
200, 23 CFR part 230, 49 U.S.C. 5332, and the Title VI Assurance executed by California under 
23 U.S.C. 324 and 29 U.S.C. 794), as well as the Unruh Civil Rights Act of 1959, the California 
Fair Employment and Housing Act, and other California State discrimination laws and regulations. 
SACOG does not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of 
race, religion (including religious dress and grooming practices) color, national origin, (includes 
use and possession of a driver's license issued to persons unable to prove their presence in the 
United States is authorized under federal law), ancestry, disability, (including physical and mental, 
including HIV and AIDS) medical condition, (including genetic characteristics, cancer or a record 
or history of cancer), military or veteran status, marital status, sex/gender (includes pregnancy, 
childbirth, breastfeeding, and/or related medical conditions), age (40 and above), gender identity, 
gender expression, or sexual orientation pursuant to Sections 12940 et seq. of the Government 
Code. SACOG prohibits discrimination by its employees, contractors and consultants. 

Contractor assures SACOG that it complies with, and that Contractor will require that its 
subcontractors comply with, the following non-discrimination and equal opportunity laws. Any 
failure by Contractor to comply with these provisions shall constitute a material breach of this 
Agreement, which may result in the termination of this Agreement or such other remedy as 
SACOG may deem appropriate. 

a. Contractor and its subcontractors shall comply with all provisions prohibiting 
discrimination on the basis of race, color, or national origin of Title VI of the Civil 
Rights Act of 1964, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 2000d, et seq., with U.S. D.O.T. 
regulations, "Nondiscrimination in Federally-Assisted Programs of the 
Department of Transportation- Effectuation of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act", 49 
C.F.R. Part 21, and with any applicable implementing Federal directives that may 
be issued. 

b. Contractor and its subcontractors shall comply with all applicable equal 
employment opportunity (EEO) provisions of 42 U.S.C. § 2000e, implementing 
Federal regulations, and any applicable implementing Federal directives that may 
be issued. Contractor and its subcontractors shall ensure that applicants and 
employees are treated fairly without regard to their race, color, creed, sex, 
disability, age, or national origin. 

c. Contractor and its subcontractors will not unlawfully discriminate, harass, or allow 
harassment, against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex, 
sexual orientation, race, color, ancestry, religion, national origin, physical disability, 
mental disability, medical condition, age or marital status. Contractor and its 
subcontractors will ensure that the evaluation and treatment of their employees 
and applicants for employment are free from such discrimination and harassment, 
including the improper denial of family and medical care leave and pregnancy 
disability leave. Contractor and its subcontractors will comply with all applicable 
Federal and State employment laws and regulations including, without limitation, 
the provisions of the California Fair Employment and Housing Act (Government 
Code § 12900, et seq.) and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder 
(California Code of Regulations, Title 2, § 7285.0, et seq.). The applicable 
regulations of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission implementing 
Government Code§§ 12990 (a-f), set forth in Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of 
the California Code of Regulations, are incorporated into this Agreement by 

P33 



Contract #: CT250004 
Funding Source: Local Agencies 

Project Code: SAC135 

reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in full. Contractor and its 
subcontractors will give written notice of their obligations under this clause to labor 
organizations with which they have a collective bargaining or other agreement. 

d. Contractor shall also comply with the Older Americans Act, as amended (42 U.S.C. 
6101), prohibiting discrimination on the basis of age, Section 324 of Title 23 U.S.C., 
prohibiting discrimination based on gender, and section 504 of the Rehabilitation 
Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. 794) and 49 CFR part 27 regarding discrimination against 
individuals with disabilities. 

e. Contractor will include the provisions of this Section 23 in all contracts to perform 
work funded under this Agreement. 

24. Drug-Free Certification: By signing this Agreement, Contractor hereby certifies 
under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that Contractor will comply with 
the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 (Government Code § 8350, et seq.) 
and will provide a drug-free workplace by taking the following actions: 

a. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution, 
dispensation, possession, or use of a controlled substance is prohibited, and 
specifying actions to be taken against employees for violations. 

b. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about: 

( 1) The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 

(2) The person's or the organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free 
workplace; 

(3) Any available counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance 
programs; and 

(4) Penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations. 

c. Every employee of Contractor who works under this Agreement shall: 

(1) Receive a copy of Contractor's Drug-Free Workplace Policy Statement; 
and 

(2) Agree to abide by the terms of Contractor's Statement as a condition of 
employment on this Agreement. 

25. Union Organizing: By signing this Agreement, Contractor hereby acknowledges 
the applicability of Government Code § 16645 through § 16649 to this Agreement, excluding § 
16645.2 and§ 16645.7. 

a. Contractor will not assist, promote, or deter union organizing by employees 
performing work on this Agreement if such assistance, promotion, or deterrence 
contains a threat of reprisal or force, or a promise of benefit. 

P34 



b. 

C. 

26. 

Contract #: CT250004 
Funding Source: Local Agencies 

Project Code: SAC135 

Contractor will not meet with employees or supervisors on SACOG or State 
property if the purpose of the meeting is to assist, promote, or deter union 
organizing, unless the property is equally available to the general public for 
meetings. 

No funds received from SACOG under this Agreement shall be used to assist, 
promote, or deter union organizing. 

Other Responsibil ities: 

a. Conflicts of Interest: Contractor shall exercise reasonable care and 
diligence to prevent any actions or conditions that could result in a conflict 
with SACOG's interest. During the term of this Agreement, Contractor shall 
not accept any employment or engage in any consulting work that would 
create a conflict of interest with SACOG or in any way compromise the 
services to be performed under this Agreement. Contractor shall 
immediately notify SACOG of any and all potential violations of this 
paragraph upon becoming aware of the potential violation. 

b. Political Reform Act Compliance: Contractor is aware and acknowledges 
that certain contractors that perform work for governmental agencies are 
"consultants" under the Political Reform Act (the "Act") (Government Code 
§ 81000, et seq.) and its implementing regulations ( 2 California Code of 
Regulations§ 18110, et seq.). Contractor agrees that any of its officers or 
employees deemed to be "consultants" under the Act by SACOG, as 
provided for in the Conflict of Interest Code for SACOG, shall promptly file 
economic disclosure statements for the disclosure categories determined 
by SACOG, to be relevant to the work to be performed under this 
Agreement and shall comply with the disclosure and disqualification 
requirements of the Act, as required by law. 

c. Campaign Contribution Disclosure. Contractor has complied with the campaign 
contribution disclosure provisions of the California Levine Act (Government Code 
§ 84308) and has completed the Levine Act Disclosure Statement attached hereto 
as Exhibit B. 

d. Covenant Against Contingent Fees: Contractor warrants that it has not employed 
or retained any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working for 
the Contractor, to solicit or secure this Agreement, and that it has not paid or 
agreed to pay any company or person, other than a bona fide employee, any fee, 
comm_ission, percentage, brokerage, fee, gift, or any other consideration, 
contingent upon or resulting from the award or formation of this Agreement. For 
breach or violation of this warranty, SACOG shall have the right to annul this 
Agreement without liability, or at its discretion to deduct from the Agreement price 
or consideration, or otherwise recover, the full amount of such fee, commission, 
percentage, brokerage fee, gift, or contingent fee. 

27. Costs and Attorneys' Fees: If either party commences any legal action against the 
other party arising out of this Agreement or the performance thereof, the prevailing party in such 

P35 



Contract#: CT250004 
Funding Source: Local Agencies 

Project Code: SAC135 

action may recover its reasonable litigation expenses, including court costs, expert witness fees, 
discovery expenses, and reasonable attorneys' fees. 

28. Governing Law and Choice of Forum: This Agreement shall be administered and 
interpreted under California law as if written by both parties. Any litigation arising from this 
Agreement shall be brought in the Superior Court of Sacramento County. 

29. Integration: This Agreement represents the entire understanding of SACOG and 
Contractor as to those matters contained herein and supersedes all prior negotiations, 
representations, or agreements, both written and oral. This Agreement may not be modified or 
altered except in accordance with Section 12. 

30. Severability: If any term or provision of this Agreement or the application thereof 
to any person or circumstance shall, to any extent, be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of 
this Agreement, or the application of such term or provision to persons or circumstances other 
than those to which it is invalid or unenforceable, shall not be affected thereby, and each term 
and provision of this Agreement shall be valid and shall be enforced to the fullest extent permitted 
by law, unless the exclusion of such term or provision, or the application of such term or provision, 
wo·uld result in such a material change so as to cause completion of the obligations contemplated 
herein to be unreasonable. 

31. Headings: The headings of the various sections of this Agreement are intended 
solely for convenience of reference and are not intended to explain, modify, or place any 
interpretation upon any of the provisions of this Agreement. 

32. Authority: Each person signing this Agreement on behalf of a party hereby 
certifies, represents, and warrants that he or she has the authority to bind that party to the terms 
and conditions of this Agreement. 

33. Ownership: Permission: 

a. Contractor agrees that all work products including, but not limited to, notes, 
designs, drawings, reports, memoranda, and all other tangible personal property 
produced in the performance of this Agreement, shall be the sole property of 
SACOG, provided that Contractor may retain file copies of said work products. 
Contractor shall provide said work products to SACOG upon request. 

b. Contractor represents and warrants that: (i) all materials used or work products 
produced in the performance of this Agreement, including, without limitation, all 
computer software materials and all written materials, are either owned by or 
produced by Contractor or that all required permissions and license agreements 
have been obtained and paid for by Contractor; and (ii) SACOG is free to use, 
reuse, publish or otherwise deal with all such materials or work products except as 
otherwise specifically provided in Exhibit A. Consultant shall defend, indemnify 
and hold harmless SACOG and its directors, officers, employees, and agents from 
any claim, loss, damage, cost, liability, or expense to the extent of any violation or 
falsity of the foregoing representation and warranty. 

34. Counterparts: This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of 
which shall constitute an original, and all of which taken together shall constitute one and the 

P36 



Contract#: CT250004 
Funding Source: Local Agencies 

Project Code: SAC135 

same instrument. Documents executed, scanned, and transmitted electronically and electronic 
signatures shall be deemed original signatures for purposes of this Agreement and all matters 
related thereto, with such scanned and electronic signatures having the same legal effect as 
original signatures. 

35. Prohibition of Expending State or Federal Funds for Lobbying: 

a. Contractor certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge or belief, that: 

(1) No State or Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by 
or on behalf of the Contractor, to any person for influencing or attempting 
to influence an officer or employee of any State or Federal agency, a 
Member of the State Legislature or United States Congress, an officer or 
employee of the Legislature or Congress in connection with the awarding 
of any State or Federal contract, the making of any State or Federal grant, 
the making of any State or Federal loan, the entering into of any 
cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, 
amendment, or modification of any State or Federal contract, grant, loan, 
or cooperative agreement. 

(2) If any funds other than Federally appropriated funds have been paid or will 
be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer 
or employee of any Federal agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or 
employee of Congress, or any employee of a Member of Congress in 
connection with this Agreement, the Contractor shall complete and submit 
Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbyin.g" in accordance 
with its instructions. 

b. This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was 
placed when this Agreement was entered into. Submission of this certification is 
a prerequisite for making or entering into this Agreement imposed by Section 1352, 
Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be 
subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for 
each such failure. 

c. Contractor also agrees by signing this Agreement that he or she shall require that 
the language of this certification be included in all lower tier subcontracts, which 
exceed $100,000, and that all such sub-recipients shall certify and disclose 
accordingly. 

36. Payee Data Record Form: Contractor shall complete the Payee Data Record form 
attached to this Agreement as Exhibit C, in lieu of IRS W-9, so that SACOG may submit payment 
information to its auditor/treasurer (Sacramento County). 

37. State Prevailing Wage Rates: If the Scope of Work is for a public works project 
pursuant to California Labor Code Section 1720, et seq., including surveying work, then the 
following provisions apply: 

P37 



Contract #: CT250004 
Funding Source: Local Agencies 

Project Code: SAC135 

a. Contractor shall comply with the State of California's General Prevailing Wage 
Rate requirements in accordance with California Labor Code, Section 1770, and 
all State and local laws and ordinances applicable to the work. 

b. Any subcontract entered into as a result of this contract, if for more than $25,000 
for public works construction or more than $15,000 for the alteration, demolition, 
repair, or maintenance of public works, shall contain all of the provisions of this 
Section. 

c. When prevailing wages apply to the services described in the Scope of Work, 
transportation and subsistence costs shall be reimbursed at the minimum rates set 
by the Department of Industrial Relations (DIR) as outlined in the applicable 
Prevailing Wage Determination. See http://www.dir.ca.gov. 

38. Economic Sanctions: Pursuant to California State Executive Order N-6-22 (Order) 
imposing economic sanctions against Russia and declaring support of Ukraine, SACOG shall 
terminate any contract with any individual or entity that is in violation of the Order or that is subject 
to economic sanctions therein, and shall not enter a contract with any such individual or entity 
while the Order is in effect. 

(Signature Page to Follow) 

P38 



Contract#: CT250004 
Funding Source: Local Agencies 

Project Code: SAC135 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, THE PARTIES HAVE ENTERED INTO THIS AGREEMENT AS OF 
THE DATE HEREIN ABOVE APPEARING: 

SACRAMENTO AREA COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 

JAMES CORLESS 
Executive Director 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

SLOAN SAKAI YEUNG & WONG, LLP 
Legal Counsel to SACOG 

RECOMMENDED BY: 

KA TIE BRUNETTI 
Senior Management Analyst 

HUNT & SONS LLC 

BRAD MCGHEE 
Sales Manager 

P39 



EXHIBIT A 

Scope of Work 

Contract#: CT250004 
Funding Source: Local Agencies 

Project Code: SAC135 

1. Contractor's Relationship with Participating Agencies and SACOG 

1.1. Hunt & Sons LLC. ("Contractor") will act as a contractor for the SACOG Joint Regional 
Public Agency Fuels and Lubricants bid for the following products: Unleaded, Diesel #2, 
Red-Dyed Diesel, Ethanol-85, Renewable Diesel, and Cardlock. Contractor will be the 
main point of contact for all Participating Agency. Contractor's corporate headquarters is 
located in Sacramento and that is where all of the billing will take place. Contractor is a 
fully integrated Petroleum Distributor and will be purchasing all of the fuel required for 
delivery to Participating Agencies from various fuel suppliers and using Contractor's fleet 
of delivery trucks to make deliveries. 

1.2. Each of the following public agencies may become "Participating Agencies" under this 
Agreement upon negotiation, execution and delivery of a sub-agreement with Contractor 
substantially in the form of Exhibit E attached hereto: 

1 City of Davis 21 Yuba County 

2 City of Elk Grove 22 Citrus Heights Water District 

3 City of Folsom 23 Elk Grove Unified School District 

4 City of Galt 24 Los Rios Community College District 

5 City of Lincoln 25 North Tahoe Public Utility District 

6 City of Placerville 26 Placer County Water Agency 

7 City of Rocklin 27 Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District 

8 City of Roseville 28 Sacramento Regional County Sanitation District 

9 City of Sacramento 29 California State University, Sacramento 

10 City of Vacaville 30 San Joaquin County 

11 City of Wheatland 31 San Juan Unified School District 

12 City of Yuba City 32 San Juan Water District 

13 County of Amador 33 Sierra College 

14 County of Butte 34 Sacramento Municipal Utility District (SMUD) 

15 County of El Dorado 35 South Sutter Water District 

16 County of Nevada 36 Town of Truckee 

17 County of Placer 37 University of California at Davis (UC Davis) 

County of Yuba-Sutter Transit Authority 
18 Sacramento 38 

19 County of Sutter 39 Cosumnes Community Service District 

20 County of Yolo 

P40 



Contract#: CT250004 
Funding Source: Local Agencies 

Project Code: SAC135 

1.3. At the option of Contractor, other cities, counties, school districts or governmental 
agencies (Participating Agencies) in the State of California may receive any of the 
available services set forth herein upon negotiation, execution and delivery of a 
Participating Agency Sub-Agreement with Contractor, substantially in the form attached 
hereto as Exhibit E at the same prices specified in Exhibits "A-4" Pricing Sheets. In the 
case a local government entity is not listed in the Exhibits "A-4" Pricing Sheets, the 
Contractor will work with SACOG and the anticipated Participating Agency to extend 
pricing on a reasonable estimate based on the relative proximity and distance of agencies 
already listed in the Exhibits "A-4" Pricing Sheets. 

1.4. There is no guarantee of usage by the Participating Agencies. SACOG shall not be 
responsible for any Participating Agency's failure to execute a sub-agreement, or for the 
breach of any sub-agreement by a Participating Agency. Participating Agencies utilizing 
the procurement conducted by SACOG for Contractor's services will place their orders 
directly with Contractor. 

1.5. All Participating Agencies' requirements, purchase orders, invoices, and payments will be 
handled directly with Contractor. Pricing is specified in Exhibits "A-4" Pricing Sheets. 

1.6. Every six months from the effective date of this Agreement, Contractor shall deliver to 
SACOG a written biannual report of all fuels delivered to the Participating Agencies during 
the preceding six-month period. The report shall include the following information for each 
during the current period: (1) list of the Agencies participating (2) total gallons purchased 
for all product types for each Participating Agency (3) total Administrative Biannual 
Reports must be submitted by August 31 for the period of January 1 to June 30 and by 
February 28 for the period of June 30 to December 31 each year. 

Concurrently with the delivery of the biannual report, Contractor shall pay an 
administrative fee to SACOG in the amount of $0.0065 for each gallon (or gallon 
equivalent) of fuels delivered during the prior six-month period. Payment shall be made 
on the basis of actual deliveries without any withholding for late payment by a Participating 
Agency. Payment shall be made to SACOG by August 31 for the period of January 1 to 
June 30 and by February 28 for the period of June 30 to December 31 each year. 
Contractor's failure to submit a biannual report and remit timely payment of the 
administrative fee required under this section to SACOG may result in SACOG terminating 
this Agreement. 

2. Contractor's Scope of Work 

2.1. Bulk Fuel Distribution 

2.1.1. Contractor will deliver fuel, and provide other services as specified below, to 
Participating Agencies without causing them to change the way they function or 
adding any additional expenses to their operating budgets. These services are 
included in the fees included within this contract. Fees for delivered fuel will be 
assessed to the Participating Agencies at the rates set forth in Exhibits "A-4" 
attached hereto. 

P41 



Contract#: CT250004 
Funding Source: Local Agencies 

Project Code: SAC135 

2.1.2. Contractor will assign a customer service representative to each Participating 
Agency who will visit all the locations to verify tank sizes, physical tank locations, 
best traffic routes and physically stick each of the fuel tanks to get an initial 
inventory level so that Contractor can begin to monitor fuel usage and create 
deliveries when product is needed. 

2.1.3. Contractor's dispatch will use its tracking method to gauge when fuel is needed 
based on daily usage. 

2.1.4. Dispatch wil l monitor the fuel market and advise the Participating Agencies when 
it.is favorable or not favorable to purchase fuel based on potential market changes. 

2.1.5. Contractor will maintain accurate inventory totals based on daily consumption and 
tank stick readings. 

2.1.6. Contractor will put each location on a "keep full" route where, based on the daily 
fuel consumption, Contractor will deliver to all tankwagon delivery locations at least 
weekly based on when fuel is needed. 

2.1. 7. Contractor will ensure that fuel is delivered to each location on a weekly schedule 
regardless of weekly variation in consumption by the Participating Agency or 
location. Daily or weekly consumption is subject to change, and routine deliveries 
must be ensured to maintain adequate inventory at each location. 

2.1.8. Contractor will utilize existing tank monitoring systems, if used by the Participating 
Agency, enabling Contractor to use the system to fax or email inventory levels daily 
to Contractor's dispatch for remote monitoring of fuel levels at high-volume sites. 

P42 



Contract#: CT250004 
Funding Source: Local Agencies 

Project Code: SAC135 

2.2. Contractor will contact all high-volume sites and sites daily that have inconsistent usage 
(such as those in "snow country") to monitor needs due to expected storms. As used in 
this paragraph, "high-volume sites" is defined as sites with an average daily usage of more 
than one load per day. 

2.3. Steps in Fuel Delivery 

2.3.1. Contractor receives a call from a Participating Agency location for fuel delivery or 
it comes due as part of Contractor's "Keep Full Program." 

2.3.2. Contractor creates fuel order and dispatch schedules a delivery. 

2.3.3. If delivery is for a location in one of the areas that will be serviced by Contractor 
where the most economical and logistical place of pick up will be a major loading 
terminal, then the fuel truck will be dispatched to one of the fuel loading racks in 
Sacramento, Chico, Stockton or the Bay Area that is connected to the pipeline 
system coming from the Bay Area Refineries. The fuel will be delivered to the 
ordering location. • 

2.3.4. If the delivery is for a location where the Participating Agency is best served by an 
outlying Contractor distribution facility, then the truck will load from that facility and 
deliver the fuel to the ordering location. 

2.3.5. The fuel truck will make the delivery and then a signed delivery ticket is brought 
back to Contractor's headquarters for processing. 

2.3.6. Invoice for fuel delivery will be generated and mailed to the Participating Agency 
for payment. 

2.3.7. Benchmark pricing (OPIS, BPN) will be based on the actual delivery date. 

2.4. Emergency Resources and Protocol 

2.4.1. Contractor will ensure all staff is adequately trained and prepared for potential 
emergency situations to ensure sufficient inventory of all products is available at 
all times. 

2.4.2. Contractor's customer support is available to all participating agencies 24 hours a 
day, 365 days a year. Contractor's office hours are 6 a.m. to 6 p.m. Monday thru 
Friday and 8 a.m. to 12 p.m. on Saturdays. After hours, Contractor's customer 
service team can be reached by calling Contractor's office and speaking with 
Contractor's answering service. The answering service can reach every member 
of Contractor's dispatch and customer service department by cell phone 24 hours 
a day. 

2.4.3. Contractor is available to respond to issues and make deliveries seven (7) days a 
week. 

P43 



Contract #: CT250004 
Funding Source: Local Agencies 

Project Code: SAC135 

2.4.4. Contractor maintains fuel inventory at all Distribution Facilities and Cardlocks, 
enabling them to make deliveries if there are product outages at the terminals or if 
the pipelines are down. 

2.4.5. If power outages occur, Contractor will pull fuel from its own locations with its own 
power to ensure Participating Agencies still have fuel. 

2.4.6. Contractor has experience and contacts with the State of California Department of 
Transportation (CalTrans) allowing their trucks highway access during road 
closures due to snow conditions, for deliveries in emergency situations. 

2.4.7. Contractor has Forest Service contracts for forest fires and Contractor's drivers 
are trained to continue delivery of product to fire crews during forest fires. 

2.4.8. Contractor employs local drivers who live in the communities they deliver in, 
enabling delivery of product to Participating Agencies any time of day on very short 
notice. 

2.4.9. Contractor will provide extra fueling equipment such as tanks and pumps to 
Participating Agencies to utilize during potential emergencies to help provide 
additional storage onsite to fuel vehicles and emergency generators. 

2.4.10. In the case of an emergency, Contractor will provide priority delivery to 
Participating Agencies under this Agreement. 

2.5. Subcontractors 

2.5.1 . Contractor will not utilize the services of any subcontractors for any work to be 
performed through the duration of this contract. 

P44 



EXHIBIT A-1 

Contract #: CT250004 
Funding Source: Local Agenyies 

Project Code: SAC135 

Supplemental Scope of Work - Delivery Requirements 

1. General Delivery Requirements 

1.1. Contractor shall perform all deliveries to Participating Agency locations in a safe and 
professional manner. Participating Agencies shall reserve the right to add or delete 
delivery locations as-needed during the course of the subcontract(s). 

1.2. Contractor shall be solely responsible for ensuring that its vehicles/equipment have all the 
necessary attachments (pumps, hoses, etc.) required to deliver and dispense fuel into the 
storage tanks at each delivery location. Contractor's equipment shall be in good working 
order and all personnel shall be appropriately trained in safety matters to preclude 
accidents endangering Participating Agency personnel, property, or members of the 
public. Contractor must ensure all hoses and all coupler fittings are sufficiently tightened 
when in use. Product that leaks from hoses or coupler connections must be cleaned and 
removed by the Contractor at the Contractor's sole expense, including product in spill 
containers. 

1.3. Contractor shall ensure that deliveries are made as often as requested and within the 
delivery times stated herein to all Participating Agency delivery locations, regardless of 
weather conditions. 

1 .4. All deliveries must be made in less than twenty-four (24) hours after an order is placed 
unless otherwise specified by the ordering Participating Agency. 

1.5. Contractor is solely responsible to verify delivery hours with the Participating Agency 
before delivering the product. If a delivery cannot be completed within the time frame 
requested by the Participating Agency, Contractor must notify the Participating Agency 
within 12 hours of scheduled delivery time. 

1.6. Deliveries may be made to locations on secure grounds requiring access clearances for 
delivery drivers. It is the Contractor's sole responsibility to contact the secure location for 
specific security clearance procedures, hours of operation for deliveries and service, dress 
code, and other rules for delivery. 

1. 7. Contractor may be required to make emergency on-site or weekend deliveries upon 
special request by a Participating Agency. Emergency deliveries are defined as deliveries 
requested outside of 7:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. (Pacific Standard Time), Monday through 
Friday (excluding agency-observed holidays). Weekend deliveries shall be defined as 
deliveries requested from 5:01 p.m. Friday through 6:59 a.m. the following Monday. If a 
delivery is scheduled on an agency-observed holiday, the delivery is considered a 
weekend delivery for billing purposes. No additional charges or fees shall be accepted or 
paid by a Participating Agency for such deliveries. 

P45 



Contract#: CT250004 
Funding Source: Local Agencies 

Project Code: SAC135 

2. Requirements for Bulk Gasoline, Bulk Diesel, and #2 Red-Dyed Diesel Fuel 

2.1. Deliveries shall be made within twenty-four (24) hours after receipt of an order from the 
Participating Agency. 

2.2. If an order is placed for a truck and trailer quantity to be delivered to a truck and trailer 
location and the Contractor elects to make that delivery in vehicle of lesser capacity, the 
Contractor shall not charge more than the truck and trailer prices prevailing at the time 
of delivery. 

2.3. All deliveries shall be made in metered trucks that are compatible with the Participating 
Agency's storage tanks. Temperature correction of delivered products shall not be 
allowed. Invoices and payments shall be for gross gallons delivered. 

2.4. All fuel deliveries shall be accompanied by a drop tag stating the tank size, reading, 
quantity delivered, point of delivery and signature of delivering driver, and specify 
whether the delivery was a bobtail or truck and trailer delivery. 

2.5. At the time each delivery is made, the Contractor's driver may be required to draw a 
one (1) gallon sample from the truck and leave the sample with the Participating 
Agency's staff receiving the delivery. The sample container will be furnished by the 
Participating Agency. The Participating Agency reserves the right to send the fuel 
sample to an independent testing laboratory for analysis at any time. Should the fuel 
test analysis indicate that the fuel does not meet the specifications listed herein, the 
Contractor may be required to remove and replace the product at the Contractor's 
expense. Continued failure to deliver product meeting the specifications listed herein 
may be cause for cancellation of this Agreement and any sub-agreement. 

3. Requirements for Renewable Diesel 

3.1. The following terms are applicable to Renewable Diesel delivery: 

3.1.1. In the case that shipment or delivery of Renewable Diesel is delayed or unavailable 
for distribution, Contractor must identify unavailability within 24 hours through 
written or electronic notice on the Participating Agency's billing invoice. Once 
Renewable Diesel product is available for shipment Contractor must provide 
written or electronic notice of availability on Participating Agency's billing invoice. 
Contractor must notify the SACOG Contract Administrator in the case shipment or 
delivery of Renewable Diesel is delayed by five (5) calendar days or more to any 
Participating Agency. 

3.1.2. In the event there is more than one lapse in supply of Renewable Diesel over the 
course of five (5) calendar days, a Participating Agency may obtain Renewable 
Diesel from the reserve supplier. 

3.1.3. If the Contractor is unable to supply Renewable Diesel within fourteen (14) 
calendar days, then the Participating Agency can elect to obtain Renewable Diesel 
from reserve supplier and discontinue obtaining Renewable Diesel from the 
Contractor for the remainder of the term of the Agreement. 

P46 



EXHIBIT A-2 

Contract#: CT250004 
Funding Source: Local Agencies 

Project Code: SAC135 

Supplemental Terms and Conditions - Pricing 
1. Pricing 

1.1. All Categories 

1.1.1. Contractor's pricing shall be Free-on-Board (FOB) Destination, freight prepaid and 
assumed by the Contractor, and exclusive of all taxes or surcharges. Contractor 
shall provide firm, fixed margins, bobtail and delivery point differentials, and unit 
prices for the products listed in this contract for the initial contract period of three 
(3) years from the date this bid is awarded, with the option to negotiate for an 
additional two years. 

1.2. Provisions Specific to Bulk Gasoline and Diesel Fuel, #2 Red-Dyed Diesel Fuel 

1.2.1 . The contract pricing shall be based on two factors: the average Sacramento 
unbranded daily rack price reported by the Oil Price Information Service (OPIS) 
and the Contractor's margin (along with any applicable bobtail and delivery point 
differentials). The formula below outlines the contract price per gallon to be paid 
by the Participating Agencies. 

OPIS "Unbranded Rack Average" + Contractor's Margin = Total Price Per Gallon. 

1.2.2. The Contractor's margin, including bobtai l and delivery point differentials, shall 
represent purchases that are FOB Destination, freight prepaid and assumed by 
the Contractor to the Participating Agencies' delivery locations. The Contractor's 
margin and differentials shall be exclusive of all taxes and surcharges. Applicable 
taxes and surcharges shall be listed separately in the Contractor's response as 
well as on the resulting invoices. Some agencies are exempt from Federal Excise 
Tax for purchases of unleaded and diesel fuels. The Contractor shall be 
responsible to provide the Participating Agencies with any necessary exemption 
certificates to be completed prior to the award of the sub-agreement(s). 

1.2.3. The Contractor shall be solely responsible for distributing an electronic copy (via 
email) of the daily OPIS report to each of the Participating Agencies. The daily 
OPIS report shall show at a minimum the daily average rack prices for the 
gasoline and diesel products specified herein for the Sacramento area. 

1.3. Renewable Diesel Pricing 

1.3.1 . Pricing will be based on two factors: Oil Price Information Service (OPIS) spot 
'Unbranded Daily Rack Average" and Hunt & Sons LLC's margin (along with any 
applicable bobtail and delivery point differentials) for each location. The contractor 
margins and delivery locations are shown attached within Exhibit "A-10"Pricing 
sheet. 

P47 



Contract#: CT250004 
Funding Source: Local Agencies 

Project Code: SAC135 

The OPIS UNBRANDED DAILY RACK AVERAGE WITH CAR price per gallon of 
R-99 Renewable Diesel is based on the wholesale "OPIS GROSS GARB NO. 2 
ULTRA LOW SULFUR DISTILLATE PRICES WITH CAR COST" for Sacramento, 
CA, at "Early Day (9:00 am EST). Contract Price Daily Issue of the Oil Price 
Information Service (OPIS). During the term of this Contract, the prices for the 
R-99 Renewable Diesel furnished hereunder may be adjusted only in the manner 
set forth herein. Prices shall be adjusted automatically on a daily basis. Said 
adjustments shall be made based on the "UNBRANDED DAILY RACK AVERAGE 
WITH CAR" price of "OPIS GARB NO. 2 ULTRA LOW SULFUR DISTILLATE 
PRICES WITH CAR COST" for Sacramento, CA, as shown in the 9 AM Contract 
Price Daily Issue of the OPIS issued on the date of delivery, plus Contractor's 
margin. 

OPIS price sourcing ULS Diesel #2 + ULS Diesel #2 Contractor's Margin = 
Composite Price 

If the OPIS publication is modified to include R-99 renewable diesel fuel, then 
SACOG reserves the right to re-establish the base price calculation method. 

1.3.2. Those agencies who have signed Exhibit E, Form of Agency Participating Sub
Agreement, and all departments associated, may opt to procure Renewable Diesel 
as an alternative to Petroleum Diesel on request at the locations identified within 
the Petroleum Diesel tabulation of the Hunt & Sons Inc. Pricing Sheet. Those 
Participating Agencies will have the ability to begin deliveries of Renewable Diesel 
after the scope of work is first approved by Contractor. All locations not identified 
on the original Hunt & Sons LLC. Pricing Sheet must first be approved by 
Contractor before any delivery begins. 

In the instance the Renewable Diesel is unable to be sourced by contractor, 
Participating Agencies can choose to source with the alternate Renewable Diesel 
provider under Contract or they can choose to source standard petroleum diesel 
to those sites regularly scheduled for Renewable Diesel deliveries. Contractor will 
contact the Participating Agency before any delivery begins. Pricing for the 
petroleum diesel will be based off the original margins displayed within the Exhibits 
"A-4" Pricing Sheet. 

2. Account Set-Up and Payment Information 

2.1. Contractor shall establish and maintain individual accounts with unique account numbers 
for each Participating Agency, and its departments and divisions at the time they 
execute a separate sub-agreement with the Contractor. 

2.2. At a minimum, all invoices shall include the following information: the blanket purchase 
order number, customer account number (refer to Section 2.1 above), location of delivery, 
invoice number, invoice date (Month/Day/Year), date (Month/Day/Year) that products 
were delivered, number of gallons delivered/dispensed or quantity of each product, 
Contractor's margin with differentials shown or unit price for each product with the 
extended amounts clearly shown, applicable discount for each product, and applicable 
sales tax and all other taxes/surcharges/fees. All invoices must include the name of the 
agency employee that placed the order. Contractor must invoice each account separately. 

P48 



Contract #: CT250004 
Funding Source: Local Agencies 

Project Code: SAC135 

Contractor shall not consolidate multiple accounts onto the same invoice or billing 
statement unless specifically requested by Participating Agency. 

2.3. The Participating Agency shall pay the Contractor only the margins/pricing specified in the 
Contractor's response. Such amount will be due and payable upon receipt of an invoice 
by the Participating Agency with the appropriate information specified in Section 2.2, 
above. Contractor shall provide a copy of the daily OPIS price information sheet for each 
order delivered with each billing statement. Participating Agencies will not accept or pay 
any emergency response premiums, administrative surcharge costs, or any other 
surcharges not identified in the Contractor's response. Charges imposed by the State of 
California or the Federal Government after the proposal has been awarded will be 
honored. 

3. Quality Assurance Provisions 

3.1. Contractor shall provide traceability on all shipments back to the refinery or within five (5) 
business days upon request from the Participating Agency. 

3.2. The Contractor shall ensure that all trucks, railcars, and vessels shall be drained, 
cleaned, and inspected prior to loading if the previous load contained other petroleum 
product(s) that would contaminate the desired fuel product. 

4. Product Labeling and Emergency Response 

4.1. Prior to the first delivery of product, Contractor shall provide each Participating Agency 
with a Material Safety Data Sheet (MSDS) provided for each of the products awarded to 
the Contractor and all other chemicals intentionally added into the product including 
additives. Contractor shall be responsible for immediately providing the Participating 
Agency with any updated or revised MSDS sheets throughout the term of the resulting 
agreement( s). 

4.2. Twenty-four (24) hour emergency response must be provided by the Contractor. Prior to 
the first delivery, the Contractor shall provide each Participating Agency with a list of 
emergency contact persons and a twenty-four (24) hour company telephone number in 
the event that a fire or other event occurs and the Participating Agency is in need of 
telephone consultation regarding the Contractor's product(s). 

4.3. Contractor shall be responsible for any spills or other incidents involving its product(s) 
during delivery, up to and including the off-loading process, when the Contractor's product 
is transferred into the Participating Agency's tank(s). Contractor's drivers shall be fully 
trained by the Contractor in chemical safety. 

5. Safety Requirements 

5.1. Contractor agrees to perform all dispensing and delivery tasks in such a manner as to 
meet all accepted standards for safe practices throughout the term of the contract and to 
safely maintain stored equipment, machines and materials or other hazards consequential 
or related to the work. Contractor agrees to accept sole responsibility for complying with 
the supplemental terms and conditions specified herein as well as all local, County, State 

P49 



Contract#: CT250004 
Funding Source: Local Agencies 

Project Code: SAC135 

or other legal requirements at all times. These requirements may include, but are not 
limited to, full compliance with the terms of the applicable Federal O.S.H.A. and State of 
California O.S.H.A. Safety Orders so as to protect all persons, including Participating 
Agency employees, agents of the Participating Agency, vendors, members of the public 
and others from foreseeable injury, or damage to their property. 

During performance and upon completion of services, Contractor shall remove all unused 
equipment, supplies, instruments of service, all excess or hazardous material, trash, and 
legally dispose of them. Contractor shall leave the Participating Agency's delivery location 
in neat, clean, and acceptable condition meeting their expectations. 

6. Insurance Requirements 

6.1. Contractor shall furnish evidence of insurance, including required endorsements, to each 
Participating Agency, demonstrating proof of coverage in the amounts as specified in this 
Agreement, upon request. Each Participating Agency may require different coverage 
levels than specified in this Agreement, which will only apply to that agency. 

Proof of Insurance must include all applicable endorsements pursuant to 
Participating Agency's specific insurance requirements and include policy 
numbers. Blanket endorsements may be rejected. 

Failure to comply with insurance and endorsement requirements may result in the 
termination of this Agreement. All costs of complying with the insurance and applicable 
required endorsements are included in Contractor's pricing as listed in this Agreement. 

7. Allocation 

7.1. It is understood that the Contractor's obligation to perform is subject to modification and 
reduction in accordance with any federal, state or local government program governing 
the allocation of products by the seller, which may occur during the term of the contract. 
The Contractor shall take any necessary measures to ensure delivery of sufficient 
quantities of products to each of the Participating Agencies in accordance with said 
regulations. 

7.2. In the event of such programs, the Participating Agencies reserve the right to terminate 
their respective sub-agreements on the effective date of the allocation program. 

8. Records 

8.1. Contractor shall maintain accurate, complete, detailed records of each Participating 
Agency's total number of purchases. Records must have capability to be filtered/sorted 
by agency department, product, delivery date, and delivery location. 

9. Licenses and Permits 

9.1. Contractor will possess and keep in effect for the duration of the Contract any licenses 
and permits necessary to perform the contracted services. Contractor shall be licensed 
to do business in the State of California. 

P50 



EXHIBIT A-3 

Specifications 

1. General Specifications 

Contract#: CT250004 
Funding Source: Local Agencies 

Project Code: SAC135 

1.1. The products listed in this Agreement shall meet all applicable Federal, State, and local 
government laws and environmental requirements and regulations, including but not 
limited to, the California Air Resources Board (CARB), the laws, regulations, and 
standards of the American Society of Testing and Materials, and industries law, codes, 
requirements, standards, and guidelines currently in force and any of those put in force 
during the term of the resulting contract period(s). The products shall also conform with 
the State of California specifications (or applicable updates as they may apply). Contractor 
shall be responsible for ensuring that the products delivered to each Participating Agency 
comply with all such laws, regulations, and requirements. 

1.2. Contractor may elect to purchase products from major refineries or other reliable sources 
to obtain the lowest available prices. It is the Contractor's sole responsibility to manage 
purchases from available sources to maintain its ability to supply products to the 
Participating Agencies. 

2. Specifications for Automotive Oil and Fuel Products 

2.1. Unleaded regular gasoline fuel must be a volatile mixture of liquid hydrocarbons 
containing small amounts of additives, suitable for use as fuel with spark-ignition, 
internal combustion engines. The fuel shall conform to California Code of Regulations 
(CCR) Title 4, Division 9, Chapter 6, Article 5, Section 4140. 

2.2. Unleaded regular gasoline fuel shall also meet the requirements of CCR, Title 13, 
Division 3, Chapter 5, Article 1. Evidence of such facts shall be available to all 
Participating Agencies in the form of a letter certifying such compliance and signed by a 
responsible official of the proposer's company to supply this fuel to the Participating 
Agency. 

2.3. Unleaded regular gasoline shall have a minimum Anti-Knock Index of 87 unless 
otherwise specified herein. 

2.4. The finished fuel shall be visually free of un-dissolved water, sediment, suspended 
matter, and it shall be clear and bright at the ambient temperature or 21 °C (70°F), 
whichever is higher. 

2.5. STORAGE LIFE: The fuel shall not deteriorate in ordinary storage and shall not form 
excessive gum, resin, or deposits. 

3. Specifications for Diesel Fuel 

3.1. Diesel fuel must be suitable for on-highway use. 

P51 



Contract#: CT250004 
Funding Source: Local Agencies 

Project Code: SAC135 

3.2. Diesel fuel must be suitable for use in diesel engines operating in industrial and heavy 
mobile (vehicle} service. The fuel shall conform to California Code of Regulations (CCR) 
Title 4, Division 9, Chapter 6, Article 5, Section 4143. 

3.3. Diesel fuel shall also meet the requirements of CCR, Title 13, Division 3, Chapter 5, 
Article 2, Section 2281 (sulfur content) and Section 2282 (aromatic hydrocarbon). 
Alternative diesel formulations must be certified by CARS. Evidence of such facts shall 
be available to all Participating Agencies in the form of a letter certifying such 
compliance and signed by a responsible official of the Contractor's company to supply 
this fuel to the Participating Agency. 

3.4. Diesel fuel shall have a minimum Ctrain rating of 53 unless otherwise specified herein. 

3.5. The finished fuel shall be visually free of un-dissolved water, sediment, and suspended 
matter. 

3.6. STORAGE LIFE: The fuel shall not deteriorate in ordinary storage and shall not form 
excessive gum, resin, or deposits. 

4. Specifications for Ethanol E-85 Fuel 

4.1. Ethanol E-85 fuel covers a fuel blend, nominally 85 volume% denatured fuel ethanol 
and nominally 15 volume % hydrocarbons for use in ground vehicles with automotive 
spark-ignition engines. 

4.2. Ethanol E-85 fuel shall meet the CARS requirements of CCR Title 13, Division 3, 
Chapter 5, Article 3, Section 2292.4, Specifications for E-85 Fuel Ethanol, or the 
Contractor shall obtain a test program exemption from the California fuel specifications 
for E-85 from CARS. 

4.3. STORAGE LIFE: The fuel shall not deteriorate in ordinary storage and shall not form 
excessive gum, resin, or deposits. 

5. Specifications for R-99 Renewable Diesel Fuel 

5.1. The fuel delivered must be at least 99% renewable diesel and meet the latest versions of 
the following specifications and standards. 

5.2. "Renewable Diesel" means a diesel fuel that is produced from non-petroleum renewable 
sources but is not a mono-alkyl ester and which is registered as a motor vehicle fuel or 
fuel additive under 40 CFR Part '79. 

5.3. The renewable diesel fuel shall conform to California Code of Regulations (CCR) Title 4, 
Division 9, Chapter 6 Article 5, Section 4149. 

The renewable diesel fuel shall also meet the requirements of the California Code of 
Regulation, Title 13, Division 3, Chapter 5, Article 2, Section 2281 (sulfur content) and 
section 2282 (aromatic hydrocarbon). Alternative diesel formulations must be certified by 
CARS. 

P52 



Contract #: CT250004 
Funding Source: Local Agencies 

Project Code: SAC135 

The renewable diesel fuel must meet a GARB approved Certified Pathway with a carbon 
intensity (Cl) no more than 40 gCO2e/MJ as determined by the Low Carbon Fuel 
Standard (LCFS), Title 17, Division 3, Chapter 1, Subchapter 10,·Article 4, Subarticle 7, 
of California Code of Regulations (CCR), Section 95486 The Cl is a method of 
quantifying the overall carbon impact of a fuel as defined by the California Air Resources 
Board Low Carbon Fuel Standard (LCFS). It is the supplier's responsibility to provide 
documentation acceptable to the participating agency. 

5.4. SACOG and Participating Agency may, at any time, take a sample of the delivered 
product to be inspected and tested according to the methods specified in active 
standards, ASTM D5453 for sulfur, D5186 for aromatics and other test methods 
specified in ASTM D975 and ASTM-D6866 utilizing Carbon 14 dating to verify the 
percentage of bio-based of a fuel and petroleum. 

5.5. The finished fuel shall be visually free of un-dissolved water, sediment, and suspended 
matter. 

5.6. STORAGE LIFE: The fuel shall not deteriorate in ordinary storage and shall not form 
excessive gum, resign, or deposits. 

P53 



~ ~-, 
5 '"" 

iJ u 

City of Rosevi lle 

Sobun D1fforcntfal • City of Ro~evilte Locations 

Corporate Y•rd • 2005 Hilltop Circle, Roscvflle (957-47) 

Golf Co~c Matntcnancc Yard 
Diamond O•le Golf Coui,e 3◄9 01>mond o.ie Rd., 1to-.. c•11lle 

Pollcelf1rc Oepilrtmcnts • 401 O;ik Street, Rcncvfllc 

---

City of Rocklin 

Bobtilll Dlfferentf.i.l • Rocklin Loc.i.tlon: 

Rocklin Corp. Y.1rd • 4081 AM~ Ct., Rockltn (95bn) 

City of Folsom 

BobuU Olffercntt.il • Fo~om Locadons 

Corporation Yard 1300 LcldC"...dorff Street, Fo~m (95630) 

Fire Department #35 (2 Section Tonk) 535 GleM Drfve, Folsom 
(95630) 

SMUD 

Bobun Dfffcrcntfal • SMUO Loatfon: 

7J 
U1 
..i::,. 

U.S. Hlghwoy ◄0 Pollock Pinc,;, CA 95725 

EXHIBIT A-4 
PRICE LIST 

Note: May 7, 2024 used ;u price for Gasoline, Ultra. Low Sulfur Diesel #2, Dyed Ultra Low Sulfur Die:cl #2, Ethanol and Renewable. 
SACOG 

BULK GASOLINE, DIESEL FUEL, AND RELATED PRODUCTS 
BID PRICING WORKSHEET -

NICAff 'l!"I Stet Ill PO 
-Ma.Tua: .......... ., sr.-. --..GEIWCE-,SII ~ -- -- ~-----f/lllllllO - ----29,- - ...... -- -- !XTIWCZ 

335,000 3.4547 (0 .1190) s 3.3357 $ 1,117,460 

33,500 0.0<90 s 1,642 

One,· 10,000 (BG) 

One • 500 (AG) 
0.0290 

One,· 1,000 (AG) 
0.0900 

106,000 3.4547 (0. 1190) $ 3.3357 $ 353,584 

10,600 0.0<90 s 519 

One,• 12,000 (AG) 

121,000 3.4547 (0.11 90) $ 3.3647 s 407,129 

12,100 0.0<90 s 593 

One,· 4,000 (AG) 
0.0290 

One • 500 (AG) 
0.0290 

-

170,000 3.4547 (0.11 90) s 3.3647 $ 571,999 

17,000 0.0<90 s 833 

One,· 6,000 (8G) 
0 .0290 

. -

Att.lchmcntC 
Bid No.10271 

P:ige 1 of e 

~,u,w, ... -1'115,, ·--··-· -.1.•a.-•-~-ISI' 
NIIW"lll!T.llll!SMIS..,,_IE.,_ l'BI_.., 'IIMISI C'IIIIII, 

~--------

PER GALLON: California Gas Excise Tax: SD.596 // 
Federal L.U.S.T & Superfund Tax: $0.00314 11 CA 
AB#32: S0.00298 // PER INVOICE: Resulatory 
Como(iance Fee: S 15. 75 
PER GAllON: ~lfoml• G., Excise Tax: S0.59611 Federal L U.S.T £, 

Sui>cn'und Tax: S0.0031◄ II CA ABl32: S0.0029111 PER INVOICE: 
Regu~toryCompllancc Fee: S15.75 

PER GALLON: C>Ufoml.l Gos Excise Tax: $0.596 // federal LU.S.T £t 
Superfund Tu: S0.0031◄ // CA ABl32: S0.00291 // PER INVOICE: 
Rc-1ulatory Compliance Ftt: S15.75 

PER GALLON: c.,_Ufoml.:i Gas Excise T.ix: SO.S9b II Federal LU.S.T &. 
Superfund Tax: S0.00314 // CA ABl32: $0.00291 // PER INVOICE: 
Rcgula.tory Compll&nc:e fee: S15.75 

PER GALLON: C.i.llfornl.i. Gas Excise Tu: $0.596 II federal L.U.S.T &. 
Superfund Tax: S0.0031◄ II CA ABl32: S0.00298 II PER INVOICE: 
RC!tJl.atory Compliance fee: S15.75 

PER GALLON: Cali forni a Gas Excise Tax: S0.596 II 
Federal L.U.S.T & Superfund Tax: S0.00314 11 CA 
AB#32: S0.00298 II PER INVOICE: Resulatory 
Comoliance Fee: S 15. 75 
PER GALLON: ~llfomla Gas Excise Tax: S0.5961/ Federal LU.S.T &. 

Superfund T:ax: S0.0031◄ II CA ABl32: S0.00291 II PER INVOICE: 
RcJUlatory Compliance ftt: S15. 75 

PER GAUON: C...llfom1a G;u Excise Tu: $0.596 I I Federal L.U.S.T &. 
5-f1'und Tax: S0.0031◄ II CA ABl32: S0.0029111 PER INVOICE; 
Rej\Jl.Ltory Compliance ftt: S15,75 

PER GALLON: Cali fornia Gas Excise Tax: S0.596 11 
Federal L.U.S.T & Superfund Tax: $0.00314 11 CA 
AB#32: $0.00298 II PER INVOICE: Resulatory 
Comoliance Fee: S 1 5. 75 
PER GAllON: C.Ufoml.l Gas Excise Tu: S0.596 II Feder>l LU.S.T £, 

Superfund Tax: S0.0031◄ II CA ABl32: S0.00291 II PER INVOICE: 
Rctul.11tory Compliance Fee: $15.75 

PER GAU.ON: CaUfomla G.u Excise T.i.x: S0. 596 II federal LU.S.T &. 
Superfund Tax: S0.0031◄ // CA ABl32: S0.00298 / I PER INVOICE: 
Rcsulatory Complfance Fee: S15.75 

PER GAU.ON: C.11Ufomla Gas Exctse Tax: S0.596 II Federal LU.S.T &. 
5-f1'und Tox: S0.0031◄ // CA Al!l32: S0.00298 II PER INVOICE: 
Regulatory Compl1ance Fee: S15.75 

PER GALLON: California Gas Excise Tax: S0.596 II 
Federal L.U.S.T & Superfund Tax: S0.00314 // CA 
AB#32: S0.00298 II PER INVOICE: Resulatory 
Compliance Fee: S 15. 75 
PER GAllON: C>Ufoml• Gos Excise Tax: S0.596 // Federal LU.S.T & 

Superlund Tu: S0.00314 II CAABl32: S0.0029811 PER INVOICE: 
R~ulotoryCompl1ance F~ : S15.75 

PER GAllON: C:illfoml.l Gas Excise Tax: S0.596 II Feder.I L U.S.T £, 

5-f1'undTax: S0.0031◄ II CA ABl32: S0.0029111 PER INVOICE: 
Regulatory Compl!a.nce Fee: S15.75 



•. 

; •. ;..__.~.-.:~.· :;.~ ~ .. •. ' ~: , "i;i.· ~.~,.,. :·"j 
~F : .l1. ?{# . l~~t ~: •... ~ ·. ~. 

.. ' ' · .. _·.;· ·- ,..:: - • • • 

County of San Joaquin 

8obull 01ffcrcnd:,,t • San Jo:squtn t.oc.,,t1on:; 

Public Work:• 1810 E Hozelton Ave, Stockton, 195205) 

Shcr1ff • 7000 Mlchoel N Conl1, Blvd, French C,mp, (9S231) 

Oowntown GM.lgc • 121 N 5.1.n Jo.lquin St., Stockton, (95202) 

Stockton Airport • 7◄22 S Lindbergh, Stockton, (95206) 

Ag Center· 2101 E E>rhort Ave, Stockton, 195206) 

SJ General Hosplt.il • 500 W Ho~pftill Or, French Cilmp, (95231} 

Mlcke Grove P.irk • 11793 N M!ckc Grove Rd, Lodi, (952-40) 

Ook Grove Pork · ◄520 W 8 Mlle Rd, Stockton, 195209) 

... -

City of Galt 

Bobtail 01ffercntlill • Galt Lociltfons 

Corp. Yord Annex • SSO Elm Avenue, Golt 195632) 

. 

County of Butte 

&obull Dfffcrcnt1.ll • County of Butte Lociltfo~ 

""C 
U1 
U1 

Ne.ii Ro.id L.:i.ndffU • 1023 Nc.il Roild, P.iradfse (95969) 

-

................ m.-. 
-~ -

600,000 

60,000 

One· 1S,000 (BG) 

One • 25,000 !BG) 

One • 10 ,000 (BG) 

One · 500 !AG) 

One · 6,000 (AG) 

One · 500 !AG) 

One • 500 (AG) 

One • 1,000 JAG) 

105,000 

10,500 

One • 2,000 !AG) 

1◄9,100 

1◄,910 

SACOG 
BULi( GASOLINE, OIESa FUEL, AND RaATED PRODUCTS 

BID PRICING WORKSHEET 

_____ .., 
t 

--MIS ... ,. • _,s; _,...., lmlllllL ~-OPISftllAplll».- - ...... lerGaloa 

3.-45-47 (0 . 1190) $ 3.3357 

0.0S90 

0.0890 

0.0290 

0.0890 

0.0890 

0.0890 

3.-45◄7 (0.1190) $ 3.3897 

0.0490 

0.05◄0 

3.-45-47 (0.1190) s 3.3897 

0.0490 

0.0540 

Effl'M:E 

$ 2,001,420 

s 3,540 

s 355,919 

s S15 

s 505,404 

s 731 

Att:ichmcntC 
Bid No. 1 0271 

P:Jgc 2 of 8 

....... ,.ALL.....- ··-
___ nv., 

WU.IIE~Clt-MIICl,_.-al..,._'111111.1Sf 
...W W C • .......,,. _ _ G,IWl\ .. 111 CIIDII, 

-.a-........ -. 

PER GALLON: California Gas Excise Tax: $0.596 // 
Federal L.U.S.T & Superfund Tax: $0.00314 // CA 
AB#32: $0.00298 // PER INVOICE: Regulatory 
Comcliance Fee: $15. 75 
PER GALLON: C>l1fomlo Gas Excise Tu: SO.S96 11 Fedcr>l LU.S.T f: 

SUperfund Tax: S0.Cl0314 II CA A8#32: S0.0029& II PER INVOICE: 
Regulatory Compll:ancc Fee: S15.75 

PER GAU.ON: Callfoml:a Gu Exdst- Tax; S0.596 // Federal LU,S.T f: 
Superfund Tax: S0.00314 II CA Alll32: S0.0029& II PER INVOICE: 
Rc-g:ulatory Compliance Fee: S15.75 

PER GAU.OH: C.1tlforn1a Gas Excise-Tu : S0.596 II Feder1,l L.U.S.T &. 
Superfund Tax: S0.00314 I/ CA AB#l2: S0.00298 I/ PER INVOICE: 
Regulatory Compl1Mec fee: S15. 75 

PER GAUON: ~lfom1a Gas Exctse Tu:: S0.596 II Federal LU.S.T & 
Superfund Tu: S0.00314 /I CA Alll32: S0.00298 11 PER INVOICE: 
Regul:atory Comp11.ance Fee: S15.75 

PER GALLON: Calfforni.a Gas Exctse Tu:: S0.596 II Federal LU.S.T I:: 
SUperfund Tox: S0.00314 11 CA AB#l2: S0.00298 11 PER INVOICE: 
R~l:atory Compliance Fee: S15. 75 

PER GAUON: California G.u Excise Tu: S0.596 II Fcde!'ra.l L.U.S.T & 
Superfund Tu : S0.00314 11 CA A8#32: S0.00298 11 PER INVOICE: 
Re,u{otory Compllonc:e Fee: S15.75 

PER GALLON: c.auroml.a Gas Excise Ta.x: S0.596 // FC"deral LU.S.T & 
Superfund Tu: S0.00314 II CA Alll32: S0.00298 /I PER INVOICE: 
R~ul:atory Compliance Fee: S15.75 

PER GALLON: ~U!omla Gas Excise Tax: S0.596 // Federal LU.S.T I:: 
SUperfund Tax: S0.0031-4 // CA AU32: S0.00298 // PER INVOICE: 
Ret1,1latory Compllnnc:C!' Fee: S15.75 

PER GALLON: Ciilffomla Gas Excise TilX: S0.596 // Fede-rat LU.S.T &. 
Superfund Tax: S0.00314 11 CA A8#32: S0.0029& 11 PER INVOICE: 
Regul.atory Complt.ance Fee: S15.75 

PER GALLON: California Gas Excise Tax: $0.596 II 
Federal L.U.S.T & Superfund Tax: $0.00314 // CA 
AB#32: $0.00298 // PER INVOICE: Regulatory 
Comcliance Fee: $15. 75 
PER GALLON: cauromb Gas Exctsc Tax: S0.596 // Fcde~l LU.S.T & 

SUperfund Tu: S0.00314 II CA A8#32: S0.00298 II PER INVOICE: 
RC1',llatory CompU~C!' Fee: S15.75 

PER GALLON: CaUfornla Gas Exctse Tu: S0.596 II Federal LU.S.T &. 
Superfund Tax: S0.00314 11 CA ABt32: S0.00298 11 PER INVOICE: 
Re,ut.tory Compltonce Fee: S1S.75 

PER GALLON: Califomia Gas Excise Tax: $0.596 II 
Federal L.U.S.T & Superfund Tax: $0.00314 // CA 
AB#32: $0.00298 // PER INVOICE: Regulatory 
Comcli ance Fee: $15. 75 
PER GALL.ON: Callfom1a Gas Excise Tax: S0.596 II Feder.ll LU.S.T &. 

Superfund Tax: S0.00314 II CA Alll32: S0.002981/ PER INVOICE: 
Re-gulatory CompllMiCe Fee: S15. 75 

PER GALLON: c.aUforn1~ Gas Exctse Tu: S0.596 // fede~I LU.S.T & 
Superfund Tax: S0.00314 11 CA Alll32: S0.00298 11 PER INVOICE: 
R~ulatory Compliance Ftt: S15. 75 



• • .... :; ;;· , •• -:•: ... ~- ... ·-~:-,: •. , ... i_ i·.-.-: 
A' 11\lj -i.,1-.,a·•'ti . • 1t' ~ - d.J.l 1?\1¥,, ACA _.: 

--.•--:·· .. · .. ,·-~ :.~:- ... ~_ .. ,- .-:- •,· 

City of Sacramento 

Bobull 01ffercntl:al - City of Sac:~mcnto l.0Qt1ons 

North Arc.l Fteet/.blntcnance F:icfllty 918 Del Pa:o Road, S-:icr.unento 
19583◄) 

.VC.idowvtew Fleet Service• 2812 Me:idoWView Rol).d, Sacramento 
195832) 

South Corp. Y.1rd • 5730 2◄th Street Blds. 1, S.lcramcnto (95822) 

Kinney Police Foclllty • 3550 M>rymlle Blvd., Socroment o (95838) 

Rooney Police SubSUtlon • 5303 Franklfn Blvd., Sacl"3mento (95820) 

Sutte~ undtns • 28th .:1nd A Street, S.:1crnnento (95816) 

~Inc Ho~ No. 1 • 62-4 Q Street, Sxramcnto (9581 1) 

Rfch>rds Police FocfUty • 300 Rlchords Blvd,, Socr>mento (95811) 

Socrnnento Morino• 270 M>Mno View Drive Socromento (95818) 

Eng1nc Ho~c No. 2 • 1229 I Street, Sacr:imento (95614) 

Engine Hou::c No. 3 • nos W. Elkhorn Blvd., Sacramento (95837) 

Water Dept. 35th Ave. Parldng • 1395 35th Ave.., ~cra.me.nto (95822) 

County of Sacramento 

Bobbtl 01ffe.rential - County of S.:1cr.:1mc-nto Lociltlon!. 

In 
0, 
a, 

Brad:-.h.:iw 9661 Con::erv.it1on Ro.id S.lcra.mcnto, CA 95827 

North Arc;i Tnin:;fer S~t1on 
4450 Ro:-.evute Rond North Hlghlnn~, CA 95660 

..::;;: 

" knlllll- ...... 
m . .-. 

.BIIIIE 

1,700, 000 

170,000 

Ono· 2,000 IAG) 

One· 12,000 (BG) 

Two· 12,000 (BG) 

One · 12,000 (BG) 

TWo • 12,000 (BG) 

Ono· 2,000 (AG) 

Ono• 8,000 (AG) 

One· 15,000 (BG) 

1, 0 16, 000 

101,600 

One· 20,000 {BG) 

One • 6,000 IBG) 

SACOG 
BULK GASOLINE, DIESEL FUEL, AND RELATED PRODUCTS 

BID PRICING WORKSHEET 

.-a&..._ . ~ -

- •-~IMX 
-~ -- ...... 8111111od-

OPSRII Apll2',21Dff - ....... •1 IIIIIIL ... Cillall 

3 .◄5◄7 (0.1190) $ 3 . 3 597 

0.0390 

0.02◄0 

0.02◄0 

0.02◄0 

0.02◄0 

0.02◄0 

0.02◄0 

3.◄5◄7 (0.1190) s 3 . 3357 

0.0390 

l!Xl'l'll:I! 

$ 5 ,711,490 

s 6,630 

s 3 , 389,071 

s 3,962 

Att.':lchment C 
Bid No. 10271 

Pogo3 of 8 

; _,,.NLcrDE--.,m, d.-S,-TlDll51aT _,•:m ·""°-,.as . t'ND,'V 
.... ~ M-----••CIDI. ~----...... -
PER GALLON: California Gas Excise Tax: S0.596 // 

Federal L.U.S.T & Superfund Tax: S0.00314 // CA 

A8#32: S0.00298 II PER INVOICE: Regulatory 

Com pliance Fee: S 15. 75 
PER GAUON: caUfoml.t G:is Excise Tax: S0.596 // Federal LU.S.T &. 

Suporlund Tox: $0.0031◄ II CA AB.02: $0.00298 II PER INVOICE: 
R~ubtory Complfa.nce Fee: $15.75 

PER GALLON: C.alffomla G:is Excise Tax: $0.596 // Fc-deral L.U.S.T &. 
Suporfund Tax: $0.0031◄ I I CA AB.02: $0.00298 I I PER INVOICE: 
Regulatory Complfance Ftt: S15.7S 

PER GALLON: CaUfomla Gas Exclse Tax: S0.596 II Federal L.U.S.T & 
Superfund Tax: $0.00314 I I CA AB.02: $0.00298 I I PER INVOICE: 
Regulatory Compliance Fee: $15,75 

PER GAUON: C.:1Ufomla Gas Excise Tax: S0,596 // Federal LU.S.T & 
Superfund Tox: $0.0031◄ I I CA AB.02: $0.00298 I I PER INVOICE: 
Resulatory Compliance Fee: $15.75 

PER GALLON: California G~ Excise Tu: 50.596 // Federal L.U.S.T &. 
Superfund Tax: $0.0031◄ I I CA AB.02: $0.00298 I I PER INVOICE: 
Resulatory Compliance Fee: S15. 75 

PER GAUON: ~lffomta Gas Exctsc Tax: S0.596 // Federal LU.S.T & 
Superfund Tox: $0,00314 II CA AB.02: $0.00298 II PER INVOICE: 
Regulatory Comptfance Fee: $15.75 

PER GAUON: California Gas Exc1sc Tax: S0.596 // Fede~\ LU.S.T &. 

Suporfund Tox: $0.00314 II CA AB.02' $0.00298 II PER INVOICE: 
Rcgula.tory Compliance Fee: S15. 75 

PER GALLON: California G;,,s Exc:tse Tu: S0.596 // federal LU.S.T & 
Superfund Tu: $0.0031◄ I I CA AB.02: $0.00298 I I PER INVOICE: 
Regulatory CompU~e Fee: $15.75 

PER GALLON: C4Uforn(). Gas Excise Tu: S0.596 // Federal LU.S.T &. 
Superlund Tax: $0.0031◄ I I CA A11#32: $0.00298 I I PER INVOICE: 
ResuLatory CompllolnC:e Fee: $15.75 

PER GALLON: ~llfornla Gas Excise Tax: $0.596 // Federal LU.S.T &. 
Superfund Tax: $0.0031◄ I I CA AB.02: $0.00298 I I PER INVOICE: 
Resu!atoryCompUance Fee: $15.75 

PER GALLOr,,1: Cal1fom1a Gas Excise Tax: S0.596 // Federal l.U.S.T & 
Superfund Tu: $0.0031◄ I I CA A11#32: $0.00298 I I PER INVOICE: 
Regulatory CompUanc:c Fee: $15.75 

PER GAUON: CaiUfoml1 Gas Excise Tu: S0.596 // Federal LU.S.T &. 
Superfund Tu: $0.0031◄ I I CA AB.02: $0.00298 I I PER INVOICE: 
Re~ul.3tory Compll~c Fee: S15.75 

PER GAUON: California Gas Excise Tax: S0.596 // Fedenl LU.S.T & 
Superfund Tu: $0.0031◄ I I CA AB.02: $0.00298 I I PER INVOICE: 
Rcsul.3tory Compliance Fee: S15. 75 

PER GALLON: California Gas Excise Tax: S0.596 II 

Federal L.U.S.T & Superfun d Tax: S0.0031 4 II CA 

A8#32: S0.00298 II PER INVOICE: Regulatory 

Compliance Fee: S 15. 75 
PER GALLON: C.:,,lffornla G.u Excise Tu: .S0.596 II Fedcrill L.U.S.T &. 
Superfund Tox: S0.0031◄ // CA AB.02: $0.00298 // PER INVOICE: 
Resu!atory Compllonce Fee: S 15. 75 

PER GALLON: C:aUfoml.:1 Gas Excise Tu: SO.S96 // Federal LU.S.T &. 
Supcrfund Tu: $0.0031◄ II CA All#32: $0.00298 // PER INVOICE: 
Regulatory Compliance Fee: S15. 75 

PER GAU.ON: C.llfomlo Gas Exc~e Tax: $0.596 // Fedor>! LU.S.T r, 
Superfund Tu: $0.0031◄ I I CA AB.02: $0.00298 I I PER INVOICE: 
R~u~tory Compl1anc:c Fee: S15.75 



~•.,;~rz , silt¼: :n i if: ·, 
~ .. . , .. 

.. " .. 

North County Corporatkln Y.ird 5026 Don Julio Blvd. 
S.:,,crarncnto, CA 958.Q 

Kiefer L..andffU 12701 Kiefer Blvd. S.:,,cramento, CA 95683 

Rcglon3l Trc.1tmcnt Plant (SRWTP) 
8521 l.aguro Sbtlon Roild Elk Grove, CA 95758 

Oowntown G3rage • 725 7th Street S:icr.imento, CA 9S814 

North Garage• 5510 Garfield Avenue 5,:icramento, CA 95841 

South G:.ragc • 9250 8ond Road Etk Grove, CA 95624 

Aor1n Gange • 7000 bSth Street. Softe 8 ~nto, CA 95823 

Vineyard Surface WaterTrc.i.tmcnt Plant 10151 Ft.orfn Ro.Jd 
S.=mcnto, CA 95829 

Nw.rconl Station {Scheduled to clo:;e late 2014) 2535 El Sutton LD.nc 
Sacramento, CA 9S821 

Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District 

Bobtail Offferent1.Jl • ~c~ento Mctropol1t.ul Fire 01:;trlct LocJ.t1ons 

7J 
01 
-.I 

Fleet· 4<25 Dudley Blvd. WcClcU.,,. CA (95652) 

Loglstfa - 3012 Gold Co.n:i.l Or Rancho Cordov.J, CA (95670) 

SU.t1on 21 • 76,41 Grccnb.ick Ln Cl~ Heights CA (95610) 

Stltfcn 2S • 7352 Ro:;cvflle Rd. Sxramento, CA (958-42) 

Statlcn 32 • 8890 Roediger L>ne Folr 0•"'• CJ, (95628) 

Station 50 • 8880 Gerber Rd So=mento, CA (95828) 

St.ltlon 55 • m6 Exce~1or R~d 5,:icramento, CA (95829) 

_.__,_,! ~---
Ono • 12,000 (BG) 

One• 2,500 (AG) 

Two • 4,000 {AG) 

One· 20,000 (BG) 

One· 6,000 (BG) 
One· 15,000 {BG) 

Two· 10,000 {BG) 

Ono· 6,000 (AG) 

One· <,000 (AG) 

One• 6,000 {AG) 

50,000 

5,000 

Onc • 1,000 (AG) 

One· 500 (AG) 

One· 1,000 {AG) 

Ono • 500 {AG) 

One • 500 {AG) 

Ono • 500 {AG) 

One· 500 {AG) 

SACOG 
BULK GASOLINE, DIESEL FUEL, AND RELATED PRODUCTS 

BID PRICING WORKSHEET 

NKA'l'E'lll'StOF ■!IID. 
.-muua: 

~,MZ-· , :; -- --. ---_ ... ..,. .... , •• ·- - ,,.,_ 

0.0240 

0.02~0 

0.02◄0 

0.02◄0 

0.0240 

3.◄5◄7 (0. 1190) s 3.3597 

0.0390 

0.02◄0 

0.02◄0 

0.02◄0 

0.02◄0 

0.02◄0 

0.02◄0 

0.02◄0 

l)ll'fM! 

$ 167,985 

s 195 

Att:ichmcntC 
Bid No. 10271 

Pogc 4 of 8 

~Ml.QFllE----Riff,,S--,-TIIJIISlllAl 
._.,lleCIIIIIIBIIN111!,.....MaDSIMlll:l5-USI' 
-Jlll~ ...... ----GM&.111, 'lllllltYmlll, 

!Ir.>•----.---

PER GALLON: C•llfoml• Gas Excise Tax: S0.596 II Federal L.U.S.T & 
~rfund Tax: S0.00l1• II CJ, All#l2: S0.00298 II PER INVOICE: 
R~Latory Compl1a.nc:e Fee: $15.75 

PER GAUON: Caltfom1a G~ Excise T.ax: S0.596 // Federal LU.S.T &. 
Supcrfund Tu: SO.OOl1• // CA All#l2: S0.00298 // PER INVOICE: 
Resu!atory Complw,ce Fee: S 15. 75 

PER GAUON: C~lforn1a GM Excise Tu: S0.596 // Federal l.U.S.T f.t 
Supcrfund Tax: S0.00l1• // CA Allll2: S0.0029B // PER INVOICE: 
Re-J!Jlatory Compliance Ftt: S15.75 

PER GALLON: C1,llfornf.l Gas Excise Tax: S0.596 // Feder&l LU.S.T & 
Supcrfund Tax: SO.OOl 1• // CJ, Allll2: S0.00298 // PER INVOICE: 
Regu~tory Compliance Fee: S15.75 

PER GALLON: C~ffomln G;u Excise Tax: S0.59b I I Fedeni.l LU.S.T & 
Superfund Tu: S0.00l1• II CJ, AB.I'll: $0.00298 II PER INVOICE: 
Reg:ul.1itory Compliance Fee: S15.75 

PER GAU.ON: Caltfomb Gas Exche Tu : S0.596 I I Fede~l LU.S.T & 
~rfund Tu: S0.00l 1• II CA All#l2: S0.00298 II PER INVOICE: 
Regul:itory Compllanc:e Fee: $15.75 

PER GAUON: C-allfornla Gas Excise Tax: S0.596 II Federal LU.S.T &. 
~rfund Tax: SO.OOl1• // CA All#l2; S0.00298 // PER INVOICE: 
Retylaitory ComplWKe Fee: S15.75 

PER GALLON: C3llforn1a Gas Excise Tax: S0.596 I I Federal LU.S.T &. 
Superfund Tu: S0.0031• // CA All#l2: S0.00298 // PER INVOICE: 
Resubtory Compll&nee Fee: $15. 75 

PER GALLON: CaUfornla Gu Excise Tax: S0.596 II Federal L.U.S.T & 
Supcrfund Tax: S0.00l1• // CA Allll2: S0.0029B // PER INVOICE: 
RettJlatory Complfance Fee: S15.75 

PER GALLON: Cali fornia Gas Excise Tax: S0.596 // 

Federal L.U.S.T & Superfund Tax: S0.003 14 // CA 
AB#32: S 0.00298 // PER INVOICE: Regulatory 
Comcliance Fee: S 1 5 . 7 5 
PER GAU.ON: Calffomla G.u Excise Tax: $0.596 I I Federal LU.S. T &. 

Supcrfund Tax: S0.00l1• II CA All#l2: S0.00298 II PER INVOICE: 
Regul.itory Compliance Fee: $15.75 

PER GALLON: Catlfornla Gas Excise Tax: $0.596 II Fede~l LU.S.T & 
Superfund Tu: SO.OOlU // CA All#l2: S0.00298 // PER INVOICE: 
Resu!atory CompUonce Fee: S 15. 75 

PER GALLON: California G.u Excise T~: $0.596 I I Federal LU.S.T &. 
Supcrfund Tax: SO.OOlU II CA Ae.fl2: S0.00298 II PER INVOICE: 
R<su!atory Compliance Fee: S15.75 

PER GALLON: Cal1fomfa Gas Exel~ Ta.x: S0.596 II Federal LU.S.T &. 
Supcrfund Tu: SO.OOlU II LJ All#l2: S0.00298 II PER INVOICE: 
Regu~tory Compll~nce Fee: S15.75 

PER GAUON: California Gas Excise Tu: $0.S96 I I Federal LU.S.T & 
Supcrfund Tu: $0.00lU II CA Allll2: S0.0029B II PER INVOICE: 
Regulatory Complw,co Fee: S15.75 

PER GAU.ON: Calffornla Gm Excise Tax: S0.596 II Fe~ral LU.S.T & 
Supcrfund Tax: S0.00l1• II CA All#l2: S0.0029811 PER INVOICE: 
Rc~latory Compl!AnCe Fee: S15.75 

PER GAU.ON: California Gas Excise Tax: S0.596 / I Federal LU.S.T & 
Supcrfund Tax: S0.00l1• II CA All#l2: S0.0029811 PER INVOICE: 
R~I.Dtory Compliance Fee: $15. 75 

PER GALLON: California Gu Excise Tax: S0.596 II Federal t..U.S.T & 
Supcrfund Tu: S0.00l1• // CJ, All#l2: S0.0029B II PER INVOICE: 
RC'!l,Jlatory Compllance Fee: S15. 75 



c .J~{ •r~~.-,ci·)·,-; ·-~~-.~:'1~b ~;: .~~ 
•. 

, .. :; -:~/t:;~(: ; . ' :~--::-~;~- '}> m.--. 
1151111! 

Station 58 • nso Slougho= Rd Elk Grove, CA 

Onc • SOO (AG) 

Sutton 106 • 2200 P.:irk Towne Circle ~cramento, CA (95825) 

One -1,000 (AG) 

Sbtlon 109 - 563-4 Robcruon Ave Carm1ch3.el, CA (95608 

One · 1,000 (AG) 

Stiltfon 111 • 6609 Rk, Und;i Blvd Rio Llnd.i., CA (95673) 

One • 500 (AG) 

Los Rios Community College District 

30,000 
ac>bt.ill Dfffercntfal • Los Rios Community Collcse Oi:tr\c:t Loc.:i.tfoM 

3,000 

American River College • 4700 Coll~c Oak Or., ~c™"ento (95841) One· 2,000 (BG) 

Cosumn~ River Collc~c • 8.«li Center Pkwy, S;;ic~mento (95823) One· 2,000 (BG) 

~c:r.imento City College - 3835 Freeport Blvd., s.i.cramento (95822) One· 2,000 (BG) 

. . 
... - ·- _..., 

S~an .Juan Water D~rict 
17,000 

Bobu1l Dffferentf.:,,l - S:in Ju.:,,n W:itL:r 01::trict: Loc.it1o~ 

1,700 
Corp. Yard • 9935 Aubum Fol$om Rd., Granite Bay (957◄6) 

-
Yubaeity 

- 5,000 
Bobt.lft D1fferent1.:,,t • Yuba City Loc;:,,t1on$ 

500 
1185 Market Street Yuba City, (95991) 

One · 250 (AG) 

701 Northg.ite Ortve Yub3 Ctty, (95991) 

One • 250 (AG) 

302 Burm. Drive Yuba Cfty, (95991} 

'C 
One• 250 (AG) 

.. 
CD 

SACOG 
BULK GASOLINE, DIESEL FUEL, AND RELATED PRODUCTS 

BID PRICING WORKSHEET 

. . .. . 

llllCA'll!_.MClii l_, 
-Dim'-
i-,.m-· ~ ...-v ... --- L--"112 

- - .-2'. :lltf - us .... UIISdlh..l. hrCalloll 

0.02◄0 

0.02◄0 

0.02◄0 

0.02◄0 

J.◄5-47 (0.1190) s 3 .3597 

0.0390 

0.02◄0 

0.02◄0 

0.02◄0 

3.◄5◄7 (0.1190) s 3.3597 

0.0390 

0.02◄0 

3.◄547 (0.1190) s 3 .404 7 

0.0590 

0.0690 

0.0690 

0.0690 

s 

5 

s 

s 

s 

$ 

EXFfMI! 

10 0 , 791 

117 

57,115 

NKA'l1!Ml.1W11E--.. _ 

Att:ichmcntC 
Bid No. 10271 

Pogo 5 of 8 

•••m ~•-==--usr ~ t a-=-~£ £2-"' 11 aaCIIIIII. 

PER GALLON: CaUfornb Gas Excise Tu: S0.596 JI Feder;l L.U.S.T &. 
Superfund Tox: S0.0031◄ II CA Al!ll2: S0.00298 II PER INVOICE: 
Rcsul;,tory CompU.v-cc Fee: S 15. 75 

PER GALLON: C.iUfomla Gns Exc:ts~ Tax: $0.596 II Fedcn.l LU.S.T &. 
Superfund Tu: S0.0031• II CA AUl2: S0.00298 II PER INVOICE: 
Rogut.tory Compliance Fee: S15.75 

PER GALLON: Calffomla Gas Exctsc Tax: S0.596 // Fede~l l.U.S.T &. 
Supcrlund Tax: $0.003U / I LJ. A8#32: $0.00298 // PER INVOICE: 
Regut.tory Compliance Fee: 515. 75 

PER GALLON: Calffornta Ci&S Exe-be Tax: S0.59b I I Federal L.U.S.T &. 
Superfund Tax: 50.0031• II CA Al!ll2: 50.00298 II PER INVOICE: 
ReJUbtory Compliance Fee: $15.75 

PER GALLON: California Gas Excise Tax: $0.596 II 
Federal L.U.S.T & Superfund Tax: $0.00314 II CA 

A8#32: $0.00298 // PER INVOICE: Regulatory 

Comcliance Fee: $15. 75 
PER GAUON: California Gas Exctse T;ix; S0.59b II Federal L.U.S.T &. 
Superfund Tax: S0.0031• // CA Al!ll2: S0.00298 / I PER INVOICE: 
RC1ubtory Compliance fee: $15.75 

PER GALLON: Ul1fornta C.as Excise Tax: S0,59b II fcdenl LU.S.T &. 
Superfund Tax: S0.0031• // CA AU32: 50.00298 // PER INVOICE: 
Rt"!IJUlltory Compliance Ftt: S15.75 

PER G.A.UON: California CM Exc:tsc Tax: S0.596 II Federal LU.S.T &. 
Supcrfund Tax: $0.0031-4 I I CA A6#32: S0.00298 I I PER INVOICE: 
Regulatory Compllonce Fee: 515.75 

PER GALLON: C.llfomla Gos Exc1se Tax: 50.596 II Feder>! LU.5.T !:. 
Superfund Tax: S0.0031• // CA AU32: 50.00298 // PER INVOICE: 
Regulatory Compliance fee: $15.75 

PER GALLON: California Gas Excise Tax: $0.596 11 

Federal L.U.S.T & Superfund Tax: $0.0031411 CA 

A8#32: $0.00298 II PER INVOICE: Regulatory 

Comcliance Fee: $15. 75 
PER G.A.U.ON: Callfomta GJS Exctse Tax: $0.596 I I Feder.it L.U.S.T &. 
Superfund Tu: SQ.0031• // CA A81l2: S0.00298 // PER INVOICE: 

66 Regulatory Compliance Fee: 515. 75 

PER GALLON: Ca11fomfa G~ Excise Tax: S0.596 / I Fede~l LU.S.T & 
Superfund Tax: S0.0031◄ // CA AU32: S0.00298 I/ PER INVOICE: 
Regulatory CompUonce Fee: 515.75 

PER GALLON: California Gas Excise Tax: $0.596 II 
Federal L.U.S.T & Superfund Tax: $0.00314 // CA 
A8#32: $0.00298 II PER INVOICE: ReguCatory 

17,024 Com oliance Fee: $15. 75 
PER GALLON: Catlfom1a Gas Exds.e T.u:: S0.596 II Federal LU.S.T &. 

Superfund Tu; SO.OOlH II CA AU32: 50.00298 II PER INVOICE: 
JO R~u~tory Compll;incc Fee: S15.7S 

PER GAlLON: California G.u Excise Tax: S0.596 II Federal LU.S.T & 
5"perfund Tu: 50.0031• // CA AU32: 50.00298 II PER INVOICE: 
Regulatory Compliance Fee: 515.75 

PER GAUON: California Gas Excise Tax: $0.S9b I I federal L.U.S.T &. 
Superfund Tox: S0.0031• // CA AU32: 50.00298 II PER INVOICE: 
Rogulotory Compllonce Fee: 515.75 

PER GALLON: California G~ Excise Tax: S0.S96 I I Fedenl LU.S.T &. 
Superfund Tox: S0.0031• II CA AUl2: 50.00298 II PER INVOICE: 
R~utatory Compliance fee: S15.75 



•. r • ,,:,;. ~, ., ._ ... ·, : . ...:, . . 
•. _.., .. \.\.:., _.::.,~~_, ... ··-~- : · ; •~,f 

..... ~ ;~ -~-- • ~i;:) 
• : • "'•, , ' a, 1 ., t" "•·.., c,.(. .~ ') 

-:- ;\ 'i,._-;f:.f..~• -·L_'!~·l _:,i-~'.~~--:~-~~ ~- ~'. 

82◄ Cl:uk Avenue Yuba Cft;'t (95991) 

-
City of Davis 

8obt.:lll Dffferendal • Davb: Loc:ltions 

fuel f•dllty • 1717 fifth St., D•v!, 1956161 

UC Davis 

Bobtail D1fferentfal. UC Davis Loc;itlon: 

Untve~tty of CaUfomla, O.ivts One Shield~ Avenue 
D•v1'. CA (95616) 

.. - -- . 

SRCSD 

Bobtil1l 01fferent1al • SRCSC Loc;itfon: 

SRCSC • 8521 Uguna St.ltfon Rd., Elk Grove (95758) 

. ----- .. ~- .. · -

North Tahoe Public Utilities District 

&bt.ifl Olfferent1:it • SRCSD Loc:itSon: 

North T:ihoe PUD • 875 N:itlon;st Ave, Tahoe Vista, CA 96148 

South Sutter Water District 

8obt.ifl 01fferent1at ·South Sutter Watt-r D1s:tr1ct Locations 

-
C11 
co 

~ i .. 

/;;~•.,. • ........ SE.-. -
One · 250 (AG) 

98,000 

9,800 

Two. · 10,000 (BG) 

300,000 

30,000 

One• 12,000 (BG) 

◄8,-400 

<,8-40 

One· 3,600 (AGI 

16,000 

1,600 

One· 1,000 (AG) 

9,000 

900 

SACOG 
BULK GASOLINE, DIESEL FUEL, AND RELATED PRODUCTS 

BID PRICING WORKSHEET 

.. - ., ... ., . 
. : . 

--ffS::C,1 F 
; r'l-: '. 

. .. , . l . . : 'i.•; ~ • 
I II*■---

. . 
~ -- -- --_,_Apoe::W,,- -- • II ■ L ..... Golla 

0.0690 

3.◄5◄7 (0.1190) s 3. 3357 

0.0390 

3.-45◄7 (0.1190) s 3.3357 

0.0390 

3.◄5◄7 (0.1190) s 3.3357 

3.◄5◄7 (0.1190) s 3.3947 

0.0690 

0.0590 

3.◄5◄7 (0.1 190) $ 3.3947 

0.0-90 

s 

s 

s 

s 

s 

s 

s 

s 

s 

s 

. •· 

Att:achmcntC 
Bid No. 10271 

Pogo 6 of S 

• ,.::::---- ~-.• •·-·-· l:.=.-.:s.-asr .. 
. . . ' •1!11 -: ·-= .. . - .. -\ .,,. ~ . 

m ,az 
PER GALLON: Cal1fomta. G.is Excise Tax: S0.596 // Federal LU.S.T &. 

SUp<rfundTax: SO.Cl031< II CA AB#32: S0.00298 II PER INVOICE: 
Rc,ul,,tory Compliance Ftt: $15.75 

PER GALLON: california Gas Excise Tax: SO. 596 II 
Federal L.U.S.T & Superfund Tax: S0.00314 II CA 
AB#32: S0.00298 II PER INVOICE: Regulatory 

326,899 Compliance Fee: S15. 75 
PER GALLON: C.1llfomt.l G.is Excise Tu: $0.596 I/ Fedc~l LU.S.T &. 

SUpcrfund Tax: S0.0031< II CA A8#32: S0.00298 II PER INVOICE: 

382 Regulatory Compliance fee: Si5.7S 

PER GAU.ON: Calffomia G,s Excise Tax: S0.596 // Federal LU.S.T &. 
Supcrfund Tax: S0.0031 < // CA AB#32: S0,00298 // PER INVOICE: 
~ ul>IDry Compliance fee: S15.7S 

PER GALLON: California Gas Excise Tax: SO. 596 II 
Federal L.U.S.T & Superfund Tax: S0.00314 II CA 
AB#32: S0.00298 II PER INVOICE: Regulatory 

1,000,710 Comcliance Fee: S 15. 75 
PER GAUON: California Gas Excise Tax: S0.596 II Federal LU.S.T &. 

SUp<rfund Tax: S0.0031< II CA AB#32: S0.00298 II PER INVOICE: 

, ,110 Re11ula.tory Complh1nce Fee-: S15.75 

Pat GAUON: Ca.Ufomla. Gas E.xctsc Tax: S0.596 // Federal LU.S.T & 
SUp<rfund Tax: S0.0031< II CA AB#32; S0.00298 II PER INVOICE: 
Re11ulAtory CompUilnce Fee: S15.75 

PER GALLON: California Gas Excise Tax: S0.596 II 
Federal L.U.S.T & Superfund Tax: S0.00314 II CA 
AB#32: S0.00298 II PER INVOICE: Regulatory 

161,448 Compliance Fee: S 15. 75 
PER GALLON: CaUfomla Gas Excise Tax: S0.596 II Federal LU.S.T & 

SUp<rfund Tu: S0.0031< II CA AB#32: S0.00298 II PER INVOICE: 
R~u,ry Compliance fee: S1S,75 

PER GALLON: ~Ufom1a Gas Excise Tax: S0.596 I I Fcdcr.11 L.U.S.T & 
SUporfund Tax: S0.0031◄ // CA AB#32; S0.00298 / / PER INVOICE: 
RC!l,ILltory Compliance Fee: $15.75 

PER GALLON: California Gas Excise Tax: $0.59611 
Federal L.U.S.T & Superfund Tax: S0.00314 11 CA 
AB#32: S0.00298 II PER INVOICE: Regulatory 

54,315 Compliance Fee: S15. 75 
PER GAU.ON: C•llfomfa G., Exe~ Tax: S0.596 II fcdenil LU.S.T !t 

Suporfund Tax: S0.0031< II CA AB#32: S0.00298 II PER INVOICE: 

110 Regulatory Compltancc Fee: S15.7S 

PER GAU.ON: ~troml> G;as Excise Tax: SO.S96 /I feder>I LU.S.T !t 
Suporfund Tax: S0.0031< // CA AB#l2: S0.00298 // PER INVOICE: 
R~latory Compliance Fee: S1S.75 

PER GALLON: California Gas Excise Tax: SO. 596 II 
Federal L.U.S.T & Superfund Tax: S0.00314 11 CA 
AB#32: $0.00298 II PER INVOICE: Regulatory 

30,552 Compliance Fee: S15. 75 
PER GAU.ON: c.uromta Gas Exc1se Tu: S0.596 11 fedenit LU.S.T !t 

Suporfund Tax: S0.0031< II CA AB#32: S0.00298 II PER INVOICE: 
44 Resu~tory Compll111nce Fee: S15.75 



SACOG 
BULK GASOLINE, OIESEL FUEL, AND RELATED PRODUCTS 

BID PRICING WORKSHEET 

Att,1chmcnt C 
Bid No. 10271 

P.'1gc7 of8 

----lmi,. - - ··-· 
. ·,, . ,· . , . . .. , WU.IECIIMIGIDClltll!,_.......IIBCf'Slllfllllll!S-&151' 

?t iti ... 51 ,,._ .. * (M 4' •~· f•,• --Sol-RID ----·---..------•IIIIC.DI\ .111 . .. tt;C J ... !![ I , .---- l!K.11•-• ...... -
.• ',::. ,: '.• ,"-i.::-, ..• '. • .. ........... 151' ..... i-.-z-• ~ ~ -- ~-

. ', , ·,. ·•• ,• ! • ·' , :. ··1 r·. ~ • ............. m -llaAIPd»._, ,._ ·-· Ul'II L ,__ m'IISE 
Fuel T.ink S~tton • 2464 Pacific Avenue, Trowbridge (95659) PER GALLON: Calffornla Gli Exci~c Tax: SO.S96 // Federal L.U.S.T &. 

(AG) SUpcrfund Tax: S0.0031◄ I I CA ABl32: S0.00298 I I PER INVOICE: 
0.0590 Rogut.toty Compliance Foe: $15.75 

- -
PER GALLON: California Gas Excise Tax: $0.596 II 

County of Placer Federal L.U.S.T & Superfund Tax: S0.0031 4 11 CA 
A8#32: $0.00298 II PER INVOICE: Regulatory 

-450,000 3.-45◄7 (0. 1190) S 3,3847 S 1,523,115 Comoliance Fee: S1 5. 75 
!obtnn Offfcrentfal • County of Pl=>.ccr PW Loc.1tSons PER GALLON: Calffom~ Gm Excise Tax: S0.596 I I FC'dcrat LU.S.T E: 

5upcrfund Tax: SO.OOJ1◄ I/ CA A&IJ2: S0.00298 II PER INVOICE: 

◄5,000 J.◄5◄7 0.0390 s 1,755 Re!11Jlatory Compliance Fee: $15.75 

L1ncotn Corp. Y:,rd • ~1 Oak Tree l..!.nc-, Lincoln PER GAUON: CaUfomb Gas Excf:c- Tax: S0.596 II fcdcr.\l LU.S.T & 

Two. 1,000 (AG) 5upcrfund Tax: 50.0031• II CA AB#J2: S0,00298 // PER INVOICE: 
0.0◄90 Resutatory CompUa.nce Fee: S1S.75 

County Servfcc Station• 11448 f Ave., Auburn PER GAUON: Cillfoml.11 Gas Excl$.c Tu: S0.596 II FcdcDl LU.S.T E:. 
Two• 8,000 !AG) Superfund Tax: $0.0031◄ II CA AB#32: S0.00298 II PER INVOICE: 

0.0490 Regulatory Compliance Fee: S15.75 

Forc:;thfU Y:u-d • 22700 Fo~th1U Ro:sd, forerthlll PER GAUON: C3Ufomla Gas £;,cc~ Tax: S0.596 // Federal LU.S.T E:. 
One. 1,000 (AG) Superfund Tax: SO.CJOJ1• II CA AB#32: 50.00298 II PER INVOICE: 

0.0490 R05ut.tory Compllance Foe: $15,75 

Colfax Corp. Y;ird • 1133 South Auburn Road, Colfax PER GALLON: CaUfomla Gas Excise Ta.x: $0.596 // Federal LU.S.T &. 
One. 1,000 (AG) SUpcrfund Tu: S0.0031◄ II CA AB#32: S0,00298 // PER INVOICE: 

0.0'490 Regulatory Compliance Fee: $15.75 

CA.LFlRE/PCFO Al~ St:atfon • Comer of Sonny Nook£:. Ridge Ro;:i.d, Alt:a PER GAU.ON: Ca.UfomLI GAS Excise Tu: S0.596 // Feder.tl LU.S.T f: 

One. 250 (AG) SUpcrfund Tu: S0,0031◄ I I CA ABl32: S0.00298 I I PER INVOICE: 
0.0'490 Regulatory Compliance Fee: S15.75 

CALflRE/PCFD ~t West• 1l00 Athc~ Avc., Lincoln PER GALLON: CalffomLI Gas Excise Tax: S0.596 // Fede™ LU.S.T f: 
One. 1,000 (AG) 5upcrfund T;ix: S0.00)1◄ II CA AB#32: S0.00298 II PER INVOICE: 

0.0◄90 Reg:ul:atory Comptlancc Fee: S15.75 

C>J.FIRE/PCFO Ory Creek • 8350 Cook Rfolo Road, ~eviUe PER GALLON: Calffomta Gas Excise Tu: S0.596 II Federal LU.S.T &. 
One. 500 (AG) SUpcrfund Tax: S0.0031◄ I I CA AB#32: 50.00298 I I PER INVOICE: 

0.~ 90 Regulatory Compll;,,nce fee; S15.7S 
. ~ . - .. 

PER GALLON: California Gas Excise Tax: $0. 596 II 
C'ty f Elk G Federal L.U.S.T & Superfund Tax: $0.00314 11 CA 

1 O rove A8#32: $0.00298 // PER INVOICE: Regulatory 
142,200 3.4547 (0. 1190) S 3.3357 $ 474,337 Comoliance Fee: S15.75 

Bobtail Dlffcrent1.it • City of Elk Grove Locations PER GALLON: Catlfornla Gas Exc:I~ Tax; S0.596 // Federal L.U.S.T & 
SUperfund Tu: S0.0031 ◄ // CA AB#32: 50.00298 II PER INVOICE: 

1◄,220 0.0390 s 555 RO!l1Jlatory Compll• nce Foe: S15.75 

Elk Grove Fleet fadUty • Elk Grove, CA 9562-4 PER GALLON: Calffomla G~ Exc:Ce Tax: S0.596 /I Federal L.U.S.T &. 
Ono,. 12,000 (AG) SUpcrfund Tu: 50.00)1◄ I I CA AB#32: S0.00298 I I PER INVOICE: 

R~~tory Compliance Fee: StS.75 

-- ----- .. _,,,_~- - ....... -: , - ·r 

PER GALLON: California Gas Excise Tax: S0.596 II 
T f T k Federal L.U.S.T & Superfund Tax: $0.00314 11 CA 

own O rue ee A8#32: S0.00298 // PER INVOICE: Regulatory 
10,000 3. 45-47 (0.1 190) $ 3.3997 S 33,997 Compliance Fee: S15.75 

Bobt:111 Otrfercntlal • Town of Truckee Loca.t1ons PER GALLON: ~Ufomt.a G~ Excise Tax; S0.596 // Feder.al L.U.S.T &. 
Supcrfund Tu: S0.0031◄ // CA Aa-32: S0.00298 // PER INVOICE: 

1,000 o.0◄90 s 49 Rogut.tory Compliance Foe: $15.75 

Corp. Y~d #1 • tono Rtvervfew Dr., Truckee {96161) PER GALLON: California G;u Excise Tax: S0.596 II Fcde1"3l L.U.S.T & 

One, . 2,000 (AG) 5upcrfund Tax: 50,00J1• II CA ABl32: S0.00298 II PER INVOICE: 
0.06-40 Re!l1Jlatory Compll>n<e Foe: $15.75 

PER GALLON: Callfomt.a Ci~ Exctsc Tax: S0.596 // Feder-at L.U.S.T &. 
Publ1c: Service Center - Corp. Ya.rd lf2 10969 Stevens Lane, Tnickec One . 6 000 AG} Superfund Tax: SO.OOlt◄ // CA AS,#32: S0.00298 // PER INVOICE: 

P (96161) ' 0.06-40 Rogulatory Compllonce Foe: $15.75 

0 

-



.. ';,. ,.,... ..,.. ,.,'. ' ' 

=r . ,,-!4.,,?t@:'1~Tft~,•-• )· ~~ . - • :· . . . 
-,,. , .• ,,.,,-:-~• ·, ·_.,;i _ .... 

••. ~:•~iJ-; -~;},-~;;:_~:~ -,~; _·~~ --~a-•~ .... _ 

Cosumnes Community Services District 

Bobtaft Offfcrcntf:il - Co~umn~ Community ~rvtc~ Ohtr1ct 

Station 71 • 8760 Elk Grove Blvd, Elk Grove 

Sbtion n • 1003S A~ Or, Elk Grove 

Station 7< • 6501 Laguno P>rl< Or, Elk Grove 

Sutton ~s • 229 5th St, Ga.Lt 

Fleet · 10573 E.ut Stockton Blvd, Elk Grove 

- . • - . •· .. • 
·,· : ,·. 

I 
INVOICE TERMS: 1112% Doy, 

., 
en __. 

60,000 

6,000 

0~ • 1,000 (AG) 

One • 500 (AG) 

One• 500 (AG) 

One• 500 (AG) 

One· 1,000 (AG) 

I I 
!Toul Gallons 5,537,700 

I 

SACOG 
BULK GASOLINE, DIESEL FUEL, ANO RELATED PRODUCTS 

BIO PRICING WORKSHEET 

_,.S¥1111NQ 
-IIIIIYIIG - - ·-11~illi --- ......... _ .......... - -- -I\ L ~ 

- (0.1190) s (0.0950) 

0.0)90 

0.02◄0 

0.02◄0 

0.02◄0 

0.02◄0 

0.02◄0 

Estfm.ited Invoice Fee Total: 

Admin Fc-c: s 3S.,OS,OS I 

. 

li!ICl'..a! 

s (5,700) 

s 23< 

s 18,385,200 

AtbchmcntC 
Bid No. 10271 

Pogo 8 of8 

1111:A1E.U.CF11E •L,m. ----w.a..-a .... _., R :nac~....-1151' -----==-----..... .. •.''· ~~ 

PER GALLON: California Gas Excise Tax: S0.596 II 
Federal L.U.S.T & Superfund Tax: S0.00314 II CA 
A8#32: S0.00298 II PER INVOICE: Regulatory 

Compliance Fee: S 15. 75 
PER GAUON: Calffomla Gu Exc:fsc Tu:.: S0.596 // Fedc-r&l LU.S.T &. 

Superfund Tax: SO.(Xl31< II CA All#l2: S0.00298 /I PER INVOICE: 
Re-s;ulatory CompUancc Fee: S15.75 

PER GALLON: CaUfomla Gas Excise Tax: S0.596 // feder.tl LU.S.T & 
Supcrfuncl Tax; S0,00314 II CA AMll: $0.00298 // PER INVOICE: 
Rc1ulatory CompUancc Fee: S15.75 

PER GALLON: Olffomta Gas Excise Tax: S0.596 I I Federal L.U.S.T & 
Superfund Tu: S0.0031< /I CA All#l2: S0.00298 /I PER INVOICE: 
Regulatory CcmpUanc:e Fee: S15.75 

PER GALLON: CaUfornl.a Gas Excise T.ax: S0.596 II Feder.al LU.S.T &. 
Superfund Tu: S0.0031< /I CA A&fl2: S0.00298 /I PER INVOICE: 
Re<julatory Compliance fee: SIS.75 

PER GAUON: C;allfornlil Gas Exclse Tax: $0.596 // Feder.al LU.S.T & 
Superfund Tax: S0.0031< /I CA All#l2: S0.00298 /I PER INVOICE: 
Rcsut.atory Complfanc.c Fee: s,s. 75 

PER GAUON: Calffoml.a Gas Exc:tsc Tax: S0.596 // Fedcrill LU.S.T &. 
Superfund Tu: S0.0031• /I CA A8#32: S0.00298 /I PER INVOICE: 
Regulatory Compliance Fee: $15.75 

PEil GALLON: ~llfom~ ~s Exdsc Tu: $0.596 // Federal LU.S.T & Supetf\Jnd 
Ta: S0.00314 // CA AU32: $0.00298 // PER INVOICE: Rccubtory Compll.tncc 
~c: $15.75 



-0 
0, 
N 

m,pra---• --

City of Roseville 

Bob~l Offff:ffl\tial • City of ~.,:•,tU• LOCltk:lr'I:. 

Corponte Yard • 200S Hilltop arcte. ROWl!Uc (957-0) 

Got(~ Mltntcnancc- Yard • Dfamond Oaks Golf c.cur,.,.c- 349 Dflilnelnd 0aJa 
Rd., Rasntllc 

PoU"IR~ Dcp&nmen:s • ◄01 0alc Strttt,, ~llo> 

WatttTtc:11tnintPl&nt-93-42 8.lrtonR0,1d, R~llc 

Dry Crc-ck Was~i.terTreatmcnt Plant· 1100 ac»th Road, ~Ue, 

01.ial Purpo-..c Pi.mp Station· 1◄01 wt AO"..c!YfUo Pkw.ay, ~Ile 

Wt""..ufdo Tank -~ Wcitpadc Dt, Rose-Yflleo 

~llcAreStaUcnHo. 2· 1l'8Jin:tfonBlvd., ~~ 

Rcr.c¥1t~fl~Stadontlo. l· 1l000tbyWay, AO"A'Ylllc-

Ro-,.cyjll,e Arc: Suitton No. ,c • 1900 Eureka ~. AO"..c'¥11te 

~Uc A:rc Suitlon N.o. S • 1565 Ple~t Gnm-, AO"..cYfUc 

RcY~l\c Are Staaon Ho. 6 • t-00 E. Ro-..c"Yflle Pkwy •• llMc--A~ 

RO"..evfllc Fire Station Ho. 7 • 911 Hlthb.nd Point Orfve, Ro~llc 

R~llc Ffrc Statfon No. 9 • 2AS1 Ha~ P11i1<way ROWl'ltb: 

City of Rocklin 

Bobtall Offrc-ri:nt11l • Rocklin Loattons 

RodcUn Corp. YW • 4011 Al~fa C~, Roddfn (9S6n) 

City of Folsom 

-----------11 lff.-

___ ,,, 
.,,... __ -- -----

503,000 J.◄lSO 

SO,lOO 

1'wo • 10,000 ('G) 

One• SOO IAGI 

OM• 2,000 IBG} 

Ono· lOO IAG) 
One- SO(AG) 

Two· 500 AG) 
One -10,000 (BG) 

Ont-· 2,000 (AG) 

One• l,000 (AG) 

Ono-SOOIAGI 

an.· soo IAGI 

One· 1,000 (ACi) 

an.- SOO IAGI 

One- SOO IAGJ 

0no· 500 (AG) 

One-· 500 (.A.GI 

10,000 l.◄350 

1.000 

~· 12,000 (AG) 

210,000 l.◄350 

D-Ul.S Dic:&d fl 

-• -- -- - __ .., .,..,, .. ........ - - - - -- .. 
"""'"' __ ..,..,; \.,,Alll0rna.a Lll~I t.XCISC!' 1u ; ,>v.-.- 11 

F•d•ral LU.S.T. £t Suporfund Tu: $0.0031411 CA AB#32: 
$0.0045211 PER INVOICE: R•!lulatory Compliancr F•o: 

(0.0190) s 3.3460 s 1,683,038 $15.75 
PER caLLON: Callfornl.1 DIC1d Exax Tu: so.◄"4" Fcdcftl l.U.S.T. a 
~in:! Tax: S0.0011◄ I I CA .A.Bill: $0.00452 I I PEJl INVOICE.! R"!Wtor, 

0.()490 s 2.◄6S CompU&t'CC' Ftt: S15.75 

PER c..t.ll0N: C&Ufon'&li 0k-wl ExdMTu: S0.◄"41/ F~ L.U.S. T. a. 
~lni Tu: S0JXJJ1◄ I I CA Allll: S0.00452 I I PO INV09C[: htulAtory 
Compliance. ftt: SlS.75 

PER GAi.LOH: uufoml.1 Dler-l U dx Tax: SO.◄)◄// t-edcnil L.U..S.T. b. 
~ Tu : S0.00)1◄ I I C.A A611:l: S0.00452 I I PEA INV0tet: llq\d&tory 

0.0190 Compliance Ftt: S15.75 

,ER GAL.LOH: C.bfoml.1 0lftcl t:r:dx Tu : so.◄)◄ /I ~r111 L.U.S.T. &. 
Su~f.nd Tu: so.cxm• , / CA AUD.: S0.004Sl I I PD. INVOrct: Rcr,Jlatory 

0.0290 Complfanc.r Feie: S1S.75 

rt.AG.Al.LOH: c.urom1.1 DIC'M'I Eactso Tu:: so.◄541/ F~l l.U.S.T. &. 
Supc,rt'und Ta:: S0.00l1◄ I I CA Allll.: S0.00452 / I PER IHV0IC[: Ariul,ltory 

0.0290 Compbna: f'tt: StS.75 
. '-'" __ ,. _ _ ,,,_rn...a ..,, .. _,,,, _,,....,,_ . GA: ::>v. -. .. 11 

Frdoral L U.S.T. £t Suporfund Tax: SO.OOJH II CA AB#32: 
S0.004S2 II PER INVOICE: Rrgulatory Complianco r .. , 

0.0290 $15.75 
........ ---• • _,.,ornkl ..,,e-sc, c.,Jl,Cl :W: u; ::>1.1,-.., " 

F•dorol LU.S.T. & Suporfund Tax: S0.00314 II CA AB#32: 
S0.00452 II PER INVOICE: Rrgulatory Compllancr r .. : 

0.0290 $15.75 
...... --..... ....... . \,,.OIIJor nlO Lllt'~I ....... 1se- ,AA. ;;>v ....... II 

F•dor>I LU.S.T. £t 5uporfund Tox: $0.0031• II CA A8#32: 
$0.00452 II PER INVOICE: Re-,gulatory Compliance- Fff: 

0.0Z.90 $15.75 
POI GALLON: CltJlonu 0k:s,ri Ucue Ta:: ~ .• >1 11 fedlffl L.U..S. T. It 

s..,pe,rtf.nd Tu:: S0.0011◄ I I CA Alll2: S0.00452 I I PD IMVOfC£: ~tort 

0.0290 Compl!va 1ft: S1S.7S 

PER G.Al.L0 H: Clltfomll OICSN Elcue Tu.: S0.◄.)41/ fi:detal L.U.S. T. fl 
Supffiu,d Ta:: S0.0011◄ JI CAAll'l2: S0.004.5211 PER IWVOIC£.: ~tory 

0.0290 Compllanc.t- F« : s,s.75 
POI GAUCH: C.lltornla Dlnd b:ds.Tu: )0.4>1 I/ hdcl'r111 L.U.S.T. tl 

SU;,fffu,d Tu : S0.0011◄ I I CA All'l2; S0.00(52 I I PO. INVOICE: ~tory 

0.0290 C.OW.,liatu F«: SlS.75 

-· __ ... _,, o ni.a "'~ ~~,se- ,QA. ::>1.1. T - ,, 

Frd•ral LU.S.T. £t Suporfund Tox: $0.00314 II CA AB#32: 
$0.00452 II PER INVOICE: Rrgulatory Complianc• Fro: 

0.0290 $15.75 
Pt.R GAllOH: c.a1lfoml.1 Dlexl tlldsc Tu:: )O • .C)◄ II f'cdctBl L.U.S.T. b. 
~1rld Tu.: $0.0011◄ II CAA81ll.: $0.00452 II PER IHVOIC[: Retubtory 

0.0290 CDmptwu f'rir: S15.75 

POI: GALL0M: catllornta Dlc.v\ fxcue Tu : SD.◄)4 11 f'~l L,U.S.T. ft 
SUpcrlund Tu.: S0.00)1 ◄ I I CA AUll; S0.004S2 I I PER INVOICE: Rc,;ulatory 

0.0290 eomc,ttaru Fft': s ,s.75 

Pf.A GALLON: catltoift• Died Orose Tu: SDA>I II fC'dtBI L,U.S.T. It 
Suprmr,d Tu: $0.0011 ◄ II CA>.an:2: S0.00452 /I PtR tMV0ICt: Rcsutatory 

0.0290 eompuance F«: s,s.75 

--~ ~---· ; _ ,, orm• U'l~I t.XCISC' I ax: )U.-.- II 

F•deral LU.S.T. & Suporfund Tax: S0.0031• II CA AB#32: 
$0.0045211 PER INVOICE: Rrgulatory Complianco F .. : 

(0.0190) s 3.3.60 $ 33,460 $15.75 
rER GALLON: CIUfoml.1 Olewt Eicdse Tax: S0.•"4 II F«i~t L U.S,T. ft 
~!Mld Tu: S0.0Dl1◄ IICAJ.Ul2: S0.00451// PER INVOICE.: Rqul,,ttory 

0.0490 s ,c9 CompUAra f'tt: S15.75 

PEA GALLON: C:.tsfOff'h 01~ U CMTax: SD.◄S4 // FC'IMRll.U.S.T. a. 
~1rldTu: $0.0DJ1◄ II CA.A.Ull: S0.004521/ PER INVOICE: Rc:culatory 
CompU&ra f'tt: S15.7S 

PUG.A.I.LON: CIUfOl'TU 0leet tads.Tu: )O • .C)4 I/ f'«letal L.U.S.T, tl 
SUp,fflf.nd Tu: S0.0011◄ II CAAUll: $0.00452. II PO tNV0ICE: flc:culatofy 

(0.0190) s 3.3700 s 707,700 Compliance fft': S1S.7S 

P1ttc I 



"'C 
a, 
~ 

~•-.,--... 
8obt11l Olffercnttat • Fobom Locations 

Cotponatfon Yard • 1300 Lddcdorl'f Sttc-ct. Folsom {95630) 

fire ~rtmcnt llS (2 Secuon Tank) 515 GkM Drlvc, Folsom (95630) 

. -
City of Galt 

Sobtall Oltfetcntal • Galt Loc:attons 

Corp. Yard Mncx • 550 Elm A.VNl!Je', Galt (956)2) 

SMUD 

8obtall Oltrcrcnt\al • SMUO Locat:l~ 

Mobflc Foel Truck, ECOC 4401 Br.ad~w Road ~to, CA 95!27 

U.S. Hf1hw2v .4Q Pollock Pine, 0 95n.6 

7+&44 kt' Ho.u bd Riverton. CA. 95726 

City of Sacramento 

Sobtalt Dtftcmnttal • SAcramonto Locations 

North Atc:a flcctMlfntcNnec f'adl1ty 918 0c-l P&$0 ~. SKtamc-nto (9S&l◄:) 

McadOV'MC:W Plttt Scrvlo: • 2812 N,c,1,dOV'Mew Road, SAC:nrnfflto (9-5132) 

South Cot;>. Y.ard • S7lO 2,th Stiwt Mdt. 1, Sa~to (95122) 

KIMI.')' Poliu F.ldtltY • l5SO ~ry:vllic- Blvd., Sactamcnto (9Slll) 

Suttc-r:; Landfnc • lath and A.Stn-et, ~to (95816) 

EncfMHolMNo.1 •624QStrttt. ~mento(9S&11) 

Enc.inc- Hol.2 Ho. 1 • 1219 I Strcot, Slcl'llmcnto (9S81◄) 

Enc1M ~ Ho. J • 720I w. Elkhorn &lvd., Sam.mmto (95837) 

.,. __ ., .,..,. __ 

On,:· 2,000 (ACi) 

Ono • 500 {AG) 

Ono• t ,000 (AG) 

(AG) 

(AG) 

(AG) 

Onl:• 15,000 (AC.I 

Two. 10,cm {aGI 

One· 12,ax> (BG) 

OM· 11.000 (IGJ 

Ono· 2.000 (AG) 

B • ULS Diad 12 

-.11 .. -
-NIYU01: -- ---- - ---- ----- - -

21.000 

0.0240 

0 ,0240 

,,ooo 3,4350 (0.0190) 

500 

0.0290 

... 20,000 3 .... 350 (0.01 90) 

"2,000 

0.0390 

0.0MO 

0.0740 

20,000 3."'350 (0.0190) 

2.000 

0.02,4() 

0.02◄0 

0.0240 

Pntc2 

___ .....,. ______ 

IEWW 1.:.·-=. •1 
....... - __ ..., -· , ......... - - ar- 1 ... ' 

l'fR GALLOM: Cabfon'U DICK( Exd ir Tu: so.◄54 II Federal l.U.S.T. a 
Supc,rfundTu:: S0.00314 /I CAAUn: S0.00452 11 PEJI. INVOICE: Rctulatory 

0."'90 s 1,029 Cotnpllanc:c f'tt: S1S.7S 
' ...... --· : _, .. o ni. I.IIC'W _ .. , ... ~ u . :)1,1 .... ., ' II 

Fedora! LU.S.T. ft Su~rfund Tax: $0.0031◄ II CA A8P32: 
$0.00◄52 II PER INVOICE: Rogulatory Complianco Foo: 
$1S.75 
l'al G.M.LOH: C..Ufot'l'U CK-wt £.xdw Ta: S0.4)4 11 ftordc-Rt L.U.S. T. 1!t 

Sup«flJnd Tu: S0.00114 I I CA AUJ2: SO.DD◄S2 I I PER IMVOICE: Rqulatory 
CompUanco Ftt: S1~.75 

l'ERC.AUOH! c..tffomla ~ £.xcue l ax: S0..o4 II f~I L,U.S.T. tl 
~\rid Tu: SD.00l14 I/ CAJ.Ull: SD.00452111'0. IMVOIC[: Rrfwitory 

s 3.37S0 s 16,87S Compll1f'U Ftt: S15.75 

l'ER GALLON: CAbfOff'U ~~Tu: SD.◄S◄ II Federal L.U.S.T. & 
S4.lpffl\rd Tu: SO.O::ll1 ◄ II CAA&IJ2: SD.00CS2 II l'D: IMVOIC£: Rf'IU!atory 

0,()490 s 2S Compliance ftt: S15.75 
PEA GALLON: CaHloml• Dlc5cl Udte Tu: S0.◄).4 II federal l.U.S.T. 8. 

SUpe-rf~ Tu:: S0.00l1• 11 CAAUl2: SD.0045211 P(R IHVOIU! ~ tol')' 
Cornpl1Mct fft: S1S.1S 

- ·· ~ - · . -···-·n•• .,'""'"c:-1 ~ ... 1sc- 1 ....... :>u ........ 11 

Fodoral LU.S.T. ft 5u~rfund Tax: $0.0031411 CA A8#32: 
$0.00◄52 II PER INVOICE: Rogulatory Complianco F .. : 

s 3.3850 s 1,421,700 $15.7S 
PER GM.LOH: C.llfomf• DIC'SC'l U:dsc Tu: SD.◄54 II ~I'll\ L.U,S.T. &. 

5upi:rfi.n:I Tu:: SD.00l1, // CA AUl2: S0.00452 I I l'ER IMVOIC(: ~to,y 

0."'90 s 2.0SI CorroliMOe F-= S1S.7S 

,at GALLON: c.au1om11 Dlltk'\ £.ads. Tu : SDA>I II f"C"Ckral L.u.s. T. b: 
Sur,o,rfi.nd Tll: SD.00114 II O Allll: SD.004S1 II PDI. INVOICE: RriulatotY 
Com~tiaru Fer-: S15.75 

l'ER GAi.LOH: C&UfonN 0ICK'f. ~ Ta: SO.◄>◄ II f ~ l L.U.S.T. a 
~t.ndTu: SD.DDl1◄ II CAAUJ2: S0.00(52 11,at lMVOk:t: Rt'll,lllto,y 
Comptfaru Fee: S1S.7S 

-·~ --·: _ . ,.o ,,._ .. ,~l-C' ~ ... ~ Ja,111.. ,1, ....... ~-.11 

Fcdo..C LU.S.T. ft Su~rfund Tax: $0.00314 II CA A8#32: 
S0.00◄S2 II PER INVOICE: Rogulatory Compltanco F .. : 
$15.7S 

l'EAGAI.LON: Cabfort'U Dlewltxdw Tu : SD.◄S4 /I ,._ l.U.5.T. ~ 
SUpttfund T•: S0.00l1◄ I I O A.Ull.: SD.00452 I I PO IMVOICt: RetUlatOtY 

s 3.3◄60 s 66,920 Compl1ara F«: S15.75 

l'ER G>.LLOM: CAUfomfa Olcsrl Exdw Tu: SD.◄S4 II Fede-nil L.U.S.T. & 
SUp«f\nf Tu:: S0.00l1• I I CA AUl2: SD.004Sl I I l'ER IWVOICt'.: Relul.ato,y 

0.0190 s 11 ~tlancc- t-= s,s.n 
- ·· ..-..-.,1,....,.-,, UIIHOrn1a IJIC'W UCISC' ax; )u. ...... II 

Fodera! L.U.S.T. & Su~rfund Tax: $0.0031411 CA ABP32: 
$0. 00452 II PER INVOICE.: Rctulatory Compliance ftt: 
$1S.75 
l'(R GAi.LON: Callfotn11 0ksrl tJtCl~Tu: S0,4)4 JI federal L.U.5.T. tl 
~u,d Tu: S0.CW1' II CA. Hill: S0.01)(51 // ,t:R IMVOICE: Rq:ulatory 
Complianct- FM: StS.7S 

l'EA G.M.LOH: Caltfot'l'U Dleribdte Tu:: SO.◄>t II f cdrfal L.U.S.T. &. 
SUpf:rll.l'ld Tu : SQ.0031◄ I I CA AUll: SD.00452 11 l'ER IWVOICE: ~tory 
CompU~ F~: S15.7S 

PER c.ALLON: Callfot'l'U Olcs,el tidk' lu:: S0.◄)4 II fedeftl l.U.S . . 11 
~Tu:: S0.00)1, II UAUll: S0.004Sl 111'0: IMVOICt: lle-twto'Y 
Comptlanu Ftt: S15.75 

PEil GALLON: C.llfomll 0lesfi U:che Tu: so.•~ II Ftdrl'III l,U.S.T. &. 
Su;,etflnd Tu:: S0.00)1◄ I I O ABl'l2; S0.004S2 11 l'ER l)IVOK!: Rc-culatory 
Compliancr ftt: S15.75 

PD: GALLON: C.UfOMa 0lftrl Exdw Tu.: SO.◄)◄ II Fedc-r:11 L.U.5.T. & 
~uncl Tu : S0.00)1◄ /IO AUJ2.: SO.IXMS2 // l'Dt INVOIC[: Rrtvlatory 
Com;,llanc:r 1ft: S15.75 

, u.c.ALLOH: t.atlfom&a Dloritxeu,,:Tu.: SO.◄>◄ II F~ L.U.S.T. & 
Supffilnd Tu:: S0.00l1◄ II ClAUJ2: S0.00452 11 P~ DfVOICE: RctulatOtY 
CompUana Fee: S15 .75 

l'U CIALLON: ca111om1a C)jftt"I U o,e Tu : S0,◄)4 II f~l l.U.S.T. &. 
Supc-rfi.nd Tu: S0.00l14 // CA-Ul'l2.: S0.00452 // PER IMVOICC: Rrirubtory 
'-llanc, F«: S1S.7'S 



-0 
a, 
~ 

~-----.... 
WJittt Dept. 35th Avr. hrk!nc • 1l9S 35th Ave., ~to (9SIZ2) 

County of Sac:ramento 

8obta.ll DIHetffltl.al • County of SKS"am.ento LoatloM 

~ 9661 ~tfon ROid SacratMnto, CA 95127 

Horth Arc.i T~fcr St.itton • 4450 Rcr..C'Ylllll!' Ro.id HOl'th Hithl.l.neb, CA 19~660) 

liorth COl.lltY ~t!on Y;t,rd • 5026 Don JUUO a1vcs. ~to. CA 95142 

~I Trc1tmfflt ,1.ant (SRW'TP) • &521 Lacuv, Sta.tfon ROMf 
ElkG!'OVC,CA9Sr.i! 

Vlnc)'lrcl SUrfl~W1tcrTn:~tmont Pl.Int 101.S1 florin Rold 
Sac:r.amento, CA 95!29 

. . . . 

Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District 

Bobtail Dlffercntt.11 • Sac::r2mento MctropollWI Fire Dlstnct LoaOOt'tS, 

f\Nt • 4C25 Dudley !l'+"d. McClellan, CA (95652) 

Lot:lstla • 30'12 Gold CMl.al Dr lbncho Cordovi, CA (95670) 

Sta.non 21 • 7641 Grccnl>Kk LnCUru: KciChts CA (95610) 

St.:&tfon ll • Ml1 Grccnb:ick Lane Citrus Hc1Cht$, CA (9S621) 

Stufon 22 • 62.◄8 Hut A~ Crane-le, CA 195662) 

Station 25 • 7lS2 ~UC Rd. SaO'lmmto, CA. ("642) 

Sta don 26 • aooo h~..on Ortvr Antriopc, CA 195342) 

Statlon29 • 8681 Gt'ttl"lbadc Lil Or.mtcvale, CA (95662) 

StaOon ll • SS90 Rocd1t cr Lano falr OW, CA (9!i6U) 

Stat!on<41 • 69CXl lhomlt.S Dr H Hiihland~, CA 195660) 

Statton .SO· &aaD wr1lff Rd Sac:r.vnctlto, CA (95121) 

Statton 55 • m6 Otccl:l;for Road Saawnttito, CA (95129) 

---· ISi'--.,,__ __ --
50,000 

S,000 

Two• 11,000 (BG> 

One· 20,CXJO (BG) 

Ont:- 12,000 (8G) 

0nll!' •◄,CXJO (AGI 

ON!-2,CXJO{AGI 

260.000 

26,000 

One • 1,000 (AG) 

0nf-•500 IAG) 

One• 1,000 IAG) 

One· 1.000 (AG) 

~ • 1,000 (AG) 

Ono• S00 (AG) 

Ono• 1,000 (AG) 

Ono· 1,CXJO(AG) 

One · S00 (AG) 

One· 1,000 (AG) 

Ono· 5CO (AGJ 

One · S00 (AG) 

B - ULS Diesel 12 

--- =-- I •••=v-::= ---·----- -- - __ ,_ ---.-.~ .......... ----- - - - - -- --,0: GALLON: C..Ufomta Dlc:M:t t:xmt'Tar. S0.'6411 fedc1at L,U.S.T. D. 
SIIP"r1Lnd Tu: S0.00l1◄ IICAAUll: S0.0045111 rER IMVOICI: ~to,y 

0.0240 Compliance f"ff: $15.75 

,u GAL.LOH: Caijfonu, ~ b.cn.e Tu: S0A)4 II FC'denl L.U.S.T. & 
Supt'l'fLnd Tu:: $0.DDlt◄ II CAABln: $0.004.Sl It rER INVOICE.: ~tory 

3.4350 (0.0190) s 3.3460 s 167,300 Compliara F...:: $15.75 

,tA GAL.LOH: C.!;fomla 0fee,l £.xcbe-Tu: SO.◄S4 I/ F«k-nil L.U.S.T. & 
~ Tu : S0.00l1◄ I I CA AM'll: S0.004Sl I I rD. IMVOK:£.: ~to,y 

0.03,0 s ,., Compl1ancz fff: S1.S.75 

,u. GAL.LOH: Cal1fomta 0kwl Uct,.r Tu:: SO.◄S4 // ftodrni l L.U.S. T. It 
~Ln:S Tu: so.a:m◄ 11 CAAU32: S0.0045211 ra tHVOta: ~tory 
c.omp~anc,: rff: St.S.75 

rER GALLON: C&llfoml• OIC'SC'l bCIW: 1u : so.◄)411 fcek'nil L,U.S.T. t1 
~ Tax: SO.C:Cl1<4 I I CA AUl2.: SD.00451 I I r£R INVOlct: Ril!'J1A,ltory 
Cornptl.ana- Fft': S15.75 

rtA GALLON: C&Ufomia C>k:x1. b:DK' Tu:: S0.◄)41/ fcdc-nil L.U.S.T. tl 
Suprrt"und Tu.: S0.CXl11◄ I I CA Aaln: S0.00452 I I PER INVOICE: ~ulatory 
CornpUara Fff: S15.7l 

... -----··: , .,:111 ornl4 r.,IC'SC' ~Cl>C ,AA: ;)1,,1•~- 11 

Fodor-.! L.U.S.T. £t Suporfund Tax: $0.00314 // c:A "-8#32: 
$0.004S2 // PER INVOICE: Rogulatory C:Ompllanco Foo: 

0.02◄0 $15.75 
r EA GALLON: C&lrfomlJI Olnt:l flow Tu:: SO.◄S4 I/ Fede-nil L.U.S.T. &. 

SUpc:rt'und Tu.: 50.0011◄ II CA ABlll: S0.00452 II rat IMVOICf: ltett,llatory 

0.02◄0 Come>Uanm fft': 515.75 

,u. GALLON: C&llfOfflla Dltwl t:xdw lu.: S0,◄)411 f'ede-ni l L,U.S.T. 11 
Supt'f'f161d Tu: S0.00)1◄ II CA Allll.: S0.0()452 II ,at INVOICE: RqtJlatory 

(0. 0190) s (0.0650) S (16,900) eompua,o FOIi!': S15.75 

rtR GALLON: C.Ufomla ~ Uctse- Tu.: SO.◄S4 II F~nil L.U.S.T. &. 
Supert'und Tu.: S0.C:Cl1◄ I I CA AUll.: S0.DCM51 I I PER INVOICE: Rll!'lulatory 

0.0190 s 1,014 Compitana rff: s,s.75 

'tA GALLON: C&ufOl'TU 0kwl tJtC1M Tu: SO.◄)' II fedc1at L.US. T. t1 
Sc.,pcrfund Tu: SD.C:Cll◄ II CA Aall2: SO.DCM52 II ,u IHVOIC(: ftctut&tory 

0.02<40 Comp~ fff: StS.75 

,utGALLOH: C..Ufomt&OlesribQ)OTax: S0.◄>4 II~ L.US.T. b. 
Supcrl1'id Tu: S0.0011◄ I I CA AM'll: S0,01)o(Sl / I ,a hM)tC[: ltC'fUla,tory 

0.02◄0 Complfanu FIN: $15.75 

,EA GALLON: CaUfomta Dlcsd ExClse u.: SO.◄S◄ II f ederal L.U.S. T. b. 
SUp,trl'Ln:S Tu.: S0.DDl1◄ I I CA Allll: S0.004.s2 I I rER INVOICE.: Rqul.atory 

0.02◄0 CompUara fft: StS.75 

rEAGALLOH: CaUfomla Ole,.rl bruc-Tu: SO.◄S4 II Fedc-tal L.U.S.T. & 
SYP«fl.l'ld Tu:: 50.00ll◄ I I CA Altl2: S0.00452 I I ro INVOICE: ~toty 

0.02◄0 ~lf.ancc fN: StS.75 

'flt GALLON: Clltlfomla Olari b:aw Tax: S0.◄5-4 II ' """' L.U.S.T. a 
SUpetl'I.W'ld Tu:: SD.0011◄ I I CA ABlll: 50.00452 I I r!R IHVOIC(: Rctutatoty 

0.0240 CompUaro ~: S15.7'5 

rU.GALLON: Catuonta OksrlUctse Tu.: 50.◄)4 I/ kdll!'nil L.U..S.T. l:l 
~ Tu.: SD.C:Cl1◄ I I CA Alll2: $0.0()452 I I rER. INVOICE: Rct',ltatory 

0.02◄0 Comc,Uance fff: S15.75 

,~ GA.I.LCM: C&bronu ~ bdle Tu.: SO.◄.)◄ II f~ L.U~.T. rt 
St.,pt-rtl.W'ldTu:: $0.0011◄ II CA.AUll: S0.00451 II PEJt rMVCK:£:: Retulatory 

0.02◄0 ton,pllance fff: StS.7'5 

,u GALLON: Caltfonu D\oc'l fxO\C Tu.: 50,◄),4 II F«Scral L,U.S.T. It 
Supffflol'ld Tu: $0,C:C)I ◄ II CAAllll: 50.004511/ ,at INVOICE.: flrrulatoty 

0.0140 Con,pUaru F«: 515.75 

r(RGALLOH: UIUlon,ta Dlcscl t.lCIJ.e Tu : )U,◄)4 /1 fedcnil L.U.S.T. l:l 
SUpft'fl.W'ld Tu: S0.00Jl ◄ II CAAMn: S0.0CM5l II rEA IHVOIC[: Rctulatory 

0.02◄0 Comptiancc Ftt: S1S.75 

,u GAlLON: C.Ufomta Dlnri Exdse Tu: SO.◄S◄ II F«lenl L,U.S.T. &. 
5upffluncl Tu: S0.0011◄ II CAAllll: $0.0()45211 r ER IMVOIC[; ~l&tory 

0.02◄0 ComptiM,ca- fff: 515.75 

PtRGALLON: C.a1UOITU 0tael L&Cbe' Tu:: S0,◄)4 /1 fcckmL.U.S.T. b. 

SIJpcffLn:S Tu: $0.00l1◄ It CA All)l: 50.00452 II ,at IMVOIC.t: fteiulatory 

0.02.0 Con-,pis.tu rff: S1.S.TS 

rERc.AlLOtl: C&l:II01"11a Died. ExavTu.: SO.◄S4 II kdll!'ral. L.U.S.T. b. 
Supc-tf\rld Tu: SD.00J1 ◄ II CAA&rn: S0.00452 /I rEA DM>ICf: Rcs:ulatory 

0. 02-40 Compliance Fff: s,s.7S 

Pai;cl 



~ 
0, 
C1'I 

~------

StatSonSa • 7250 Slqhc>UU- Rd Elk Grove, CA 

St:,.tfon 65 • 11201 Coloma Rd bncho Cordoo,-a, CA (95670) 

StatSon66 ·l1S011;1\c<nRd Rancho~, Ci.(95670) 

Sta.tlon 106 • 2200 Pat1< TOWT1(! O~Sacnrrw!nto, CA (9~) 

Scat!on 109 • S6)4 ~ Ave Clrmld'loel, CA ("'608 

Stauon 111 • 6609 R1o Linea alvd Rio u~. CA (9S6nJ 

-
Elk Grove Unifed School District 

8obtall Dlflcrmcal • flk Grove Unlned School C1strlct Loadom 

8421 Gefbcr Rd, ~mmento, (9582BJ 

U00 Elk Grav. !!-Id, Elk Gn:,w, (956241 

San Juan Unified School Districit 

aol:ltall Dllferena&t - San Juan W&ter Dtstrlct Loatlons 

C,otp. Yard • 99lS Aubum Fo~ Rd., GMte !.i)' (957◄6) 

Yuba City 

Dobtan Dfflffffldal • Yuba City Loa~ 

1185M:.ric('t5trtttYub&Clr;y, (95991) 

701 Hon:J'citr Drf'IIC YUba Qty, ('jl5991) 

302 Bu~ Dnvc Yub.:!. Cny, (95991 I 

l'l4 Cwk AVCffJC Ylba City, (95991) 

79SL1nc::olnRo:w:IYl.mQty, (95991) 

150 Oh~r Road Yuba City, J9ffll) 

l&SS Butte~ llO&d YUb& Oty, (9599J) 

_....,.., 
--

One • 500 (AG) 

On~· 1,COO (AG) 

~ • 1,000 (AG) 

One· 1,000 {AG) 

Doc· 1,000 (AG) 

Ono· 500 (AG) 

TNtt • 10,000 ISG) 

One· 10,000 (BG) 
Ono· 5,000 (BG) 

One· 750 (AG) 

Ono-7>0(AG) 

0n&· 7S0 (AGI 

Ono· 750 (AG) 

Ono· 1,000 IAG) 

One· 1,0CO (AG) 

OM· 1,000 (AG) 

B - \Jl.SD;c,,Jf2 

ICCA'II--
-NU--- ---- - ---- ---:a,,.,- - -

0, 0240 

0.0240 

0 .0240 

0.0240 

0.0240 

0 .02A0 

390,000 3.◄350 (0.0190) 

)9,0CX) 

100,000 3.◄350 (0.0190) 

20,000 

0.0◄90 

5,000 3.◄350 (0.0190) 

500 

0,0690 

0.0690 

0.0690 

0.0690 

0 .0690 

0 .0690 

0.0690 -

PnJ:c:4 

a;aa .a.= ... s-=..-if =1- .., ___ ·-=-· . -:: - __ ,.. - - m-
l'ERGALLOH: C.tlfom(a 0le.t tid lot Tu:: SQ,<1$4 1/ l'cdetal L,U.S.T. It 
s~ Tu:: S0.00l1<t // CAAUll: SO.OOCSl // l'?R IHVOIC(: Rrtwtorv 
Comp~ f«! SlS.75 

,a G.Al.LOM: ~fDl'Na Olftrl bow Tu: .4)4 / f rm.m t..U.S.T. &. 
5,upcrllftl Tu:: $0.0Cl14 II CA AUll: S0.00451 II l'ER M'OIC!; Rc-ri,llatory 
Compliance f'ee: S1 5.75 

,OtGALlOH: c.monu !Xnd b:ChcTu: $0,◄),4 / / ~IL.U.S.T. a 
SupttrfU"ld Tu:: S0.00)1,4 II CA AIIJ2: S0.004521/ PER lNVOICt: ~to')' 
Compbance Fe.: $15.75 

,ER Ci.ALLOH: C.IHomla D1tw1 Ex~Tax: $0,4S4 II C'Ckral L.U.S. T. ft 
SUpc-rfund Tax: S0.00l1<1 II CA Min: S0.00451 // PD. rNVOICE: ~ t.tory 
~ Fft': S15. 75 

l'(R CiAUOH: C.UfOfflla ~ l t.lCIIC T.u: ,4)4 / /f-~l L.U . . . ll 
SUS)ffl'undTu:: $0.0Ql14 // CA Alll l: S0.00451 // 1'£R IHVO~: ~ ulatoJy 
Compliance,~ : S15.75 

' Ct.ALLON: cau,om1.~t.0K l u: S0.◄)4 1/ t-~ L.U.S.T. & 
~ Tax: S0.00J1◄ I I CA Allll: S0,004$2 I I PO JMVOIC(: Rqulatory 
CompUance Fft': S15.75 

,a GALLON: """'°""~ fadK' Tu : .◄Sol II Fcoe-ral. l,U,S. T. & 
Tu:: S0.00)14 I I CAJ.all2: S0.0041211 PCR INVOKE: ~tor, 

s 3.3◄60 s 1 ,30◄,9◄0 '°""li&r"a' Fft: S15.~ 

PEA GALLON: C.11foml• 01'.ne,1 Exasc Tax.: SQ.4)4 // Fe.dttal L.U.S.T. 8. 
SUper'fi.rdTu.: SO.a:'1)1◄ II CAABlll: SO.OO(Sl I I rU INVc»a:: Retul,atol";' 

D.Cl90 s 1,51.1 CompU.ance f'tt: S 15. 75 

rfft GALLON: C..Ufomla ~ t.lOS. U : so.◄)4 11 f('dlel'JII l.U.S.T. t: 
Supcrlund Tax: S0.00)1◄ II CA Allll: S0.00451 /I PO: INVOta:: 11.etulatory 
Complianm f'eoe: S1S.75 

rot GALLON: catstoma Dkwt E.,rc,s,e Tu : S0.◄)4 I I Fcdefal L.U.S.T. & 
Tu : S0.0011◄ I I CA AMJ2: $0.0CM5l I I PtR INVOtct: 11.qwtol"f 

Compttanc. f'eoe: S15.75 

, ER GALLON: CaUfomla 0'lc5d bdK' Tax: SO.◄S4 II l'edNai L.U.S. T. & 
Tax: S0.00J1◄ I I CA ABIJ2..: S0.00452 I I PD IWVOJCf: ~tory 

s 3.3950 s 679,000 C.O~ance F«-: Sl5.75 

PER GAi.LOH: C,atuonn Dlcs.ri rxaw Tu:: so.◄S4 II fcdcf'al L.U.S.T. & 
Supffl"~Tu: S0.00J1◄ II CAAMll: SO.OCM5l ll PERiHVOKE: Retu(.atory 

o.om s , .. Comptsana fer. S15.75 

PERGALLOl't: eau,cwru Oladt:ac:bc-Tu : S0.◄)4 11 fflkotal L.U.S.T. tr. 
~\.nd Tu : S0.0011◄ I I CA AMJ2: SO.OOC52 I I PER INVOICE: Retulatory 
Compttanc.. Fff: S1S.7S 

' ('.Al.LOH: c..uronu Dlftd OICUI' Tu : •◄)4 II l'edfflll L, U,S, T. rt. 
Suprrl\.l'ld Tu: S0.00l14 II CA Alll2: S0.00452 II PER INVOICE: Retulatol";' 

s 3.◄150 s 17,D75 Compliance Fc-e: S1S.75 

PU GALLON: t.aUIOffU o.eri DlctM Tu: S0,◄)4 /1 f'cdcf'al L.U.S.T. b. 
Sup«!'~ Ta ; S0.00)1 4 II CA ABl12: S0.00452 / I PEI' tKVOIC[: Rc-p,Latory 

0.0590 s JO CompliM"a Fee: S15.7S 

om .,.., C SO 

Fodon,I L U.S.T. & Suporfund Tu: $0.00314 // CA A8#32: 
$0.00◄52 II PER INVOICE: R05ulatory Compliance Foo: 
$15.75 
PERc.Al.LOH: CM!fonu IM'K't ti.CUC' Tax.: S0.◄)4 // FedNal L. U.S.T. b. 

Sl.lpM\.nd Tu: so.00J1◄ 11 CA.t.Blll: so.oocs21, ,o IHVOtCt: 11.esulator)' 
Complunce fer. s,,.75 

rfR GALLON: c..1110.m• DI~ UClloC Tu : SO.◄ II l'cdcral l.U.S. T. fl 
SuPffll,NITu: S0.00l1◄ IICAAllll: .S0.0045lll rERIHVOICE: ~ulatory 
Compli~ Ftt: S1S. 75 

PER GALLON: C&IHotn• 0loei txow u : S0.4)4 / / f~ L.u.s.r. el 
Suprrlund Tu: S0.00l1◄ II OAUll: S0,004S2 II PER IHVOIC[: Rrt:ulatory 
Compliance Fee: S15.75 

' GALLOH: C&ltfomlaOloct b elW-Ta: S0,4)4 // ~l.U.S.T. b. 
Sup«!'~ Tu: S0.00)1◄ I ( CA ..... n : S0.004Sl I I PER rNVOtCE: ~tory 
Compliance F«-: S15.75 

n SC, • 
Fodera) L.U.S.T, & Suporfund Tax: S0.00314 // CA A8#32: 
S0.00452 // PER INVOICE: R05ulatory Compliance Foo: 
$15.75 
PERG,Al.lON: C&UfOff'll&OIC'K"lf.xdw Tax: S0,◄,5,4 // f~I L,U.S.T. & 

Supcor1'\ft:I Tu: S0.00)1◄ I I CA AUl2! S0.00452 I I PER ltr.'OK.t: rtc-r,Jlatoty 
CompUanc. Ftt: S1S.75 



-0 
C, 
C, 

~------- __ ..,.., 
--·""""""' - - .,- -- -

City of Davis 

klbtatl Olffc:rmtl•l. DaVli LOCI~ 

Fuel FadUty 1717 AfthSt., 01.yfs (95616) One-· 2,500 {BG) 

. -
City of Placerville 

Bobtafl Dlfftrffl:1.ll •CUyof Place-Ml~ Locations 

Elk Grove- Fleet f.ldlJty • Elk G~, CA 9562,4 One- • 12,000 

North Tahoe Public Utilities District 

8obtaU DlffN'ffltill • SRCSO LoatlCR 

Korth Tahoe 1U0 • 175 Kibonal Ave, Tahoe VI~. CA 96148 

Ono· (AG) 

SRCSD 

&obtall Olffot'fflt1•1 • SRCSD Locatf~ 

SRC.SD • as?11.atun1 Station Rd,, Elk GtoYt (9S7S8} 0ne' - l,600 !AG) 

.. 

Placer County Water Agency 

Bobtall Dlffermual - Pt.Kar County wuor Asency Locations 

PCWA Cotp. nrd • •n ~fdu Dr., AIJbum (9S60ll DM-1,000(AG) 

r CWA au:inc:zCcnte-r~ - 185 Fe-,iu::on Rd,, At.tK#n (9560)) Ono- 500 (AG) 

PCWAfOtt"SthfUF.cSIJtyCmtc-r- Sl2.S~t Dr., f~thfU (956311 Cno-1,000 IAGI 

PCWA Rabtc>n Site 9M)O &lacbnlth F\:t.t Rd., For~ll (95611) One - 500 (AG) 

l'CWA Frc-nch Mc-adewi Site 
One- - 2,000 (AG) Morthwc::,.t Side- of Hc-ll Hole Re-..ervo!r, foreth(U (95611) 

- -

County of Placer 

le!CA'IE .. _ ---m..- ------ -----
2l,OOO l..•0 50 

2.JOO 

◄,400 3.4350 

..., 

11.000 .... ,,. 

1,100 

7,500 3,4'350 

"" 

.S0,4')7 3.4350 

, .... 

C 

291,000 l .-4350 

B - ULS l);ccl 12 

-rm:: r ;;.h=isJ§:i!=":. - -- - __ ,.. - - - - · - .... 
,u GALLON: C&llfOlfta DI~ UC!~ Tu : S0.◄!>4 // f ~ I L .U.S. T. fl 

SUprtfLNI Tu: S0.00)1◄ II CA A&lll: S0.00452 // PtR IWYOICE: Retul,atory 

(0,0890) s 3.4050 s 78,315 Compi:wu fff: S15.7S 

PER Ci.Al.LON: CaUfomla Died U:awTu: S0,,45,4 // ft'dc1all.U.S.T. &. 
SUl)C'l'fund Tu:: so.anu JI CAAUJ2: S0.1»451 /I PER IMVOIU: ~ulator)' 

0.0390 s 90 Comptlaru Ftt: S15.75 

P(R GALLON: C&UfOIT'N Died C.OW Tu.: S0.◄"41/ ~ l,U.S.T. a. 
Supe,rfundTa: S,0.0011◄ // CAAUJl: S0.00451 // PER IMVOICt: ~ul.Atoty 

0 .0590 Comptlaru FC!lr': S15.75 

PER G.AI.LON: C,&tUom. DMsc-1. Ex~ Tu: S0.◄>4 II kdeffl L.U.S. T. l:t 

(O.O19O) s 3.3460 $ 14,722 
~ Tax: S0.0011◄ // CA .u,)2; S0.00451 I I PER IMVOtct: Rciwtory 
eompuanc.e r:c.: s,s.75 
PER. CiJJ.LON: C.UfOINa 0(es.d Excb.eTu:: S0.454 // h-deral t.U.S.T. fl 

jSupN1°111d Tax: S0.00314 II C,U.Ull: S0.00452 // ,u tMVCICl: ~to,y 

0.0490 s 22 Comptlance Fff: s,s.75 

,0; GALLOH: CaUfOfflla ~ llas.&t Tu: $0.◄>I II ftol'ra L,U.S,T. 11 
Supcotflrld Tax: S0.00)14 II CA .A.Bill: S0.004S2 // l'D. INVOICE: Rciu\atory 
c.ompHanct Fee: S1S.7S 

,ER GALLON: CaUfomla CNcs.ri !xOM Tu : )0.4S4 JI ~t'Ckffl L.U,S.T. &. 
[Supt:t11N Tax: S0.00114 // CAAUll: SO.OIM52 /f PER INVOICE: ~ul.atory 

(0.0190) s 3.4050 s 37,455 Comp~ F«: S1S.7S 

PER CiAI.LOH: C&UfOf'TU CNesrl [ld.W Tu: S0.◄'4 // f'~ l.U.S.T. It 
Sus-rfund Tu: S0.00l14 // CA A8132: S0,00452 // r ER lNVOfCE: Retutatory 

0.0690 s 76 Compllanco f't-r: SlS.75 

r ER CiAI.LON: tabfOf'TU 01c!l,.e,l !xctw Tu:: S0.4)411 f'~I L.U.S.T. & 
~undlu: S0.00l14 // CAAll12: S0.00452 // P'ER INVCIC£: Rriw,tory 

0.0S90 Compliance- hr. S1S.75 

, Ot CiAI.LCN: C.Ufomla Dlftrl l.1:0~ Tu:: SO.◄S4 I/ h!dr~I L.U.S.T. &. 
Supctfund Tax: S0,00]14 // CA Allll: S0.004,52 II rEJt tNVOICC: ~la:ory 

(0.0190) s 3.3850 s 25,388 Compltanu Fee-: S1S.7S 

l'EA CiALLON: C&Ufomla CNcsrl Exa~ Tu:: S0.4'411 fedc-ral L.U.S.T. & 
~und Tu:: S0.001141/ CA Allll: S0.004521/ rER INVOICE: Rrfutatory 

0.0490 s )7 Compliara FN: S15.7S 
..... _.._..,.,.; _,.,ornl4 ~tS<" ..... ~ u t ..x; ::.v...... 11 

Fodoral L.U.S.T. & Suporfund Tox: $0.00314 II CA AB#l2: 
$0.00-452 II PER INVOICE: RC'!ulato,y Compliancr FH: 

0.0)90 S15.7S 

rtR GALLON: C&Ulomla 01,rscHicdso Tu:: S0.454 II fed.rail L.U,S.T. l 
Supnfll'ld Tu:: S0.00l14 // CAAIOl: SO.OCMS2 II ,o tNVOICf.: Rttulatory 

(0.0890) s 3.4050 s 171,738 Comc>tiwu r«: S15.7S 

rERGAI.LOH: CatlfOffU Diesel lldsc Tax.: SO.◄S4 /I f'~I L.U.S.T. fl 
Supcrl\nl Tu:: S0.00)14 I/ CAAIIJ2: SO.Ot>el I/ ,ER DiNOIC[: Rciuta,tofy 

0,0490 s 247 Compliance fee: $15.75 
~ _..._ ... ,, ; _,.,o nw U1~ ........ _ ,ax. :>V .... _,. II 

Fod~ral L.U.S.T. & SUporfllnd Tox: S0.00314 II CA A8#32: 
$0.00452 II PER INVOICE: Regulatory Complianco Ftt: 

0.0590 $15.75 
,tR GAi.LOH: ca1uonu Died £xCbe Tu:: S0.◄>1 11 kdcfal L.U.S.T. fz 
~Lrld Tax: S0.00l14 II CAAUn: S0.00452 // l'Ol JMVCIC[: R~ry 

0.0590 Cotnplfara Fee: S15.7S 

,ER GAi.LOH: CalHomla DIN,t'\ b:ClsoTu:: ~-◄>I// f-t«'nl l.U.S.T. h 
SUpc,rft.l'ld Tu: S0.001141/ CAAllll.: S0.0CM52. II PER IMVOICE: ~Ltto,y 

0.0590 CompU.u fee: S15.75 

rER G.AlLON: ca11,om1a Dlewl bCl~Tu:: S0.◄)4 // Feclenl L.U.S.T. fl 
Supt:'l'fi.r,d Tu: S0.00J14 I I CA AUJl: S0.004511 / , CR INVOICE: RC'l\,ILltory 

0.0590 ComptlMca Fft: S1S.75 

-· ~--·· . _ .. . o lie ... ,rsc-1 t.XCU.t' -= )U.-.~ .. II 

Fodoral L.U.S.T. & Sui>"rfund Tax: $0.00314 II CA A8#32: 
$0.00452 II PER INVOICE: Ro!ulatory Complianco Ftt: 

0.0S90 $15.75 

'°' CiAI.LOH: C.Utomta Diec-I E.IClsc Tu:: S0.◄)4111'«k>ral L.U.S.T. !i. 
SUpt-rfl.NS Tax: $0.00)14110Alll2.: $0.0t>el II l'ER IHVOIC.E: Rttulatorf 

(0.0190) s 3.4050 s 994,260 Compl:fancr F«: S1S.7S 

P11cc s 



--0 
0, 
-..J 

Qeop)'B•IIIS_R __ 

Bobtail Dllfercntt11l • County of Plaectr PW loatlons 

Lincoln Corp. Yud • "401 Oak Tree lane, l1ncoln 

Cou'lty Scfvlcc StatlOn - 11441 F Aw::., AUbUm 

fon:-:.thlU Tard • 22700 Foc'etNU Road, ~ll 

CoUax Corp. Ya.rel• 11l3 South Aubum R~d, CoU:uc 

Tahoe Corp. Y.1ird - 1501 Horth t.ako DlYd .. TahOo City 

T~ Sffvlcc-Statjon • 910 Dlbin Crttk Rc:.d, TNCkec 

SMOl1 • 117S5~er~, MbUm 

Ttudcc,c ROid Y.in:I. 745 C.ibin Clttk ll~, Truckc!c 

Town of Truckee 

aobU.ll Olffc-rc-ntl~l - Town of Truclceo locatio~ 

Tahoc:-IDonncrYard 1◄5ll Northwoods atvd., Truckc-e (96161) 

Corp, Y.1ird 11 1on0 R!'i'CN'Vkw Dr., Tn.dcco 196161) 

PubUcSttwic.tC.cntcr•Corp, Yard ll 10969S~ WIC', Truc:kec (96161) 

County of Butte 

Sobt.ll otffcrcntial • County of autte- Loatlon:. 

Nc.1it ~d LanclffU • 102.l Heal Rc:.d, hr.adiu, (95969) 

, lblk:WorieCotpYird •9ec..ntytfflt«Dtlw::, Of'OYl'UC' ('95965) 

ht:ld!:c Public Worlc;; (or;, Yard • 5912 Almond Strttt, hr.adi::c 95969 

-

Citrus Heights Water District 

lk>btall Dlffrm,tl1l • CHWD l.oc.ltlom; 

NIIC&ft .. :s.t.cltUGl'ID --~--..., _ _,..,,, 
=-

___ .., 
i,,.....,.._ -- -----

29,200 

Two-1,000 (AG) 

One - a,ooo (AG) 

l"wo • 1,000 (AG) 

Two· 1,000 (AG) 

Two· 3,000 (AG) 

Ono - <.000 (AG) 

OM-1,000 (AG) 

0nct -6,(X)O (AG) 

120,000 l.4350 

12,000 

One:- - t.,000 (AG) 

Two •l,OOO(AG) 

Two-7,000AG) 

147,100 

141,710 

Olw•1,l00c,.GJ 

Olw•I.OOOCA(l) 

Ont-1,000(,\G) 

6,600 

660 

B-IJLS Died 12 

------------__GIi ____ ·------ -- - __ ..,. --------~111:.1-.... - - - - m..r .. -rVl GAL.LOH: CaUfomfa Oh:sd £.ldsc Tax: $0.45,4 II FCOC'nil L.U.S.T, ft 
SUpcorfin!Tu: SO.OOJ1◄ II CAAl'll: SQ,004Sl II PU IHVOK.E: Rctulato,y 

0.0490 s 1,◄)1 Comp~ ftt: S11.7S 
~ .....,._ .... , ... _ ,,.o,,,_ LIi~ ....... 1sc I~ :>u ........ II 

Fodoral L.U.S.T. & Suporfund Tax: SO.OO314 // CA AB#32: 
SO.O~52 // PER INVOICE: Ro!lulatory Complialnco Foo: 

0.0590 S15.75 
, ER CaALLOH: c.auronu DICM( txosc Tu: S0.◄)41/ l'c!defal L.U.S.T. 11 

Supc,rl\rd Tu:: S0.00)1"4 II CA.utn: S0.00452 II r ER IHVOICt: RCl\,l~tory 
0.0490 '°"1)l1at'ICC' P'ft: S15.75 

PEJt GAUCH: CaUfon"U ~~Tu: S0.◄54 II ,-.COC'nll L.U.S.T. & 
~l.l'ldl'u: S0.00J1 ◄ IICAAMJ2.: S0.0C>C5lll rot IHVOICt: RC'fl.(atoty 

0.0690 CompUua P'tt: $15.75 

l'f.RGALLON: CaUfomia Died tlldM Tu: S0,◄)411 t«t"nil L.U.S.T. & 
Sup«fl.l'ICI Tu: S0.0031◄ II CAAlll2.: $0.0045l II r Ot IKVOICt: Rqulatoty 

0.0690 Complfancr f«: S1S.75 
....... ~ ....... : ........ .,, nua Ulc.'.'SC ~CISC' 4,1(,; :>u......... fl 

Fodoral L.U.S.T. & Suporfund Tax: SO.00314 // CA AB#l2: 
$0.00452 II PER INVOICE: Rqulatory Compliancr Fee,: 

0.0690 S15.75 
PtRGAlLOH: California Died bmeTu:: SO.◄)◄ II f'~l l.U.S.T. & 
~Lhi Tu:: S0.00114 II CAA!lll: S0.00452 II P(ll IHVOIC!; Rrtulatory 

0.0690 Compb~ f'er. S15.7S 

l'EJt G.t.l.LON: C&tlfomla Died. bC!k Tax: $0.0◄ I I ~ L.U..S. T. &. 
~Lhi Tu:: S0.0011"41/ CA-Uln: $0.004Sl II PER IMVOIC[; ~latoty 

0.0590 CompUaru Ftt: S15.75 

r at GALLON: eautoma Olesd b:05" Tu: )U.45,4 II ~l L.U.S.T. &. 

0.0690 

fSuPn'ft.nd Tax: $0.00)14 I I CA A8l'l2.: $0.0C>C5l I I PEil DNotCE.: ~tory 
Complfara fft': S15.75 

PO.GALLON: CaUfonu Olcsd bctse Tax: so.◄S◄ II ~l l.U.S.T. &. 
SUpc,fl.l'ICI Tu:: $0.00)1◄ II CAAUJ2: S0.0045211 PER OO'OIC[; RcttJatory 

(0.0190) s 3.4100 s 409,200 Compliance P'cc-: S15.7S 

PtR GAlLOM: Cal1fomla Olnri [ltas,e Tax: so.◄5-4 II f'«lt-ral L.U.S.T. &. 
Suprffl.l'ld Tu: $0,00l1"4 I/ CAillll: $0.0045111 P(R fHVOIC(; Rrrul,atory 

•-- s saa Comp11a,na, f«: S15.7S 
rU. GALLOW: C&Ufomla ~ b:d~ Tu:: $0.◄)◄ II f'COC'fal L.U.5,T. 11 

Sllpffft.nd Tu:: $0.00)14 I I CA AM'll: $0.00452 I I PEil IHVOIC£: llc-tul,atof)' 

0.0f,.CO CompU&nce Fft': S15.7S 

P(R GALLON: ea.tifon'U 0N.vt ume Tu.: $0,4)4 // fcockral L.U..S. T. b. 
SUpe,rt'IM'd Tu: S0.00l14 IICA.AUD.: SO.OOAS2.II PD. IMVOICE: ~tory 

0.07◄0 Complfaru P'tt: S15.7S 

PER GALLOH: t:alltomta DICK'I bCl~Tax: $0,◄)4 // ~ralL,U.S.T. a 
SUpttfinl Tu:: S0.00l1◄ II CA AUn: S0.00452 II PER INVOIC£: ~to,y 

0.0"40 Compliance fft": S15.7S 

, ER GALLON: C..llfomta ~ I ExCIIO Tu: S0,◄)4 JI f'l!'Ckrll l.U . .S.T. fl 
~I.NI Tu:: $0.00J1◄ II CA .u,n; $0.00451 II PER llolVOICt: Rc.-tulatory 

f0.0HOl $ (D.0<00 $ C,,14'1 CompUaru fft': S1S.7S 

P!R GAi.LOH: Cai,fomla DScsd £,xo.,.eTu.: so.◄S4 /I Fcdetal l.U.S.T. a 
Sup«fund Tu:: S0.00)1◄ I I CA A&lll.: $0.00452 I I PER INVOICE: Rcf:ulator, , __ Comptlanc.e fff! s15:,, 

P(A GALLON: CaUfOffU ~ E.ldse Tu.: S0.4S4 II FCOC'fal L.U.5.T. & 
Superfi.rw:S Tax: $0.0031"4 II CA Wll: $0.00452 II PDl IHVOtct: Rct,.,lato,y 

'-"" CompUance Ftt: S15.75 

PER GALLON: C.Ufomla Ok-K-1. [ltd)O Tu: S0.◄54 II F~l L.U.5.T. a 
Sup«finl Tu:: S0.00)1◄ II CA Ufl2: S0.00452 II PO IHVQ)C[: Jt.cutatoty 

'-"" Comptiano: Fee-: S15.7S 

,ER cal.LON: Cllllfomla Dlesd txcba Tu:: S0."4S◄ II P'cd4:nl L.U.S.T. a 
Supc-rfl.l'ICI Tax: S0.00J1◄ II CA AUl2: S0.0045211 PER IHVOlct: Rc:,:ulator, 

'·"" 
Compliancr Fee-: S15.75 

,....., --• ; _.,,ornt• 1.11c,w ~c Sc.'.' -= ~u.~.. 11 

F~doral L.U.S.T. & Suporfund Tax: $0.00314 // CA AB#32: 
$ 0.00452 II PER INVOICE: R~ula tory Compliance Fff: 

(0.0190) s (O.O35O) S (231) S15.75 
l'tlt GAi.LOH: C&Ufomla Dtcsd Exdioo Tu:: $0."4Sil I/ Fcdcffl L.U.S.T. & 

SUp,t-rll.l'ICI Tu: $0.0031◄ II CAAGl3l: S0.0045211 PER INVOICE: Rlt'IWtory 
0,GC90 s l2 Comc,Uanor Ftt: S15.7S 

PnccG 



""C 
a, 
co 

~ ---•,..., 
Corp Yard • 62JO Gr~ lin,:,, CftM Hctcht: 

.:.' 
~:·":-; .. ~,_.~, .. ,·.=· , ........ , ..... ,."' '·:~ 

r •\• •-r,\• £ .11', ..... \(),,fw·/.".• \.·""' .. 

1m20Dltys 

IHVOK.E TERMS: 

--------- ------ -----
Ono· I ,000 !AG) 

2,735,037 

B - ULS Oicscl f2 

~1i--1·r-•.·;Jri--·~ ;i;: - -- - __ ... - - - - -- ,ER GALLOH: catuoma Dldcl ExdJ.e Tu : S0.454 II ,cderal L.U.S.T. fl 
Supe,tfund Tu: SO.DOJ14 JI C.,..U,U; S0.00CS2 // , ER IMVOIC(: Rltf\Utory 

•-- eomp1wu Fee-: s,s.75 
PER GALLOH: C..tlfOl'T'(a txftri E:,:me Tax.: SO.◄S4 If 1~ L.U.S.T. &. 

Supffl\l'ld Tu: S0,Q)J1◄ II C,U.atl2: S0.00452 II , EJI. INVotCE: RrrulAtory 
Compliance Frc: $15.75 

rERGAU.OM: cauronu Dleet Ezaw Tu: S0.454 // F«Scnill.U.S.T. a 

Esttrnllu-d lnvok~ Fee Total: WldTu.: SO.COJ14 // CAAU32.: SO.COC52// PERIMVOICE: ~to,y 
Campl:!ara Fft': S15.75 

,ER GALLON: C..IUomla DI~ EldM"Tax: SO.◄S4 // Feickr:al L.U.S.T. t1 

Admln Fee-: $ 7,823,918 und Tax: S0.00l14 // CA AUll: SO.a>452 / I PER lHVOIC!: RqWto,y 

s 17,Tn.74 lfar'l(.C ,~: S15.75 

Pccc7 



-0 
O"> 
(0 

:;;J'--~i • • • ; ~ ~-~;• 

""l-'->l!.f!:, ·• - r,,': 

County of Placer 

leotitafl l)(ffettntfal • Col.lntyof Pl.Kor 

Financt:/Admlnbtratlon Blds. (f'AB) Dewftt Center 2950 Richardson 
DrtYe, A.ubum 

Bufldlnc:210· DewfttCffltcr2119SccondSL, AUbum 

Aubum Mafn J:&lt and lt1tcMn-Ot-w1tt Center 
2ns Rkh.anfaon Drive, Aubum 

JIJYfflltc- Octc-ntlon • Ocw1tt Center 11280 a A~e. AUbum 

aid~. so1 ComtT1Lnk.a~ • Ocwftt ~tcr 11195 a A~, 
Auburn 

He:1\th & Human Services Bio ~ • Dowftt 
11475 C AYCnlJC', At.lbum 

A.Ubum Justkc: Cffltcr (Main Unit) • Dew1tt 
2929 ~~.Album 

Al.lbum JU!otfce Center {Small Unit) • Dewftt 
2929 R1chud~ Ortve, Aubum 

C1rby Hflb: fadlfty 101 Ctrby Hflls ~. RmevttLe 

South Plac~r Justk:~ Center Btdt. a 
10110 Mtk:e Center Drtve, Ro-"..evlllc 

South Ptacer Adult CofT'Kdonal Fadl1ty 10801 Go f« Btoicr. Road, 

-· .. ., 
~.,.----..---... 

• .. --~'- ~f.-~! ... ~), 
South Sutter Water District 

IDobtafl Dlffen:n&l • Sor.I'! Sutu'fW11tcr Df:.trlct Loatsom 

Fud T.ink Station• 2464 heme Avenue, Trowbrtdsc (9S659} 

:i.!2_:7 _~~-~:-
SRCSD 

leobta1l Dlfferent111t • SRCSt> Locations 

SRCSO • &S21 La~ Station Rd., EikGR>"te (9S7S&) 

City of Roseville 
laob~ft Dl'.ffettntlal • Ros-111• loatfrm 

Pteo.unt Grove Wu tcwll.ter Tre11tmcnt Plant • 5051 Westpa.r1c Dr, 
Ro-.. 1:vmc 

Ro-...evillC'PowerPla.nt•2155Nf.cole:Drtve,A.odd1n 

~le Enc~ Park· 5120 Phrufp Rd, R~vf\le 

Yuba-Sutter transit Authority 
leot>tafl Olfferentb.l • Yuba•Sutter-Tr:lnslt Authorttyloca.tlom 

Corp. Ya.rd· 2100 B Strect, M::a~ (95901) 

- ,f,-

One• 1,SOO (AG) 

Onc•,0 (AG) 

One • 500 AG) 

Onc· 100 (AG) 

One • 900 (AG) 

~ • 100 (AG) • 

-rwo.1,-(AG) 

one · 50 (AG) 

One· 500 (AG) 

Onc· -<00 (AG) 

Threc· 1,lll (AG) 

On<· ◄,500 (AG) 

TWo • 10,000 (AG) 

Two· ]00 (AG) 

F 1,50D(AG) o,,.j 
• 290 fAG) 

One· 12,000 (AG) 

--. --
22,000 

1.200 

◄ ,300 

◄30 

60.DDD 

6,000 

30,000 

l,000 

210,000 

U,000 

C-Red ~c Dicxl 

---.- lJ 4dl 
~~- ~

--- -

• IIDII.- · ' . . . · ..,. ' .-,. • 
-- - ..... . _······ • - · • · I -~~ dwu.rm..-..t■ s -.--..J 1z_, 

3-"""" 1 10.o•"">I S M15 I S 

0.0)99 

0.0590 

0 .0590 

0,0590 

0.0590 

0.0590 

0.0590 

0.0590 

0.0590 

0.0590 

0.0590 

0.0590 

3,4400 I (O.O&◄O)I s J..41 5 I s 
0.os,o I Is 

0.0590 

3.4400 I (O.O&◄O)I s 3.◄os I s 
0.0490 

0.0'490 

3 . ...,,. I (0.0&◄0)1 s 3. 395 Is 
o.om 

0,0)90 

0.0190 

0.0390 

3.4400 I (0.0&◄01 s 3.356 I s 
0.0690 

p, .. , 

I 
1-'t.K ~uN: Fi-dc-ral LO.S. I. & Supe-rlund lax: S0.0031◄ II CA 

A8#32: $0.00-452 fl PER INVOICE: Rc,gulatory Compliance Fee: 

75,130 $15.75 

I PfllGALLOH: ~l.U.S.T. flSIJpctf~ Tax: $0.0QJ t4 // CA AB.Ill: S0.00452 // 
SI PtR IHVOICE: ~lato,y GompUance Ftt! $15.75 

PEKGALlON: i-eoeral L.u.S.f. t1:~rtun0 Tu:: SO.ool1• JI CA AO,til: S0.004~2 JI 

IPER INVOICE: ~latory CompUuu Ftt: $15.75 

I 
Pt.I~ GALLON: FC'dm.l l.03.T. ii iM,piriund Tu: So.OOJ1• I I U,,iJ,ij1:. So.004S1 II 

PER fNVOIC[: ~to,y CompHancr Fw: $15.75 

I 
P'tKUAU.uR: Fediral l.03.1. &Supirlund lu::: 50.00)\.i }J UXPU: SO.tikSZ // 

PER IMYOICE: R.e!UlatoryComplWV:e Ftt: $15,75 

I PtRC.AlLOl'i: Fide'l'll L.U.S. I. & !.upi:ri'i.na Ju: So.boJ1• II OJ.Bili: S0.004521/ 
l'ER IMVOICE: Rr!W,tory CompUan« P'tt: $15.75 

IA8#32: $0.00-452 II PER INVOICE: Rc,gulatory Compliance Fee: I PEk GALON: Fcacr.al L.0.S. I. & Superiund lu: $6.0031• II a A6il1: $0.obdl II 
PER IMVOICE: A."!Ulatory CompUa.na- Ftt: $15.75 

I f'ER GAL.LON: F~l l.0.S.T. &!Zpc-,i;;;a Tu: So.0011• II Ci.Jill.: So.004)1 II 
nJt IHVOICE: A.e-sulatorf Compllancr Ftt: $15.75 

PER GAL LOH: Ft:den l L.U.S.T. & Supert&Ni Tu:: $0.00]1◄ II CA A&lll: $0.00452 JI 
PER INVOIC£: ~latof'y Compliance Fee: S15.75 

t"t.K (.JAL.LUM: Fii:k-ral LU.S. l. & Supe-r1und Ju.: 50.0031◄ II CA 

I
A8132: $0.00-452 // PER INVOICE: Rc,gulatory Compliance Fee: 

$15.75 
I PER GALLON: Frden.l (.U.S. I. ti Superfuni:I lu:: S0.00114 II L,\ ABIJZ: SO.OCMSZ II 
PER IMVOIC£: Rc,,.llato,y Compl1anu Ftt: S15.75 

•U.'-'""; rC'QC'r.AI [.U:S. I, 4SOpfhUhd IU: SO.WJl4 II 

IPER IHVOtCt: ~tatof'y Compliance f tt: S15.75 = 
PER GALLON: Fc:&ral l.03. I. &S:uperfund Tu: So.00114 II UA.Dili: S0.004Si I I 

~,_68 5 l•EA IMVOICE: -toty Comptfanco f'tt; S15.7S 
u IAB#32: S0.00-452 // PER INVOICE: Rc,gulotory Compliance Fee: 

I 
PtK Ci,Al,lOf'i: f~~ L.U.S. T, =~11unc1 lax: so.001, .. 11 c..i dill: Sb.doiSI II 
PER INVOICE: ~to,y Compliance- Ftt: $15.75 

PERctALlb,i: Fi&rit L.03.1. 6:Wp;,ii.wl ia.r. SO.IXil1◄ II U.Xiili: So.0002 II 
20-4,300 IPEA INVOICE: "'1U"'""Y Compl!&ncc, ftt: S1S.7S 

PEA (;ALLON: edcta1 L,U.S.T. tt SUperfund u:: .00)14 // CA A&lll: .004)21/ 
294 PER INVOICE:. Retulatory Compliance Ftt: $15.75 I ►EA.GAL.tdN: mtl.03. 1. &Supr,fi..,d fax: SO.OOil◄ II tidil2: W.00452 II 

PER INVOICE:. ~lato,yComptfantt Ftt: $15.75 

PERC.AlLOf'(: f@rral l.03. I. &Superfi.wic:i l.u.: So.0031◄ II ti JUl: So.004S1 II 
101,850 Im IMVOICt: ..,. .. ....., CompUanc, , .. , s,s.,s 

PERC>AUOH: fe'deftl L.U.S.T. l!I: Suprtl'Wld Tar. S0.00)14 // CA A&fl2: $0.004)2 JI 

117 !PER lHVOICE: ~Latory Comptlancir Ftt: $15.75 
PER GAi.LOH: ftodc-nil l .U.S.T. El S&.lpertunel Tu : S0,00)1◄ // CA Milt: S0.004)2 JI 

IPER INVOlct: Re4JULatory CompUanc:e P'tt: $15.75 

PER GAl.lON: f-NScn.l l.U.S.T. tt SUprrfund Tax: S0.0011◄ II CA Mill: $0. 004~2 II 
Im l>M)f(£; "'1U"''°'>' CompUanu f'tt: s,s.,s 
f HA accoN: tNic@ c.o.s. r. Ii: Supe,ffunc! 1u:: so.0011.11 a a..n: so. 004)l. 

PER INVOICE: itc,utatory Compllarn Ftt: S15.75 

I ►£AGAL.CoN: Fi&ril l.03.1. li. Suprrii.na lax: Sb.edlt• II CA dill: Sb.00452 
939,680 PEit IMVOICE: Rc1ULato,y Comptlanu ftt: S1S,7S 

PER C.AI.LON: P'edcfal L,U.S.T. & Su;,irrtund Tu:: $0,00) 14 // CA AUll: S0.004S2 I J 

1,9)1 PER INVOICE: Rirtul.atory Compliance l'tt: S1S.7S 
,uctAllON: l'C'der.al 1..u.s.T. ttSYpcrfWld Tu: S0.00)14 // CAAIY'l2: S0.0002 , , 

IPEA INVO!Cf: ....... totyCompU,nc, , .. , S1S.7S 



il1 i i 
ii ii 

~ 
; i 
j 11 . . 
I ~ 
!jl', :I, 

111 
.... ~ 

ii 1~ 
}J 

111 
.. j h .. ,. 
..: 0.. H ~~ Ji ~i 

"•1 i!_. H •• H 

11; ~"' ~ tl 
j~ H 
:I K ~~ L ~ 

II 
§ 

~: 
.,, 

;111 
I • 
It ~ 

" 
~ 

11 .! 
j 

1111 
i11• I,• 
ull 

g 

l 

i1 " .li 
I ~ 

,It 
:; 

:a ~ 

~ 
~ 
I'! 
!:! 
~ 

-

- -: 
' : •· 
~ 

.. , . 

P70 



E-EthnnolERS 

··.r"·'l.~';••...;' '· J: ........ ,.--~' ·-, -~ . - . 
~ • 9 

. . -Ir·.:'· , 
-~ E ~,_ -- .. 

-~. . . ""',;J_S/ . -- .. 
. ' ,· ~.:.~•· ::'""'·":·~~r.,' ... - ·, 

. ·.,e••f ' ,,, ' .,;~-... -~ • . ..... . .. . . ... ·--
City of Sacramento AB132: S0.00298 II PER INVOICE: R=l• tory COmpllonc~ ftt: 

S0,000 s . s . S15.75 
Bo)t»! Dmeren,~ --Cf'Y or Siicramcnto Loe=~ PEA Ci,Al.LOM: l'~I L.U.l.T ft.~l.l'ld Tu: S0.00)14 // CAA&l'JZ: )Q.OOZ,111 rUl 

5,000 s INVOJCE: ~lato,y CornpHancr Ftt: S15.75 

Kinney Police Facility 
Ono - 5,000 (BG) 

rER C.ALLON: Fedc!fal L.U.S.T 8. Sc.,pc,1Und Tu:: SQ.00)1◄ II CA AUJ2.: S0.00291 // Pt:R 
3550 M01y.,v!Uo Btvd.. Sacnlmonto {9~8) INVOICE: ~latoryCompbaru Frr. S15.75 

Rooney Police SUbra!lon - 5303 FranJl1w\ 8tvd.. Sxramento (9SS20) 
Two-3,000 I BG) 

rEA Ci,ALLOH: fedcnl LU.S.T fl SUpcrlund Tu:: S0,00)1◄ II CA AUll: S0.00291 /I l'ER 
fNVOfC[; lttl\,llatc,ryC,ompU.ana,Fw.S15.7S 

Rlchard:: Polito FX!lty • 300 Rlchardl BML, S:icnmcnto 195811) 
Ono - 4,000 (AG) 

,Ut GALLON: t«scralLU.S.i -~ Tu.: )Q.00)1◄ II ~A&l'JZ: w .ocn,a '' 'Ul 
IMVOia'.: lttl\,llatoryComplta,u Feie: s,s.75 

Sactomcnto Monna 270 M011na Vlow Ortvo SaCtllmonto (V58HI) 
Ono-4,000 (AG) 

l'tA C.ALLOH: f~I L.U.S.T ll.SUpfflUnd Tu:: S0,00)1◄ // CA A&l'Jl: $0.00291 // l'ER 
INVOICE: lteoculatoryComphncc- FN: S15.7S 

.. . -. :' .- . 
... - . ._ .. . - --

SMUD 100,000 s . s - rwvoia: ReosulatorfComplfara feie: s,s.75 
Bobtail Oiflcrcnoat • SMUOLOCA!lcn::a 

10,000 s INVOICE: ~latotyCompllan«- feie: S15.7S 

Mobile Fuel Truck. ECOC 4401 Bfl:ldG,hi,w Rood Somlmonto, CA 95827 xx-x.xxx (XX) 
r=--·-.. :,.-, •• ·"'·, g;.._..., u.-.., u::-, •• _ ,,,~~-·=-··-·--'' ,~,. 

INVOIC[: R~latory Cmnpl.1ana- fee: S15.75 
, 

INVOICE TERMS: I CATEGORY I! TOTAL: 
rU'>-lUN: r~• •l-wJ.• a,..._..,,_,.. U:)l;l,WJ14 , __ ..,.;)U • ......,.~ .. ll rtJ( 

INVOIC[: lte!UlatoryCc,mpUancr f"tt: $15.75 

I ToW, U6\lon.s: 1~.000 CATEGORY E TOTAL: S . rU'>'-"""vH: r_,.•, L.U.),I G~•-1U:;)Q.WJ1◄ //......__.,._:)g . .....,.._Hfl r't.K 
Admlnree: ' ,~oo INVOIC[; Rorulatory CompUana- Ft"e: S1S.7S 

Pocc I 

-0 
-J _. 



-0 
-..J 
N> 

• •. •rn• l ·--•• 

I/ ili=~~liii iii:S:iii;;l:;l, l.· 

I 
.. 
;-~ ....:..=~..:.:..;;.:.;:;: ·'b--1f-...~~ , ... 

County of Sutter 

Y"'= 

y.,,_ 

County of El Dorado 

v ...... 

V,riou> 

v.,.... 

County of Yuba 

v ...... 

Yorlo~ 

County of Yolo 

v ...... 

y"""" 

Y"'-

County of Nevada 

v-

v.,1014 

County of Amador 

y-

Yorlo~ 

SMUD 

TOTAL 
WO, 

Ol<>,I I GAL 

Unlt.dtd I GAL 

'w' 
c.uos 

...... I GAL 

- I GAL 

Ole1Cl'2 • R~ dJ • GAL -----
..... 

........ 

-
Unlead«I 

=1 
GAL 

GAL 

TOTAL 
CAAOS 

GAL 

GAi. 

Ole<tn•-1 GAL 

...... 
........ 

-
Ul'lte•ded 

TOTAL 
CAAOS 

GAL 

GAL 

TOTAL 
CARDS 

GAL 

GAL 

TOTAL 
c.uos 

$ 

271) 

3,950 Uon Schedule Y£S o.,ol s 

1l2,S.SO Schodo,I<, o.,ol S 

'" 

u,ru Uon Schedui. Y£S 0.101 S 

11.2.,731 tton Sdwdule Im 0.101 s 

6,409 tlon Sct.dul• Im 0.101 s 

~L-~-"'L 0.101 s 

22,173 l»at1on ScMdul• Im 0.101 $ 

m 

15,12, l,c..... -"' Im 0.101 s 

111.732 ~•on Schodulo lru 0. 101 $ 

•.- 1,c..... Sdwdui. Im 0,101 $ 

200 

19,000 ~- Schodo,I<, Im 0.101 $ 

163,000 l,cat5on Sche-dule Im 0.101 $ 

200 

13,ooo ~ -"' Im 0.101 $ 

11,000 l,c.tton Sch.di.lie jm 0.101 $ 

600 

3.535 Is 
PER ~LON: c.uromta CXe,c,t bcv Tu:: S0.4S4 // 

Fedenl L,U.S.T. &.,Sypert'\ftl Tu: S0.00)14 // Ci.J.81ll: 
13,963 $0.004Sl // PER INVOICE: Rclul.atory Compt1ance Ftt: 

$15.75 

l'U GALLON: Califomta Gas ~ Tu: SO.S96 // 

I I
F-cdrral l.U.S.T. Suprtf!Mld Tu: $0.00)14 II CA J.&nl: 

l .SSS $ 471, 175 S0.00'2,a // il'[R IMYOIC[: Rctutato,y CompUance Ftt: 

$1S.7' 

3.535 Is 

P'EK"GAUON. CillfOffiia. OiiHlol ExC:ISC' I ix. 

1
$0.◄5<4 // Ft.,derol L.U.S.T. ft Superfund 

55,601 Tax: $0.0031◄ II CA A8#32: SO.OO◄S2 // 
PER INVOICE: Regui,atory Compliance Fee: 
$15.75 
PER GAllOH: C.ltfomia Gu~ Tu:: SO.S96 II 

3.555 Is 649, 5!57 ~~cio';!!·,u;!·~ ~=E:~~~=~ =~l: 
$15.75 

1'0GAI.LOH: Fi:dffal l.U.S.T. &: SUpc-rfund Tu: 
3 ,S-.0 I$ 21,'81 IS0.00314 /./ CA A&lll: S0.00452 // PER IMVOIC£: 

~1.&tory Compl1anu Ftt: SU.75 

3..535 Is 

3.555 I s 

3.535 Is 

3.555 Is 

3.5401$ 

3.535 I$ 

3.555 Is 

3.535 I$ 

3.555 I s 

PER C.AllOH: C.lllomla ~ I Excu Tu:: $0."S4 I I 
N'de-rall.U.5.T. a ~rl'und Tu:: S0.00)1'4 // CAA.Bill: 

l.lll S0.00452 / I l'ER INVOICE: Rrfulatoty c.ompli&na' Ftt: 
$1S.75 

l'VlGAllOH: Catnomia Gu Cxdw Tax: SO . .S96 II 
Federal l.U.5.T lr. Supcrfund Tu:: S0.0011'4 II CA .t.&112: 

71•111 $0.0029811 PtR IHVOICf.: Rqutatoryc.omplfance Ftt: 
$1S.7S 

P[R GAL.LOH: C..l1fom1a Dinel E.xdse Tu:: sc ... 5" // 

55,602 ~ I l.U.5.T. 1k S,upfffund Tu:: $0.0011" II CA ABlll:I 
$0.00452 
PER G.Al.lOH: C..lffomY Gu uebeT&lC! SO. S96 II 

6-49,557 Fe-dent L.U.S.T & SI.IP"rfUl'ld Tu: $0.0011" II CA A!lll: 
$0.00291 

11,6U 
l't.R GALLON: Fedrnil L.U.S.T. fl SUprrrund Tu: 

$0.0011" II 0. Aalll: $0.00452 

314,615 
m GALLON: cautorma oteK-t ~ Tu:: so.•S4 11 ,I 
~ll.U.5,T. &SUprrnl,dTu: $0.00l1• IICA AUl2: 
S0.00452 
,uGALLON: C..ltfomla Gu Ex.ose Tu:: $0.596 // 

579,416 fcde-ral L.U.S.T & Superfund Tu: $0.0011• II CA A&lll : 
$0.00l9II 

!'ER GALLON: C..l11om1& 01ac-l Exc11r Tu:: $0,◄S-- II 

11, 305 Fcdcnl L.U.S.T. & Supttfund Tu:: $0.00)1'4 // CA Aalll:I 
S0.004S2 
PER GALLON: Cabfomla Gas Excise: Tu: $0.596 /I 

187,931 F~ll.U.S.T ft Superfuncl Tax! $0.00lt• II CA ,Y)2: 

$0.00298 



""C 
-.I 
w 

: . . • --- -- - - -•-=••· ------_.( 1,,:;•·• • J":, ·1,·,1·1 •,H; 1. :-, ; - - • ..,._ - -■ : •--• 
• ··~.-•~•:; •• )"';·,: .,'(;•:,:'~ IJ-; • • ·.•:· ,. • • ........ -- . • t -- ·-- ' -------
•• ' C , .b, ,-.;:>.')·.'•,..'hi" -· -- ----- --- • • ..-

•

,. f "''·r'f'..,.;,!- .- •• ~·-~~·'· .• ·- .· '---• ....... ---~------- ---.1111Q1Q<•-.......... --, ... , --~~.-• .. -v;-.r,·:,.:..,~~- ( " -~--. ~ .. . ., • ....,,,_, .. ....., .. Nia.. L, ............. .. 
:_.,7,..1_, ......... "'. ~ .. , ;,,-\:-,;. . ., •.•• ,, ' ~....... ~ ................. 

" . •• \,' •. :,• ... - - - - -
$ 145,47 $ ,. .. ,so $ J.,l,IO(I S s.uso 

PER GA1.LON: Callfomta Dlnel ~ Tu; S0.4So4 // 
v~ 60,000 ,cadonSdwdi.11e m 0.10 S 3..535 $ 212,100 Frdc-tall.U.S.T.&.SUpc-rfundTax:S0.00)14//CAAUll: 

Dle'1el GAL S0.00451 
PU GALLON: Callfomt& G&s ~ Tax: SO.S96 // 

Various 2 10,000 )CAtJon Schedule m 0.10 $ 3 ,5.55 $ 7-46,417 ~l l.U.S.T & Superfund Tu: S0.00)14 // CA AMll : 
Unle■dod GAL S0.00298 

v~ DS GAL 100~ :ai:sonScMdl.lle Im 0.10 $ 3.$3S $ 353,SOO !t~~~;:;~L.U.S.T&SUpMLW'ldTax:SO.OOl14 

Town of Loomis = " 
PER GALLON: C..l1fomW. Ot<twl £.lcds,r Tu.: S0.◄.S. I I 

VW'fou:I 3,000 :icatton Schedule Im 0.10 $ 3.SlS $ 10,605 Feden.l l.U.S.T. & Supfffund Tu:: S0.00314 II CA il'l2: 
~ GAi.. S0.00452 

P'[RGALLON: Caltfomi. Gu f:ac1se Tu:: SO. S96 /I 
Varlo14 5,000 beatsonSchedule 'lf.S 0. 10 $ 3.555 $ 17,n4 l"~rall.U.S.T &SuJK'ffundTu:SD.00)1◄ /ICAA&lll; 

Unleaded GAL S0.00298 

Varioul DIMfin •R~ GAL 2,000 :cattonSctwdul• h"ts 0.10 S 3.540 S 1,010 ~oo~~C:=:~.~Sl&SuptttundTu:: 

, - - ·· - .... . -
City of Placevilu, = ., 

P'ERGAUOf,I: CattfomtaGu txdwlu: SO, S96 II 
Variou: 16..500 :icatson Schedule Im 0.10 $ 3.555 S 9<4,200 FMD-1 L.U.S.T I Suprrfund Tar. S0.0031◄ II CA wn: 

Unlc-tidocl GM. S0.00298 

City of Woodland = '" 
P'(R GALLON: Calffom1.I Dtncl ~ Tu: S0.◄)4 I I 

v~ 20,0DO >catlonSch.dul• YES 0.10 $ 3.535 S 70,700 l"t:denll.U.S.T. &:SUpc-rfundTu: S0.00)1◄ IICA A8')2: 
DI~ GM. $0.00452 

P'ER GALLOH: Califomi. Gu txdwTu: S0,S96 II 
Vwba 10,000 ~CSon Sch.du!• YD 0.10 $ 3.555 $ 214,376 Frde-r.11 L.U.S.T &: Suprtf\M'ld Tu:: S0.0011<1 II CA A&lll: 

Unlnded GM. $0.00291 

Vollioia DI.wt 12. Rod.oy.d GM. 20,000 bcatlon Schedul• YQ 0 .10 S 3.5,40 $ 70,800 ;~:o~:l~Ni:.;~ l~:!;,!s: SUperfunO Tu:: 

City of Lincoln = "' 
PER GALLON: cauromt.a Oicwl Exc:1K- Tax: S0.◄5-4 II 

Various 30,000 bcadon ~le m 0.10 $ l .535 $ 106,050 l=tdffl.l L.U.S.T. fJ: Suprrfund Tu: SO.OOll◄ II CA AUll: 
DI-' GAi. S0.00452 

P'[lll GALLOH: Callfomt.a Gu E.ube Tu.: SO.S9t> I I 
Various «>,000 >cation Sche-dule m 0.10 S 3.!15.5 $ 142,111 l"COCBIL,U.S.T & S~rf\M'ld TAJC S0.00)1 ◄ II CA A&lll: 

Unlc..dccl GAL $0.00298 

: San Juan Unified School District. = "' 
PER C.ALLON: Calltomil 01c:scl E.itctsr Tu: S0.<15-4 I I 

V•r101.0 200,000 atlon ScMdule Y?S 0.10 $ l.Sl5 $ 707,000 Fcdttal L.U.S.T. a SUperlund Tu:: S0.0011◄ II CA A8'l2: 
~ GM. $0.00452 

P'ERC.AllOH: Calffomi. Gu bc:bc Tu: SO,S96 II 

Varicx£ 30,000 cation Schedul• 'l'6 0.10 $ 3.555 S 106,6-41 Ftdctll LU.S.T & SUperlund Tu: S0.00)1◄ II CA A&lll: 
Unl~Mlcd GM. S0.00298 

- - ~ I 

City of Yuba City = "' 
P'ERGALLON: Catffomla Dtewl Exctw Tu.: S0,◄)41/ 

V.rtous 10,000 icatson Sch<Nful• YD 0.10 $ 3,535 $ 35,350 l"C'Ck-nilL.U.5.T. & Supfffund Tax: S0.00)1<1 II CAAMll:. 
OiNOl GAL S0.00452 

P'ER GAlLOH: California Gu txase Tu : $0.596 I I 
Vatlous 60,000 rcaUonSchedui. Y!S 0,10 S 3,SSS $ 213,.212 FcdttalL,U.S.T&~TIJCS0.00l14//CJ.Al!.ll2: 

lkltc.dcd GAL S0.00298 

~~ rl2S.2001YJ YH 

I I Tot.at Wlons.: I 190,619 I Adm1n re.: Is. U».aJ: I I I S 6,463,179 



""C 
--..J 
~ 

---
County of SKn.mcnto 

Bobutt 01ffcrcnttal • County of S.ic:ramento Locattons 

Bnd:ha.w 9661 Con:crvation Road Sacr.vnento, CA 9.5327 

North Arc3 Transfer SU!.t1on -4450 RO" .. evme ROZ!id North HIJhland:, CA 95660 

Kiefer Landf1ll 12701 K1cfcr &vcl. Sac:ramcnto, CA 9SW 

Horth County Corpo~tfon Yard 5026 Don JullO 8lvd. ~aamcnto, CA 958,(2 

- . 

City of Sacramento 

Bobbtl Offfcrentfat • City of Sacramento Loc:itfo~ 

North A.reA F\cetMll.fntenAnce Fo.dUty 91! Oct P~ Road, Sacr.uncnto (95!34) 

McAdowvicw F'Lcct Scf"lkc 2&12 Mc~WYicw Road, Sacnmento (9S832) 

South Corp. Yard· 5730 24th Street 8Ldg. 1, SO.cn.mcnto (95!22.J 

Kinney Police FAdlfty • 3550 MAry:vlllc Blvd., 54iCr.\mcnto (95!:la) 

Sutter: l.andl"! • 28th Md A Strttt, S:Kr.lmcnto ('95116) 

En,sincHol.nc-Ho.1 
624 Q Str«t, Saa.uncnto (95111) 

Engine H~e No. 2 
12291 Street, S4cr:lmc-nto (9511◄) 

Engine HOU$C Ho, J 
nos w. Elkhom Blvd., Sacr.uncnto (958l7) 

WAtcr Oc;>t. 35th Ave, P~l'ktni 
1395 ]5th Avc., Sacr:amcnto (95S22J 

SMIJD 

Bobt:aU 01ffcrcntbl • SMUO l.oGlt1on: 

Mobfie Fuel Truck, ECOC ""'°1 ~w Ro:&d Saaamcnto, CA 95827 

U.S. H1thw.iy 40 Pollock Pf~, CA. 95726 

--..... .,., _ _ --~ -S00,000 

'Two· 12,000 (&Ci) 

One· 20,000 (BG) 

0nct • 12,000 (8Ci) 

560,000 

One• 15,000 CAGI 

Two• 10,000 rec;) 

OM•12,000(1X;) 

Ol'IC' • 12.000 (D,C,) 

One· 2,000 (.AG) 

260,000 

OM•1.:00CACI 

Two• 6,000 (ISG) 

-.al:-- ,-~-ar -~- ~-==-~ ... r=.:---:. -as-• ---- - -- - ----22.- - - - - - PER GALLON: C..11tomfa Olcscl Excise Tu: $0.◄S,4 // Fede-rat L.U.S.T. Et 
SUpc-rfund Tu: $0.00)14 // CA A&A'3l: $0.00452 // PER IMVOICE: RC1ulatory 

).0~ (0.2190) s 3.%500 $ 1,ftDJ,000 Compltanc.c Fee: S15.75 

PER GAlLOH: CaUfomta ~I txose-Tu: SO.◄S4 // F~rat L.U.S.T. Et 
Supcrlund Tu: S0.00)14 // CA .t.8132: $0,()0,452 II PER INVOICE: ResuLatory 

o.~o Compll&ncc Ftt: $15.75 

PER GALLON: C&Ufomta Dk:st-I Excise Tu:: S0.454 // Fcdcnl L.U.S.T. f: 
Supcrlund Tu:: S0.0031◄ // CA IJ!lll: so.ooc52 // PER INVOICE: Reiul.atory 
Complfancc Feoc-: S15.75 

PER GALLON: Callfomfa Dk-sci Ex~ Tu: S0.◄54 II Frderal L.U.S.T. Et 
SUpnfund Tu: S0.00314 // CA A&fll: SO.OCWSl / I PER INVOICE: RC!l,llatory 
CompUana- Ftt: S15.7S 

PER GALLON: C&lffomtli Oiesrl Exche Tu.: $0."'S.C I/ Feodel'lll L.U.S.T. Et 
SYpcrfund Tu: S0.0031-4 II CA A8"32: S0,0CM52 // PER INVOICE: Rctulatory 
Cornplianl:c Ftt: $1S.7S 

PER GALLON: C&llromta Dioc't Exc1lc Tu.: SO."'S.C // Fe-dent l.U.5.T. Et 
SUpcrfund Tu:: $0.0031-4 I I CA .4.Mll: $0.00452 I I ,ER INVOICE: Rciutatory 
Complianec Fee: S15.75 

,.~,,. 1JA1..1..\Jr,: l,,,.G,no rn1a 1.1tcscI t.Xctse I ax: ~u.-.~-. 11 

Federal L.U.S. T. Et Superfund Tax: S0.00314 // CA AB#32: 
S0.00-452 II PER INVOICE: Regulatory Compliance Fee: 

l.-050 (O.ll,OJ s 3,2500 S 1,795,360 S15.75 
PER Ci.4.LLON: C&Uforrrla Dicsc-l Excise' Tu.: S0,45"' II Feoderat l.U.S.T. Et 

Supcrfund Tu:: $0.0031"' I I CA .4.8132: S0.00452 I I PER INVOICE: RctuLltory ...... Comptl&ncc Ftt: S1S.75 

PER GALLON: C&lfforml. ~I Ex~ Tu:: so."'S,4 II Fe-dent L.u.s.T. Et 
Supcrfund Tu: $0.00314 II CA ;.e.fll: S0.00451 II PER INVOICE: Recvtatory 
Compl1ancc Fce: S15.75 

PER GALL OH: Catffomla Dk5cl Excb.c Tu.: $0.454 I I~ l.U.S.T. & 
Supcrluncl Tu:: S0.0031"' II CA AUll: $0.00452 II PER INVOICE: Rciutatory 
Compl!&ncr Ftt: S15.7S 

PER GALLON: C.Ufomta Diesel £.xche Tu: $0.45"' I I Federal L.U.S.T. & 
SUpcrfund Tu.: $0.0031"' // CA AMll: $0.00452 II PER INVOICE: Rctl,l!Atory 
Compliance- Ftt: S15.7S 

PER GALLON: C.llfomta Dkscl Excise Tax: $0."'S,4 // Fcdcral l.U.S.T. Et 
Supcr1und Tu : S0.00314 II CA ABl'l2: S0.00451 II ,CR INVOICE: RctUlatory 
eomp&nc, r«: s,s.75 
HR GALLON: C&Ufomla £Mes.el Exctsc Tu: SO.◄S-C II Fcdenl l.U.5.T. & 

SUpcr1und Tu: S0.0031"' II CA Ae.rn: $0.00451 II PER INVOICE: RctULatory 

o.ouo Comp\WICC Ftt: $15.75 

PER GAU.OH: C&UfOttrla Dioe-1 Et.CUC Tax: S0.454 I I FCOC'l'lll l.U.S.T. & 
Supcrfund Tu.: S0.0011"' II CA .4.Mll: $0.004Sl II PER INVOICE: RriuLatory 

0.02"'0 Comptiancc Ftt: S1S.75 

PER GALLON: C.lffomta Oicsc-I Excts:c Tu.: .SO,"'S4 I I Feodcral l.U.S.T. Et 
SUpcrfund Tu: S0.00314 II CA AMll: $0,0(),(Sl II PER INVotCE: RCiuLatory 

0.0240 Comptianee Fee: S1 S.75 

PER GA.LLOH: C&lffoml.a Dine-I Exdsc Tu: SO."'S4 I I Fcdcral L.U.S.T. Et 
Supcrlund Tu: $0.00li◄ I I CA A.Ul2: $0.00452 I I PER INVOICE: Rctulatory 

0,0240 Comp&ncc Fcc: 515.75 

PER GALLON: Caltfonrl.a 0ics.cl ~ Tu.: $0.45,4 I I Fcdcr.al l.U.5.T. &. 
Supcrlund Tu: S0.00]1"' II CA AW2: $0.0045111 PER INVOICE: Recutatory 

0.02"'0 Com?llancc FCC": S15.75 

PER GALLON: C&lffMrll. Olcscl Exctsc Tu: S0.454 I I Fedcrat L.U.S.T, & 
Supcrfund Tax: S0.0031◄ I I CA ABl'll: $0.00451 I I PER INVOICE: Rciulatory 

(0.2.2,0) s (0.1150) $ (Sl,300) Compliance Ftt: S15.75 

PER G>J.LOH: C..tffomt.a Dtcsd E.xdSr Tu : so."'S4 I I Fedcral l.U.5.T. & 
Supcrfund Tu: S0.0031"' // CA .4.Ull: S0.00452 II PER lNVOICE: RC!'M,tory 

0 .0MO Compliance Fee: S15.75 

PER GALLON: C..llfomt.a DM:1,cl Exdsc Tu: $0.45"' II Fcdent L.U.S.T. & 
Supcrfund Tax: $0.0031"' II CA A.Ull: S0.00452 II P(R INVOICE: RC'fUl,atory 

0.0240 eompu.nc, r«: s,s.75 
PER GALLON: C.Ufomi.a Diesrl ExC:Uc Tu: $0.454 I I Fcdc-ral l.U.S.T. &. 

Supcrfund Tu: S0.0031"' I I CA .4.&lll: S0.00452 II PER INVOICE: Rc,:uLltory ...... C,ompUancc Ftt: $1.S.75 



7J 
-.J 
(11 

7◄-4◄-4 Ice H~ Road Rfverton, CA 95n6 

' ..,~ , ~ ., .. 

UC Davis 

Sob~ll 01ffcrentl:i.l • UC Dav\: t.oc.:,,t!OM 

Unfvt-r,fty of Q.lffomio, DAY!: - o~ Shk:{ds Avel'IIM! C11ivls, CA (95616) 

County of San Joaqvtn 

Sobull Dffferent l:i.l 4 Co unty of San Joaquin Loatforu. 

Publ1c: Works· 1810 E H~ lton Ave, Stockton, (95205) 

Sh<r1ff • 7000 Mlchoet M C>nl!s l!tYd, French C.mp, (9ru1) 

Stockton Afrport • 74215 Lfndbcl'l:h, Stoc:kton, (95206) 

Ag Center 4 1101 £ Earhart Ave, Stockton, (95206) 

SJ Gener.\l Ho:pttal • 500 W Ho:plt:il Dr, Freneh Cnmp, (95231) 

Mklte Grove Par1c • 1179) N Mkkc Grove Rd, lodt, (952◄0} 

0:1.k Grove Park· ◄S10 W 8 Mlle Rd, Stockton, (95109) 

, .. . ,;:. ·-· 

Cosumncs Communtty Servfces Dtstrlct 

Sob~U Dtrferenttal • CCSD Loc:.ition: 

Station 71 • 1760 Elk Grove Blvd, Elk Grove 

Station n • 100)5 AUdn: Dr, Elk Grove 

Sto.tlon 7l - 9607 Bond Rd, Elk Grove 

SbtSon 7◄ • 6501 l.i!Ufl& Par1c Or, Elk Grove 

Station 75 - 2300 IMritfmc Dr, Elk Grove 

SbUOn 76 - 3545 Sheldon Rd, Elle Grove 

Statton n • 8350 Poppy Rtd~e Dr, Elk Grove 

Ono - ◄,000 1,1,Ci) 

One- 12.DOO ~I 

Ono• 15,000 (IIG) 

Onc · UOOCBGI 

One• 1,000 (Mi) One 
• 500 (AG) 

ON-•2.,000(.t,C,) 

One• 500 (AO) 

Onc•SOOCAGI 

One • S00 (,lr,G) 

Ont' · 1,000 (.AGI 

One• 500 CAGI 

Onoe • 500 {AO) 

0ne4 500 (AG) 

OM• 500(AGI 

Onr - SOO(AG) 

One · 500 (AG) 

PEA GALLON: Calffoml& Dlncl U:rtsc- Tu: SO.◄S,4 II Fcdr ral L.U.S.T. & 
SU?fffund Tu: S0.00)1◄ II CA AUll: $0.00452 II PER INVOICE: Rr1:utatory 

0,07., Complt&na: Ftt: S15.7S 

-
POt GAlLOH: Calffornfa Dfac-l Exdsr Tu: $0.◄SC // F~l L.U.S.T. & 

100,000 Supc-rlund Tu: $0.00)1◄ I I CA A802: S0.00452 II PER IMVOICE: RC1Utatory 

l.Al50 (0,U90) s 3.2060 $ 320,600 eomptt&rKC Ftt: s1s.75 

PER GALLON: Calffomia 0foel bctsc Tu: $0.◄SC I I Federal l.U.S.T. & 
Supcrfund Tax: $0.00)1◄ I I CA A81ll: $0.00452 I I PEA INVOICE: Rqutatorj 
Compliance Ftt: $15.75 

PER GAllOM: Catifoml& D1~l £xdsc Tax: $0.◄S,4 II Federal l.U.S.T. & 
Supcrlund Tu : S0.00)14 // CA AU32: $0.00451 I I PER IHVOlct: RC'II.Jlatory 
Compll&nte Ftt: $15.75 

PEA GAllON: Calffomi.l CltcKI Exdsc Tu: $0.◄SC I I Fcdcral L.U.S.T. & 
-05,000 Supc1'1und Tu: $0.00l1◄ II CA AUJl: $0.00451 II PER rNVOfCE: RC'IIJl,atory 

) ,C,0 (0.U t0) s l .2"0 $ 1,522,150 Compll&nce Ftt: S15.75 

PEA GALLON: Clllfornta Diesel Exchc Tu:: $0.45,C I I Federal L.U.S.T. & 
Supcrfund Tu: $0.00l1◄ I I CA A!lll: $0.00452 I I PER IHVOIC!: Regulatory 
Comi>!l&nce Ftt: S15.~ 

PER GALLON: C&Ufomia Ofat-1 Excise Tu: S0,45,4 I I f'e<lctal L.U.S.T. & 
Supcrfund Tu: S0.00)1◄ JI CA ANJl: $0.0045111 PER INVOICE: Rcsutatory 
Complf.anc:e Ftt: S15.7S 

PER GALLOM: Calffomlli Dint-I U:dsc Tu:: $0.◄54 I I Fed~l L.U.S.T. & 
SUpcrfund Tu : S0.00114 JI CA AUJ2: S0.00451 II PER INVOICE: R~latofy 

0.03◄0 Complia.nc:e Ftt: S15.75 

POt GALLOl'I: Catlfomlli Dfcs.t>I b~ TU: $0.◄SC I I Fcdffal L.U.S.T. & 
Supcrfund Tu: $0.00)1◄ JI CA Mnl: $0.00452 // PER INVOICE: Rciutato,y 

o.,.., Compliance Ftt: S1S.TS 

PER GALLOJil: Qi.Uforma Dlc,c-1 Exc:tsc Tu: so.◄5,,4 I I Federal L.U.S.T. & 
Supcrlund Tu: $0.0011◄ II CA A&rll: S0.00452 1 / PER INVOICE: Rct1Jlatory 

0,,.., CompUanc:c- FC"C": S15.7S 

PER GALLON: Caltfomf.a DioC'l Exctsc Tu: so.◄5,,4 I I Fe<lctat L.U.S.T. &. 
Supcrfund Tu : $0.00l1◄ II CA AMll: S0.00452 // PER INVOICE: RC!L,llatory 

0,07◄0 Compltancc Fee: S1S.75 

PER GAllOH: Calffornlli 01csc-l bdlc Tax: $0.◄5-4 I I Federal L.U.S.T. & 
SUpcrlund Tu: S0.00l14 II 0. A&l'll: S0.004Sl II PER INVOIC£: R~tory 

0.0740 Complianc:c f'tt: $15.7S 

Pat GAllOl'I: eauromta Olcwl Exc:tsc Tu: SO.◄S◄ I I F~cra\ L.U.S.T. &. 
Supcrfund Tu: S0.0031◄ I I CA Ae.rJl: S0.00◄S2 II PER INVOICE: R~ulatory 

0.07◄0 Comptllinc:c Ftt: 515.75 

.." GALLON: '-411 orn1a 01e-se 1 t.xCl.Se' Tax: !>O.~ ;,~ // 

15,000 
Fed,oral LU.S.T. ft Sup,orfund Tax: S0 .00314 /I CA AB#32: 
S0.00452 /I PER INVOICE: Regulatory Compltanc,o F,o,o: 

(0.1190) s (0.1150) $ (l◄,175) $ 15.75 
PER GAllON: C.Ufotma DlcK-l Excts.c Tax: S0.45-4 II Fcdcffl L.U.S.T. &. 

Supcrfund Tu: $0.00114 JI CA A&l'l2: S0.00451 // PER INVOICE: RC1Ul.atory 

0.04◄0 Cornplf.anc:c Ftt: S1S.75 

PER GAlLON: Callfornfa Diesel U:dsc Tu: $0.◄S◄ JI f'edrral L.U.S.T. & 
Superlund Tu: S0.00314 I I CA "8132: S0.00452 I I PER INVOICE: Rcsutatory 

0.05<0 Complllinc:c Ftt: $15.75 

PEA GAllON: Calffomf.a 0icsct Excts.c Tu.: S0.45◄ II Fcdcf'al L.U.S.T. & 
Supt:rfund Tu.: S0.00lt◄ II CA AUll: S0.00451 I I PER IHVOIC!: RCJUlatorf 

0.05<0 Compliance Ftt: S15.75 

PEA GAllON: C.tlfomla Diesel Ex~ Tu: S0.◄5,,4 I I Federal L.U.S.T. & 
Supcrfund Tu : $0.00314 I I CA AMl2: S0.CO,C52 I I PER ll'IYOICE: Ret1,1latory 

0.05<0 C.ompltanc:c Ftt: s15.75 

PER GALLON: Callfomi.l Dk:sct Exdsc'Tu; .$0.◄S,4 II Fcdttal L.U.S.T. & 
SUpcffund Tu : $0.00314 II CA AMn.: S0.00452 // PER INVOICE: R~l.ato,y 

0,05<0 Compliance Fee: S15.7'5 

PER GALLON: Calffornla Diesel Excise Tu: S0.◄5-4 I I f'cdr ral L.U.S.T. &. 
SUpcrlund Tu: $0.00l14 JI CA Aatll: S0.00451 // PER INVOICE: Rqutatory 

0.05<0 Compllanc:r Ftt: S15. 75 

, ER GALLON: Callfomia Olest-l ExmC' Tu: $OAS◄ I I Fedrral L.U.S.T. & 
Supcrfund Tu: S0.00)14 I I CA AUJ.2: S0.00◄51 I I PER INVOICE: Rciutatory 

0.05<0 Compllaner Ftt: S15.75 

PER GALLON: Caltfomta 01acl Ex~ Tu: S0.45,,4 II Fcdrral L.U.S.T. & 
SupcrfundTu: S0.00314 II CA A&"ll: $0.00451 /I PER INVOICE: Rciulatory 

0.05<0 Compllance Fe<: S15.~ 



7J 
-..J 
a, 

Sbt1on 45 • 229 5th Street, Galt 

Fteet • 105n E~t Stockton eLvd, Elk Grove 

. i. ', .• :" .' - -<"~~:~;.- _!:,·~ .~.-l~~~- .. 

I 

One· 500 (AG) 

One- S00 (AG) 

I I I Esd~tod lnvolco Fco Tot:al: I 

I To~t Gall.ons.: I 1,980,000 I Admln Foo: I S 

PER GALLON: Cat1fomta D1nel ExdseTu.: SO.◄S4 // Fedrral L.U.S.T. & 
St.lprrfund Tu: S0.00)1-◄ I/ CA A8#32: S0.00452 I I PER IHVOIC£: R~Lltory 

0.0So40 Compliance Fee: $1S.7S 

PER GALLON: C&lffomia Dkscl ExdK- Tax: so.◄S4 I I Feelenal L.U.S.T. & 
SUpttfund Tax: $0.0031◄ II CA A.8132: S0.00◄52 // PER IH'VOICE: R~ulatory 

O.OS40 
Compliance Fee: $15.75 

PER GALLON: Califomfa Dk-sci Exdsr Tu: SQ.454 I I Fede'!'DI L.U.S.T. & 

'. Supcrfund Tax: S0.00)1,4 I I CA Ae.ol: S0.00452 I I PER INVOICE: Resull.tory 
CompUancc Fee: S15.75 

I I 
1U70.00 I 7 S 1,828,575 



EXHIBIT 8 

Contract#: CT250004 
Funding Source: Local Agencies 

Project Code: SAC135 

LEVINE ACT DISCLOSURE STATEMENT AND GOVEllNMENT CODE 1090 

<;allfornla Government Code§ 84308, comniorily iefcriad tQ as tlfr! "~evir1e Act," jire~lu<!es an Officer of a loc~I 13ov<1rnflH!nt 

agcncy from 1iarllci1>allng In the award of a contract. if he or she receiv_es any political cohtribulio_ns totaling _inore than $250 
in the 12 ,nonths preceding thi;! r :endency 9f the contract award, and for three in_oi,ths following the final decision, from the 
person or compaoy awarded the colllract. This prohibition ~pplies \o i:o.ntribµUons to the Officer or received by the Officer 
on behalf of arw other Officer, or on behalf of any candliMc for of flee or on behalf of any committee. The Levine Act also 
requires disclosure or such coillrlliutlons by a party to be awarded a specified contract. Please refer to the attachment for 
the complete statutory languag~. 

The following Is a listlng of all SACOG Ooard of Directors and Alternates! for 2024 as of 2/8/24: 

SACOG llitl!clors 

Karrn Oains sue Frost 

Gi!rv nrri<1f9rd JIii Gay~ido 
.Chris Br(li1scuni Lakhvlr Ghag 
Parnel_a Bulahan Martha Guerrero 
Trinity Burruss $hon Harris 

Josh Chapman Bruce Houdesheldl 
Rich Desinond Pat Hume 

Alice Dowdi11 Calvlllq RI.ck Jennings 

St'\COG Allernilte Directors: 
Dan Flores None 
Don Blaser Bill Halldln 
Bruce Buttac·avo_li Je1anw Chapdololne 

None Dawnte E_arl)I 
Caroli11e MtCully Marc Boomgaarden 

WIil Arnold Krista B~rnnsconl 

None Eric Guerra 
llachel Hadell•Hatrls H9lly Atid1eatta 

Paul Jolnar 
Sul~nne Jones 
Jl)nny Knisley 
Mlkc Kozlowski 
Jessa Loren 
Rich Lozano 
David Sander 
Michael Saragosa 

Oonnle Gore 
Patrick Kennedy 
Davi\! Rin~ 
Sarah Aquino 
llill Biasi 
K~vln Papineau 
Donald Terry 
John Gletlcl 

Tim Sdi;il!for 
Darren Suen 
Angela Teter 
Wendy Thomas 
Mal Vang 
Mayra Vega 
bscar Villegas 

Bret Daniels 
Bobble Sir\gh•Allen 
HickWes_t 
Lori Parlin 
Eric Guerra 
TPni:i Garcia Cadena 

An~et Barajas 

1. Have you or your company, or any agent on behalf of you or y_our company, m_ade any po)ltical contributlons_of more 
than $2~0 to any SACOG Dlrector(s) in the! 12 months prl!ceding 1ha data of tha lssuancl! of this requast for-proposal 
or request for quallflcatlons? 

YES If yes, please Identify the Oirector(s): ________ _ ___ _ 

2. Do you or your company, or any agency on behalf of you or yo11r company, tltiti"tipate or plan to rrmke any politlc.11 
contributions of rnore tt,"an $:250 to any SACOG Qlrector(s) in fhc th.rec months following the award of the contract? 

YES If yes, please ldentif\' th_e Director(s): 

(OAlE) {PRINT NAME AtiO TlllE OF AUTHOR)ZED OFFICIM) 

Hunt & Sons, LLC 
(PRINrLEG/ll NAM~ Of ~lflffY) 

Rav. 01-15-2024 

P77 



Contract#: CT250004 
Funding Source: Local Agencies 

Project Code: SAC135 

Government Code 1090 Disclosure 

California Government Code Section 1090 prohibits public officials from having an economic Interest In 
their agencies' controcts. This prohibition applies to elected and ar>polnted oftlclals as well as their 
alternates, tho public agoncy's omployoei, or consult.ints participating in any way in the develop111ant or 
approval of the contract, 

l\tcordlngly, SACOG requires that all proposer's affirm that no SACOG Director, Alternate Director, or 
SACOG Employee, has an economic Interest In the proposer's entity, Failure to disclose a financial Interest 
subject to Government Code Section 1090 may result In any contract entered into with SACOG being void, 

Tho following is o listing of all SACOG Directors ancl Alternates: 
S/\COG Directors 

Korn, Bains Sue Fro5t Poul Joiner 
Gary Oradford Jill Gayaldo Suzanne Jones 
Chris Oranscum luklwlr Ghag Jenuy Knisley 
Pi!illela Oulahen Martha Guerrero Mike Kozlowski 
Trinity outnJSS Shon HatrlS Jesse Loren 
Josh Chapman oruce Houdesheldt Rich Lozano 
R1cl1 oasmond Pat HUOH! David sondl!r 
Allee Oowdln 0 1Mllo Rick Jennings Michael Saragosa 

SACOG Alternate Director,: 
Don Flore$ None BonnleGoro 
Don Blasor BHIHalldlll Paltlck Kotmody 
Bruco 8ultc1covoli Jorc1myClrnpdclaino D,wldHlng 
None Dmvnto ~arly SarnhAqulnt> 
Carolin I! McCully Marc Boom~anrden Bill Blasi 
Will/\Jnold Kristo Bornosconl Kavin Poplnoou 
Nono EricGuorrn DonoldTor,y 
Rochel Rodoll,Harrls Holly l\ndrcntto John Clcrlcl 

I affirm that none of the abovemcntloned Individuals have a financial Interest In 

Hunt & Sons, LLC 

Brad McGhee 
Print Narile 

Sales Manager 
Title 

Tl m Schaefer 
OarrenS11en 
Angela Teter 
wen(ly Thom~s 
Ma1vang 
Mayra Veea 
oscor Villegas 

Btol Danlols 
Bobb lo Slngh,Allc11 
RickWc~t 
Lori P~rlln 
Erie Guerr~ 
TanlJ Gorclo Codono 
Angel Burojos 

Rev. 1\-15-2'1 • 

P78 



~-~ !:) z 

! ... 
(I) 

i 
(I) 

II! 

~ 

i 
~ 
(I) 

i 
m 
u 

Contract #: CT250004 
Funding Source: Local Agencies 

Project Code: SAC135 

EXHIBIT C 

County of Sacramento 
PAYEE DATA RECORD 

• ed in lieu of IRS \V-9 when doin businesS\\ith the Co ofSacraml2lto) 

Check the boxes th.at .apply to S.acr.v-nmto County's p.aytMnts to you 

D Goods D Sen.ices O Medic.-il Ser\ices D Le-ga.l Sen.ices O Rents/lease D Other 

NMIE (as sho¥.n on )WI' iooome tax reb.Jm) 

Chedl appropriale federal tax classification 

0 IHOIVIOUAL OR SOlE P!IOPRIETOft 1$$Kl O PA.llTNERSltlP lff!HI O ESTATE OR TIIUSTlfflNI 
SUH•inth~l'\Jrt u1-11oJWua\J..'t4le ~ ,1tflh ty ••"7:d t of Cl-. lnl,•~U• «id T, ,IO:n Cut• S dCr) 1&!0 1Ad CA hd,c.iMtkf& ~11t .ro:IA• fUf'lh9 t-111..+.n 1018 6 

CORPORATION (FEIN): (IIAAK ONLY or-E TYPE): 

0 C CORPORATION (fENI □ SCORPORATION (fElHI 

LIIRTEO LIASIUTY COMPANIES IUCI: 
0 UllllB> UAIIIUTYCOIIPAHY. EN1Ell 111ETAX CLASSIFICATION (C'(:01pot61)n S=$ corpoooon P=9;arlntf111ipl 

0 GOVEllNIIENTENTITIES • ftd«a!. $bit, and LoQI ~nducling SCtlool Ollbicb) 

D EXalPT (nonprofit) p;iyN coelt if ~y &aTJU)O franFATCA ~ 
, ... OU\.daCO'll'elpogfJ 

c~eryrAr 11N nine approp,iKe ......_ 11 you are an ,,...,...,.,.., or-.~ )OU Ill.ISi en!Ef' )'011' =,... 
Srgle member LLCs (clS/'f931'ded entities roost Elte< lhe TIN of the 01\llN identified on the Nne fi~. 

SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBER EMPLOYER IDEHTlFICATIOH NUMBER 

I I I 1-LU- 1 I I I I LU-I I I I I I I I 
D California RNldtnl- Qdledwill 5ea!OY cHt• t> m tl.6iness in C.:l1mi.:I er mrliln, ~ Pll'll\'.l'l81 lllu 011:111s'ness ~ c.tb!i.l. 

1£.t.HW ttl'J.t-til ~'.\Nu•£tf Otl I\Dl J_.t') 

Oc;iiiromiaNonrNidtnl- 51.qec:1t>Stlr=· 1Jlwittcl"1:I. 
ftN Jj,w1.Vd«t" lf,t11J niJ " 'i t»t.d J ... ;,e) 

D cilirornia Non111idenl Eomption - To qlllllfy for UEflllO:ll\ clleek ooe or llle IOIOl'1 ng: 
0 tb5e!Vl::K provt:ledhC3lfomll. 

0 A conpeted N"iWlehise Tax Bo.ml Form 500. - (rrust be attached) 

0 A V/3NEf of Statew~okfriQfromFranclise Tax So¥d. • (nus I be ;it!ached) 

CALIFORNIA S.Al£S TAX PERMIT NUMBER 11 
(re Q.l.lffN ontyfot' C-atfcmla r1onrcslekf\t'rtncbrs tNt ct'..ar;e C-llfcmb sses tu) • I I I I I I I I I I I 
llnc!E< pen:ity of petjl.JY, I ~ thlt 

I 

1 The nunbershooo on lhis fonn is rnyc:ooea t= idertifi0.llion runber, and 
2 I ilJll not su,ject to b.achp Wi1filolcfng bec.xlse: a} I ilJTI extmpl frcrn ~ wltllol.fng, or (b) I ~ not been notified by the lrtem.il 

Revenue Sewice URS) tfut I .wn sLtject to b.1Clup YitN!oldi,g .as .a resuk of a blure to report .al n «est of cir.tidends, « (c) the I RS 1us 
notified me INt I am no iong!f sLtject to bac:ltup ~di:t:nd 

, I ;ma Ulited ~les person:Jrouclilg a Lnted Stales res· alien). n! 

' The FATCA oodes(s)en! on lfis fonn (if ~r> ilaicating that I ilJll ~ from :J~rng is 0CIITEct. 
5 If f.acts ~ upon 1\ohich lhis form are bised, wll prarply nolify the Coiny of . 

AtJTHORl2EO PAYEE REPRESelTAllVE'S NAME & mtE(Ti,,e or Pr'nt) E-IMIL~SS 

SI"""' 1\hu: OF U.S. PERSON I u~TE I TELEPHOt..E M.ll,ll!ER 

,._ ... ...,.- :r. ,,) 

700.H Street, Room 3650 • Sicnmento, CA 95814 • ~oe (916) 874-7411 • F ll (916) 874-6182 • umil: W9@Jmcounfy.net 

P79 



EXHIBIT D 

Contract #: CT250004 
Funding Source: Local Agencies 

Project Code: SAC135 

DEBARMENT CERTIFtCA'flON FORM 

The Contractor certifies that, nellhor: th0 Conlractor firm nor a1)y owner, partner, director, officer, 
or principal of the. Contractor, nor any person In a position with management responsibility or 
responsibility for the a~hni11islration of federal funds:. 

(a) ls presen_l!Y d~bamid, suspo_nded, proposed ror Q~barmeril, deqlared ineligible, qr 
volun_tarily_exclude~ from cov~red lra11$aCtlQns by any Fed~ral or State departn'le.nt/ag_enoy; 

{b) Has wllhln a three.year period pr~ceding t~ls cerlincation been e<:>nvictod of ·or had a 
¢Ml Judgm~mt r~ndered a_gainst it for: ~01i1mls~!on or fraud or a crlmtnal □Hense In con!leOll!'.ln 
wHh obtaining, attempllng. to oblaln, or performing_ a public tran~a.¢tlon or contract .(Federal, 
State, or local); violation of Federal ·or State antitrust statutes; or commission of er11bezzlement, 
theft, forgery, bribery, f alsiffcatlon or destruction of records, making false statements, or 
r.ecelving stoleffpr9perty; 

(c) Is presently Indicted for or otherwise criminally 9r civilly char9.ed by a governmental 
entity (Federal, Slate, or local) with commission of any of the offen_ses enumerated in para·graph 
(b)above;or • 

(d) Has wlthir1 a three-year period preceding l_hl$ cerliflcallon had o.ne or more public 
transactions or conlracts (Federal, Stale, or.focal) terminated for cause or defau!t, 

The Con.tractor further certifies that it shall not knowingly enter In.to any transacllon with any 
$\-1tii;:9ntf~r;\9r, nmt1;1ri@l i;;vppller, or vendor who ·1s debE1rred1 ~uspended, -d~clared inellglbl~, or 
vdun~arily excluded rrn1t1 covered transactions by any Federal cir Sta.le depanment/~gency. 

Dated this 1'1lh day of June 1 20 24 

-for. Contractor 

8rad cGheo - Sales Manager 
Printed Name and Title 

Hunt.& Sons, LLC _ _ _ 
Contractor Firm Name and Type of Entity (Corp,, Parlnorship, Sole Proprietor) 

5725 Alder Ave 
Address 

Sacramento,.CA 9562~. 
Oily/State/Zip .Code 

(2(J9} :345-80$2 //.bm~ghee@lluntnsonsllc.eom 
Area Code/Telephone Number and E-Mall Addr.ess 

P80 



EXHIBIT E 

Contract #: CT250004 
Funding Source: Local Agencies 

Project Code: SAC135 

FORM OF PARTICIPATING AGENCY SUB AGREEMENT 

JOINT FUEL PROCUREMENT 
SUB-AGREEMENT 

between 
CONTRACTOR and PARTICIPATING AGENCY 

This FUEL PROCUREMENT AGREEMENT ("Agreement"), is made and entered into on 
[Enter Effective Date of Agreement upon execution), by and between [PARTICIPATING 
AGENCY], [describe form of entity] (hereinafter "Participating Agency"), and HUNT & SONS LLC, 
a Delaware limited liability company (hereinafter "Contractor or "Consultant"). 

RECITALS: 

A. The Sacramento Area Council of Governments ("SACOG") has entered into a Standard 
Agreement with the Contractor, dated [date entered upon execution of joint procurement 
agreement], to provide various forms of fuel products to certain participating SACOG member 
agencies and other eligible entities (the "SACOG Agreement"); and 

B. The Participating Agency desires to purchase fuel products from Contractor pursuant to 
the terms and conditions set forth below. 

AGREEMENT: 

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

1. The provisions of the SACOG Agreement are incorporated into this Agreement' as 
though set forth in full herein. Except as otherwise expressly set forth herein, the terms and 
conditions of the SA COG Agreement are made applicable to the Contractor's provision of services 
to the Participating Agency. 

2. Contractor shall perform the scope of work attached to this Agreement as Exhibit 
A and incorporated herein. The estimated fuel requirements set forth on Exhibit A are estimates 
only and do not bind the Participating Agency to purchase that amount of fuel products. 

3. The Participating Agency shall pay the Contractor in arrears for fuel delivered in 
accordance with the rate schedule set forth in Exhibit A. Payments shall be made pursuant to the 
payment provisions set forth in the SACOG Agreement. 

4. Insurance Requirements. Choose one of the following: 

P81 



Contract#: CT250004 
Funding Source: Local Agencies 

Project Code: SAC135 

a. Contractor shall obtain and maintain the insurance required under section 
15 of the SACOG Agreement and shall cause the Participating Agency to 
be named as additional insured thereunder. 

b. [If the Participating Agency has different insurance requirements, they 
should be inserted here in place of the foregoing text.] 

5. [Insert any other special terms and conditions] 

6. The Participating Agency shall have the right to terminate this Agreement for any 
reason, with or without cause, at any time, by giving the Contractor fifteen (15) days written notice. 
The notice shall be deemed served and effective for all purposes on the date it is deposited in the 
U.S. mail, certified, return receipt requested to Contractor at the address set forth next to its 
signature, below. 

7. Project Manager: 

The Participating Agency's project manager for this Agreement is Project Manager 
unless Participating Agency otherwise informs Contractor. Any notice, report, or other 
communication required by this agreement shall be mailed by first-class mail to the Participating 
Agency Project Manager at the following address: 

Project Manager, Title 
Participating Agency/ 
Address 
Address 
Telephone: 
Email: 

Contractor's project manager for this Agreement is Brad McGhee. No substitution of 
Contractor's project manager is permitted without the prior written agreement of Participating 
Agency, which agreement shall not be unreasonably withheld. Communication to Contractor 
required by this Agreement shall be mailed by first-class mail to: 

Brad McGhee, Sales Manager 
Hunt & Sons LLC 
5725 Alder Avenue 
Sacramento, CA 95829 
Telephone: (209) 345-8062 
Email: bmcghee@huntnsonsllc.com 

( Signature Page to Follow) 

P82 



Contract#: CT250004 
Funding Source: Local Agencies 

Project Code: SAC135 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, THE PARTIES HAVE ENTERED INTO THIS AGREEMENT AS OF 
THE DATE HEREIN ABOVE APPEARING: 

[PARTICIPATING AGENCY]: 

NAME OF AUTHORIZED SIGNATORY 
Title 

HUNT & SONS LLC 

BRAD MCGHEE 
Sales Manager 

P83 



Contract#: CT250004 
Funding Source: Local Agencies 

Project Code: SAC135 

EXHIBIT F 
CERTIFICATION OF RESTRICTIONS ON LOBBYING 

CERTIFICATION O.li' llESTlUC'l'(ONS ON LOUBYING 
(1'o be st(l~mitte,t 1vitl, cwc:/1 blci vi• £!/fer ,:xceeding $100,QOO) 

I, Brod McGhee, ffales Manager - - - , hereby oc1·tify 011 

name nnd title of officinl) 

bclrnlf of Hunt & Sons, LLC·. that; 
(1111111e of Contra_clOI') 

(I) No Federal npproprintod l\111ds have been poid or will lie j,aid, by or on bclrnl t' of the 
i11tdcr&lg119<1,_ t<) ,11\y 1for:io11 foi· hi.flucii~h1g o(nttempting ~o hifluci1c~ nnd oftfocr or employee of 
m,i}' 11gci1cy, n Mcl)1bcr of Congress, n_n officci· oi· ~inployc;~ ~f C()ngress, or nny ~inpl()yee or <J 

Memll~r ofCQngi·ess in COll!lCciion with tiie 11\\fflrdhig of itllY Fetlc1;11I c_ontmc.t, th~ ll\{1ki_i1g or-~uy 
Fcdqrnl grant, lhe m;ik°iug of nny F~dcr~I 19,111, tho entering li1to of any cooporntive ng1·oc111cnt, 
nnd the extension, conli1\uatio11, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Fed.crnl contrncl·, 
gr.int, lonn, or cooperative agreement. 

(2) If nny f\lnds olho,· lhon Fcdeml opproprintcd fonds have been pnhl or will be paid to any 
person for influencing oi• nttcmpting to i11th1cnce an officer or employee of irny agency, a 
Mcmlicr of Congress, an officer or ~lllJ)loyee of Congress, or nn.cmplqycc of a Member of 
Congr~ss in con1icction ,vith this Pcdcrnl contmct, grant, fonn, or coopci•riiiv¢ agrccin~nt, the 
undersigtJcd shnil 9oniplct~ ofal stibmii Sttiildnrq Porm-LLI:.,, "Disclo$l!l'C Fonn lo llcpoi1 
Lobbying," i11 uccoJ'dn11cc ,vitli il::i lnstrnctions. • 

(3) The undersig1icq_ sh~,11 require thnt the h,nguugt: of this certification be incJ.uclc<l irl the 
a\v;11·~ <loct1111~nts fo(· 1111 :iul:i-uwnrds_ i1_t all tler!i (includi1•g s11bcontrnct, s11b-grnnts, ni1d contrncts 
under grnnts, lonns, ni·1c1 cooperative ngrc~mcnts) nnd that nil Sltb-rccipi_c;nts shall certify and 
disclose ·nccordingly. 

For purposes of I his Cerlil1cation, this Agreement resulting from this RFP shall be considered a 
fcdornl contmct. This ccrtificnt!on is a material rcprcscn111tion of fact upon which reliance is 
placed ,vben this 1rtmsaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a 
·prercquisilc for moking en' cntcdng i1110 thiti trni,i;aclion i.mpmied bY. 1'ieclioi1 1352, title 31, U.S; 
Code, Any person who f11lls lo file the req11h'cd ccrllfio;1tlon slmtl l10 subject to ii civil penalty of 
not less thiln $10,000 i1tfd nol more lhiln $ I 00;000 for c;-.ch ·such foilur~. 

By 
(Sig_ I otlicinl) 

Sales Manager 
(Ti11Q ofm11horizcd bfl1cinl) 

Lobbying Ccr1ifiua!itl11 l.C-1 

P84 



FORM OF PARTICIPATING AGENCY SUB AGREEMENT 

JOINT FUEL PROCUREMENT 
SUB~AGREEMENT 

between 
CONTRACTOR and PARTICIPATING AGENCY 

This FUEL PROCUREMENT AGREEMENT ("Agreement"), is made and entered into on 
September 1, 2024, by and between the Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District, a political 
subdivision of the State of California (hereinafter "Participating Agency" or "District"), and HUNT 
& SONS, INC., a California corporation (hereinafter "Contractor or "Consultant"). 

RECITALS: 

A. The Sacramento Area Council of Governments ("SACOG") has entered into a Standard 
Agreement with the Contractor, dated August 23, 3024 to provide various forms of fuel products 
to certain participating SACOG member agencies and other eligible entities (the "SACOG 
Agreement"); and 

B. The Participating Agency desires to purchase fuel products from Contractor pursuant to 
the terms and conditions set forth below. 

AGREEMENT: 

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

1. The provisions of the SACOG Agreement are incorporated into this Agreement as 
though set forth in full herein. Except as otherwise expressly set forth herein, the terms and 
conditions of the SACOG Agreement are made applicable to the Contractor's provision of services 
to the Participating Agency. 

2. Contractor shall perform the scope of work attached to this Agreement as Exhibit 
A and incorporated herein. The estimated fuel requirements set forth on Exhibit A are estimates 
only and do not bind the Participating Agency to purchase that amount of fuel products. 

3. The Participating Agency shall pay the Contractor in arrears for fuel delivered in 
accordance with the rate schedule set forth in Exhibit A. Payments shall be made pursuant to the 
payment provisions set forth in the SACOG Agreement. 

4. Insurance Requirements: 

Contractor shall furnish to the District a certificate evidencing insurance coverages outlined below. 
Copies of required endorsements must be attached to the provided certificates. It is the 
responsibility of the Contractor to notify its insurance advisor or insurance carrier(s) regarding 
coverage, limits, forms, and other insurance requirements specified below. All documents must 
be received and approved by the District prior to the commencement of any services. Please note, 

P85 



the required coverages outlined below shall not limit the amount of coverage provided, but shall 
be the minimum requirements acceptable to the District. 

GENERAL LIABILITY - shall be on an Occurrence basis (as opposed to Claims Made 
basis). Minimum limits and structure shall be: 

• General Liability: 
• Products Comp/Op Aggregate: 
• Personal & Adv. Injury: 
• Each Occurrence: 
• Fire Damage: 

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY 

$2,000,000 
$2,000,000 
$1 ,000,000 
$1,000,000 
$100,000 

• Commercial Automobile Liability for Corporate/business owned vehicles including 
non-owned and hired, $1,000,000 Combined Single Limit. 

• Personal Lines Automobile Liability for Individually owned vehicles, $250,000 per 
person, $500,000 each accident, $100,000 property damage. 

WORKERS COMPENSATION 
• The policy shall be endorsed to waive the insurer's subrogation rights against the 

District. 
• Per statute 
• $1,000,000 per accident for each accident 
• $1,000,000 for disease 

EMPLOYER'S LIABILITY 
• $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury or disease. 

PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY 
• Professional Liability or Errors and Omissions Liability: $1 ,000,000 per claim and 

aggregate. 

ADDITIONAL INSURED 
• The Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District. its officers, directors, officials, employees, 

and volunteers are to be endorsed as additional insureds as respects: liability arising 
out of activities performed by or on behalf of Contractor; products and completed 
operations of Contractor; premises owned, occupied or used by Contractor; or 
automobiles owned, leased, hired or borrowed by Contractor. The coverage shall 
contain no endorsed limitations on the scope of protection afforded to District, -its 
officers, directors, officials, employees, or volunteers. 

Insurance policies shall include a provision for the District to be given 30 days prior written notice 
of cancellation and 30 days written notice of any material change(s) requested by the policy holder 
of said insurance policies. The Contractor shall furnish documentary evidence of such policies 
and the renewal or continuance of such insurances within 10 business days of any expiration 
date(s) thereof during the life of the Agreement. 

The District will not be responsible for any deductible that may apply in any of the said insurance 
policies. 

P86 



The District's insurance requirements shall not be construed to and in no manner limit or restrict 
the liability of the Contractor. 

CERTIFICATES ARE TO BE SENT TO: 

Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District 
Attn: Purchasing Division 
3012 Gold Canal Drive 
Rancho Cordova, CA 95670 
(916) 859-4372 

Or 

purchasing@metrofire.ca.gov 

5. The Participating Agency shall have the right to terminate this Agreement for any 
reason, with or without cause, at any time, by giving the Contractor fifteen (15) days written notice. 
The notice shall be deemed served and effective for all purposes on the date it is deposited in the 
U.S. mail, certified, return receipt requested to Contractor at the address set forth next to its 
signature, below. 

6. Project Manager: 

The Participating Agency's project manager for this Agreement is Mark Siebert unless 
Participating Agency otherwise informs Contractor. Any notice, report, or other communication 
required by this agreement shall be mailed by first-class mail to the Participating Agency Project 
Manager at the following address: 

Mark Siebert, Logistics Manager 
Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District 
3012 Gold Canal Dr. 
Rancho Cordova, CA 95670 
Telephone: (916) 859-4361 
Email: siebert.mark@metrofire.ca.gov 

Contractor's project manager for this Agreement is Josh Hunt. No substitution of 
Contractor's project manager is permitted without the prior written agreement of Participating 
Agency, which agreement shall not be unreasonably withheld. Communication to Contractor 
required by this Agreement shall be mailed by first-class mail to: 

Josh Hunt, CEO 
Hunt & Sons, Inc. 
5750 South Watt Avenue 
Sacramento, CA 95829 
Telephone: (916) 383-4868 
Email: jhunt@huntnsons.com 

(Signature Page to Follow) 

P87 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, THE PARTIES HAVE ENTERED INTO THIS AGREEMENT AS OF 
THE DATE HEREIN ABOVE APPEARING: 

SACRAMENTO METROPOLITAN FIRE DISTRICT 

Adam A. House 
Fire Chief 

HUNT & SONS, INC. 

JOSHUA HUNT 
Chief Executive Officer 

P88 



Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District 

10545 Armstrong Ave., Suite 200 • Mather, CA 95655 • Phone (91 6) 859-4300 • Fax (916) 859-3702 

ADAM A. HOUSE 
Fire Chief 

DATE: 

TO: 

September 12, 2024 

Board of Di rectors 

SUBJECT: Resolution Adopting the Fiscal Year 2024/25 Appropriations Limit 
Schedule 

TOPIC 

A resolution has been prepared establishing an appropriation limit for Fiscal Year 
2024/25 in the amount of $452,663,227. Staff recommends approval of the proposed 
resolution. 

SUMMARY 

State law requires that every government entity in California prepare calculations each 
fiscal year of the entity's maximum allowed appropriations. The formula used to make 
these calculations involves adjusting the entity's previous "Gann limit" by incorporating 
changes to population and per capita income. These factors are provided by the State 
Department of Finance. A governmental entity is not permitted to spend more than its 
calculated Gann limit. 

DISCUSSION 

Based upon staff calculations, the District's Gann limit for FY 2024/25 is $452,663,227 
which represents an increase of $14,587,908 when compared to the FY 2023/24 Gann 
limit of $438,075,319. This increase is due to a 3.62% increase in per capita income 
statewide, slightly offset by 0.28% average decrease in the population of the cities and 
unincorporated area within the District. Calculation details can be found in the attached 
schedule. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

There is no fiscal impact. The District's FY 2024/25 proposed operating budget subject 
to the limit is well below the $452,663,227 set by the Gann limit. 

Serving Sacramento and Placer Counties 

P89 



Page 2 

RECOMMENDATION 

Adopt resolution approving the appropriation (Gann) limit for Fiscal Year 2024/25. 

Submitted by: 

Dave O'Toole 
Chief Financial Officer 

Approved by: £ 
~c-77~ 

Adam A. House 
Fire Chief 

ATTACHMENTS: 

Attachment 1: Fiscal Year 2024/25 Gann Limit Calculation Schedule 
Attachment 2: Resolution Adopting the Fiscal Year 2024-25 Appropriations Limit Schedule 

Serving Sacramento and Placer Counties 

P90 



l I 

l61;jj' 
ADAM A. HOUSE 

Fire Chief 

Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District 
10545 Armstrong Ave., Suite 200, Mather, CA Phone (916) 859-4300 Fax (916) 859-3700 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-XXX 

A RESOLUTION OF THE SACRAMENTO METROPOLITAN FIRE DISTRICT 
ADOPTING THE FISCAL YEAR 2024/25 APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT SCHEDULE 

WHEREAS, , the voters of the State of California on November 6, 1979 added 
Article XIIIB to the State Constitution placing various limitations on the appropriations of 
state and local governments; and 

WHEREAS, Article XIIIB provides that the Appropriations Limit for Fiscal Year 
2024/25 is calculated by adjusting the base year appropriations limit of Fiscal Year 2023/24 
for changes in the per capita income and regional population factors prepared by the State 
of California's Office of the Department of Finance, calculations of which are provided in 
the attached Board Report and, by this reference, incorporated herein; and 

WHEREAS, the District has complied with the provisions of Article XIIIB of the 
State Constitution and Section 7900 et seq. of the Government Code in determining the 
appropriations limit for the earliest affected Fiscal Year 1978/79. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the 
Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District does hereby approves that the Appropriations Limit 
in Fiscal Year 2024/25 shall be $452,663,227, as set forth in the attached Exhibit "A." 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 12th day of September 2024. I, 
MARNI RITTBURG, BOARD CLERK OF SACRAMENTO METROPOLITAN FIRE 
DISTRICT HEREBY CERTIFY the foregoing Resolution was introduced and passed at a 
regular meeting of the Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District Board by the following roll call 
vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

SACRAMENTO METROPOLITAN FIRE DISTRICT 

By: ____________ _ 
President, Board of Directors 

Serving Sacramentq and Placer Counties P91 



RESOLUTION NO. 2024-:XXX 
Page2 

ATTEST: 

Marni J. Rittburg, CMC, CPMC 
Clerk of the Board 

Attachments: 
Exhibit A: Fiscal Year 2024/25 Gann Limit Calculation Schedule 

P92 



-,:, 
co 
c..:, 

A 

B 

C 

D 

E 

FISCAL YEAR: 

PER CAPITA INCOME CHANGE * 

POPULATION CHANGE * 

CALCULATION OF FACTOR (Ax B): 

PRIOR YEAR GANN LIMIT: 

GANN LIMIT ON APPROPRIATIONS 
FOR FISCAL YEAR (C x D): 

* Per California State Department of Finance 

FY2024/25 

1.0362 

0.9972 

1.0333 

$ 438,075,319 

$ 452,663,227 

FY2023/24 FY2022/23 FY2021/22 

1.0444 1.0755 1.0573 

0.9955 0.9938 1.0036 

1.0397 1.0688 1.0611 

$ 421,347,81 1 $ 394,225,123 $ 371,524,949 

$ 438,075,319 $ 421 ,347,811 $ 394,225, 123 



Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District 

10545 Armstrong Ave., Suite 200 • Mather, CA 95655 • Phone (916) 859-4300 • Fax (916) 859-3702 

ADAM A. HOUSE 
Fire Chief 

DATE: 

TO: 

September 12, 2024 

Board of Directors 

SUBJECT: Purchase Approval - Personal Protective Equipment 

TOPIC 

Staff requests approval from the Board of Directors for the purchase of structural firefighting 
turnouts for Fire Academy Class 24-2 from Municipal Emergency Services, Inc. (MES) 
utilizing Sourcewell cooperative contract #010424-MES. Additionally, staff seeks Board 
approval for the continued utilization of this contract for future turnout purchases. 

BACKGROUND 

In 2022, the Board approved the purchase of turnouts from MES for recruit Academy class 
22-1 using Sourcewell contract #032620-MES. That cooperative contract has expired, 
however, earlier this year, Sourcewell issued a new Request for Proposals (RFP) for 
Firefighting Personal Protective Equipment. As a result of this RFP, MES was awarded 
contract #010424-MES. This current contract will expire March 27, 2028. 

DISCUSSION 

In an effort to maintain compliance with NFPA 1851 standards, the Safety Division wishes 
to utilize Sourcewell contract #010424-MES to fulfill the Sacramento Metropolitan Fire 
District's (District) ongoing need to purchase replacement turnouts for those that are beyond 
repair or have reached their 10-year lifespan, in addition to the turnouts that will be needed 
for future fire academies. Sourcewell is a State of Minnesota local government unit and 
service cooperative that facilitates competitive public solicitations and contract award 
processes for the benefit of its 50,000+ participating entities across the United States and 
Canada. Cooperative purchasing provides participating agencies increased administrative 
efficiencies and the power of combined purchasing volume that results in overall cost 
savings. Purchasing has reviewed the documents from Sourcewell in relation to agreement 
#010424 and has confirmed the District may utilize this cooperative agreement. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

The proposed cost for the Academy 24-2 structural firefighting turnouts is $221,027.75. This 
cost is included in the District FY 2024/2025 Final Budget, however, the District will receive 
an approximate savings of $18,000 if this order is placed at the same time as the District's 
purchase of the MMP Fire-Dex TECGEN51 garments that was previously approved at the 
August 8, 2024 Board meeting. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Serving Sacramento and Placer Counties 

P94 



Page2 

Staff recommends that the Board authorize the current purchase of structural firefighting 
turnouts from MES using Sourcewell contract #010424-MES, in addition to authorizing the 
continued utilization of this contract for future purchases until the contract expires or is 
terminated. Future purchases will be contingent upon the Board approving the appropriation 
of funds in the budget for such purchases. 

Submitted by: 

Anthony peck I Sep s, 2024 13:07 PPJl 
Name Anthony Peck 
Out-of-Class Assistant Chief Health 
Wellness and Safety 

Approved by: 

/vfichaet ,1oh11so11 
Michael Johnson (Sep 5, 2024 14:29 PDT) 

Name Michael Johnson 
Out-Of-Class Deputy Chief 
Admin 

Serving Sacramento and Placer Counties 

P95 



Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District 
1 I 

lfim~ 10545 Armstrong Ave., Suite 200 • Mather, CA 95655 • Phone (916) 859-4300 • Fax (916) 859-3702 

ADAM A. HOUSE 
Fire Chief 

DATE: 

TO: 

September 12, 2024 

Board of Directors 

SUBJECT: ARFF Agreement - McClellan Business Park, LLC 

TOPIC 

Request to authorize the execution of a new agreement with McClellan Business Park, LLC for 
aircraft rescue and firefighting services at McClellan Airport. 

BACKGROUND 

Since 2000, the Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District (District) has provided aircraft rescue and 
firefighting (ARFF) services at McClellan Airport (MCC), to support the needs of a United States 
Coast Guard (USCG) Air Station located at MCC. The current agreement to provide ARFF 
services was approved by the Board of Directors on August 11, 2022. The agreement is between 
the District and McClellan Business Park, LLC (MBP), in performance of an agreement between 
MBP and the USCG for airfield operations and management services and ARFF services. The 
term of the District's current agreement with MBP will expire on September 15, 2024. 

DISCUSSION 

The USCG and MBP have recently executed a new agreement for airfield operations, 
management, and ARFF services (2024 AIRSTA Agreement), with a one-year term effective 
September 16, 2024, and two one-year options to extend. MBP desires to continue subcontracting 
A~FF services to the District in performance of their new agreement with the USCG. 

The District and MBP have negotiated a new ARFF agreement that remains materially similar to 
past agreements, while addressing certain terms related to minimum staffing requirements as well 
as the transition to PFAS-free firefighting foam._ 

FISCAL IMPACT 

The District's total anticipated cost to provide ARFF services in performance of the agreement is 
$4,425,017 in year one, $4,374,356 in year two, and $4,530,785 in year three. The proposed 
agreement reflects a 100% reimbursement of this cost, including one-time costs in year one 
associated with the transition to PF AS-free firefighting foam to meet federal and state mandates. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends the Board adopt a resolution to delegate authority to the Fire Chief or his 
designee to execute and administer an agreement with McClellan Business Park, LLC for 
providing aircraft rescue and firefighting services at McClellan Airport. 

Serving Sacramento and Placer Counties 

P96 



Page2 

Erin Castleberry, Ad • is ative Analyst 
Planning and Development 

ATTACHMENTS: 

Approved by: __ _ 

C - · 
Jeff lopment Officer 
Pia eve opment 

Attachment 1: Resolution Authorizing the Execution of an Agreement with McClellan 
Business Park, LLC for Aircraft Rescue and Firefighting Services at McClellan 
Airport 

Attachment 2: Agreement for McClellan Airport Aircraft Rescue and Firefighting Services 

Serving Sacramento and Placer Counties 

P97 



ADAM A. HOUSE 
Fire Chief 

Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District 
10545 Armstrong Ave., Suite 200, Mather, CA Phone (916) 859-4300 Fax (916) 859-3700 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-XXX 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF AN AGREEMENT WITH 
MCCLELLAN BUSINESS PARK, LLC FOR AIRCRAFT RESCUE AND FIREFIGHTING 

SERVICES AT MCCLELLAN AIRPORT 

WHEREAS, the Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District ("District") is a political subdivision 
of the State of California and is duly organized and existing pursuant to the State constitution and 
laws; and 

WHEREAS, McClellan Business Park, LLC ("MBP") owns and operates McClellan Airport 
("MCC") and the United States Coast Guard ("USCG") operates at MCC; and 

WHEREAS, the District currently provides aircraft rescue and firefighting ("ARFF") 
services at MCC as a subcontractor to MBP in performance of an agreement between MBP and 
USCG; and 

WHEREAS, the term of the existing agreement expires on September 15, 2024; and 

WHEREAS, USCG determined it is in its best interest to release a new Request for 
Proposals ("RFP") for Airfield Operations and Management Services and Aircraft Rescue & 
Firefighting Services at MCC; and 

WHEREAS, MBP desires to subcontract with the District to provide the ARFF services 
contemplated in the RFP should MBP secure the USCG contract award. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the Sacramento 
Metropolitan Fire District does hereby delegate authority to the Fire Chief or his designee to 
execute and administer an agreement with McClellan Business Park, LLC for aircraft rescue and 
firefighting services at McClellan Airport. 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 12th day of September, 2024. I, MARNI 
RITTBURG, BOARD CLERK OF SACRAMENTO METROPOLITAN FIRE DISTRICT HEREBY 
CERTIFY the foregoing Resolution was introduced and passed at a regular meeting of the 
Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District Board by the following roll call vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

ATTEST: 

Marni J. Rittburg, CMC, CPMC 
Clerk of the Board 

SACRAMENTO METROPOLITAN FIRE DISTRICT 

By: _____________ _ 
President, Board of Directors 

Serving Sacramento and Placer Counties P98 



AGREEMENT FOR MCCLELLAN AIRPORT 
AIRCRAFT RESCUE AND FIREFIGHTING SERVICES 

THIS AGREEMENT, is made and entered into this 13th day of 
September 2024, by and between MCCLELLAN BUSINESS PARK, LLC, a Delaware limited 
liability company (hereinafter MBP), and the SACRAMENTO METROPOLITAN FIRE 
DISTRICT, an independent special district duly authorized and existing under the laws of the State 
of California (hereinafter METRO FIRE), and are hereinafter collectively referred to as the "Parties." 

WHEREAS, in 2022 MBP and United States Coast Guard (USCG) entered into an 
agreement for Airfield Operation and Management Services and Air Rescue and Fire 
Services for USCG Air Station at McClellan Airport (2022 AIRSTA Agreement); and 

WHEREAS, MBP entered into an agreement with METRO FIRE to provide 
aircraft rescue and firefighting (ARFF) services at McClellan Airport (ARFF Agreement) 
in performance of the 2022 AIRSTA Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the term of the ARFF Agreement is concurrent with the term of the 
AIRSTA Agreement, which terminates on September 15, 2024; and 

WHEREAS, USCG determined it's in its best interest to release a new solicitation 
for Airfield Operation and Management Services and Aircraft Rescue and Firefighting 
Services (2024 USCG RFP); and 

WHEREAS, the anticipated term in the 2024 USCG RFP is one year effective 
September 16, 2024 with two one-year option periods; and 

WHEREAS, MBP intends to submit a response to the 2024 USCG RFP to provide 
the services requested; and 

WHEREAS, MBP desires to subcontract with METRO FIRE to provide the Aircraft 
Rescue and Firefighting Services contemplated in the 2024 USCG RFP and an updated 
agreement between the Parties is necessary; and 

WHEREAS, time is of the essence and it is the intent of the Parties to have this 
updated agreement in place if and when the USCG makes the award to MBP; and 

WHEREAS, METRO FIRE is authorized to enter into such a contract for services 
pursuant to Health and Safety Code Sectionl3862; and 

WHEREAS, within the Performance Work Statement (PWS) of the 2024 USCG 
RFP the USCG is referred to as "Coast Guard" or "Government"; and such terms are used 
interchangeably; and 

WHEREAS, within the PWS, MBP is referred to as "Contractor". 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises hereinafter set 
forth, MBP and METRO FIRE agree as follows: 

Page 1 of74 

P99 



1. RECITALS 

The Parties agree that the foregoing recitals are true and correct, and are 
incorporated herein, by reference. 

2. TERM OF AGREEMENT AND EFFECTIVE DATE 

This Agreement, entered into as of the date first written above shall be effective 
September 16, 2024 subject to USCG's award of the Airfield Operation and Management 
Services and Aircraft Rescue and Firefighting Services Agreement (2024 AIRSTA 
Agreement) to MBP. This Agreement shall remain in force until the termination of the 
2024 AIRSTA Agreement, unless terminated earlier in accordance with Paragraph 11 of 
this Agreement. 

3. TERMINATION OF PRIOR AGREEMENT 

The previous agreement titled Agreement for McClellan Airport Aircraft 
Rescue and Fire Fighting Services shall automatically terminate upon the later of (i) the 
award of the 2024 AIRS TA Agreement to MBP, or (ii) the termination date of the 2022 
AIRSTA Agreement (the date of such termination ·is the Prior Agreement Termination 
Date). 

4. SCOPE OF SERVICES 

Effective on the Prior Agreement Termination Date, at 0001 hours, METRO FIRE 
hereby agrees to provide aircraft rescue and firefighting (ARFF) services to MBP at 
McClellan Airport in accordance with the all the requirements and conditions of the 2024 
AIRSTA Agreement between MBP and the USCG. Upon execution, a copy of the 2024 
AIRS TA Agreement will be attached and incorporated into this Agreement as Exhibit "A". 

Said services will be provided from Fire Station 114 (Building 1074 and Building 
636) in accordance with Paragraph 5 of this Agreement. 

5. METRO FIRE STAFFING 

METRO FIRE will staff Station 114 as follows in order to provide the 
aircraft rescue and firefighting (ARFF) services on a twenty-four (24) hour, seven (7) day 
per week basis: 

A. Three (3) dedicated personnel only available for ARFF responses, 
consisting of the following: 

1 Captain 
1 Engineer 
1 Firefighter 

Page 2 of74 

P100 



B. The Sacramento Regional Fire/EMS Communications Center (SRFECC) 
will continue to provide dispatch services in accordance with their existing jurisdiction and 
normal operations. 

6. FURNISHED EQUIPMENT AND FACILITillS 

A. The PWS section 3.0 (Government Furnished Property) provides that the 
Government (USCG) will furnish one (1) 2001 Model Pl50 ARFF vehicle, 4x4, 1500 
gallon Emergency One Titan, VIN #4ENBAA8Xll0003122. The PWS, incorporated 
herein as Exhibit "B", provides that Contractor will be responsible for maintenance, repair 
and inspection of the furnished vehicle and at the end of the term of the contract will return 
it to the Government in good working order. The PWS obligates the Contractor to furnish 
all other equipment with the exception of the ARFF unit provided by Government. 

B. It is expressly understood and agreed that METRO FIRE's ability to 
perform under the Government PWS is contingent upon METRO FIRE providing one 
operationally ready ARFF vehicle, while the USCG will provide the second operationally 
ready ARFF vehicle, described in paragraph A above, both equipped with automated 
turrets. In order to maintain operational readiness, the Government shall promptly replace 
any furnished vehicle that has reached the end of its useful life in accordance with Section 
23 of the USCG Safety and Environmental Health Manual (COMDTINST M5100.47D). 

C. The Contractor will reimburse METRO FIRE for the disposal and 
replacement of Aqueous Film Forming Foam (AFFF) to meet State and Federal regulations 
pertaining to the use of foam that is free from perN and polyfluoroalkyl substances (PF AS). 
Such reimbursement may be deferred to the final year of the term of this Agreement, and 
shall be equal to the lesser of the cost outlined in Exhibit C, or the Government's 
demonstrated actual cost for disposal and replacement. 

D. Fire Station 114 is comprised of Building 1074 and Building 636 (Building 
636 is used for storage). Under a separate agreement, the County of Sacramento provides 
Fire Station 114 for use by METRO FIRE. METRO FIRE's performance under the PWS 
in contingent upon continued use of Fire Station 114. 

7. COMPENSATION 

MBP agrees to compensate METRO FIRE for the ARFF services contemplated by 
this Agreement in accordance with the annual total costs specified in Exhibit "C" to this 
Agreement, attached hereto and incorporated herein. METRO FIRE shall invoice MBP 
quarterly in arrears for services under this Agreement. MBP shall make payments to 
METRO FIRE within fortyNfive days of receipt of METRO FIRE invoice. 

8. NOTICES 

Any notice demand, request, consent, or approval that either party hereto may or is 
required to give the other shall be in writing and shall be either personally delivered or sent 
by first class mail, postage prepaid, and addressed as follows: 

Page 3 of74 

P101 



EVP/COO 
McClellan Jet Services 
3028 Peacekeeper Way 
McClellan, CA 95652 

9. INDEMNIFICATION 

Fire Chief or Designee 
Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District 
l 0545 Armstrong Ave., Suite 200 
Mather, CA 95655 

To the fullest extent permitted by law, each of the Parties (MBP and Metro Fire) 
shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless each of the other Parties, their respective 
governing boards, officers, directors, officials, employees, and authorized volunteers and 
agents (collectively Indemnified Parties), from and against any and all claims, demands, 
actions, losses, liabilities, damages, and all expenses and costs incidental thereto 
(collectively Claims), fncluding cost of defense, settlement, arbitration, and reasonable 
attorneys' fees, resulting from injuries to or death of persons, including but not limited to 
employees of either Party hereto, and damage to or destruction of property, or loss of use 
or reduction in value thereof, including but not limited to the property of either Party hereto, 
arising out of, pertaining to, or resulting from the alleged or actual acts or omissions of 
their respective governing boards, officers, directors, officials, employees, volunteers, 
agents, or contractors. 

It is the intention of the Parties that the provisions of this indemnity obligation be 
interpreted to impose on each Party responsibility to the other for the acts and omissions 
of their governing boards, officers, directors, officials, employees, authorized volunteers 
and agents, or contractors. It is also the intention of the Parties that, where comparative 
fault is determined to have been contributory, principles of comparative fault will be 
followed and each Party shall bear the proportionate cost of any Claims attributable to the 
fault of that Party, its governing board, officers, directors, officials, employees, volunteers, 
agents, or contractors. 

The right to defense and indemnity under this Section arises upon occurrence of an 
event giving rise to a Claim and, thereafter, upon tender in writing to the indemnifying party. 
The indemnifying party shall defend the Indemnified Party with counsel reasonably 
acceptable to the Indemnified Party. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Indemnified Party 
shall be entitled, on its own behalf, and at the expense of the indemnifying party, to assume 
control of its defense or the defense of any Indemnified Party in any legal action, with 
counsel reasonably selected by it. Should the Indemnified Patty elect to initially assume 
control of its defense, or the defense of any Indemnified Party, it does so without prejudice 
to its right to subsequently request that the indemnifying party thereafter assume control of 
the defense and pay all attorneys' fees and costs incurred thereby. 

This indemnity obligation shall not be limited by the types and amounts ofinsurance 
or self-insurance maintained by the Patties. 

Nothing in this indemnity obligation shall be construed to create any duty to, any 
standard of care with reference to, or any liability or obligation, contractual or othe1wise, 
to any third party. 

Page 4 of74 

P102 



The provisions of this indemnity obligation shall survive the expiration or 
termination of the Agreement. 

10. INSURANCE OR SELF-INSURANCE 

Each party, at its sole cost and expense, shall carry insurance - or self-insure - its 
activities in connection with this Agreement, and obtain, keep in force and maintain, 
insurance or equivalent programs of self-insurance, for general liability, workers 
compensation, property, professional liability, cyber liability and business automobile 
liability with policy or contracts limits of one million dollars ($1,000,000.00) per 
occurrence and three million dollars ($3,000,000.00) in the aggregate. Each party agrees 
to provide the other thirty (30) days' advance written notice of any cancellation, termination 
or lapse of any of the insurance or self-insurance coverages. Failure to maintain insurance 
as required in this Agreement is a material breach of contract and may be grounds for 
termination of the Agreement. 

11. TERMINATION 

A. Either party may terminate this Agreement upon 30 days written notice of 
the substantial failure of performance or material breach of this Agreement by the other 
party, provided such terminating party first transmits written notice of intent to terminate 
to the party failing to perform and allows such party a reasonable opportunity to cure or 
correct said failure of performance. 

B. MBP may terminate this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice 
served upon METRO FIRE in the event that USCG terminates the 2024 AIRSTA 
Agreement with MBP, or said Agreement otherwise expires or is cancelled pursuant to the 
terms of that Agreement. Notice shall be deemed served on the date of mailing. 

12. ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

This Agreement, all exhibits attached hereto, all other terms or prov1s10ns 
incorporated herein by reference, and any notices issued 'in accordance with the terms 
hereto constitute the entire Agreement and understanding between MBP and METRO 
FIRE as to the subject matter contained herein, and supersedes all prior negotiations, 
representations, or agreements, whether written or oral. This agreement shall be interpreted 
as having been drafted by both parties. 

13. AMENDMENTS 

This Agreement may be amended only by written instrument, signed by both MBP 
and METRO FIRE as authorized by action of their respective governing boards, if 
applicable. 

14. DUPLICATE COUNTERPARTS 

This Agreement may be executed in duplicate counterparts. The Agreement shall 
be deemed executed when it has been signed by both parties. 

Page 5 of74 

P103 



15. CHOICE OF LAW/VENUE 

This Agreement shall be enforced and/or interpreted pursuant to the laws of the 
State of California. Any action involving enforcement, interpretation, or breach of this 
Agreement shall be venued in the Superior Court for the County of Sacramento, State of 
California. 

16. ASSIGNMENT 

Neither party shall voluntarily or by operation of law assign or otherwise transfer 
this Agreement without the other party's written consent. 

17. SEVERABILITY 

If any provision of this Agreement shall be held to be invalid or unenforceable, the 
remaining provisions shall continue to be valid and enforceable. 

The remainder of this page is intentionally blank 

Page 6 of74 

P104 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be duly 
executed as of the day and year first written above. 

MCCLELLAN BUSINESS PARK, LLC, 

By: 
Frank Myers, COO 
McClellan Business Park, LLC 

Approved as to f01m: 

Jay Heckenlively 
General Counsel 

SACRAMENTO METROPOLITAN 
FIRE DISTRICT, 

By: 
Adam A. House, Fire Chief 
Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District 

Approved as to form: 

John Lavra 
District General Counsel 

Page 7 of74 

P105 



EXHIBIT A 
2024 AIRSTA Agreement 

Docuslgn Envelopo ID: C39FFE65-AD03-<IEC7--0FB2-59BA88729570 
::iULll;I IA I IUN/l;UN I KAI; 1/UKUl:K tUK i.;ur,1MERCIAL PRODUCTS AND COMMERCIAL SERVICES 

NOTE: OFFEROR TO COMPLETE BLOCKS 12, 17, 23, 24, AND 30. 1. REQUISITION NUMBER PAOE1 OF 9 

2 0290PR2'0000102 

2. CONTRACT NUMBER 3. AWARMFFECT1VE 14. ORDER NUMBER 5. SOLICITATION ~'UMBER 8. SOLICITATION ISSUE 
DATE DATE 

1ozoe•2•coL9•ooo• 
09/16/l024 

► 
e.flAME b, TELEPtiONE NUMBER (/lo coDocf 8. OFFER DUE DATE/ 

7. FOR SOLICITATION ~f/J} LOCAL TIME 
INFORMATION CALL: LAHSO..'i, Ha. SUSAN B 

9, ISSUED BY CODE I nuu 10. THIS ACQUISITION 1s (8juNRESTRJCTEO OR OsET ASIDE: 0 %FOR: 

702084: - LOG-94 Regional Contracting west 0 SMALL BUSINESS □WOl,IEN·OWIIED SMALL NORTH AMERICAN 
usca - L00-94: Regional Contracting West, Coast □ HUOZOHE SMALL BUSINESS (WOSB) INDUSTRY CLASSIFICATION 
Guard Island, Bldg S4.-C BUSIHESS ECO~O~UCAll Y STAtlDARO (tlAJCS): 
Alameda, CA, 94501, us SERVICE-DISABLED O DISADVANTAGED 

0 VETERAll-0'1/NEO WOMEN-OWNED SMALL SIZE STAflDARD: 
~S~:o~SINESS n =~INESS (EDWOSB) 

11, DELIVERY FOR FREE ON 12. DISCOUflT TERMS 13• . THIS CONTRACTIS A 13b, RATINO 
BOARD (FOO) DESTINATION !let Days - 30 □ RA TEO ORDER UNDER 14, METHOD OF SOLICITATION REQUEST 
UNLESS BLOCK IS MARKED THE DEFENSE PRIORITIES 

~
EQUEST □INVITATI0/1 [JOR 

[8) SEE SCHEDULE 
AND ALLOCATIONS OR QUOTE FOR DID ROPQSAL 
SYSTEM• DPAS (15 CFR 700) '°"01 OFOI IRFPI 

15, DELIVER TO CODE I 18. ADMINISTERED BY CODE ~Cl')U 

See Schedule 70ZOB4 - LOG- 94 Regional Contracting Neat 
OSCO - LOG-9• Regional Contracting Heat 
1'laraeda, CA, 94501, us 

17LCONTRACTORI CODE la:nttJQ4:mn, I ~~~TV , , .. ,, 18'. PAYMENT Will OE MADE BY CODE j1stuc 
OFFEROR 

KCCLBLLAII BOSllll!SS PARK LLC USCG PIHANCB CENTER 

DBA: HP llOLDil\'GS. LLC FIIIAIICB CDlTER USt'G, 1430A KRISTINA liAY 

3140 PEACBKBBPER 1/AY CHBSAPBAKE, VA, 23326- 1000, US 

llCCLBLLAII, CA, 95652, us 

TELEPHONE NUMBER 

□ 17b. CHECK IF REMITTANCE IS DIFFERENT AIID PUT SUCH ADDRESS IN 18b. SUBMIT INVOICES TO ADDRESS SHOv.tl IN BLOCK 18a UlllESS BLOCK 
OFFER BELOV/IS CHECKED 0 SEE ADDENDUM 

w. 20. 21. 22. 23, 2◄• 
ITEM NUMBER SCHEDULE OF SUPPLIES/SERVICES QUANTITY UNIT UNIT PRICE MIOUflT 

See Schedule 

(Use Reverse 1ncVorAltach Additional Shee/s as Nsctssary) 

25. ACCOUNTING AND APPROPRIATION DATA ~8. TOTAL AWARD AII.OUIIT (ForGovemmonl U1• Only} 

See Schedule $lt,309,178.12 

0211. !x~~~~T2~~~~~~E~SAB~ee;;,-:etlCE (FEDERAL ACQUISITION REGVlATIOU) FAR ~2.212-1, 62.212-4. FAR ~2.212-3 □ ARE □ARE UOT ATTACHED 

(8121b. CONTRACT/PURCHASE ORDER IHCORPORATES DY REFEAEUC€ FAR 52.212·' · FAR $2.212•5 IS A TI ACHED. AOOENOA □ARE (81 ARE NOT ATTACHED 

028. COi/TRACTOR IS REQUIRED TO SIGN TlllS DOCU~~ENT AND RETURtl [8)29. AWARD OF CONTRACT: REFEREIICE OFFER 
COPIES TO ISSUING OFFICE. CONTRACTOR AGREES TO FURNISH -------
AND DELIVER All ITEMS SET FORTH OR QTHERl\1SE IDENTIFIED ABOVE AND 
ON AIM ADDITIONAL SHEETS SUOJECT TO THE TERMS ANO CONDITIONS 
SPECIFIED 

DATED, . YOUR OFFER ON SOLICITATIO!l 
(BLOCK &j, iNCLVblNG ARY ADDITKl!lS OR CHAIIGES \\tt:CH ARE 
SET FORTH HEREIN, IS ACCEPTED AS TO ITEMS: See Schedule 

3tAWmw~m~~w1r~10019~vi00, , /CERJ 
L/\ WSON.SUS/\N.B.1077969612 

Frank Myers chief Operating Dffi 

AUTHORIZED FOR LOCAL REPR'ODUCTION 
PREVIOUS EDITION IS NOT USABLE 

SUS/\11 B 

,, 

STANDARD FOR.M 1-449 (REV. 11/2021) 
Prc,cnbcd by GSA· FAR MO CFR) 63.212 

Page 8 of74 

P106 



Docuslgn Envelope ID: C39FFE65-ADD3-4EC7-9FB2-59BA88729570 

19. 20. 21. 22. 23. 24. 
ITEM NUMBER SCHEDULE OF SUPPLIES/SERVICES QUANTITY UNIT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT 

See Schedule 

32•. QUANTITY IN COLUMN 21 HAS BEE/I 

□ RECEIVED ONSPECTEO □ ACCEPTED, ANO CONFORMS TO THE CONTRACT, EXCEPT AS NOTED: ___________ _ _ 

32b. SIGNATURE OF AUTHORIZED GOVERNMENT 32c. DATE 32d PRINTED IIAIIE ANO TITLE OF AUTHORIZED GOVERNMENT 
REPRESENTATIVE REPRESENTATIVE 

32•. tWLIIG ADDRESS OF AUTHORIZED GOVERNMENT REPRESENTATIVE 32r. TELPHOIIE NUMBER OF AUTHORZED GOVERNMENT REPRESENTATIVE 

32g. EMAIL OF AUTHORIZED GOVERNMENT REPRESENTATIVE 

33. SHIP NUMBER ll4. VOUCHER NUMBER 35. AMOUNT VERIFIED 36. PAYMENT 137. CHECK NUMBER 
CORRECTFOR 

L J PAATIAL □FINAL I OccMPLETE □PARTIAL □FINAL 

STOCK RECORD (SIR) ~ . PAJDBY 

38. SIR ACCOUNT NUMBER 139, SIR VOUCHER NUMBER 

◄2■. RECEIVED BY (Pritt) 

◄I■. I CERTIFY THIS ACCOUNT IS CORRECT AJID PROPER FOR PAYMEIIT 
◄lb. SIGIIAl\JRE ANDTrTLE OF CERTIFYl~G OFFICER 41<. DATE 42b. RECEIVED AT (loc■IJon) 

42c. DATE RECEIVED (MfWINITTTTJ r 2d. TOTAL CONTAl'lERS 

STANDARD FORM 1449 (REV. 11/2021) BACK 

Page 9 of74 

P107 



OocusllJl Envel01'• 10: C39FFE65·A003-◄EC7-9F82·59BA88729570 

TABLE OF CONTENTS: 

70Z08424CDL940004 
Page3ol 9 

~ctlon ll: Conllnuntlon ol" S.1!'1449 .......................................................................................................................................................... a 
Sttlion Ill: Contrntl Clawu ................................................................................................................................................................... 9 
Stclion IV: Any ,Jocumcnb, exhibits, uni.I other uUuchmcnb ................................................................................ : .............................. 9 

Page 10 of74 

P108 



DoetJslgo Envelope ID: C39FFE65-ADD3-4EC7-9FB2-59BA88729570 

Section II: Continuation of SF1449 

Item Number Base Item Supplies/Services 
Number 

0001 Alrtield Operations and Management 
Services(PVVS 1,2,4, 4.3, 5.0 • 5.5) 

BASE PERIOD (16 Septerrber 2024 -
15 Seotember 2025) 

Contract Type:Firm Fixed Price 
I 
I 

Description: 

Purchase Requisitions 20290PR240000102 

IDCType· Not Applicable 
Period Of Performance Start Period Of Performance End Date 
Date 
9116/24 9/15/25 

Item Number Base Item Supplies/Services 
Number 

0002 Aircraft Rescue and Fire Fighting 
(ARFF) and Environmental Services 
(PWS 3.1, 4.0.- 4.2, 5.10 all (C-27J 

and/orC-130) and 5.11. BASE 
PERIOD (16 September2024-15 

September 2025) 
Contract Type:Firm Fixed Price 

I 
I 

Description: 

Purchase Requisitions 20290PR240000102 

Quantity 

315372 

UnitPtice I 
Extended Ptice 

ACRN 
Funded Amount 

70Z08424CDL940004 
Page4 of 9 

Unit 

Dollars, U.S. 

$1.00 
$315,372.00 

$315,372.00 

Period Of Perfotmance Address 

20290 AIRSTA SACRAMENTO Default shipping 
AIR STATION SACRAMENTO USCG 
6037 PRICE AVE 
MCCLELLAN 
CA US 95652-1260 

Quantity Unit 

4425017.04 Dollars, U.S. 

Unit Price I $1 .00 
Extended Price I $4,425,017.04 

ACRN 
Funded Amount $4,425,017.04 

Page 11 of74 

P109 



Docuslgn Envelope ID: C39FFE65-ADD3-4EC7-9F82-59BA88729570 

IDCTvoe· Not Applicable 
Period Of Performance Start Period Of Performance End Date 
Date 
9116/24 9/15/25 

ftemNumbe, Base Item Supplies/Services 
Number 

0003 Truck Repair For Above Routine 
Maintenance ( PWS 3.1) 

Base Period 
Contract Tvoe:Firm Fixed Price 

I 
I 

Description: 

Purchase Reauisitions 

JDC Type: Not Applicable 
Period Of Performance Start Period Of Performance End Date 
Date 

Item Numbet Base Item Supplies/Services 
Number 

0004 Airfield Operations and Management 
Services(PWS 1,2,4, 4.3, 5.0 - 5.5) 
OPTION PERIOD 1 (16 September 

2025 - 15 Seotember 2026) 
Contract Type:Firm Fixed Price 

I 
I 

Description: 

Purchase Reauisitions 
I 
I 
I 

70Z08424CDL940004 
Page 5of 9 

Period Of Performance Address 

20290 AIRSTA SACRAMENTO Defautt shipping 
AIR STATION SACRAMENTO USCG 
6037 PRICE AVE 
MCCLELLAN 
CA US 95652-1260 

Quantity Unit 

1 Dollars, U.S. 

Unit Price I $0.00 
Extended P1fce I $0.00 

ACRN 
Funded Amount $0.00 

Period Of Performance Address 

USCG Headquarters 
2703 Martin Luther King Junior Ave SE 
Washington 
DCUS20032 

Quantity Unit 

326412 Dollars, U.S. 

Unit Ptlce $1.00 
Extended Price I $326 412.00 

ACRN 
Funded Amount $0.00 

Page 12 of74 

P110 



Doc\Jslgn Envelope ID: C39FFE65-AOD:HEC7-9FB2-59BA88729570 

Option: 
Option Time Date: 
Option Time Duration: 
Option Time Units: 
IDCTvoe· 
Period Of Performance Start 
Dale 
9116/24 

Item Number Base Item 
Number 

0005 

ContractType:Firm Fixed Price 

Description: 

Purchase Requisitions 

Option: 
Option Time Dale: 
Option Time Duration: 
Option Time Units: 
IDCType: 
Period Of Performance Start 
Dale 
9116/24 

Item Number Base Item 
Number 

9/16/25 
364 
Days 
Not Applicable 

Period Of Perforrrance End Dale 

9/15/25 

Supplies/Services 

Aircraft Rescue and Fire Fighting 
(ARFF) and Environmental Services 
(P'/'18 3.1 , 4.0.-4.2, 5.10 all (C-27J 
and/orC-130) and 5.11. OPTION 

PERIOD 1 (16 September 2025. 15 

I 
I 

September 2026) 

9/16/25 
364 
Days 
Nol Applicable 

Period Of Perforrrance End Dale 

9/15/25 

Supplies/Services 

70Z08424CDL940004 
Page6 of 9 

Period Of Perforrrance Address 

20290 AIRSTA SACRAMENTO DefauM shipping 
AIR STATION SACRAMENTO USCG 
6037 PRICE AVE 
MCCLELLAN 
CA US 95652-1260 

Quantity Unit 

4374356.04 Dollars, U.S. 

Unit Price $1.00 
Extended Price $4,374,358.04 

ACRN 
Funded Amount $0.00 

Period Of Perforrrance Address 

20290 AIRSTA SACRAMENTO Default shipping 
AIR STATION SACRAMENTO USCG 
6037 PRICE AVE 
MCCLELLAN 
CA US 95652-1260 

Quantity Unit 

Page 13 of74 

P 111 



Docuslgn Envelcpe ID: C39FFE65•ADD3-4EC7•9FB2-59BA88729570 

0006 

I 
Contract Type:Flrm Fixed Price 

Description: 

Purchase Requisitions 

Option: 
Option Time Date: 
Option Time Duration: 
Option Time Units: 
IDCTvoe· 
Period Of Performance Start 
Date 

Item Number Base Item 
Number 

0007 

Contract TvPe:Firm Fixed Price 

Description: 

Purchase Reauisttions 

Option: 
Option Time Date: 
Option Time Duration: 
Option Time Units: 
IDCT e: 
Period Of Performance Start 
Date 

Truck Repair For Above Routine 
Maintenance ( PWS 3.1) 

I 
I 

Option Period One 

9/16/25 
364 
Days 
Nol Applicable 

Period Of Performance End Date 

Supplies/Services 

Airfield Operations and Management 
Servlces(PWS 1,2,4, 4.3, 5.0 • 5.5) 
OPTION PERIOD 2 (16 September 

2026 • 15 Seotember 20271 

I 
I 

9/16/26 
364 
Days 
Not Applicable 

Period Of Performance End Date 

I 
1 

Unit Price I 
Extended Price I 

ACRN 
Funded Amount 

70Z06424CDL940004 
Page7 of 9 

Dollars, U.S. 

$0.00 
$0.00 

SO.DO 

Period Of Performance Address 

USCG Headquarters 
2703 Martin Luther King Junior Ave SE 
Washington 
DCUS20032 

Quantity Unit 

337636 Dollars, U.S. 

Unit Price I $1.00 
Extended Price I $337 636.00 

ACRN 
Funded Amount $0.00 

Period Of Performance Address 

Page 14 of74 

P112 



Docuslon Envelope ID: C39FFE65-ADD~4EC7-9FB2-59BA83729570 

9/16124 

Item Number Base Item 
Number 

0006 

Contract Tvce:Firm Fixed Prioe 

Description: 

Purchase Requis~ions 

Option: 
Option Time Date: 
Option Time Duration: 
Option Time Units: 
IDCTvoe· 
Period Of Performance Start 
Date 
Q'16/24 

Item Number Base Item 
Number 

0009 

Contract Tvce:Firm Fixed Price 

Description: 

9/15/25 

Supplies/Services 

Aircraft Rescue and Fire Fighting 
(ARFF) and Environmental Services 
(PVVS 3.1, 4.0.- 4.2, 5.10 all (C-27J 
and/or C-130) and 5.11. OPTION 

PERIOD 2 (16 September 2026 - 15 

I 
I 

September 2027) 

9/16/26 
364 
Days 
Not Applicable 

Period Of Performance End Date 

9/15/25 

Supplies/Services 

Truck Repair For Above Routine 
Maintenance ( PWS 3.1) 

Ootlon Period Tv.o 

I 
I 

70Z08424CDL940004 
Page6 of 9 

20290 AIRST A SACRAMENTO Default shipping 
AIR STATION SACRAMENTO USCG 
6037 PRICE AVE 
MCCLELLAN 
CA US 95652-1260 

Quantity Unit 

4530765.04 Dollars, U.S. 

Unit Price I $1.00 
Extended Price I $4 530,765.04 

ACRN 
Funded Amount $0.00 

Period Of Performance Address 

20290 AIRSTA SACRAMENTO Default shipping 
AIR STATION SACRAMENTO USCG 
6037 PRICE AVE 
MCCLELLAN 
CA US 95652-1260 

Quantity Unit 

1 Dollars, U.S. 

Unit Price I $0,00 
Extended Price SO.OD 

Page 15 of74 

P113 



Docuslgn Envelope ID: C39FFE65-ADD3-4EC7-9FB2-59BA88729570 

Purchase Requisitions 

Option: 
Option Time Date: 
Option Time Duration: 
Option Time Units: 
IDCTvoe· 
Period Of Performanoe start 
Date 

9/16126 
364 
Days 
Not Applicable 

Period Of Performance End Date 

ACRN 
Funded Amount 

Period Of Performance Address 

USCG Headquarters 

7DZ08424CDL940004 
Page9 of 9 

$0.00 

2703 Martin Luther King Junior Ave SE 
Washington 
DCUS20032 

Total Award Amount: $14,309,778.12 
The Total Obligated Amount: $4,740,389.04 

The Obliaated Amount Is broken down bv line of accountina as follows· 
Contract ACRN: LOA: 

202410610000A002424DDIG020G010GOOOl20290LOGSXIUCGIXLMY241254011161000000171111 LO 
GS)Q3BCGDBILLSIOOOOOOIOOOOOOIOOOOOOIOOOOOOI0IOI0I0 

Amount:$4,740,389.04 
Clln 0001 :$315,372.00 
Clln 0002:$4,425,017.04 

Section Ill: Contract Clauses 

Clauses Incorporated by reference 

None 

Clauses Incorporated by full text 

None 

Section IV: Any Documents, Exhibits, and other Attachments 

None 

Page 16 of74 

P114 



CONTINUATION OF SFJ442 

CONTRACT CLAUSES. TERMS, AND CONDITIONS 

FAR 52.212-4 - Contract Tenns and Conditions -- Commercial Products and Commercial 
Services (Nov 2023) ADDENDUM 

m Contract Management 

Notwithstanding the Contractor's responsibility for total management during the perfom1ance of the 
contract, the administration of the contract will require maximum coordination between the 
Govenunent and the Contractor. The individuals listed below will be the Govenunent points of 
contact during the perfonnance period. 

Cont met Administmtlon: TI1e USCG Operational Logistics Conunand (LOG-9), Conunercial 
Support Services Branch will perfonn all contract administration. Communications pertaining to 
contractual administrative matters shall be addressed to the Contracting Officer (KO) or the Contract 
Specialist (KS). Changes In, or deviations from, the PWS or terms and conditions of the contract 
shall not be affected without wlitten modification to the contract as executed by a L OG-9 KO. 

The Contracting Officer's Representative (COR) is a Government employee designated in writing 
by the KO to act as a technical advisor for the KO for services/items within the scope of the contract. 
TI1e COR perfonns functions such as review and/or inspection and acceptance of supplies and 
services and of a teclmical nature. A designation letter will set forth the name of the COR/CORs and 
the authorities and limitations of the COR(s) under the contract. This person does not have o 
,xnrront t11ot-nrovldes the out11odtv to contmchinllx con1n1it t11e Gove1vwent or to mo,Hfv env 
tenns nnd condjtjons ofn contract 

(2} Invoice Procedm·es 

You will submit proper invoices associated with this award through the Invoice Processing Platfonn 
(IPP) at https://www.ipp.gov/. IPP is a secure web-based electronic invoicing system provided by the 
U.S. Department of the Treasury's Bureau of the Fiscal Service in partnership with the Federal 
Reserve Bank of St. Louis (FRSTL). IPP is available at no cost to any conunercial vendor or 
independent contractor doing business with a participating government agency. 

Actions to take: 
lfyou are already enrolled in IPP: 
If your company is already registered to use !PP, you will not be required to re-register and you do 
not need to contact IPP. 
lfyou are NOT already enrolled in IPP: 
TI1e point of contact you provided in your SAM.gov registration will receive two emails from 
ipp.noreply@mail.eroc.twai.gov. Please note that emails from this email address may filter into your 
spam or junk folder: 

1. TI1e first email will have the IPP Logon ID and a link to the IPP application. 

Page 1 of27 

Page 17 of74 

P115 



2. A second email, which will be sent within 24 hours of the first email, contains a temporary 
password. 

Once your contact receives these emails, please ensure they log into !PP and complete the registration 
process. 

Once registered to use !PP, your company may submit invoices electronically, receive e-mail 
notifications when requests are paid, view payment history, and access remittance downloads. 111e e
mail notification of payment is sent when a payment is distributed to your bank account and may 
include the following payment infonnation: Date of payment, dollar amount, invoice number, paying 
agency, payee name, and ACH trace number. 

Vendor training materials, including a first time login tutorial, are available on the 
https://www.ipp.gov/ website. Once you have logged in to the IPP application, you will have access 
to user guides that provide step-by-step instrnctions for all !PP capabilities, ranging from creating and 
submitting an invoice to setting up email notifications. Live webinars are held monthly and provide a 
great opportunity to leam the basic of the system and to call in and ask the !PP team questions about 
the IPP application. 

IPP Customer Support is available to assist users of the system and can answer your questions related 
to accessing !PP or completing the registration process. 

• Toll-free number: 866-973-3131 
• Email address: IPPCustomerSupport@fiscal.treasury.gov 
• Hours of operation: Monday through Friday (excluding bank holidays) from 8:00 am - 6:00 

pm ET 

A copy of the Invoice and Supporting documentation shall also be e-mailed to the assigned KS and 
COR prior to or immediately after submitting your invoice to !PP as described above. Failure to do 
this may result in the delay of payment. POCs will be given at time of award. 

(3) Schedule ofSupplles/Senices 

CLIN ~ ~ 11.Dil ~ Ialal i!.mmml 

BA~8 EEBJQJ2 (16 ~PlaD~[ 2H~ - J :i Sculcml!cc 20,l~ 

I Alrficld Opmtlons and Manogtmtnl Strvlccs(PWS 1,2,4, 43, S.O - S.l) 12 Mo $26,281.00 $315,312.00 

2 AlrcnJI Rc5'Ue and Fire Fighting (ARFF) and Environma,W Services 12 Mo $368,751.◄2 $4,◄25,017.04 (PWS l.1, 4.0.-4.2, 5.10 •II (C27J1nd/or C IJ0) and 5.11. 

Tol•I ror CLINS 00001-00002 $4,7◄0,389.04 

3 'lhlck Repair For Above Routine Maintenance (PWS 3.1) 

Page2of27 

Page 18 of74 

P116 



CLIN 00003 Is an estimate bued on the a,~raee or the tuk orders ror the pu t n,·eyurs. The labor rate will be used 10 price woric under 00003 
PWS Pangnph J.I for specific mllntenance rtp,trwork that connot be ld<nlified in sufficlml dctlll 10 be included in Conlrad line itcmsOOOOI 
through 00002. The laboc unit price shall include all dae<l and lndatcl costs ts<0<llledwith pcrfonnlng a llSk hour ofwol1< including, but not limited 
lo, dacct wages. health and welfare benefits. FICA, FY A, WC, all fedenl .. d state benefits. excise taxes, overhe,d, O & A and profi~ This work Is 
subject to wagentes under the Service Contnct Labor Standird~ 

SUB .!ll!. 
~ llnil ~ ~ 

Cl.IN lllx 

OOOOlA Auto Mechanic (Oenenl Clauses. Modifiations and (PWS 3.1) 40 Hr Includod Included 

The costs ofmllerials. puts, and S1Jppllcswill be rdmbursod 11 cost plus Fixed Burdon Rates (FBR) established below. These costs shall be used for 
bidding f'J'POSCS only, the adutl unounlswill fluduale. The unburdened a,lls are estimates only. The price for these items shall be calculated using 
the estimated amounts multiplied times (and added lo) olfe(s FBR. FBRs shtll be enlerod as a decimal number, not as a p«centtge (B.O. A FBR of 5% 
Is mlu-ed as 0.05). The FBR is defined as all additional colls forh,ncDlng and overhead lo include all burden, profi~ ovahcad and O&A (including 
burden assoclalod with Contrado(s use of govcmmcnl fumhhed cqulprnenl and property) . 

SUB .ll:i 
~ !!n!l ~ Annual Prjcc 

CLJN lllx 

000038 Cost Matcritls. Supplies. Parts I LOT lncludod Includ<d 

OOOOJC Contractor's FBR ( see c.&· in note above) lncludod Includ<d 

Toi.ti 000030 + OOOOJC lncludod lnclud<d 

Subcontracting costs will be reanburscd al coll plus Fixed Burdon Rates (FBR) elllbllshod below. These costs shall be used forbidding purposes 
only, the actual unounlswlll llucwllc. The unburdened costs uc estimates only. The price for these iluns siall be calculated using the estimated 
unow,tsmultiplied limes (and added to) ofTc(s FBR. FBRs shall be entered ua de canal number, not as a p«eenttgc (B.O. A FBR of 5% is entered as 
O.OS). The FBR ls defined as all additional costs for handling and overhead lo Include all burden, profit, overhead and O&A ( including burden 
assoclalcdwith Contrtcto(s u,c of govunment furnished equipment end property). 

SUB Ell. 
~ l!nU .llniLflitt ~ 

CLIN lllx 

0000)0 Coll Sub-ConlRding I LOT Includod lncludcd 

0000)8 Contractor's FBR( see cg. in note above) I HA Includod Included 

Tott! OOOOlD + 000036 Includ<d 

Toltl ALL CLiN 00003 Includ<d 

Total BASE PERJOD Amounl (AU CLINS) S4,7◄0,3S9.0◄ 

CL!N l2wrlQlf2n Sllx l1llll ~ IQLIIAmmml 

QPIIOtf 1'.ERIOD I m Stgtemb~r 2025 - 15 Stgttmb..- 202§1 

Page3 of27 

Page 19 of74 

P117 



10001 Aimcld Op<r&tions and Management Suvic<l(PWS 1,1,4, 4.3, S.0. S.S) 11 Mo $27,201.00 $326,412.00 

10002 Alrtnft Rc!alc and Fire Fighting (ARFF) and FJ\vironmmW Services 11 Mo $364,529.67 $4,374,356.04 (PWS l .l, 4.0.-4.2, S,10 all (C-l7J and/or C-130 ) and 5.11. 

Total ror CLINS 10001-10001 $4,700,768.04 

10003 nuck Repair Foe Above Routine Maintenance (PWS 3.1) 

CLIN 10003 Is an estlmatc bastd on the l\'t:rage or the ful< orders for the put n,·c )'csrs. The labor rile will be used to price work undu 10003 
PIVS PUIQ'Ph 3.1 for ,pecilic maintenance rtplirwock that cannot be idcntificd in rulliciml d<lail 10 be Included in Conltact line items 10001 
through 10002. The laboc unit p,Jce shall include all dirc<t and Indirect costs associalcd with pcrfonni,g a ta,k hour of work including, but not llm~cd 
lo, direct wag,~ heallh and welfare benefit~ FICA, FY A, WC, all federal ond stale bmefils, excise 1.a.,cs, overhead, O &. A and p,ofi~ This WOJk is 
subjcd to Wl&C rue.sundcrlhesm•icc Contrtcl Labor Sta,dwd!... 

SUB Ill! 
~ !.!nil ~ .liDn!!..!!.llf 

Cl.IN Q\:t 

10003A Auto Mechanic (Gtncral Clauses, Modilialions and (PWS 3.1) 40 Hr Included Included 

The coslS ofmllerials, parts, tnd suppllcswlll be rcimburted al cost plus Fixed Burdcn Rates (FBR) established below. These costs shall be used for 
bidding purposc.s only, the actual amounts will fludualC, Theunburdcncd oosts ue <5t!mates only. The price for these items shill be calculalcd using 
the cstimaled amounts multiplied limes (and add<d lo) offe(s FBR. FBRs shall be entered as a dedmalnumber, not as apcrccn~• (E.O. A FBR or 5% 
is mtcrcd as 0.OS). The FDR Is d<fined as all additional co~ for handling and o¥Crhcad to include all burden, p,ofi~ overhead and O&A ( including 
burden associlled with C011~ad o(s use or govcmmml furnished equipment andpraperty). 

SUB El1 
l2lliiiru2n l1nl1 l!.Dl!..fiw. ~ 

CUN 91:t 

l0003B Cost Material~ Supplle~ PUIS I LOT Included Included 

l0003C Contractor's FDR ( sco cg. in note above) I BA Included Included 

Total 10003B + 10003C Included Included 

Subeonttacting costs will be reimbursed •l cost plus Fixed Durden Rates (FDR) established below. These costs shill be used Cocbiddingpurposcs 
only, the actual tmounts will fluctullc. The unburdened rosts 11c estimllcs only. The price for thf.St items Slall be ta1Ql1atcdusing the cstimllcd 
amounlSmulliplled times (and added lo) olfc(s FBR. FDRs !111!1 be entered u a decimal number, not u a pa-ctn~• (B.O. AFBR of 5% is cnla cd as 
O.OS). The FBR Is defined lS all additi011al costs forh:ridling and overhead to include all burdm, profi~ overhead and O&A ( Including burden 
associated with Conlrado(s use of government ftrmishcd equipment 111d p,operty). 

SUB Ill! 
~ 11.nlJ .1/nil.lm'c ~ 

CLlN .Qlx 

100030 Cost Sub-Conlr>ding I LOT Included Included 

IOOOJE C0111ractor's FDR ( see cg. in note above) I BA Included Included 

Total 100030+ IOOOJB Included 

Page4 of27 

Page 20 of74 

P118 



Total ALL CLIN 10003 Included 

Total OPTION PERIOD ONE Amount (All CLINS) 14,700,768.04 

CUN ~ QI)'. l1nll llllll.fii.l'l n111Ammm1 

QPTIO!:! 1'.l!RIO!;! a (16 ~Dtmiber 2~6 - IS S~Dttmbtr 201Z) 

20001 Aitfield Operotioos and Management S«vim(PWS 1,1.4, 4.3, .S.O - .S.S) 12 Mo $18,153.00 $337,836.00 

10002 Alratft RC5ale and Fire Fighting (ARFF) and Environmmt•I Services 
12 Mo $317,56.SAZ s,,SJ0,1ss.04 (PWS 3.1,4.0.-4.2 . .S.10 all (C.27J .nd/or C-130) and S.11, 

Total for CLINS 10001-20001 U,868,621.o, 

10003 nuck Repair For Above Routine M1inl<11ancc (PWS 3.1) 

CLlN:20003 Is a.n est imate based on the anrage or the luk orden ror lhe put nve years, The labor rile will be used to price work under 20003 
PIVS Pang,,ph 3.1 for !j)«ilic malnten>nce rcpaltwo,k that cannot be identified in sufficiml ddall to be Included in Contract line items 20001 
through 20002, The labor unit price shall include all direct ,nd indited costs associated with prrfonmitg a l&!k hour ofworl: including. bul not limited 
lo, direct wag,, health and wclf&re benefit, FICA. FYA, WC, all fedenl and stole bmcfits, excise laxes, overhud, 0 & A and profi~ This work is 
subject lo WlljlC roles under the Service Conlntl Laboe Slandacd~ 

sun lat 
llimil!!!2!l J.!nll ~ ~ 

CUN QI)'. 

20003A Auto Mechanic (Ocnenl Clau,es. Modilicallons and (PWS 3.1) 40 Hr Included Included 

The costs of materials, pllts, and ,upplleswlll be reimbursed ti cost plus Fixed Burden Rates (FBR) esttbll!hed below. Thm costs shall be used for 
bidding purpo5<$ only, the 1t1u1I &mounts will fluduale. The unburckned colls are e.titnales only. The price for these items !hall be calculated using 
the e,tltnated &mounts mulliplied times (and added to) oll'«'s FBR. FBRs shall be entered as I decimal number. not u a percentage (B.O. A FBR of .1% 
is mlrred as 0.0.S). The FDR Is defined as all additional colts for handling and overhead lo Include all burden, profi~ ovahrad ,nd O.tA ( including 
burden associlled with Contrado(s use of government lltmishcd equipment and property). 

sun Eli 
llimii!li2n llnll ~ ~ 

CLIN QI)'. 

1000)8 Cost Material~ SUpplle~ Puts l LOT Included Included 

20003C Controctor's FBR (see•&· in note above) I HA Included Included 

Total 200038 + lOOOlC Included Included 

SUbcontrotling costs will be reimbursed at coll plus Fi<edBurden Rates (FBR) <Slabli!hed below. These costs !hall be used for bidding purposes 
only, the actual 11T1ounlswill flucbJatc. The unburdened costs uc estimates only. The price forlhc.se itcmsdlall be calrulatcdurlng the ulimaltd 
amounts multiplied times (and 2ddcd lo) olfc(s FBR. FBRs ,lull be entered as a decimal number, not as apercrnlage (B.O. A FBR of .I% Is cnlaed u 
0.0.S). The FBR ls defined as all addiUontl costs for h111dling and overhnd lo include all burden, profi~ ov«ltead and O&A ( including burden 
assocllttdwilh Contrtdor's use of government turnishtd e:quipmr:nt &nd property). 

sun ~ Ji:! !.!nil JlJiiillis£ ~ 

Page 5 of27 

Page 21 of74 

P119 



CI.IN .Qlx 

200030 Co,t SUb-Contrading I LOT Included Included 

20003E Conlnctor's FDR ( see C8, In note above) I BA Included Included 

Toi.ti 200030 + 2000lll Included 

Total ALLCLIN2000l Included 

Total OPTION PERIOD TWO Amount (All CLINS) $4,168,621.04 

TOTAL CONTRACT AMOUNT: S14,309,778.12 

(4) FAR Clnuse 52.217-9 Option to Extend the Term of the Contract (Mar 2000) 

(a) TI1e Government may extend the tenn of this contract by written notice to the Contractor within 
30 calendar days of the expiration of the contract; provided that the Government gives the Contractor 
a preliminary written notice of its intent to extend at least 60 days before the contract expires. TI1e 
preliminary notice does not commit the Government to an extension. 

(b) If the Government exercises th.is option, the extended contract shall be considered to include this 
option clause. 

(c) TI1e total duration of this contract, including the exercise of any options under th.is clause, shall 
not exceed 1 years. 

(5) FAR Clause 52.217-8 Option to Extend Services (Nov 1999) 

TI1e Govenunent may require continued perfonnance of any services within the limits and at the rates 
specified in the contract. 111ese rates may be adjusted only as a result of revisions to prevailing labor 
rates provided by the Secretary of Lnbor. TI1e option provision may be exercised more than once, but 
the total extension of perforn1ance hereunder shall not exceed 6 months. 111e Contracting Officer may 
exercise the option by written notice to the Contractor within 30 calendar days prior to expiration of 
contract. 

(6) FAR Clause 52.252-2 Clauses Incorpomtcd by Reference <Feb 1998) 

111is contract incorporates one or more clauses by reference, with the same force and effect as if they 
were given in full text. Upon request, the Contracting Officer will make their full text available. Also, 
the full text of a clause may be accessed electronically at this/these address(es): 

• Federal Acquisition Regulation (FAR): https://www.acguisition.gov/browse/index/far 
• Homeland Secmity Acquisition Regulation (HSAR): https://www.acguisition.gov/hsar 

Page6of27 

Page 22 of74 

P120 



FAR 52.202-1 Definitions Nov-2020 

FAR 52.203-3 Gratuities Aor-1984 
Limitation on Payments to Influence 

FAR 52.203-12 Certain Federal Transactions June-2020 
Personal Identity Verification of 

FAR 52.204-9 Contractor Personnel Jan-2011 
System for Award Management 

FAR 52.204-13 Maintenance Oct-2018 
Conunercinl and Govenunent Entity 

FAR 52.204-18 Code Maintenance Aug-2020 
Contract Tenns and Conditions --

FAR 52.212-4 Commercial Items Nov-2023 
Notice to the Govemment of Labor 

FAR 52.222-1 Disoutes Feb-1997 

FAR 52.223-1 Biabased Product Certification Mav-2024 
Affinnative Procurement of Biobased 
Products Under Service And Constmction 

FAR 52.223-2 Contracts. Mav-2024 
Hazardous Material Identification and 
Material Safety Data Alternate I (Jul 

FAR 52.223-3 1995) Feb-2021 
Pollution Prevention and Right-to-Know 

FAR 52.223-5 Infonnation Mav-2024 
FAR 52.223-10 Waste Reduction Proeram Mav-2011 

Insurance-Work on a Govenunent 
FAR 52.228-5 Installation Jan-1997 
FAR 52.229-3 Federal State and Local Taxes Feb-2013 
FAR 52.232-18 Availability of Funds Apr-1984 

Unenforceability ofUnauU1orized 
FAR 52.232-39 Obligations Jun-2013 

Providing Accelerated Payment to Small 
FAR 52.232-40 Business Subcontractors Mar-2023 

Protection of Govemment Buildings, 
FAR 52.237-2 Equipment and Vegetation Apr-1984 
FAR 52.237-3 Continuity of Services Jan-1991 
FAR 52.242-13 Bankmotcv Jul-1995 
FAR 52.242-15 Stoo Work Order Aug-1989 

Subcontracts for Commercial Products 
FAR 52.244-6 and Commercial Services Feb-2024 
FAR 52.245-1 Govenunent Property Sep-2021 
FAR 52.245-9 Use and Charges Apr-2012 
FAR 52.248-1 V aJue Engineering Jun-2020 
HSAR 3052.211-70 Index for Soeciflcations Dec-2003 

Page7 of27 

Page 23 of74 

P1 21 



Strikes or Picketing Affecting Timely 
HSAR 3052.222-70 Completion of the Contract Work Dec-2003 

Removal or Disposal of Hazardous 
Substances - Applicable Licenses and 

HSAR 3052.223-70 Permits (30 davs) Jun-2006 
HSAR 3052.223-90 Accident and Fire Reporting (USCG) Dec-2003 

(7) 52.204-23 PROHIBITION ON CONTRACTING FOR HARDWARE, SOFTWARE, 
AND SERVICES DEVELOPED OR PROVIDED BY KASPERSKY LAB COVERED 
ENTITIES 

(DEVIATION 20-05) (JUL 2024) 

(a)Deflnitions. As used in this clause-
Kaspersky Lab covered article means any hardware, software, or service tliat-

(1) Is developed or provided by a Kaspersky Lab covered entity; 
(2) Includes any hardware, software, or service developed or provided in whole or in part 

by a Kaspersky Lab covered entity; or 
(3) Contains components using any hardware or software developed in whole or in part 

by a Kaspersky Lab covered entity. 
Kaspersky Lab covered entity means-

(1) Kaspersky Lab; 
(2) Any successor entity to Kaspersky Lab, including any change in name, e.g., "Kaspersky''; 
(3) Any entity tliat controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with Kaspersky Lab; 

or 
(4) Any entity of which Kaspersky Lab has a majority ownership. 

{J)) Prohibition. Section 1634 of Division A of the National Defense Autliorization Act for 
Fiscal Year 2018 (Pub. L. 115-91) proltlbits Government use of any Kaspersky Lab covered 
article. TI1e Contractor is prohibited from-

(!) Providing any Kaspersky Lab covered article that tl1e Government will use on or after 
October 1, 2018; and 

(2) Using any Kaspersky Lab covered article on or after October 1, 2018, in tl1e development of 
data or deliverables first produced in the perfonnnnce of the contract. 

(c)Reporting requirement. 
(1) In the event tl1e Contractor identifies covered article provided to tl1e Govenunent during 

contract performance, or the Contractor is notified of such by a subcontractor at any tier or by any 
other source, the Contractor shall report, in writing, via email, to tl1c Contracting Officer, Contracting 
Officer's Representative, and the Enterprise Security Operations Center (SOC) at ~ 
Incjdents@hg dhs gov, witl1 required in.formation in the body oftl1e email. In tl1e case of the 
Department of Defense, the Contractor shall report to the website at https://dibnet.dod.mil. For 
indefinite delivery contracts, the Contractor shall report to the Enterprise SOC, Contracting Officer 
for tl1e indefmite delivery contract and the Contracting Officer(s) and Contracting Officer's 

Page8of27 

Page 24 of74 

P122 



Representative(s) for any affected order or, in the case of the Department of Defense, identify 
both the indefinite delivery contract and any affected orders in the report provided at 
https-/tdjbnet clod mil, 

(2) The Contractor shall report l11e following information pursuant to paragraph (cXl) 
of this clause: 

□ Within 3 business days from the date of such identification or 
notification: the contract number, the order number(s), if applicable; 
supplier name; brand; model number (Original Equipment Manufach1rer 
(OEM) number, manufacturer part number, or wholesaler number); item 
description; and any readily available infonnation about mitigation 
actions undertaken or recommended. 

□ Within 10 business days of submitting the report pursuant to paragraph 
(cXl) of this clause: any further available information about mitigation 
actions undertaken or recommended. In addition, the Contractor shall 
describe the efforts it undertook to prevent use or submission of a 
Kaspersky Lab covered article, any reasons that led to the use or 
submission of the Kaspersky Lab covered article, and any additional 
efforts that will be incorporated to prevent fuh1re use or submission of 
Kaspersky Lab covered articles. 

(d)Subco11tracts. The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this 
paragraph (d), in all subcontracts, including subcontracts for the acquisition of commercial 
items. 

(End of clause) 

FAR 52.204-25 PROHIBITION ON CONTRACTING FOR CERTAIN 
TELECOMMUNICATIONS AND VIDEO SURVEILLANCE SERVICES OR EQUIPMENT 
(DEVIATION 20-05) (DEC 2020) 
(a) Definitions. As used in l11is clause-
"Backhaul" means intennediate links between l11e core network, or backbone network, and the small 
subnetworks at the edge of the network (e.g., connecting cell phones/towers to the core telephone 
network). Backhaul can be wireless (e.g., microwave) or wired (e.g., fiber optic, coaxial cable, 
Et11emet). 
"Covered foreign country" means TI1e People's Republic of Chinn. 
"Covered telecommunications equipment or services" means-
(!) Telecommunications equipment produced by Huawei Technologies Company or ZTE 
Corporation (or any subsidiary or affiliate of such entities); 
(2) For the purpose of public safety, security of Government facilities, physical security surveillance 
of critical infrastructure, and oilier national security purposes, video surveillance and 
telecommunications equipment produced by Hytera Communications Corporation, Hangzhou 
Hikvision Digital Teclmology Company, or Dalma Teclmology Company (or any subsidiary or 
affiliate of such entities); 
(3) Teleconununications or video surveillance services provided by such entities or using such 
equipment; or 

Page 9 of27 

Page25 of74 

P123 



( 4) Telecommunications or video surveillance equipment or services produced or provided by an 
entity that the Secretary of Defense, in consultation with the Director of National Intelligence or the 
Director oftl1e Federal Bureau of Investigation, reasonably believes to be an entity owned or 
controlled by, or otherwise connected to, tl1e government of a covered foreign country. 
"Critical technology" means-
( 1) Defense articles or defense services included 011 the United States Munitions List set forth in the 
International Traffic in Arms Regulations under subchapter M of chapter I of title 22, Code of Federal 
Regulations; 
(2) Items included on the Commerce Control List set forth in Supplement No. 1 to part 774 of the 
Export Administration Regulations under subchapter C of chapter Vll of title 15, Code of Federal 
Regulations, and controlled-
(i) Pursuant to multilateral regimes, iucludi.ng for reasons relating to national security, chemical and 
biological weapons proliferation, nuclear nonproliferation, or missile teclmology; or 
(ii) For reasons relating to regional stability or surreptitious listening; 
(3) Specially designed and prepared nuclear equipment, parts and components, materials, software, 
aud teclmology covered by part 810 of title 10, Code of Federal Regulations (relating to assistance to 
foreign atomic energy activities); 
(4) Nuclear facilities, equipment, and material covered by part 110 of title 10, Code of Federal 
Regulations (relating to export and import of nuclear equipment and material); 
(5) Select agents and toxins covered by part 331 of title 7, Code of Federal Regulations, part 121 of 
title 9 of such Code, or part 73 of title 42 of such Code; or 
(6) Emerging and foundational technologies controlled pursuant to section 1758 of the Export Control 
Refonn Act of2018 (50 U.S.C. 4817). 
"lnterco1mection arrangements" means arrangements governing the physical com1ection of two or 
more networks to allow the use of another's network to hand off traffic where it is ultimately 
delivered (e.g., com1ection of a customer of telephone provider A to a customer of telephone 
company B) or sharing data and other infonnation resources. 
"Reasonable inquiry" means an inquiry designed to uncover any information in the entity's 
possession about the identity of the producer or provider of covered telecommunications equipment 
or services used by the entity that excludes the need to include an internal or third-party audit. 
"Roaming" means cellular C011UTiunications services (e.g., voice, video, data) received from a visited 
network when unable to com1ect to the facilities of the home network either because signal coverage 
is too weak or because traffic is too high. 
"Substantial or essential component" means any component necessary for tl1e proper function or 
perfonnance of a piece of equipment, system, or service. 
(b) Prohibition. 
(1) Section 889(a)(l)(A) oftlie Jolm S. McCain National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 
2019 (Pub. L. 115- 232) prohibits the head ofan executive agency on or after August 13, 2019, from 
procuring or obtaining, or extending or renewing a contract to procure or obtain, any equipment, 
system, or service that uses covered telecommunications equipment or services as a substantial or 
essential component of any system, or as critical technology as part of any system. The Contractor is 
prohibited from providing to the Govenunent any equipment, system, or service tl1at uses covered 
telecommunications equipment or services as a substantial or essential component of any system, or 
as critical teclmology as part of any system, unless an exception at paragraph (c) oftl1is clause applies 
or the covered teleconununication equipment or services are covered by a waiver described in FAR 
4.2104. 

Page 10 of27 

Page26 of74 

P124 



(2) Section 889(aXl)(B) of the Jolm S. McCain National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 
2019 (Pub. L. 115- 232) prohibits the head ofan executive agency on or after August 13, 2020, from 
entering into a contract, or extending or renewing a contract, with an entity that uses any equipment, 
system, or service that uses covered telecommunications equipment or services as a substantial or 
essential component of any system, or as critical technology as part of any system, unless an 
exception at paragraph (c) of this clause applies or the covered telecommunication equipment or 
services are covered by a waiver described in FAR 4.2104. TI1is prohibition applies to the use of 
covered telecommunications equipment or services, regardless of whether that use is in perfonnance 
of work under a Federal contract. 
(c) Exceptions. TI1is clause does not prohibit contractors from providing-
(!) A service that connects to the facilities of a third-party, such as backhaul, roaming, or 
interconnection arrangements; or 
(2) Teleconununications equipment that crumot route or redirect user data traffic or pennit visibility 
into any user data or packets that such equipment transmits or otherwise handles. 
( d) Reporting requirement. 
(1) In the event the Contractor identifies covered telecommunications equipment or services used as a 
substantial or essential component of any system, or as critical technology as part of any system, 
during contract performance, or the Contractor is notified of such by a subcontractor at ru1y tier or by 
any other source, the Contractor shall report the infonnation in paragraph ( d)(2) of this clause in 
writing via email to the Contracting Officer, Contracting Officer's Representative, and the Network 
Operations Security Center (NOSC) at NDAA_Incidents@hq.dhs.gov, with required information in 
the body of the email. In the case of the Department of Defense, the Contractor shall report to the 
website at https://dibnet.dod.mil. For indefinite delivery contracts, the Contractor shall report to the 
NOSC, Contracting Officer for the indefmite delivery contract and the Contracting Officer(s) and 
Contracting Officer's Representative(s) for any affected order or, in the case of the Department of 
Defense, identify both the indefinite delivery contract and any affected orders in the report provided 
at https://dibnet.dod.mil. 
(2) TI1e Contractor shall report tl1e following infonnation pursuru1t to paragraph (d)(l) of this clause 
(i) Within one business day from the date of such identification or notification: the contract number; 
the order number(s), if applicable; supplier name; supplier unique entity identifier (if known); 
supplier Commercial and Government Entity (CAGE) code (if known); brru1d; model nwnber 
( original equipment manufacturer number, manufacturer part number, or wholesaler number); item 
description; and 
any readily available inforn1ation about mitigation actions undertaken or recommended. 
(ii) Within 10 business days of submitting the in.fonnation in paragraph (d)(2)(i) of this clause: any 
further available in.fonnation about mitigation actions undertaken or recommended. In addition, tl1e 
Contractor shall describe the efforts it undertook to prevent use or submission of covered 
telecommunications equipment or services, ru1d any additional efforts tl1at will be incorporated to 
prevent foture use or submission of covered telecommunications equipment or services. 
(e) Subcontracts. TI1e Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (e) 
ru1d excluding paragraph (b)(2), in all subcontracts ru1d otl1er contractual i.nstrnments, including 
subcontracts for tlte acquisition of commercial items. 

(End of clause) 

(9) FAR 52.252-6 - Authorized Deviations in Oauses. (APR 1984) 

Page 11 of27 

Page 27 of74 

P125 



(a) The use in this solicitation or contract of any Federal Acquisition Regulation ( 48 CFR Chapter I) 
clause with an authorized deviation is indicated by the addition of"(DEVIATION)" after the date of 
the clause. 

(b) TI1e use in this solicitation or contract of any Department of Homeland Security Acquisition 
Regulation (HSAR) clause with an authorized deviation is indicated by the addition of 
"(DEVIATION)" after the name of the regulation. 

{10) HSAR Clause 3052,212.70 Contract Terms and Conditions Applicable to DHS Acguisltlon 
of Commercial Items {Sep 2012) 

TI1e Contractor agrees to comply with any provision or clause that is incorporated herein by reference 
to intp\emcnt agency policy applicable to acquisition of commercial items or components. TI1e 
provision or clause in effect based on the applicable regulation cited on the date the solicitation is 
issued applies unless otherwise stated herein. TI1e following provisions and clauses are incorporated 
by reference: 

(a) Clauses. 
_K_ 3052.204-71 - Contractor Employee Access. 
_x_ 3052.205-70 - Advertisement, Publicizing Awards, and Releases. 
_x_ 3052.228-70 - Insurance. 
_x_ 3052.242-72 - Contracting Officer's Representative. 

{11) DHS Class HSAM Deviation, Limitation of Government's Obligation 

TI1e following clause provides for incremental funding and is a deviation to HSAM 3032.702(e). It is 
applicable during the event of a continuing resolution to fund govenunent operations enacted by 
Congress until the regular appropriation is enacted. It would be applicable in this event during the 
base or any subsequent option years. In addition, written notice will provided in specific contract 
modifications. 

(a) Contract line item(s) listed below are incrementally funded or folly funded as shown in the below 
table. For these item(s), the s1un of$* of the total price is presently available for payment and 
allotted to this contract This funding table will be updated in each contract action that provides 
additional fonds, if any. (A11101111ts below will be added by each i11creme11tal jimding modiflcat/011 
when Issued) 

Currently Allotted Funds Requfred for 
CLIN CLINPiice Fwtdlll!! Comvlete Fundi.112 

(b) For item(s) identified in paragraph (a) as not fully funded, the Contractor agrees to perform up to 
the point at which the total amom1t payable by the Govenunent, including reimbursement of 

Page 12 of27 

Page 28 of74 

P126 



authorized tennination costs in the event oftennination of those item(s) for the Govenunent's 
convenience, does not exceed the total amount c11rrently allotted to the items not folly funded under 
the contract. The Contractor is not authorized to continue work on those item(s) beyond that point. 
The total amoimt payable by the Government in the event of such tennination of those contract line 
item(s) identified in paragraph (a) above includes costs, profit, and estimated/negotiated termination 
settlement costs for those item(s). The Government will not be obligated in any event to reimburse 
the Contractor in excess of the amount allotted to the line items of the contract regardless of anything 
to the contrary in any other cla11se, s11ch as Ute cla11se entitled "Termination for Convenience of Ute 
Govenunent" or paragraph (I) entitled "Termination for the Government's Convenience" of the 
clause at FAR 52.212-4, "Commercial Terms and Conditions-Conunercial Items." 

(c) Notwithstanding paragraph (i) ofU1is requirement, the Contractor will notify the Contracting 
Officer in writing at least JlJk.JJLdays prior to the date when, in the Contractor's best judgment, the 
work will reach the point at which Uie total amount payable by U1e Govenunent, including any cost 
for tennination for convenience, will approximate 85 percent ofU1e total amount then allotted to the 
contract for performance of the applicable item(s). TI1e notification will state (1) the estimated date 
when that point will be reached and (2) 811 estimate of additional funding, if 811Y, needed to continue 
perfom1811ce. TI1e notification will also advise U1e Contracting Officer of the estimated an1ount of 
additional funds that will be req11ired for U1e timely perfonnance of the item(s) funded pursuant to 
this contract. If after s11ch notification additional funds are not allotted by the date identified in the 
Contractor's notification, or by 811 agreed substitute date, the Contracting Officer will tern1inate any 
item(s) for which additional funds have not been allotted, pursu811t to the clause of this contract 
auU1orizing termination fortlie convenience ofU1e govenunent, such as the clause entitled 
"Tennination for Convenience of U1e Govemment" or paragraph (I) entitled "Tennination for the 
Government's Convenience" of the clause at FAR 52.212-4, "Conunercial Terms and Conditions
Conunercial Items." 

(d) When additional funds are allotted for continued perfonnance of the contract line item(s) 
identified in paragraph (a), the parties will agree as to the period of contract petformance which will 
be covered by the funds. Tite provisions of paragraphs (b) through (d) will apply in like marmer to the 
additional allotted fimds 811d agreed s11bstitute date, and the contract will be modified accordingly. 

(e) TI1e Govenunent may at any time prior to tennination allot additional funds for the perfonnance 
ofU1e contract line item(s) identified in paragraph (a). 

(f) The tennination provisions of paragraphs (a) through (i) do not limit the rights of the Govenuncnt 
under U1e clause entitled "Default" or "Ternunation for Cause." TI1e provisions of this clause are 
limited to the work 811d allotment of funds for the contract line item(s) set forth in paragraph (a). TI1is 
clause no longer applies once U1e contract is fully funded. 

(g) Nothing in this clause affects U1e right ofU1e Government to tenninate this contract pursu811t to 
the clause of this contract entitled "Tennination for Convenience of the Govenunent" or paragraph (I) 
entitled "Tenni.nation for the Govenunent's Convenience" of the clause at FAR 52.2 12-4, 
"Commercial Tenns and Conditions-Conunercial Items." 

Page 13 of27 

Page 29 of74 

P127 



(h) Nothing in this clause shall be construed as authorization of voluntary services whose acceptance 
is othenvise prohibited under 31 U.S.C. 1342. 

(i) 111e parties contemplate that the Govenunent will allot funds to this contract from time to t ime 
as the need arises and as funds become available. 111ere is no fixed schedule for providing 
additional funds. 

(12) Contrnctor's Releases. 

The Govenunent may require the Contractor to complete Contractor's Releases (DHS Fonn 700-3 or 
an equivalentfonn) at the completion of the contract. 

(13) Licenses and Permits. 

TI1e Contractor shall be responsible for obtaining any necessary licenses and pennits, giving all notice 
and complying with any applicable federal, state, local, and municipal laws, codes, ordinances, and 
regulations in co1mection with the business carried on under this contract. 

(14) FAR 52.203-17 Contractor Employee Whistleblower Rights and Requirement to 
In.form EmployeesofWhistlcblower Rights (Jun 2020) IDHS-USCG DEVIATION 14-01, 
Revision 1) 

(a) This contract and employees working 011 this contract will be subject to the whistleblower 
rights and remedies established at 10 U.S.C. 4701 and Homeland Security Acquisition Regulation 
(HSAR) 3.900 (DEVIATION) through 3.905 (DEVIATION). 

(b) 111e Contractor shall in.form its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the 
workforce, of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 10 U.S.C. 470 l, as described in 
HSAR 3.900 (DEVIATION) through 3.905 (DEVIATION). (c) 111e Contractor shall insert the 
substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), in all subcontracts. 

(End of clause) 

(15) FAR 52.216-18- Onle1ing (Aug 2020) 

(a) Any supplies and services to be furnished under this contract shall be ordered by issuance of 
delivery orders or task orders by the individuals or activities designated in the Schedule. Such orders 
may be issued from Base Period through Contract Expiration. 

(b) All delivery orders or task orders are subject to the tenns and conditions of this contract. In the 
event of conflict between a delivery order or task order and this contract, the contract shall control. 

( c) A delivery order or task order is considered "issued" when-

(1) If sent by mail (includes transmittal by U.S. mail or private delivery service), the Government 
deposits the order in the mail; 

Page 14 of27 

Page 30 of74 

P128 



(2) If sent by fax, the Government transmits the order to the Contractor's fax number; or 

(3) If sent electronically, the Government either-

(i) Posts a copy of the delivery order or task order to a Government document access system, and 
notice is sent to the Contractor; or 

(ii) Distributes the delivery order or task order via email to the Contractor's email address. 

(d) Orders may be issued by methods other than those enumerated in this clause only if authorized in 
the contract. 

(16) FAR 52.216-19 -- Order Lirnitntions. (Oct 1995) 

(a)Mi11i11111111 order. When the Govenunent requires supplies or services covered by this contract in 
an amount of less than $1,000.00. the Government is not obligated to purchase, nor is the Contractor 
obligated to fumish, those supplies or services under the contract. 
(b) Maximum order. TI1e Contractor is not obligated to honor --

(1) Any order for a single item in excess of$4,500,000.00; 

(2) Any order for a combination of items in excess of $4.500.000.00; or 

(3) A series of orders from the same ordering office within 30 calendar days that together call for 
quantities exceeding the limitation in subparagraph (b)(l) or (2) of this section. 

(c) If this is a requirements contract (i.e., includes the Requirements clause at subsection 52.216-21 of 
the Federal Acquisition Regulation (FAR)), the Government is not required to order a part of any one 
requirement from the Contractor if that requirement exceeds the maximum-order limitations in 
paragraph (b) of this section. 

(d) Notwithstanding paragraphs (b) and (c) of this section, the Contractor shall honor any order 
exceeding the maximum order limitations in paragraph (b ), unless that order ( or orders) is returned to 
the ordering office within 5 calendar days after issuance, with written notice stating the Contractor's 
intent not to ship the item (or items) called for and the reasons. Upon receiving this notice, the 
Government may acquire the supplies or services from another source. 

(17) 52.216-21- Requirements (Oct 1995) 

(a) This is a requirements contract for the supplies or services specified, and effective for the period 
stated, in the Schedule. The quantities of supplies or services specified in the Schedule are estimates 
only and are not purchased by this contract. Except as this contract may othenvise provide, if the 
Govenunent's requirements do not result in orders in the quantities described as "estimated" or 
"maximum" in the Schedule, that fact shall not constitute the basis for an equitable price adjustment. 

Page 15 of27 

Page 31 of74 

P129 



(b) Delivery or perfonnance shall be made only as authorized by orders issued in accordance with the 
Ordering clause. Subject to any limitations in the Order Limitations clause or elsewhere in this 
contract, the Contractor shall furnish to the Government all supplies or services specified in the 
Schedule and called for by orders issued in accordance with the Ordering clause. 1l1e Government 
may issue orders requiring delivery to multiple destinations or performance at multiple locations. 

( c) Except as this contract otherwise provides, the Govemment shall order from the Contractor all the 
supplies or services specified in the Schedule that are required to be purchased by the Government 
activity or activities specified in the Schedule. 

(d) The Government is not required to purchase from the Contractor requirements in excess of any 
limit on total orders under this contract. 

(e) If the Government urgently requires delivery of any quantity of an item before the earliest date 
that delivery may be specified under this contract, and if the Contractor will not accept an order 
providing for the accelerated delivery, the Govenunent may acquire the urgently required goods or 
services from another source. 

(f) Any order issued during the effective period of this contract and not completed within that period 
shall be completed by the Contractor within the time specified in the order. The contract shall govern 
the Contractor's and Govemment's rights and obligations with respect to that order to the same extent 
as if the order were completed during the contract's effective period; provided, that the Contractor 
shall not be required to make any deliveries under this contract after 02/28/2025. 

(18) FAR 52.204-21 Bnsic Snfcgmmling ofCoverc1l Contractor Infomrntion Systems 
<Nov2021) 

(a) Definitions. As used in this clause--

Covered contractor information system means an infonnation system that is owned or operated 
by a contractor that processes, stores, or transmits Federal contract i.nfonnation. 

Federal contract information means i.nfonnation, not intended for public release, that is 
provided by or generated for the Govenunent under a contract to develop or deliver a product or 
service to the Government, but not including infonnation provided by the Govenunent to the 
public (such as on public websites) or simple transactional infonuation, such as necessary to 
process payments. 

/11format/on means any conummication or representation of knowledge such as facts, 
data, or opinions, in any medium or fonn, including textual, numerical, graphic, cartographic, 
narrative, or audiovisual (Conunittee on National Security Systems Instruction (CNSSI) 4009). 

Information system means a discrete set of infonnation resources organized for the 
collection, processing, maintenance, use, sharing, dissemination, or disposition 
ofinfornmtion ( 44 U.S.C. 3502). 

Safeguarding means measures or controls that are prescribed to protect inforniation 
systems. 

(b) Safeguarding requirements and procedures. 
(1) l11e Contractor shall apply the following basic snfeguarding requirements and 

procedures to protect covered contractor infonnation systems. Requirements and procedures for 

Page 16 of27 

Page 32 of74 

P130 



basic safeguarding of covered contractor information systems shall include, at a minimwn, the 
following security controls: 

(i) Limit infonnation system access to authorized users, processes acting on behalf 
of authorized users, or devices (including other information systems). 

(ii) Limit infonnation system access to tl1e types of transactions and fimctions that 
authorized users are permitted to execute. 

(iii) Verify and control/limit connections to and use of external information systems. 
(iv) Control information posted or processed on publicly accessible information 

systems. 
(v) Identify inforn1ation system users, processes acting on behalf of users, or 

devices. 
(vi) Authenticate (or verify) tl1e identities of those users, processes, or devices, as a 

prerequisite to allowing access to organizational infonnation systems. 
(vii) Sanitize or destroy information system media containing Federal Contract 

Information before disposal or release for reuse. 
(viii) Limit physical access to organizational infonnation systems, equipment, and 

the respective operating environments to authorized individuals. 
(ix) Escort visitors and monitor visitor activity; maintain audit logs of physical 

access; and control and manage physical access devices. 
(x) Monitor, control, and protect organizational communications 

(i.e., information transmitted or received by organizational in.fonnation systems) at the external 
boimdaries and key internal boundaries of the inforniation systems. 

(xi) Implement subnetworks for publicly accessible system components that are 
physically or logically separated from internal networks. 

(xii) Identify, report, and correct information and infonnation system flaws in a 
timely manner. 

(xiii) Provide protection from malicious code at appropriate locations within 
organizational information systems. 

(xiv) Update malicious code protection mechanisms when new releases are 
available. 

(xv) Perforn1 periodic scans oft he infonnation system and real-time scans of files 
from external sources as files are downloaded, opened, or executed. 

(2) Other requirements. Tius clause does not relieve the Contractor of any other 
specific safeguarding requirements specified by Federal agencies and departments relating 
to covered contractor infonnation systems generally or other Federal safeguarding requirements 
for controlled unclassified in.formation (CUI) as established by Executive Order 13556. 

(c) Subcontracts. TI1e Contractor shall include the substance oftl1is clause, including tlus 
paragraph (c), in subcontracts under this contract (including subcontracts for 
the acquisition of conunercial products or commercial services, other than conunercially 
available off-the-shelf items), in which the subcontractor may have Federal contract 
infonnation residing in or transiting through its infonnation system. 

(19) Mission Partner Identity, Credential and Access Management <MP ICAM) 

(a) "Contractor employee" means an employee of a finn, or an individual, under contract or 
subcontract to the Coast Guard to provide services who also requires one or more of the 

Page 17 of27 

Page 33 of74 

P131 



following: 

(1) Physical access to multiple Coast Guard facilities or multiple federally controlled facilities 
on behalf of the Coast Guard on a recurring basis ( a minimum of two (2) times per week 
and/or eight (8) times per month) for a period of six (6) months or more. 

(2) Remote access, via logon, to Coast Guard network using Coast Guard-approved remote 
access procedures. 

(3) Both physical access to Coast Guard facility and logical access, via logon, to Coast Guard 
networks on-site or remotely. Access to the Coast Guard network must require the use of a 
computer with govcnunent-controlled configuration or use of Coast Guard-approved 
remote access procedure in accordance with the Defense Infonnation Systems Agency 
(DISA) Security Teclmical Implementation Guide. 

(b) Homeland Security Presidential Directive (HSPD)-12 mandates a federal standard for secure 
and reliable fonns of identification for federal employees and contractor employees. TI1e 
Common Access Card (CAC) is a personal identification card for the Department of Defense 
(DoD)/Unifonned Services and complies with HSPD-12. TI1e Coast Guard has instituted the 
CAC as its HSPD-12 compliant personal identification card for contractor and subcontractor 
employees who are required to access a Coast Guard, DoD, or other federally-controlled 
computer information system ancVor facility, or need public key infrastructure (PKI) 
authentication to perfonn their contractual duties. The Mission Partner Identity, Credential and 
Access Management (MP ICAM) ( or successor system thereto) is the automated application 
process for obtaining a CAC. 

( c) Contractor and subcontractor employees working pursuant to this contracl"who are required to 
access a Coast Guard, DoD, or other federally-controlled computer in.formation system and/or 
facility, or need PKI authentication to perform their contractual duties must use MP ICAM (or 
successor system thereto) to obtain a CAC. 

(d) Tiie COR or Alternate COR (ACOR) is the MP ICAM Mission Partner Affiliation Sponsor 
(MP AS) (or successor system corresponding role thereto) and initiates contractor accounts in 
the MP !CAM (or successor system thereto), approving, returning, or rejecting CAC 
applications (as applicable); re-verifying assigned contractors every six months; revoking 
contractor and employee eligibility for a CAC. 

(e) ·n1e MPAS ensures that contractor personnel satisfy the security requirements for CAC 
issuance prior to creating the CAC application in MP ICAM (or successor system thereto). 
Current investigative requirements must be verified according to Commandant Instruction 
5500.18. The initial CAC issuance requires a favorably adjudicated Tier I investigation 
(equivalent or higher) or a Tier I background investigation (BI) (equivalent or higher) package 
that has been successfully scheduled with the investigative service provider (ISP) and a FBI 
fingerprint check with favorable results. TI1e MP AS and Sponsor ( or successor system 
corresponding role) or other appropriate federal govenunent representative must coordinate 
with the unit BI Verifier (Command Security Officer/ Mission Partner Affiliation Sponsor 
Manager) or the U.S. Coast Guard Security (SECCEN) to confinn the appropriate 
investigation has been favorably adjudicated or scheduled at the ISP with favorable FBI 
fingerprint results. 

(f) TI1e COR or contracting officer (KO) provides such .fonns to, or requests such infonnation 

Page 18 of27 

Page 34 of74 

P132 



from, contractor employees that may be necessary for obtaining a CAC via the MP ICAM ( or 
successor system thereto). The Contractor submits completed fonns and information as 
directed by the COR or KO. Contractors are responsible for the accuracy and completeness of 
the infonnation submitted and for any liability resulting from the government's reliance on 
inaccurate 
or incomplete i.nfomiation. 

(g) Contractor employees who are declined via the MP ICAM (or successor system thereto) are 
ineligible to perfonn work under this contract. 

(h) When an employee with a CAC is no longer performing work under this contract, the 
employee must retum the CAC to the COR/MP AS (or successor system corresponding role 
thereto) or KO on the same day the employee stops working. 

(i) The contractor must insert this requirement in all subcontracts when a subcontractor's 
employee is required to access a Coast Guard, DoD, or other federally-controlled computer 
infonnntion system and/or facility, or need PKI authentication to perfonn contractual duties. 

(20) FAR 52.212-5 Contmct Terms and Conditions Required to Implement Statutes or 
Executive Onlers-Commercial Products aml Commercial Services (Feb 2024) 

(a) 1l1e Contractor shall comply with the following Federal Acquisition Regulation (FAR) 
clauses, which are incorporated in this contract by reference, to in1plement provisions of law or 
Executive orders applicable to acquisitions of conunercial products and commercial services: 

(1) 52.203-19, Prohibition on Requiring Certain Jntemal Confidentiality Agreements or 
Statements (JAN 2017) (section 743 of Division E, Title VII, of the Consolidated and Furtl1er 
Continuing Appropriations Act, 2015 (Pub. L. 113-235) and its successor provisions in subsequent 
appropriations acts (and as extended in continuing resolutions)). 

(2) 52.204-23, Prohibition on Contracting for Hardware, Software, and Services Developed or 
Provided by Kaspersky Lab Covered Entities (DEC2023)(Section 1634 of Pub. L. 115-91). 

(3) 52.204-25, Prohibition on Contracting for Certain Teleconuuunicntions and Video 
Surveillance Services or Equipment. (Nov 2021) (Section 889(aXl)(A) of Pub. L. 115-232). 

(4) 52.209-10, Prohibition on Contracting with Inverted Domestic Corporations (Nov 2015). 
(5) 52.232-40, Providing Accelerated Payments to Small Business Subcontractors (MAR 

2023) ( 31 U.S.C, 3903 and 10 U,S.C. 3801). 
(6) 52.233-3, Protest After Award (AUG 1996) ( 31 U.S.C. 3553). 
(7) 52.233-4, Applicable Law for Breach of Contract Claim (OcT2004) (Public Laws 108-77 

and 108-78 ( 19 U.S.C. 3805 note)). 

(b) 1l1e Contractor shall comply with the FAR clauses in tl1is paragraph (b) that tl1e Contracting 
Officer has indicated as being incorporated in this contract by reference to implement provisions of 
law or Executive orders applicable to acquisitions of conunercial products and conunercial services: 

XX (1) 52.203-6, Restrictions on Subcontractor Sales to the Govenunent (JUN 
2020), with Alternate /(Nov2021) ( 41 U.S.C. 4704 and 10 U.S.C. 4655). 

Page 19 of27 

Page 35 of74 

P133 



XX (2) 52.203-13, Contractor Code of Business Ethics and Conduct (Nov 
2021) ( 41 u.s.c. 3509)). 

_ (3) 52.203-15, Whistleblower Protections under the American Recovery and Reinvestment 
Act of2009 (JUN 2010) (Section 1553 of Pub. L. 111-5). (Applies to contracts fonded by the 
American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009.) 

_ ( 4) 52.203-17. Contractor Employee Whistleblower Rights (Nov 2023) ( 41 U.S.C. 4712); 
this clause does not apply to contracts ofDoD. NASA, the Coast Guard. or applicable elements of the 
intelligence community- see FAR 3.900(a). 

M (5) 52.204-10, Reporting Executive Compensation and First-Tier Subcontract 
Awards (JUN 2020) (Pub. L. 109-282) ( 31 U.S.C. 6101 note). 

_ (6) (Reserved]. 
_ (7) 52.204-14. Service Contract Reporting Requirements (OCT 2016) (Pub. L. 111-117. 

section 743 of Div. C). 
XX (8) 52.204-15. Service Contract Reporting Requirements for Indefinite-Delivery 

Contracts (Ocr2016)(Pnb. L. 111-117. section 743 ofDiv. C). 
_ (9) 52.204-27, Prohibition on a ByteDance Covered Application (JUN 2023) (Section 102 

of Division R of Pub. L. 117-328). 
_ (10) 52.204-28. Federal Acquisition Supply Chain Security Act Orders- Federal Supply 

Schedules, Goverrunentwide Acquisition Contracts. and Multi-Agency Contracts. (DEC 2023) ( Pub. 
L. 115-390, title II). 

_ (11) (i) 52.204-30. Federal Acquisition Supply Chain Security Act Orders
Prohibition. (DEC 2023) ( Pub. L. 115- 390, title II). 

_ (ii) Alternate I (DEC 2023) of 52.204-30. 
XX (12) 52.209-6. Protecting the Goverrunent's Interest When Subcontracting witlt 

Contractors Debarred, Suspended, or Proposed for Debannent. (Nov 2021) ( 31 U.S.C. 6101 note). 
_ (13) 52.209-9, Updates of Publicly Available Information Regarding Responsibility 

Matters (OCT2018) ( 41 U.S.C. 2313). • 
_ (14) [Reserved]. 
_ (15) 52.219-3. Notice of HUBZone Set-Aside or Sole-Source Award (OCT 2022) 

( 15 U.S.C. 657a). 
_ (16) 52.219-4, Notice of Price Evaluation Preference for HUBZone Small Business 

Concerns (OCT 2022) (if the offeror elects to waive the preference, it shall so indicate in its offer) 
( 15 U.S.C. 657a). 

_(17) [Reserved] 

_ (18) (i) 52.219-6. Notice of Total Small Business Set-Aside (Nov 2020) ( 15 U.S.C. 644). 

_ (ii) Alternate I (MAR 2020) of~ -

_ (19) (i) 52.219-7. Notice of Partial Small Business Set-Aside (Nov 2020) ( 15 U.S.C. 644). 

_ (ii) Alternate I (MAR2020) of 52.219-7. 
M (20) 52.219-8, Utilization of Small Business Concerns (FEB 2024) 

( 15 U.S.C. 637CdX2} and (3)). 

Page 20of27 

Page 36 of74 

P134 



_ (21) (i) 52.219-9. Small Business Subcontracting Plan (SEP 2023) ( 15 U.S.C. 637(dX4)). 

_ (ii) Alternate I (Nov 2016) of 52.219-9. 
_ (iii) Alternate II (Nov2016) of 52.219-9. 
_ (iv) Alternate Ill (JUN 2020) of 52.219-9. 
_ (v) Alternate IV (SEP2023) of52.219-9. 

_ (22) (i) 52.219-13. Notice of Set-Aside of Orders (MAR 2020) ( 15 U.S.C. 644(r)). 

_ (ii) Altemate I (MAR2020) of52.219-13. 
_ (23) 52.219-14. Limitations on Subcontracting (OcT2022) ( 15 U.S.C. 637s). 
_ (24) 52.219-16. Liquidated Damages-Subcontracting Plan (SEP 

2021) ( 15 U.S.C. 637<dX4}(F}(j)). 
_ (25) 52.219-27. Notice of Set-Aside for. or Sole-Source Award to. Service-Disabled 

Veteran-Owned Small Business (SDVOSB) Concerns Eligible Under the SDVOSB Program (FEB 
2024) ( 15 u.s.c. 657Q. 

_ (26) (i) 52.219-28. Post Award Small Business Program Rerepresentation (FEB 2024) 
( 15 U.S.C. 632faX2)). 

_ (ii) Altemate I (MAR 2020) of 52.219-28. 
_ (27) 52.219-29. Notice of Set-Aside for. or Sole-Source Award to. Economically 

Disadvantaged Women-Owned Small Business Concerns (OCT 2022) ( 15 U.S.C. 637(m)). 
_ (28) 52.219-30. Notice of Set-Aside for. or Sole-Source Award to. Women-Owned Small 

Business Concerns Eligible Under the Women-Owned Small Business Program (OCT 2022) 
( 15 U.S.C. 637(m)). 

(29) 52.219-32. Orders Issued Directly Under Small Business Reserves (MAR 
2020) ( 15 U.S.C. 644(r)). 

_ (30) 52.219-33. Nonmanufacturer Rule (SEP2021) ( 15U.S.C. 637(a)(l7)). 
XX (31) 52.222-3. Convict Labor (JUN 2003) (E.O.11755). 
_ (32) 52.222-19. Child Labor-Cooperation with Authorities and Remedies (FEB 2024). 
~ (33) 52.222-21. Prohibition of Segregated Facilities (APR 2015). 

XX (34) (i) 52.222-26. Equal Opportunity (SEP2016) (E.O.11246). 

_ (ii) Alternate I (FEB 1999) of 52.222-26. 

XX (35) (i) 52.222-35. Equal Opportunity for Veterans (JUN 2020) ( 38 U.S.C. 4212). 

_ (ii) Alternate I (JUL 2014) of 52.222-35. 

XX (36) (i) 52.222-36. Equal Opportunity for Workers with Disabilities (JUN 
2020) ( 29 u.s.c. 793). 

_ (ii) Alternate I (JUL 2014) of 52.222-36. 
XX (37) 52.222-37. Employment Reports on Veterans (JUN 2020) ( 38 U.S.C. 4212). 

Page 21 of27 

Page 37 of74 

P135 



XX (38) 52.222-40. Notification of Employee Rights Under the National Labor Relations 
Act (DEC 2010) (E.O. 13496). 

_ (39) (i) 52.222-50. Combating Trafficking in Persons (Nov 
2021) ( 22 U.S.C. chapter 78 and E.O. 13627). 

_ (ii) Alternate I (MAR 2015) of52.222-50 ( 22 U.S.C. chapter 78 and E.O. 13627). 
XX (40) 52.222-54, Employment Eligibility Verification (MAY 2022) (Executive Order 

12989). (Not applicable to the acquisition of conuneroially available off-the-shelf items or certain 
other types of commercial products or commercial services ns prescribed in FAR 22.1803.) 

_ (41)(i) 52.223-9, Estimate of Percentage of Recovered Material Content for EPA
Designated Items (May 2008) ( 42 U,S.C. 6962(cX3XA}(ii)). (Not applicable to the acquisition of 
conuuercially available off-the-shelf items.) 

_ (ii) Alternate I (MAY 2008) of 52.223-9 ( 42 U.S.C. 6962(iX2XC}). (Not applicable to 
the acquisition of c01mnercially available off-the-shelf items.) 

_ (42) 52.223-11. Ozone-Depleting Substances and High Global Wanning Potential 
Hydrofluorocarbons (Jun 2016) (E.O. 13693). 

_ ( 43) 52.223-12. Maintenance. Service, Repair. or Disposal of Refrigeration Equipment and 
Air Conditioners (JUN 2016) (E.O. 13693). 

_ (44) (i) 52.223-13. Acquisition ofEPEAT®-Registered Imaging Equipment (JUN 
2014) (E.O.s 13423 and 13514). 

_ (ii) Alternate I (OcT2015) of 52.223-13. 

_ (45) (i) 52.223-14, Acquisition ofEPEAT®-Registered Televisions (JUN 2014) (E.O.s 
13423 and 13514). 

(ii) Altemate I (Jun2014) of 52.223-14. 
_ (46) 52.223-15. Energy Efficiency in Energy-Consuming Products (MAY 

2020) ( 42 U.S.C. 8259b). 

(47) (i) 52.223-16. Acquisition ofEPEAT®-Registered Personal Computer Products (OCT 
2015) (E.O.s 13423 and 13514). 

_ (ii) Altemate I (JUN 2014) of 52.223-16. 
XX ( 48) 52.223-18. Encouraging Contractor Policies to Ban Text Messaging While 

Driving (JUN2020)(E.O. 13513). 
_ (49) 52.223-20. Aerosols (JUN 2016) (E.O. 13693). 
_ (50) 52.223-21. Foams (Jun2016) (E.O. 13693). 

_ (51) (i) 52.224-3 Privacy Training (JAN 2017) (5 U.S.C. 552 a). 

_ (ii) Altemate I (JAN 2017) of 52.224-3. 

Page22 of27 

Page 38 of74 

P136 



~ (52) (i) 52.225-1. Buy American-Supplies (OCT2022) ( 41 U.S.C. chapter 83). 

_ (ii) Altemate I (OCT2022) of 52.225-1. 

_ (53) (i) 52.225-3. Buy American-Free Trade Agreements-Israeli Trade Act (NOV 
2023) ( 19 U.S.C. 3301 note. 19 U.S.C. 2112 note. 19 U.S.C. 3805 note. 19 U.S.C. 4001 note. 19 
U.S.C. chapter29 (sections 4501-4732). Public Law 103-182. 108-77, 108-78, 108-286, 108-302, 
109-53, 109-169, 109-283, 110-138, 112-41, 112-42. and 112-43. 

_ (ii) Altemate I [Reserved]. 
_ (iii) Altemate II (DEC 2022) of 52.225-3. 
_ (iv) Altemate III (NOV 2023) of 52.225-3. 
_ (v) Altemate IV (Oct 2022) of 52.225-3. 

_ (54) 52.225-5. Trade Agreements (NOV 2023) ( 19 U.S,C. 2501. et 
seq., 19 U.S.C. 3301 note). 

XX (55) 52.225-13. Restrictions on Certain Foreign Purchases (FEB 2021) (E.O. 's, 
proclamations. and statutes administered by the Office of Foreign Assets Control of the Department 
of the Treasury). 

_ (56) 52.225-26. Contractors Perfonning Private Security Functions Outside the United 
States (Oct 2016) (Section 862, as amended, of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal 
Year 2008; 10 U.S.C. Subtitle A, Part V. Subpart G Note). 

_ (57) 52.226-4. Notice of Disaster or Emergency Area Set-Aside (Nov 2007) 
( 42 U.S.C. 5150). 

_ (58) 52.226-5, Restrictions on Subcontracting Outside Disaster or Emergency Area 
(Nov2007) ( 42 U.S.C. 5150). 

_ (59) 52.229-12. Tax on Certain Foreign Procurements (FEB 2021). 
(60) 52.232-29. Tenns for Financing of Purchases of Commercial Products and 

Commercial Services (Nov 2021) ( 4 1 U.S.C. 4505. 10 U.S.C. 3805). 
_ (61) 52.232-30. Installment Payments for Commercial Products and Commercial 

Services (Nov 2021) ( 41 U,S.C. 4505, 10 U.S.C. 3805). 
XX (62) 52.232-33. Payment by Electronic Funds Transfer-System for Award 

Management (OcT2018) ( 31 U.S.C. 3332). 
(63) 52.232-34. Payment by Electronic Funds Transfer-Other than System for Award 

Management (Jul 2013) ( 31 U.S.C. 3332). 
_ (64) 52.232-36. Payment by l11ird Party (MAY 2014) ( 31 U.S.C. 3332). 

(65) 52.239-1. Privacy or Security Safeguards (Auo 1996) ( 5 U.S.C. 552a). 
_ (66) 52.242-5, Payments to Small Business Subcontractors (JAN 

2017) ( 15 U.S.C. 637(d}(l3}). 

_ (67) (i) 52.247-64, Preference for Privately Owned U.S.-Flag Commercial Vessels (Nov 
2021) ( 46 U,S.C. 55305 and 10 U.S.C. 2631). 

_ (ii) Altemate I (APR 2003) of 52.247-64. 
_ (iii) Altemate II (Nov 2021) of 52.247-64. 

Page23 of27 

Page 39 of74 

P137 



(c) TI1e Contractor shall comply with the FAR clauses in this paragraph (c), applicable to 
commercial services, that the Contracting Officer has indicated as being incorporated in this contract 
by reference to implement provisions of law or Executive orders applicable to acquisitions of 
commercial products and commercial services: 

XX (1) 52.222-41. Service Contract Labor Standards (AUG 2018) ( 41 U.S.C . chapter67). 
XX (2) 52.222-42, Statement of Equivalent Rates for Federal Hires (MAY 

2014) ( 29 U.S.C. 206 and 41 U.S.C. chapter 67). 
XX (3) 52.222-43. Fair Labor Standards Act and Service Contract Labor Standards-Price 

Adjustment (Multiple Year w1d Option Contracts) (AUG 
2018) ( 29 U.S.C. 206 and 41 U.S.C. chapter 67). 

_ ( 4) 52.222-44. Fair Labor Standards Act w1d Service Contract Labor Standards-Price 
Adjustment (May 2014) ( 29U.S.C,206 and 41 U.S.C. chapter 67). 

_ (5) 52.222-51. Exemption from Application of the Service Contract Labor Standards to 
Contracts for Maintenance. Calibration, or Repair of Certain Equipment-Requirements (May 2014) 
( 41 U.S.C. chapter 67). 

_ (6) 52.222-53. Exemption from Application of the Service Contract Labor Standards to 
Contracts for Certain Services-Requirements (MAY 2014) ( 4 1 U.S.C. chapter 67). 

XX (7) 52.222-55. Minimum Wages for Contractor Workers Under Executive Order 
14026 (JAN 2022). 

XX (8) 52.222-62. Paid Sick Leave Under Executive Order 13706 (JAN 2022) (E.O. 13706). 
_ (9) 52.226-6. Promoting Excess Food Donation to Nonprofit Organizations (Jun 2020) 

( 42 U.S.C. 1792). 

(d) Comptroller General Exami11alio11 of Record. TI1e Contractor shall comply with the provisions 
of this paragraph (d) if this contract was awarded using other than sealed bid, is in excess of the 
simplified acquisition threshold. as defmed in FAR 2.101. on the date of award of this contract, w1d 
does not contain the clause at 52.215-2. Audit and Records-Negotiation. 

(1) TI1e Comptroller General of the United States, or an authorized representative of the 
Comptroller General, shall have access to and right to exwnine any of the Contractor's directly 
pertinent records involving transactions related to this contract. 

(2) TI1e Contractor shall make available at its offices at all reasonable times the records, 
materials, and other evidence for examination, audit, or reproduction, until 3 years after final payment 
m1der this contract or for any shorter period specified in FAR subpart .11, Contractor Records 
Retention, of the otl1er clauses of this contract. If th.is contract is completely or partially tenuinated, 
the records relating to the work tenuinated shall be made available for 3 years after any resulting fmal 
termination settlement. Records relating to appeals under the disputes clause or to litigation or the 
settlement of claims arising under or relating to this contract shall_ be made available until such 
appeals, litigation. or claims are finally resolved. 

(3) As used in tl1is clause, records include books, documents, accounting procedures and 
practices, and otl1er data, regardless of type and regardless offonu. Titis does not require the 
Contractor to create or maintain any record that the Contractor does not maintain in the ordinary 
course of business or pursuw1t to a provision of law. 

Page 24 of27 

Page 40 of74 

P138 



(e) (1) Notwithstanding the requirements of the clauses in paragraphs (a), (b), (c), and (d) of this 
clause, the Contractor is not required to flow down any FAR clause, other than those in this paragraph 
(e)(l), in a subcontract for commercial products or conunercial services. Unless otherwise indicated 
below, the extent of the flow down shall be as required by the clause-

(i) 52.203-13, Contractor Code of Business Ethics and Conduct (Nov 
2021) ( 41 u.s.c. 3509). 

(ii) 52.203-17, Contractor Employee Whistleblower·Rights (Nov 2023)( 41 U.S.C. 47 12). 
(iii) 52.203-19. Prohibition on Requiring Certain Internal Confidentiality Agreements or 

Statements (Jan 2017) (section 743 of Division E, Title VII, of the Consolidated and Further 
Continuing Appropriations Act, 2015 (Pub. L. 113-235) and its successor provisions in subsequent 
appropriations acts ( and as extended in continuing resolutions)). 

(iv) 52.204-23. Prohibition on Contracting for Hardware, Software, and Services 
Developed or Provided by Kaspersky Lab Covered Entities (DEc2023) (Section 1634 of Pub. L. 115-
91). 

(v) 52.204-25. Prohibition on Contracting for Certain Telecommunications and Video 
Surveillance Services or Equipment. (Nov 2021) (Section 889(aXl)(A) of Pub. L. 115-232). 

(vi) 52.204-27. Prohibition on a ByteDance Covered Application (JUN2023) (Section 102 
of Division R of Pub. L. 117-328). 

(vii) (A) 52.204-30, Federal Acquisition Supply Chain Security Act Orders
Prohibition. (DEC 2023) ( Pub. L. 115- 390. title 11). 

(B) Alternate I (DEC 2023) of 52.204-30. 

(viii) 52.219-8. Utilization of Small Business Concerns (FEB 
2024) ( 15 U.S.C. 637(d)(2) and (3)), in all subcontracts that offer further subcontracting 
opportunities. If the subcontract (except subcontracts to small business concerns) exceeds the 
applicable threshold specified in FAR 19.702(a) on the date of subcontract award, the subcontractor 
must include 52.219-8 in lower tier subcontracts that offer subcontracting opportunities. 

(ix) 52.222-21. Prohibition of Segregated Facilities (APR 2015). 
(x) 52.222-26. Equal Opportunity (SEP2015) (E.O.11246). 
(xi) 52.222-35, Equal Opportunity for Veterans (JUN 2020) ( 38 U.S.C. 4212). 
(xii) 52.222-36. Equal Opportunity for Workers with Disabilities (JUN 

2020) ( 29 u.s.c. 793). 
(xiii) 52.222-37. Employment Reports on Veterans (JUN 2020) ( 38 U.S.C. 4212). 
(xiv) 52.222-40. Notification of Employee Rights Under the National Labor Relations 

Act (DEC 2010) (E.O. 13496). Flow down required in accordance with paragraph (f) of FAR 
clause 52.222-40. 

(xv) 52.222-41, Service Contract Labor Standards (AUG 2018) ( 41 U.S.C. chapter 67). 

(xvi) (A) 52.222-50. Combating Trafficking in Persons (Nov 
2021) ( 22 U.S.C. chapter 78 and E._O 13627). 

(B) Alternate I (MAR 2015) of 52.222-50 ( 22 U.S.C. chapter 78 and E.O. 13627). 

Page 25 of27 

Page 41 of74 

P139 



(xvii) 52.222-51. Exemption from Application of the Service Contract Labor Standards to 
Contracts for Maintenance, Calibration, or Repair of Certain Equipment-Requirements (May 2014) 
( 41 U.S.C. chapter 67). 

(xviii) 52.222-53, Exemption from Application of the Service Contract Labor Standards to 
Contracts for Certain Services-Requirements (MAY 2014) ( 41 U.S.C. chapter 67). 

(xix) 52.222-54. Employment Eligibility Verification (MAY 2022) (E.O. 12989). 
(xx) 52.222-55. Minimum Wages for Contractor Workers Under Executive Order 

14026 (JAN 2022). 
(xxi) 52.222-62. Paid Sick Leave Under Executive Order 13706 (JAN 2022) (E.O. 13706). 

(xxii) (A) 52.224-3. Privacy Training (Jan 2017) ( 5 U.S.C. 552a). 

(B) Alternate I (JAN 2017) of 52.224-3. 

(xxiii) 52.225-26. Contractors Performing Private Security Functions Outside the United 
States (OCT 2016) (Section 862. as amended, of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal 
Year2008; 10 U.S.C. Subtitle A. Part V. Subpart G Note). 

(xxiv) 52.226-6. Promoting Excess Food Donation lo Nonprofit Organizations (JUN 
2020) ( 42 U.S.C. 1792). Flow down required in accordance with paragraph (e) of FAR 
clause 52. 226-6. 

(xxv) 52.232-40. Providing Accelerated Payments to Small Business Subcontractors (Mar 
2023) ( 31 U.S.C. 3903 and 10 U.S.C. 3801). Flow down required in accordance with paragraph (c) 
of 52.232-40. 

(xxvi) 52.247-64. Preference for Privately Owned U.S.-Flag Commercial Vessels (Nov 
2021) ( 46 U.S.C. 55305 and 10 U.S.C. 263 1). Flow down required in accordance with paragraph (d) 
of FAR clause 52.247-64. 

(2) While not required, the Contractor may include in its subcontracts for co111111ercial 
products and co111111ercial services a minimal number of additional clauses necessary to satisfy its 
contractual obligations. 

(End of clause) 

SECTION III LIST QF ATIACHMENTS 

Attaclunent I - Perfonnance Work Statement Rl 

Attachment 2-3 - Perfonnance Requirements Sununary/Contract Discrepancy Report 

Attaclunent 4 - Quality Assurance Surveillance Plan (QASP) 

Attachment 5 - CBA 2023-346 Rev.0 

Attachment 6-Department of Labor Wage Determination No: 2015-5631, Rev.20. Dated 17J26/23 

Page 26 of27 

Page 42 of74 

P140 



EXHIBITB 
Performance Work Statement 

PERFORMANCE WORK STATEMENT (PWS) 
AIRFIELD OPERATION AND MANAGEMENT SERVICES AND AffiCRAFT RESCUE AND 

FmE FIGHTING SERVICES 
CONTRACT/RFP#: 70Z08424RALAM0001 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Desc1iption Pnge 
1.0 General ................................................................................................................................ 3 

1.1 Mission .......................................................................................................................... 3 
1.2 Scope .............................................................................................................................. 3 

2.0 Contractor Responsibilities .................................................................................................. 3 
2.1 Contractor Qualifications .............................................................................................. 3 
2.2 Contractor Phase In/Phase Out ................................................................................... .4 

2.2.1 Phase-In .............................................................................................................. 4 
2.2.2 Phase-Out Period ................................................................................................ 4 

2.3 Post-Award Conference ................................................................................ ................ 5 
2.4 Community Relations Program ..................................................................................... 5 
2.5 Contractor Personnel Requirements .............................................................................. 5 

2.5.1 Continuous Point ofContact ............................................................................... 5 
2.5.2 Contractor Employees ......................................................................................... 5 

2.6 Other Government Contracts and Agreements ............................................................. 6 
2.7 Safety and Environmental Requirements ...................................................................... 6 

2.7.1 Licenses and Pennits ........................................................................................... 6 
2.8 Environmental Pennits, License and Certifications ...................................................... 6 
2.9 Hazardous Materials Transport ..................................................................................... ? 
2.10 Contractor Environmental Plan ................................................................................... 7 

3.0 Government-Furnished Equipment ..................................................................................... 7 
3.1. ARFF Vehicle ............................................................................................................. 7 
3.2. Fuel ............................................................................................................................. 7 

4.0 Contractor Furnished, Items and Services ........................................................................... 8 
4.1. ARFF and Support Vehicle ......................................................................................... 8 
4.2 Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) .......................................................................... 8 
4.3. Electricity .................................................................................................................... 8 

5.0 Performance Requirements ................................................................................................. 8 
5.1 Airfield ........................................................................................................................... 9 

5.1.1 Runways, Truciwnys, Ramps ............................................................................ 9 
5.1.2 Maintenance ..................................................................................................... 9 
5.1.3 Navigational Aids and Instrument Approaches ............................................. 10 

5.2 Airfield Inspections and Checks ................................................................................. 13 
5.2.1 Airfield Inspection .............................................................................................. 13 
5.2.2 Airfield Check .................................................................................................... 14 
5.2.3 Animal Activity .................................................................................................. 14 
5.2.4 Change in Airlield Status ................................................................................... 14 
5.2.5 Airfield Repair .................................................................................................... 14 

5.3 Airport Operations Manual ........................................................................................ 14 
5.3.l Approach Plntes .................................................................................................. 15 
5.3.2 Handling and Storing of Hazardous Substances and Materials ......................... .15 

5.4 Emergency Plan ......................................................................................................... 16 
5.5 Ground Vehicles and Personnel ................................................................................. 17 
5.6 Obstructions ............................................................................................................... 18 

Page 1 cf31 

Page 43 of74 

P141 



PERFORMANCE WORK STATEMENT (PWS) 
AIRFIELD OPERATION AND MANAGEMENT SERVICES AND AffiCRAFT RESCUE AND 

FmE FIGHTING SERVICES 
CONTRACT/RFP#: 70Z08424RALAM0001 

5.7 Wildlife Hazard Managemcnt ..................................................................................... 18 
5.7. l Remedial Plan ..................................................................................................... 18 
5.7.2 Pinn Requirements ................................. .............. ............................................... 19 

5.8 Airfield Condition Reporting ..................................................................................... 20 
5.9 Identifying, Marking, and Reporting Construction and Other Unseiviceable Areas.20 
5.10 Aircraft Rescue and Fire Fighting (ARFF) ................................................................. 21 

5.10.l Generol ............................................................................................................ 21 
5.10.2 ARFF Requirements ........................................................................................ 21 
5.10.3 Initial Response Capabilities ........................................................................... 21 
5.10.4 Required Response Capability - ARFF Log and Documentation ................... 22 
5.10.5 Notification Requiremcnt ................................................................................ 23 
5.10.6 Training Requirements .................................................................................... 23 
5.10.7 Emergency Communications System .... .......................................................... 23 
5.10.8 Administrative Reporting ................................................................................ 23 

5.11 Environmental Seivices .............................................................................................. 24 
5.11.1 Expendable Materials Requirement.. ...................................................... , ....... 24 
5.11.2 Containment of Liquid Petroleum Product Leaks and Spills .......................... 24 

6.0 Applicable Documents ....................................................................................................... 24 
7.0 Deliverables ....................................................................................................................... 25 
8.0 Contractor Quality Control Requirements ......................................................................... 27 

8.1 General.. ..... ..... ... .... .. ........ ....... .............. . ....................... ......... . .......... 27 
8.2 Contrnotor QC Plan (QCP) ....................................................................... 27 
8.3 QC Program/Inspection System ... ............ .. .......... ... .. . .. . .. . .. .... ........ . ........ .... 27 
8.4 Performance Evaluation Meetings .................................................................................. 27 
8.5 Contract Discrepancy Reports (CDRs) ........................................................................... 27 

9.0 Government Quality Assurance Surveillance Program ..................................................... 28 
9.1 Quality Assurance Surveillance Plan ........................................................... 28 
9.2 Government Observers ................................................................. .. ........ 28 

10.0 Glossary ........................................................................................................................... 29 
Exhibit 1 Airfield Map ............................................................................................................ 30 
Exhibit 2 Government Furnished Property (GFP) ................................................................... 31 
Exhibit 3 ARFF Vehicle Substitution Guidelines ................................................... 32 

Page 2 of31 

Page 44 of74 

P142 



PERFORMANCE WORK STATEMENT (PWS) 
AIRFIELD OPERATION AND MANAGEMENT SERVICES AND AIRCRAFT RESCUE AND 

FIRE FIGHTING SERVICES 
CONTRACT/RFP#: 70Z08424RALAM0001 

1.0 GENERAL. 

1.1 Mission. TI1e Air Station Sacramento is a fixed wing aviation unit that perfonns a wide 
range of Coast Guard missions for the Eleventh Coast Guard District and Pacific Area Commands. 
TI1e unit perfonus missions from the west coast of the United States to areas west of Canada and 
south along the Eastern Pacific to South America. TI1e Air Station maintains a 24-hour inunediate 
response capability, with a "ready" crew on duty at all times. 

1.2 Scope. TI1is Perfom1ance Work Statement (PWS) is for Airfield Services to be provided to 
the United States Coast Guard (hereafter called Coast Guard) at McClellan or its successor named 
airfield (hereafter called Airfield) and to the Coast Guard located at Coast Guard Air Station 
Sacramento (AIRSTA Sacramento). TI1is requirement is made up of two major components: the 
first is Airfield Operation and Management services to include runways, taxiways, clear-zones, 
ramps and aircraft parking areas, navigational aids to support Instrnment Flight Rules (IFR) 
Operations, Automated Weather Observation System (A WOS); and other airfield services such as 
airfield inspections and checks; an operations manual; an emergency plan; ground vehicles control; 
obstrnction handling; wildlife hazard management; airport condition reporting; identifying, 
J11arking and reporting constn1ction and other unserviceable areas. For this portion of the contract 
the Coast Guard reimburses only a portion of the Contractor's cost which they receive along with 
the reimbursement from the other airport tenants. 

TI1e second major component is for Aircraft Rescue and Fire Fighting (ARFF) services, which 
include training and staffmg in accordance with COMDTINST M5100.47D (series) and National 
Fire Protection Association (NFP A) 403 standards, provisions of ARFF vehicle maintenance, 
repair, equipment, emergency communication systems, and environmental spill response, in 
accordance with NFPA 412 and 414 standards. TI1is portion of the contract represents over 85% 
of the total contract cost. 

TI1e Contractor is responsible for the management, supervision, persmmel, equipment, tools, 
materials, parts, maintenance repair, training, transportation, all written deliverables and all other 
items and services necessary to perform the above functions described in this PWS except as 
specified in Section 3 as Govenunent-fum.ished property. TI1e Contractor shall also maintain the 
airport facilities to the standards outlined herein. TI1e Contractor Quality Control Plan (QCP) shall 
provide for the highest level of service delivery perfonnance. The Contractor shall use the PWS, 
all exhibits and applicable documents identified in paragraph 6.0 as well as the approved QCP to 
accolllplish the functions and tasks generated for optimal contract perfonnance. The Contractor 
shall perform the requirements of the PWS in a professional manner. 

2.0 CONTRACTOR RESPONSIBILITIES. 

2.1 Contractor Qualifications. The Contractor and any Subcontractor firms providing airfield 
maintenance and operations services shall have substantial relevant experience in the operation of 
an airfield. TI1e Contractor, any subcontractor finns, and their employees providing ARFF 
services shall have Department of Defense Fire and Emergency Services Certification Progralll 
(DOD FESCP) or equivalent NFPA training qualifications. 

Page3 of31 

Page 45 of74 

P143 



PERFORMANCE WORK STATEMENT (PWS) 
AIRFIELD OPERATION AND MANAGEMENT SERVICES AND AffiCRAF'f RESCUE AND 

FmE FIGHTING SERVICES 
CONTRACT/RFP#: 70Z08424RALAM0001 

2.2 Phase In/Phase Out. 
TI1e Contractor shall provide a phase-in/phase out plan within 10 days prior to contract start date. 
TI1e phase-in/phase-out plan shall describe actions, plans and procedures to ensure ( l) a smooth 
transition from contract award to full operational stah1s and (2) a smooth transition from contract 
perfonnance in the current tenn to perfonnance, perhaps by a different contractor, in another tenn. 
TI1e phase-out portion of the plan shall be updated 30 days prior to completion ofthe contract. TI1e 
phase-out portion shall include provisions for completion of appropriate Contractor 
responsibilities should there be a contract tennination proceeding. 

2.2.1 PHASE-IN. 1l1e Contractor shall assume total responsibility for all operations required by 
the contract as of the first day of the contract period. TI1erefore, as of the contract start date, the 
Contractor shall provide a workforce fully qualified and capable of performing all work required 
under tl1is contract, as well as all equipment, tools, materials and supplies to ensure capability of 
perfonning contract requirements. Beginning 30 calendar days prior to tl1e contract start date, the 
Contractor will be permitted to observe any operations of tl1e Government and incumbent 
contractor. TI1ese observations include but are not limited to tl1ose pertaining to office procedures 
and operations, repair/maintenance operations, and any otl1er operations deemed necessary by the 
incoming Contractor tl1at will enable his personnel to become botl1 knowledgeable and familiar 
with their assigned areas of responsibility. TI1e Contractor shall ensure, during phase-in activities, 
that: he shall not interfere with productivity; he shall coordinate all visits in advance and arrange 
to be accompanied by a Govenunent employee previously designated for that purpose; he shall 
confine his activities to tl1ose which can only take place prior to the contract period. Discussions 
with Govenunent or Contractor's employees while they are on duty shall be coordinated by the 
designated Government representative. During this phase-in period, the Contractor has no 
responsibility for tl1e services required in this contract. 

2.2.2 PHASE-OUT PERIOD. The Contractor shall present a detailed plan for any phase-out 
period, regardless of precipitating reasons. The plan shall include procedures for minimizing 
impact on perfonnance in compliance with standards in the contract. TI1e plan shall also (1) present 
procedures for retaining the required stafl"'mg level (including key personnel) necessary to provide 
complete contractual support tluough expiration of the contract and (2) describe in detail how 
responsibility and accountability will be relinquished for all Govenunent-provided items. 
Begim1ing 30 calendar days immediately prior to the end of tl1e contract period, tl1e Contractor 
will be required to allow perso1mel from the Government and/or from a successor Contractor to 
observe daily operations covered under tl1is contract. During this "phase-out" period the Contrnctor 
will remain totally responsible for tl1e services required in tl1is contract. TI1e Contractor shall not 
defer any needed repairs or maintenance for tl1e purpose of avoiding responsibility to the successor 
contractor. 1l1e Contractor shall coordinate activities with tl1e incoming Contractor to effect a 
smooth and orderly transition at the end of the contract period. The Contractor shall remove all 
Contractor-owned equipment, tools, parts and belongings from the Govenunent-provided facilities 
by midnight on the last day of the contract. 1l1e Contractor shall provide 011-tl1e-j ob familiarization 
for the incoming Contractor as required. 
2.3 Post-Award Conference. As soon as possible after tl1e contract start date, tl1c Contractor 
shall meet in conference witl1 the Contracting Officer and other aut11orized representative(s) of 

Page 4 of31 

Page 46 of74 

P144 



PERFORMANCE WORK STATEMENT (PWS) 
AIRFIELD OPERATION AND J\1ANAGEMENT SERVICES AND AffiCRAFTRESCUEAND 

FmE FIGHTING SERVICES 
CONTRACT/RFP#: 70Z08424RALAM0001 

the Government from USCG Air Station Sacramento to discuss and develop mutual 
understandings 

2.4 Community Relnfions Progmm. The Contractor shall maintain a "Good Neighbor" Plan. 
At a minimum the Contractor shall maintain a dedicated noise complaint telephone recording 
system, a log of noise complaints with records maintained for one year, respond to complaints, 
and be available to hear public comment rurnually. The Contractor shall advise the Coast Guard of 
noise complaints originating from Air Station activities. An active public relations process is 
essential to minimizing public negative environmental impact perceptions. Surrounding 
community in1pact shall be considered when amending the Airport Operations Manual (see PWS 
7.0 Deliverables). 

2.5 Contmctor Personnel Requirements. The Contractor shall provide fully trained Md 
qualified personnel to perfonn all services under this contract. 

2.5.1 Continuous Point of Contact. TI1e Contractor shall designate in writing individual points 
of contact ru,d alternate responsible for responding to the Coast Guard's concerns relating to the 
daily operations under this contract for the Airfield Operations ru1d Mru1agement portion of Ute 
contract and tlle ARFF portion of the Contract in accordaJ1ce wiUt Section 7.0 Deliverables. TI1e 
points of contact or alternate shall be available by phone 24 hours a day and shall be able to speak 
and write English. TI1e points of contact and alternate should have 24 hour access to a method for 
receiving and transmitting copies of documents e.g., via e-mail or fax. 

2.5.2 Contractor Employees. The Contractor shall not employ persons for work on Utis contract 
if such employee is identified as a potential threat to the health, safety, security, or operational 
mission of the Coast Guard. 

2.5.2.1 Contractor personnel shall present a neat appearance and be easily recognized by 
wearing distinctive clothing, badges, or nametags. 

2.5.2.2 All Contractor personnel shall possess current valid professional certifications as 
required to perfonn their respective job functions. 

2.5.2.3 TI1e Contractor shall not employ any person who is ru1 employee of Ute United 
States Govenunent if the employment of that person would create a conflict of interest 
ns defined by Federal Acquisition Regulations (FAR) Subpart 3.6. 

2.5.2.4 Contmctor Employee and Visitors (Post Aware! Access to Government 
Facilities) Security Requirements. All perso1mel employed by U1e Contractor (including 
subcontractors) in the performaJ1ce of the contract or any representative of the Contractor 
entering the Governments installation, shall abide by all applicable security regulations ru1d 
shall be subject to such security checks as may be deemed necessary by tlle Govenunent. 
In accessing Const Guard Air Station Sacramento property, all contractor persom1el, 
including subcontractors ru1d delivery persons, shall comply with nil applicable Const 
Guard security requirements for access to Air Station Sacramento property. 

Page 5 of31 

Page47 of74 

P145 



PERFORMANCE WORK STATEMENT (PWS) 
AIRFIELD OPERATION AND l'\1ANAGEMENT SERVICES AND AIRCRAFT RESCUE AND 

FIRE FIGHTING SERVICES 
CON'ffiACT/RFP#: 70Z08424RALAMOOO 1 

2.6 Othe1· Government Conh-acls or Agreements. TI1e Govenunent may undertake, award, 
or obtain or enter into, other contracts or agreements to augment these services. TI1e Contractor 
shall cooperate fully with such other Contractors, augmentees and Government employees. TI1e 
Contractor shall not commit or permit any act that will interfere with the perfonnance of work by 
any other Contractor, augmentee, or Govenunent employees, or with the proper execution of 
Govenunent business. 

2.7 Safety and Envil'Onmentnl Requirements. 

2.7.1 Licenses and Pennits, The Contractor shall obtain, without additional cost to the 
Govemment, all necessary Federal, State and local permits, licenses and certifications necessary 
giving all notice and complying with any applicable federal and state and local Jaws, codes, 
ordinances and regulations to operate the airfield and all other business carried on under this 
contract. Copies of pennits and licenses shall be provided to the Contracting Officer prior to 
contract start date or before work requiring a permit commences. 

2.7.2 TI1e Contractor shall petform and comply with all the requirements of this PWS in 
accordance with Federal and Califomia Occupational Safety and Health Act (OSHA) (CAL 
OSHA), including 29 CFR 1910 and Califomia Code of Regulations Title 8, whichever is more 
stringent and all other federal, state and local safety requirements. 

2.7.2.1 Safety Data Sheets (SDSs). TI1e Hazard Communication Standard (HCS) requires 
chemical manufacturers, distributors, or importers to provide Safety Data Sheets (SDSs) (fom1erly 
known as Material Safety Data Sheets or MSDSs) to conununicate the hazards of hazardous 
chemical products. The Contractor shall provide Safety Data Sheets to the COR and maintain them 
onsite for all materials utilized for the petfonnance of the contract in accordance with 29 CFR 
1910 (OSHA) (see PWS. 7.0, Deliverables). 

2.7.3 TI1e Contractor shall comply with all applicable Federal, State, and local environmental 
laws and regulations, including: Hazardous Materials Transportation Unifonn Safety Act 
(HMTUSA), Toxic Substances Control Act (TSCA), Federal Insecticide, Fungicide and 
Rodenticide Act (FIFRA), Comprehensive Environmental Response Compensation and Liability 
Act (CERCLA), Superfimd Amendments and Reautl1orization Act (SARA), Resource 
Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA), Safe Drinking Water Act (SDWA), Clean Air Act 
(CAA), and Federal Facilities Compliance Act (FFCA). 

2.8 Envil'Onmentnl Pennits, Licenses, nnd Ce11ificntlons. TI1e Contractor shall acquire and 
maintain all environmental compliances, licenses, pennits and certifications for tl1e operation of 
facilities and equipment throughout the life oftl1e contract. 

2.9 Hazardous Matelials Tmnspo11. Transportation of petroleum-based and hazardous 
material and hazardous waste under this contract shall be in accordance with all local, State and 
Federal laws and regulations goveming hazardous waste transport, including Title 49 Code of 
Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 171 and following, as prescribed by the Department of 

Page 6 of 31 

Page 48 of74 

P146 



PERFORMANCE WORK STATEMENT (PWS) 
AIRFIELD OPERATION AND MANAGEMENT SERVICES AND AIR.CRAFT RESCUE AND 

FIRE FIGHTING SERVICES 
CONTRACT/RFP#: 70Z08424RALAM0001 

Transportation. The Contractor and all vehicles used for transporting petroleum-based and 
hazardous material and hazardous waste shall be properly licensed, certified, and insured for 
transporting hazardous material and hazardous waste. The Contractor shall observe all Local, 
State and Federal regulations governing the routes over which the hazardous materials and 
hazardous waste are transported. TI1e Contractor shall ensure that all hazardous materials and 
hazardous waste to be transported are properly labeled and manifested and all vehicles are properly 
marked. 

2.10 Contmcto1· Environmental Pinn. The Contractor shall assure compliance with all local, 
State and Federal enviromuental laws and regulations and shall submit plan in accordance with 
PWS, 7.0, Deliverables. 

3.0 GOVERNMENT FURNISHED PROPERTY (GFP) 

3.1 ARFF Vehicle. TI1e Govenunent will provide GFP for the Contractor's use in the perfonnance 
of this contract: One (1) Aircraft Rescue and Firefighting (ARFF) Vehicle. GFP means property 
in the possession of, or directly acquired by, the Govemment and subsequently furnished to the 
Contractor for performance of a contract. GFP includes, but is not limited to, spare, and property 
fumished for repair, maintenance, overhaul, or modification. GFP also includes contractor
acquired property if the contractor-acquired property is a deliverable lll!der a cost contract when 
accepted by the Government for continued use under contract (FAR 52.245-1). (See SF1449 
continuation section V. General Clauses - Modifications). At the end of this contract, the 
Contractor shall return this equipment to the Govemment in good working order (see Exhibit 2, 
GoveC1U11ent Fumished Property). 

3.1.1. The Contractor shall have a process to create and provide reports of discrepancies, loss of 
GoveC1U11ent property, physical inventory results, audits and self-assessments, corrective actions, 
and other property related reports as directed by the Contracting Officer. 

3.1.2 If Coast Guard GFP equipment is detennined by the Coast Guard to be beyond economical 
repair, as prescribed by the U.S. Coast Guard Motor Vehicle Manual COMDTINST Ml 1240.9(D), 
the equipment will be retumed to Coast Guard Air Station Sacramento in its entirety. TI1e Coast 
Guard will provide a suitable replacement vehicle substantially the same as tl1e retumed vehicle 
within a reasonable time. Upon completion oftl1e contract, all remaining GFP will be retumed to 
the Const Guard. 

3.1.3 Contractor shall pem1anently station tl1e GFP ARFF vehicle at a facility on or near tlie 
Airfield. Contractor may use it to respond to any appropriate incident at the Airfield or related to 
Airfield activities involving Coast Guard or otl1er aircraft or personnel. 

3.2 :!I!!rl, 

3.2.1 TI1e Coast Guard will acquire aircraft fuel through a separate contract and retains the 
authority to purchase from its preferred fuel supplier. 

Page 7 of31 

Page 49 of74 

P147 



PERFORMANCE WORK STATEMENT (PWS) 
AIRFIELD OPERATION AND MANAGEMENT SERVICES AND AIRCRAFT RESCUE AND 

FmE FIGHTING SERVICES 
CONTRACT/RFP#: 70Z08424RALAM0001 

3.2.2 The Coast Guard will procure fuel for aircraft ground support equipment through a 
distinct govenunenl credit card arrangement or via an alternative contract. TI1e Coast Guard 
maintains the discretion to select its preferred fuel supplier for procurement. 

4.0 CONTRACTOR FURNISHED EQUIPMENT. ITEMS AND SERVICES. 

Except for the equipment specifically stated to be Government furnished in Section 3, the 
Contractor shall furnish everything required to perfonn this PWS including management, 
personnel, facility, personal protective equipment (PPE), training, supplies, and emergency 
response vehicle(s) necessary to perform an agent resupply operation for the assigned ARFF 
vehicle. 

4.1 ARFF rout Suppo1t V chicles. l11e Contractor shall maintain one ARFF vehicle for the C-
27J. TI1e Contractor shall also provide a support vehicle capable of meeting NFPA 403, chapter 
5.3.3 agent resupply requirements for the C-27J. 

TI1e Contractor is responsible for perfonning all maintenance, repairs, and inspections on all 
vehicles in accordance with manufacturer's guidelines. Routine Maintenance is defined as 
routinely scheduled services, inspections, and part replacement as per manufacturer's owner's 
manuals and guidance. (See PWS 5.10.3.2 lnitial Response Vehicles and Exhibit 3 ARFF Vehicle 
Substitution Guidelines). 

4.2 Personal Protective Equipment (PPE). Contractor shall provide all ARFF response 
persormel with self-contained breathing apparatus and a spare air cylinder certified to meet the 
edition ofNFPA 1981, Standard for Open-Circuit Self-Conta ined Breathing Apparatus for Fire 
Fighters, in effect al time of manufacture. Protective clothing shall be detennined using the criteria 
of most current edition ofNFPA 1971 and 1851. Protective clothing selection is the responsibility 
of the service provider. 

4.3 Elechicity. l11e Contractor is acco1mtable for fulfilling all electrical requirements of the 
airfield. 

5.0 PERFORMANCE REQUIREMENTS. 
TI1e Contractor shall provide all facilities, supervision, personnel, supplies, and services necessary 
to provide or perfonn: 

5.1 Airfield Operation and Maintenance 
5.2 Airfield Inspections and Checks 
5.3 Airport Operations Manual 
5.4 Emergency Plan 
5.5 Ground Vehicles and Persorurel 
5.6 Obstruction Handling 
5.7 Wildlife Hazard Management 
5.8 Airport Condition Reporting 

Page 8 of31 

Page 50 of74 

P148 



PERFORMANCE WORK STATEMENT (PWS) 
AffiFIELD OPERATION AND MANAGEMENT SERVICES AND AIRCRAFT RESCUE AND 

FffiE FIGHTING SERVICES 
CONTRACT/RFP#: 70Z08424RALAM0001 

5.9 Identifying, Marking, and Reporting Construction and OU1er Unserviceable Areas 
5.10 Aircraft Rescue and Fire Fighting (ARFF) 
5.11 Envirorunental Services 

Except as specifically othenvise stated, the Contractor shall provide all of these services 24 hours 
a day, seven (7) days a week. 

5.1 Ait·field. Except as allowed by Section 5.1.3.11, Contractor shall provide, maintain, and 
operate the Airfield in an operationally ready and safe condition that is capable at all times of 
Instnunent Flight Rules (IFR) operations for all Coast Guard aircraft types supporting Const 
Guard missions. Airfield Operation and Management services shall comply with all FAA, State 
and local requirements, including FAA Airport Design Advisory Circular, 1989, FAA A/C 150-
5300-13. 

5.1.1 Rwnvays, Taxiways, Ramps. Provide at no additional charge to the Govemment free and 
unrestricted access and use of all runways and taxiways for unlimited operations, lo ramps as 
designated in 5.1.1.3 below. 

5.1.1,1 Runway, Provide use ofnmway 16-34, a 10,600 foot (3,231 m) long and 200 
(61111) wide concrete runway as shown in Exhibit 1, Airfield Map. 

5.1.1.2 Taxiways. Provide use of taxiways A, B, C, D, E, F, G, and H. All taxiway 
locations are as shown in Exhibit 1, Airfield Map. 

5.1.1.3 Ramps. Provide unrestricted access to buildings 1032 and 1033 across the 
aircraft ramp designated "Mat Unifonn North" as shown in Exhibit I, Airfield Map. 

5.1.2 Maintenance. 1l1e Contractor shall maintain, and promptly repair the pavement of each 
runway, taxiway, loading ramp, and parking area on the airport that is identified and for Coast 
Guard's use as follows: 

5.1.2.1. 111e pavement edges shall not exceed three inches difference in elevation 
between abutting pavement sections and between full strength pavement and abutting 
shoulders. 

5.1.2.2. The pavement shall have no hole exceeding three inches in depth nor any hole 
the s lope of which from any point in the hole to the nearest point at the lip of the hole is 
45 degrees or greater as measured from the pavement ~urface plane, unless, in either case, 
the entire area ofU1e hole can be covered by a five inch dian1eter circle. 

5.1.2.3. 111e pavement shall be free of cracks and surface variations, which could impair 
directional control of aircraft. 

Page 9 of31 

Page 51 of74 

P149 



PERFORMANCE WORK STATEMENT (PWS) 
AIRFIELD OPERATION AND MANAGEMENT SERVICES AND AIRCRAFT RESCUE AND 

FIRE FIGHTING SERVICES 
CONTRACT/RFP#: 70Z08424RALAM0001 

5.1.2.4. Mud, dirt, sand, loose aggregate, debris, foreign objects, rubber deposits, and 
other contaminants shall be removed promptly and as completely as practicable. Runway 
rubber deposits shall be limited as prescribed by FAA regulation. 

5.1.2.5. Any chemical solvent that is used to clean any pavement area shall be removed 
as soon as possible, consistent with the instructions of the manufacturer of the solvent. 

5.1.2.6. The pavement shall be sufficiently drained and free of depressions to prevent 
ponding that obscures markings or impairs safe aircraft operations. 

5.1.2.7. All repairs shall be completed such that no adverse impact or reduction to the 
weight bearing strength of that surface is incurred. 

5.1.3 Navigationnl Aids and Jnstmment Appl'Onches. 

5.1.3.1 Contractor shall provide, maintain, and operate a precision ILS approach to Runway 
16 and non-precision TACAN or VOR-DME approaches to Rw1ways 16 and 34. All these 
aids and approaches shall be FAA approved and certified and include all associated 
equipment. TI1e ILS approach shall include alternate minimw11s for when approach related 
equipment is degraded. 

5.1.3.2 Contractor shall provide, maintain and operate PAPI or VASI lighting, approach 
lights, runway and taxiway edge lights, and a pilot-controlled runway lighting (PCL) 
system. 

5.1.3.3 Contractor shall provide, maintain, and operate an Automated Weather Observation 
System (A WOS) which provides Airfield surface weather infonnation 24 hours a day, 
seven (7) days a week, which includes temperature, barometric pressure, wind direction 
and velocity, precipitation, ceiling and visibility. 

5.1.3.4 Contractor shall provide and maintain at least the following marking systems for 
operations on the airport: 

5.1.3.4.1 Rwiway markings meeting the specifications for the appr_oach with the 
lowest minimwus authorized for each runway. 

5.1.3.4.2 Taxiway centerline and edge markings. 

5.1.3.4.3 Signs identifying taxiing routes on the movement area. 

5.1.3.4.4 Runway holding position markings and signs. 

5.1.3.4.5 ILS critical area markings and signs. 

Page 10 of31 

Page 52 of74 

P150 



PERFORMANCE WORK STATEMENT (PWS) 
AIRFIELD OPERATION AND MANAGEMENT SERVICES AND AIRCRAFT RESCUE AND 

FIRE FIGHTING SERVICES 
CONTRACT/RFP#: 70Z08424RALAM0001 

5.1.3.5 Contractor shall provide and maintain, when the airport is open during hours of 
darkness or during conditions below Visual Flight Rule (VFR) minimums, at least the 
following lighting systems for operations on the airport: 

5.1.3.5.1 Runway lighting meeting the specifications for the approach with the 
lowest minimums authorized for each runway. 

5.1.3.5.2 One of the following taxiway lighting systems: 

5.1.3.5.2.1 Centerline lights. 

5.1.3.5.2.2 Centerline reflectors. 

5.1.3.5.2.3 Edge lights. 

5.1.3.5.2.4 Edge reflectors. 

5.1.3.5.3 An airport beacon. 

5.1.3.5.4 Approach lighting meeting the specifications for the approach with the 
lowest minimums authorized for the nmway. 

5.1.3.5.5 Obstruction marking and lighting, as appropriate, on each object within 
its authority which constitutes an obstruction under 14 CFR Part 77, Subpart C, and 
"Obstmction Standards." 

5.1.3.6 Contractor shall properly maintain each marking or lighting system installed on the 
airport. TI1is includes: to clean, replace, or repair any faded, missing, or nonfunctional 
item oflighting; to keep each item unobscured and clearly visible; and to ensure that each 
item provides an accurate reference to the user. 

5.1.3.7 Contractor shall ensure that all lighting on the airport, including that for aprons, 
vehicle parking areas, roadways, fuel storage areas, and buildings, is adequately adjusted 
or shielded to prevent interference with air traffic control and aircraft operations. 

5.1.3.8 Contractor shall provide the following on its airport: 

5.1.3.8.1 A wind cone that provides surface wind direction infonnation visually to 
pilots. During hours of darkness, the wind direction indicators must be lighted. 

5.1.3.8.2 When there is no control tower operating, the Contractor shall draw a 
segmented circle around one wind cone and a landing strip and traffic pattem 
indicator for each runway (Runway 16 is right-handed, Runway 34 is left-handed). 

5.1.3.9 TI1e Contractor shall: 

Page 11 of31 

Page 53 of74 

P151 



PERFORMANCE WORK STATEMENT (PWS) 
AIRFIELD OPERATION AND MANAGEMENT SERVICES AND AIRCRAFT RESCUE AND 

FIRE FIGHTING SERVICES 
CONTRACT/RFP#: 70Z08424RALAM0001 

5.1.3.9.1 Prevent the constrnction of facilities or vehicle operations on its airport 
that would degrade the operation of an electronic or visual navaid and air traffic 
control facilities on the airport; 

5.1.3,9.2 Protect, or if the owner is other than the Contractor, assist in protecting, 
all navaids on the airport against vandalism and theft; and 

5.1.3.9.3 Prevent, insofar as it is within the airport's authority, intem1ption of visual 
and electronic signals of navaids. 

5.1.3.10 Contractor shall maintain all equipment supporting contract perfonnance in 
accordance with the original equipment manufach1rers' most current specifications, 
revisions, drawings, and recommendations. Maintain and repair all airfield lighting 
fixtures, constant current regulators, and associated lighting components with the original 
equipment manufacturers' most current specifications, revisions, drawings, and 
recommendations, standard industry practice, and National Electric Code. 

5.1.3.11 Except as pennitted in this paragraph, all equipment shall be operational when 
required for Coast Guard use. To the maximum extent possible, Contractor shall schedule 
and perfonn recurring maintenance when Coast Guard use is not anticipated. Either 
precision or non-precision approaches shall be operational during all scheduled 
maintenance. TI1e contractor shall respond to equipment problems or failures within two 
hours after notification and shall repair or replace any damaged or defective equipment 
within the timeframes established by F AA's Restoration Codes for airports with a public 
safety mission operating twenty-four (24) hours per day, seven (7) days per week. 

5.1.3.11.1 In the event of replacement or upgrade of any equipment system, 
Contractor will coordinate all downtin1e in advance with Coast Guard and will 
make best efforts to minimize impact to Coast Guard. To the maximum extent 
possible, Contractor shall schedule and perform when Coast Guard use is not 
anticipated. 

5.1.3.11.2 Contractor shall maintain a basic on-site spares kit consisting generally 
of parts that are mission critical, have a high frequency of repair, and have a 
comparatively low cost. 

5.1.3.12 Control Tower services are currently not required. However, Contractor shall 
provide control tower services that meet FAA standards in the event that 14 CPR 170.13 
establishment criteria is met (Note: This contract award does not include costs for Control 
Tower Services.) 

5.2 Airflel!I Inspections and a,ecl<S. 

5.2.1 Airfield Inspection. Contractor shall perfonn an Airfield Inspection at least monthly. An 
Airfield Inspection consists of identifying violations of established obstacle clearance criteria; 

Page 12 of31 

Page 54 of 74 

P152 



PERFORMANCE WORK STATEMENT (PWS) 
AIRFIELD OPERATION AND MANAGEMENT SERVICES AND AIRCRAFT RESCUE AND 

FIRE FIGHTING SERVICES 
CONTRACT/RFP#: 70Z08424RALAM0001 

identifying lighting, marking, and s ign discrepancies; inspecting construction areas to ensure they 
do not present hazard to aircraft operations; and inspecting pavement conditions, including debris, 
rubber deposits and surface conditions, and monitor vegetation and wildlife control. 

5.2.1.1 Self-Inspection Progmm. TI1e Contractor shall inspect the airfield as follows: 

5.2.1.1.1 Monthly, except as otherwise required by the airport certification manual or 
airport certification specifications; 

5.2.1.1.2 When required by any unusual condition such as construction activities or 
meteorological conditions that may affect safe nir carrier operations; and 

5.2.1.1.3 Immediately (within½ hour) after an accident or incident. 

5.2.1.2 TI1e Contractor shall provide the following: 

5.2.1.2,l Equipment for use in conducting safety inspections of the airfield; 

5.2.1.2.2 Procedures, facilities, and equipment for reliable and rapid dissemination of 
infonnation between airfield personnel and its users; 

5.2.1.2.3 Procedures to ensure that qualified inspection personnel perfonn the 
inspections; and 

5.2.1.2.4 A reporting system to ensure prompt correction of unsafe airfield conditions 
noted during the inspection. 

5.2.1.2.5 An email shall be sent by the airfield manager to the COR with important 
information and pertinent items of interest. This email shall contain but is not limited to 
all noise complaints and/or bird strike reports. 

5.2.1.3 TI1e Contractor shall prepare and keep for the life of the contract and make available for 
inspection by the COR on request, a record of each inspection prescribed by this section, showing 
the conditions found and all corrective actions taken. 

5.2.2 Airfiebl Check. Contractor shall perfom1 an Airfield Check at least once a day prior to the 
start ofnom1al flying operations or in response to a reported deficiency, discrepancy, or following 
an in-flight or landing emergency. TI1e contractor shall check the airfield as soon as possible, but 
no later than ½ hour, following abnonnal aircraft operations or an aircraft incident that may cause 
hazardous conditions. TI1e contractor shall check the airfield during and after severe weatl1er 
conditions, which may affect safe operations of the airfield. The contractor shall disseminate 
infonnation telephonically or via Fax to Coast Guard through local Notices to Ai.nnen 
(NOTAMS). 

An Airfield Check consists of: 

Page 13 of31 

Page 55 of74 

P153 



PERFORMANCE WORK STATEMENT (PWS) 
AIRFIELD OPERATION AND 1'11ANAGEMENT SERVICES AND AIRCRAFT RESCUE AND 

FJRE FIGHTING SERVICES 
CONTRACT/RFP#: 70Z08424RALAM0001 

5.2.2.1 Examining the primary takeoff, landing, and taxi surfaces. 

5.2.2.2 Checking and detennining runway surface condition, when required, and 
disseminate inforn1ation to Coast Guard via NOTAMS. 

5.2.2.3 Checking airfield lighting for serviceability. 

5.2.2.4 Checking airfield Use/ Access Control 

5.2.3 Animal Activity. The Contractor shall respond to bird/animnl/reptile activity on airfield as 
soon as possible. Issue appropriate NOT AMS and take appropriate dispersal/removal action. 
Remove remains, complete action, and document incident. 

5.2.4 Change in Airfield Stntus. Contractor, through NOT AMS infonn Coast Guard of status 
and condition of Airfield and of any changes in status that may cause an adjustment in the nonnal 
use or operation of the Airfield. 

5.2.5 Airfield Repair. Contractor shall maintain and, within a reasonable period of time, repair 
nny damaged or defective portion of Airfield. 

5.3 Airport Opemttons Manunl. Contractor shall maintain and promulgate to all airport 
tenants an Ai.lJ)ort Operations Manual which outlines appropriate plans for operations and 
management of the airport. TI1e Contractor shall update this Manual at least annually and shall 
crosscheck the Manual against appropriate guidance documents (see PWS 7.0, Deliverables). TI1e 
Operations Manual shall include the following topics: 

a. Inspection Authority 
b. Personnel 
c. Paved Areas 
d. Unpaved Areas 
e. Safety Arens 
f. Marking and Lighting 
g. Aircraft Rescue and Fire Fighting 
h. 20-Mile Area Mishap Grid Map 
i. HAZMATHandling 
j. Traffic Patterns and Wind Direction 
k. CT AF Procedures 
I. Self-Inspection Program 
111. Ground Vehicle Operations 
n. Obstructions 
o. Protection ofNavaids 
p. Public Protection 
q. Wildlife Hazards Management 
r. Condition Reporting 
s. Construction Reporting 
t. Non-Complying Condition 

Page 14 of31 

Page 56 of74 

P154 



PERFORMANCE WORK STATEMENT (PWS) 
AIRFIELD OPERATION AND MANAGEMENT SERVICES AND AIRCRAFT RESCUE AND 

FIRE FIGHTING SERVICES 
CONTRACT/RFP#: 70Z08424RALAM0001 

u. Charts, Approach Plates, and their Distribution 

5,3,1 Approach Plates, Contractor shall initiate and coordinate witl1 Federal Aviation 
Administration (FAA) to prepare approach plates for the Airfield and promulgate them through 
appropriate Flight Information Publications (FLIP) agencies, including NOAA, or include them in 
the Airport Operations Manual. Approaches shall be submitted and updated in accordance with 
PWS 7.0., Deliverables. 

5.3.1.1 The Airport Operations Manual shall require priority for Coast Guard Search and 
Rescue operations. 

5.3.2 Hnmllbtg nml Storing ofHnzanlous Substances and Matcrlnls. 

5.3.2.1 TI1e Contractor shall publish and distribute requirements in the Airport Operations 
Manual for the protection of persons and property on the airport during the handling and 
storing of any material regulated by the Hazardous Materials Regulations ( 49 CPR Part 
171, et seq.), that is, or is intended to be, transported by air). 

5.3.2.2 Designate a special parking area with an adequate clear zone for aircraft with "hot 
brakes" or an unstable load. 

5.3.3 TI1e Contractor shall publish and distribute standards for protecting against fire and 
explosions in storing, dispensing, and otherwise handling fuel, lubricants, and oxygen ( other than 
articles and materials that are, or are intended to be, aircraft cargo) on the airport. These standards 
shall cover facilities, procedures, and personnel training and shall address at least the following: 

5.3.3.1 Grounding and bonding. 

5.3.3.2 Public protection. 

5.3.3.3 Control of access to storage areas. 

5.3.3.4 Fire safety in fuel fam1 and storage areas. 

5.3.3.5 Fire safety in mobile fuelers, fueling pits, and fueling cabinets. 

5.3.3.6 Training of fueling perso1mel in fire safety in accordance with paragraph 5.4.5 of 
this section. 

5.3.3.7 TI1e fire code of the public body having jurisdiction over the airport. 

5.4 Emergency Pinn. TI1e Contractor shall maintain an Airport Emergency Plan designed to 
minimize the possibility and extent of personal injury and property damage on the airport in an 
emergency. TI1e Contractor's Emergency Plan may include applicable portions of the existing 

Page 1S of31 

Page 57 of74 

P155 



PERFORMANCE WORK STATEMENT (PWS) 
AIRFIELD OPERATION AND MANAGEMENT SERVICES AND AIRCRAFT RESCUE AND 

FffiE FIGHTING SERVICES 
CONTRACT/RFP#: 70Z08424RALAM0001 

United States Air Force Emergency Plan for McClellan. TI1is plan shall be submitted in accordance 
with PWS 7.0, Deliverables. 

5.4.1 TI1e plan must include procedures for prompt response to the following contingencies: 

5.4.1.1. Aircraft incidents and accidents; 

5.4.1.2 Bomb incidents, including designated parking areas for the aircraft involved; 

5.4.1.3 Structural fires; 

5.4.1.4 Natural disaster; 

5.4.1.5 Radiological incidents; 

5.4.1.6 Sabotage, hijack incidents, and other unlawful interference with operations; 

5.4.1.7 Failure of power for movement area lighting; and taxi ways and runways. 

5.4.2 TI1e plan required by this section must address or include: 

5.4.2.1 Emergency Response Organization shall be based on the Incident Command System (ICS). 

5.4.2.1.1111e Coast Guard shall be included in the unified command for all responses 
to Coast Guard mishaps or incidents; 

5.4.2.1.2 TI1e Coast Guard shall lead all investigations of Coast Guard mishaps or 
incidents; 

5.4.2.1.3 TI1e Const Guard will be afforded the opportunity to assign a Liaison 
Officer for all other mishaps or incidents that may impact Coat Guard operations 

5.4.2.2 TI1e plan required by this section must address or include: 

5.4.2.3 Emergency Pla1111ing and Response security and crowd control, specifying the name and 
location of each safety or security agency that agrees to provide assistance for the control of crowds 
in the event of an emergency on the airport; and 

5.4.3 TI1e plan required by this section must publish and distribute requirements that provide for: 

5.4.3.1 Tite marshalling, transportation, and care of injured and uninjured accident 
survivors; 

5.4.3.2 Tite removal of disabled aircraft; 

Page 16 of31 

Page 58 of74 

P156 



PERFORMANCE WORK STATEMENT (PWS) 
AIRFIELD OPERATION AND MANAGEMENT SERVICES AND AIRCRAFT RESCUE AND 

FmE FIGHTING SERVICES 
CONTRACT/RFP#: 70Z08424RALAM0001 

5.4.3.3 Emergency alann systems; and 

5.4.3.4 Coordination of airport and control tower functions relating to emergency 
actions. 

5.4.4 1l1e plan required by this section shall contain procedures for notifying the facil ities, 
agencies, and perso1mel who have responsibilities under tl1e Plan of the location of an aircraft 
accident, tl1e number of persons involved in tl1at accident, or any other infom1ation necessary to 
carry out their responsibilities, as soon as that infonnation is available. 

5.4.5 Tite Contractor shall: 

5.4.5.1 Coordinate its Plan with law enforcement agencies, rescue and fire fighting 
agencies, medical personnel and organizations, the principal tenants at tlte airport, and all 
other persons who have responsibilities under the Plan; 

5.4.5.2 To tl1e extent practicable, provide for participation by all facilities, agencies, 
and tenants in the development oftl1e Plan; 

5.4.5.3 Ensure that all airport persomtel having duties and responsibilities under the 
Plan are familiar with tl1eir assignments and are properly trained; 

5.4.5.4 At least once every 12 months, review the Plan with all of the parties with whom 
the Plan is coordinated to ensure that all parties know their responsibilities and that 
all of the infonnation in the Plan is current; and 

5.4.5.5 Atmual drill witJ1 tenants; can be a table top exercise with Level II complexity 
(see McClellan Emergency Action Plan). At least once every three year.. conduct a Level 
Ill drill, with collaborative effort between USCG and other MCC tenants. 

5.5 Gl'ow1d Vehicles 1111d Personnel. 
1l1e Contractor shall: 

5.5.1 Limit access to movement areas and safety areas only to those ground vehicles and 
personnel necessary for airport operations; 

5.5.2 Establish and implement procedures for the safe and orderly access to, and operation on, 
the movement area and safety areas by ground vehicles, including provisions identifying tJ1e 
consequences of noncompliance witlt tJ1e procedures by an employee, tenant, or contractor; 

5.5.3 In an uncontrolled field environment or when an air traffic control tower is not in operation, 
provide adequate procedures to control grotutd vehicles on the movement area through prearranged 
procedures, signs or signals; 

Page 17 of31 

Page 59 of74 

P157 



PERFORMANCE WORK STATEMENT (PWS) 
AIRFIELD OPERATION AND MANAGEMENT SERVICES AND Arn.CRAFT RESCUE AND 

FIRE FIGHTING SERVICES 
CONTRACT/RFP/1: 70Z08424RALAM0001 

5.5.4 Ensure that each employee, tenant, or contractor who operates a ground vehicle on any 
portion of the airport that has access to the movement area is familiar with the airport's procedures 
for the operation of ground vehicles and the consequences of noncompliance; and 

5.5.5 If an air traffic control tower or other centralized control is in operation, ensure that each 
ground vehicle operating on the movement area is controlled by one of the following: 

5.5.5.11\vo-way radio communications between each vehicle and the lower, 

5.5.5.2 An escort vehicle with two-way radio communications with the tower to 
accompany any vehicle without a radio, or 

5.5.5.3 Other measures acceptable for controlling vehicles, such as signs, signals, or 
guards, when it is not operationally practical to have two-way radio communications with 
the vehicle or an escort vehicle; 

5.5.6 Make available for inspection any record of accidents or incidents on the movement areas 
involving air carrier aircraft and/or ground vehicles. 

5.6 Obstmctions. TI1e Contractor shall ensure that each object in each area within its authority 
which exceeds any of the heights or penetrates the imaginary surfaces described in 14 CFR Part 
77, Subpart C is removed, marked, or lighted. However, removal, marking, and lighting is not 
required if it is detennined lo be unnecessary by an FAA aeronautical study. Private, off base 
property, is not considered to be within the Contractor's authority. 

5.7 Wildlife Hazard Mnnngement. 

5.7.1 Remedial Pinn. When any of the following events occurs on or near the airport, the 
Contractor shall ensure that a remedial plan acceptable to the COR is developed and executed. 
TI1e Contractor may accomplish this through appropriate coordination wiU1 Fish and Wildlife, 
County Animal Control, and 0U1er appropriate agencies. TI1is plan is in accordance PWS 7.0, 
Deliverables and shall be submitted no more Utan five (5) days after event occurrence. 

5.7.1.1 An aircraft experiences a damaging collision with wildlife. • 

5.7.1.2 Wildlife of a size or in numbers capable of causing an event described in 
paragraph 5. 7.1.l or 5.7.1.2 of this section is observed to have access to any airport 
flight pattem or movement area. 

5.7.2 Plan Requirements. TI1e plan developed in paragraph 5.7.1 of this section shall contain at 
least the fo llowing: 

5.7.2.1 Analysis ofU1e event which prompted the plan. 

Page 18 of31 

Page 60 of74 

P158 



PERFORMANCE WORK STATEMENT (PWS) 
AIRFIELD OPERATION AND MANAGEMENT SERVICES AND AffiCRAFTRESCUEAND 

FffiE FIGHTING SERVICES 
CONTRACT/RFP#: 70Z08424RALAM0001 

5.7.2.2 Identification of the species, numbers, locations, local movements, and daily 
and seasonal occurrences of wildlife observed. 

5.7.2.3 Identification and location of features on and near the airport that attract 
wildlife. 

5.7.2.4 Description of the wildlife hazard to flight operations. 

5.7.2.S TI1e persons who have authority and responsibility for implementing the plan. 

5.7.2.6 Priorities for needed habitat modification and changes in land use identified in 
the ecological study, with target dates for completion. 

5.7.2.7 Requirements for and, where applicable, copies of local, state, and Federal 
wildlife control permits. 

5.7.2.8 Identification of resources to be provided by the contract for implementation of 
the plan. 

5.7.2.9 Procedures to be followed during flight operations, including 5.7.2.10 & 5.7.2.11 

5.7.2.10 Assignment of personnel responsibilities for implementing the procedures. 

5.7.2.11 Conduct of physical inspections of the movement area and other areas critical to 
wildlife hazard management sufficiently in advance of air carrier operations to allow time 
for wildlife controls to be effective. 

5.7.2.12 Wildlife control measures; 

5.7.2.13 Communication between the wildlife control personnel and any air traffic 
control tower in operation at the airport; 

5.7.2.14 Notwithstanding the other requirements of this section, the Contractor shall take 
immediate measures to alleviate wildlife hazards whenever they are detected. 

5.8 Airfielcl Condition Reporllng. 

5,8.1 Tite Contractor shall provide for the collection and dissemination of airport condition 
infonnation to the Coast Guard. 

5.8.2 In complying with paragraph 5.9.1 of this section, the Contractor shall utilize the Local 
Notice to Ainuen (NOT AM) system. 

5.8.3 In complying with PWS paragraph 5.9.1, the Contractor shall provide information on tl1e 
following airport conditions that may affect the safe operations. 

Page 19 of31 

Page 61 of74 

P159 



PERFORMANCE WORK STATEMENT (PWS) 
AIRFIELD OPERATION AND MANAGEMENT SERVICES AND AIRCRAFT RESCUE AND 

FIRE FIGHTING SERVICES 
CONTRACT/RFP#: 70Z08424RALAM0001 

5.8.3.1 Construction or maintenance activity on movement areas, safety areas, or loading 
ramps and parking areas. 

5.8.3.2 Surface irregularities on movement areas or loading ramps and parking areas. 

5.8.3.3 Objects on the movement area or safety areas. 

5.8.3.4 Malfunction of any lighting system. 

5.8.3.5 Unresolved wildlife hazards. 

5.8.3.6 Non-availability of any rescue and firefighting capability as outlined in 
paragraph 5.10. 

5.8.3.7 Any other condition as specified in the Airport Certification Manual or airport 
certification specifications, or which may otherwise adversely affect the safe flight 
operations. 

5.9 Identifying, Maddng, and Reporting Conshuction ancl Other Unserviceable Arells. 

5.9.1 TI1e Contractor shall: 

5.9.1.1 Mark and, if appropriate, light: 

5.9.1.1.1 Each constrnction area and unserviceable area which is on or adjacent to 
any movement area or any other area of the airport on which aircraft may be 
operated; 

5.9.1.1.2 Each item of constrnction equipment and each constrnction roadway, 
which may affect the safe movement of aircraft on the airport; and 

5.9.1.1.3 Any area adjacent to a navaid that, if traversed, could cause derogation of 
the signal or the failure of the navaid, and 

5.9.1.2 Provide procedures, such as a review of all appropriate utility plans prior to 
constrnction, for avoiding damage to existing utilities, cables, wires, conduits, pipelines, 
or other underground facilities. 

5.10 Aircmft Rescue and Fire Fighting (AR_FF). 

5.10.1 General. The Contractor shall provide continuous Aircraft Rescue and Fire Fighting 
(ARFF) response capability for aircraft flight and ground emergencies at the airfield and on Coast 
Guard property contiguous to the airfield. TI1e primary requirement is for saving lives; the 
secondary requirement is extinguishing fire and limiting damage to aircraft and property. TI1e 
requirement for services is generated primarily by U. S. Coast Guard ARFF standards for the 

Page 20 of31 

Page 62 of74 

P160 



PERFORMANCE WORK STATEMENT (PWS) 
AIRFIELD OPERATION AND MANAGEMENT SERVICES AND AmCRAFT RESCUE AND 

FIRE FIGHTING SERVICES 
CONTRACT/RFP#: 70Z08424RALAM0001 

protection of personnel, mission aircraft, fuel, associated equipment, and property. Air Station 
Sacramento operates up to 6 C-27J aircraft with a maximum taxiing weight of 67,682 pounds and 
a maximum fuel capacity of 21,458 pounds. There are plans to relocate the C-130 aircraft 
permanently to the Air Station in 2027, but there is no requirement to provide ARFF for a C-130J 
at this time. A C-130Jhas a maximum taxiing weight of 155,000 pounds and a maximum fuel 
capacity of62,500 pounds. 

5.10.2 ARFF Requirements. TI1e Contractor shall comply fu lly with the Coast Guard ARFF 
requirements set forth in COMDTJNST M5100.47D (series), as well as NFPA 403 and 412 
standards, apart from any structural firefighting requirements. 

5.10.2.1 Air Station Watch Standers primary means of activating ARFF response will be 
through a direct call to a telephone established by the contractor. TI1e contractor will 
maintain a primary landline as well as a backup cellular line. 

5.10.3 Initial Response Capabilities. The Contractor shall provide the following initial response 
capabilities and are subject to unrumounced drills that cover the C-27J. 

5.10.3.1 Initlal Response Times. TI1e major ARFF vehicles and personnel required by the 
following subparagraphs shall arrive at the location of the incident: 

n. C-27 J - One (I) ARFF vehicle within one (1) minute Announced or five (5) minutes 
Unrumounced for any incident on tlie runways or overruns. 

b. Response times shall be defined as the interval between the time the Coast Guard 
Operations Center or other competent authority notifies tl1e fire station watch stander 
of a declared emergency, aircraft crash or collision, or any other incident requiring ru1 
ARFF response, and the arrival of the full required complement of personnel, major 
ARFF vehicles and agents at the scene of the reported incident. 

5.10.3.2 InJtinl Resp onse V chicles. TI1e Contractor shall be capable of responding with at 
least one ARFF vehicle wit11 at least a 1,340-gallon water capacity and capable of 
delivering water and/or Aqueous Film Fanning Foam (AFFF) agents from all mounted 
turrets at a rate not less than 750 gallons per minute. The vehicle shall be capable of 
dispensing a complementary agent of at least 300 pounds of potassium bicarbonate powder 
(PKP). Powder can be substituted by a listed agent exceeding the pcrfonnance of potassium 
bicarbonate approved by tl1e Coast Guard. The vehicle shall meet all other applicable 
requirements ofNFPA 412, ru1d 414, Chapter 4. 

5.10.3.3 Initial Response Perso1mel. Except as authorized in Section 5.10.5, l11e ARFF 
vehicle and personnel necessary to meet the minimum response requirement for the C-27J 
is as follows: one ARFF vehicle and shall be always staffed wit11 three (3) personnel, 
including a driver/operator, a lead fire fighter (Crew Chief) and one ( I) fire fighter/rescue 
person. 

Page 21 ofJl 

Page 63 of74 

P161 



PERFORMANCE WORK STATEMENT (PWS) 
AIRFIELD OPERATION AND MANAGEMENT SERVICES AND Arn.CRAFT RESCUE AND 

FIRE FIGHTING SERVICES 
CON1RACT/RFP#: 70Z08424RALAM0001 

Incident Commander: TI1e Lead Firefighter assigned to the primary ARFF response vehicle 
shall be qualified to assume the duties of the Incident Commander. An additional person 
to assume this role is not necessary. 

5.10.4 Require1l Response Cnpabllities/ARFF Response Log and Docwnentntion. TI1e 
Contractor shall maintain a log and document the date and time whenever the initial ARFF 
response will consist of fewer than the one ARFF vehicle and/or persom1el required in Sections 
5.10.3.2 and 5.10.3.3 (see 5.10.4.1, 5.10.4.2 and Exhibit 3, ARFF Vehicle Substitution 
Guidelines). 

5.10.4.1 ARFF Vehicle Substitution Gullielines. If none of the contractor vehicles or 
Government furnished vehicle is available because of maintenance and repair requirements 
or other events beyond the control of Contractor, the Contractor shall implement the ARFF 
Vehicle Substihttion Plan in accordance with 5.10.4.2 and Exhibit 3, ARFF Vehicle 
Substitution Guidelines. 

5.10.4.2 ARFF V elticle Substitution Pinn. TI1e Contractor shall submit an ARFF vehicle 
substitution plan in accordance with Exhibit 3, ARFF Vehicle Substihttion Guidelines. 
TI1is plan shall list specific substitute vehicles prior to the need for their assigmnent as 
initial response vehicles and specify implementation and procedural requirements. TI1e 
Plan is intended to ensure compliance with the contract requirement that the contractor 
shall be capable of responding with at least one ARFF vehicle as specified in paragraph 
5.10.3.2, or a force with an equivalent firefighting capability. In accordance with 7.0 
deliverables the plan is due 10 days prior to contract start date and updated as changes 
occur (see 7.0 Deliverables and Exhibit 3 ARFF Vehicle Substitution Guidelines). 

5.10.5 Notification Requirement. The Contractor shall notify the Coast Guard within 15 
minutes whenever the initial ARFF response will consist of less than l ARFF vehicle and/or 
persom1el required for the C-27J as per sections 5.10.3.2 and 5.10.3.3. 

5.10.6 Training Requirements. All personnel must be certified as having met the requirements 
of Department of Defense Fire and Emergency Services Certification Program (DOD FESCP) or 
equivalent NFPA training qualifications (NFPA 1003) in effect when certified or no more than 
three years prior to certification. 

5,10.6.1 Ongoing training shall be provided and documented for all personnel through an 
on-the-job program. Tiie ongoing training program shall include as a minimum: 
n. Hot drills simulating aircraft fire emergency. 
b. Firefighting operations and tactics. 
c. Rescue and first aid procedures. 
d. Emergency equipment operation. 
e. Crash locator maps and on-station/off-station familiarization. 
f. Aircraft fan1iliarization. 
g. Airfield emergency communication procedures. 
h. Fundamentals of combustion, fire control, and extinguislunent. 

Page 22 of31 

Page 64 of74 

P162 



PERFORMANCE WORK STATEMENT (PWS) 
AIRFIELD OPERATION AND .MANAGEMENT SERVICES AND Am.CRAFT RESCUE AND 

FIRE FIGHTING SERVICES 
CONTRACT/RFP#: 70Z08424RALAM0001 

i. Aircraft fire hazards, fuel, ordnance, lubricants, and composite materials. 
j. Hazardous material. 
k. 20-mile grid map familiarization 

5.10.7 Emergency Conununicntions System. The Contractor shall have an Emergency 
Communications System with the following minimum requirements: 
a. Pennanently installed mobile radios in all vehicles. 
b. Station radios in tl1e fire station. 
c. Radios shall be capable of communicating from vehicle to vehicle, to the fire dispatchera or 

communication centera, to potential mutual aid stations, and to Coast Guard Aircraft. Use 
VHF Frequency 122.975 (CTAF) or UHF 237.9 (station frequency). Portable Radios (walkie
talkies) for the lead fire fighter in each vehicle. Portable Radios shall be capable of 
conununicating with each other and to tl1e Fire District. 

5.10.8 Administrative Repo11ing. 
111e records shall be kept and made available to the Govenunent tltroughout the contract 
perfonnance period and for tl1e period after contract completion until fmal settlement of any claims 
under the contract (see PWS 7.0, Deliverables). 

a. ARFF daily joumal. A daily joumal shall be maintained by each ARFF organization. 111is 
joumal shall be a chronological listing of all pertinent events and retained on file for the 
duration of the contract and tumed into the COR at tl1e end of each perfonnance period. 

b. Response report(s). A locally produced report of the details of each response run made by 
the ARFF unit shall he made. These response reports shall be retained on file for tl1e 
duration of the contract and tumed into the COR at tlte end of each pcrfonnance period. 

c. Record of number of times not able to respond, including date, time circumstances, and 
reason for tl1e duration of the contract and turned into the COR at the end of each 
perfonnance period. 

d. Fire Fighter Certification. Maintain and retain for tl1e duration of tl1e contract. All 
documents are to be made available at the request of the Contracting Officer or 
Representative or COR. 

5.11 Enviromnentnl Services. Environmental planning shall include a response plan for a fuel 
spill that occura when fueling, in the event of a fuel truck failure and in the event of an aircraft 
collision as required by PWS 7.0, Deliverables. 

5.11.1 Expenclnble M11te1inls Requirement. Fumish and have on hand at all times tl1e following 
expendable materials for fuel spill containment and cleanup. 

5.11.1.1 Contractor shall maintain n minimum of one 85-gallon overpack kit of fuel 
absorbent material for the airfield. 

5.11.1.2 Contractor shall maintain a sufficient number of contractor fumished plastic 
bags to proper I y dispose of fuel soaked absorbent mnterial. 

Page 23 of31 

Page 65 of74 

P163 



PERFORMANCE WORK STATEMENT (PWS) 
AIRFIELD OPERATION AND MANAGEMENT SERVICES AND AIRCRAFT RESCUE AND 

FIRE FIGHTING SERVICES 
CONTRACT/RFP/1: 70Z08424RALAM0001 

5.11.1.3 Contractor shall maintain a major spill containment kit and provisions for 
additional first responder support. 

5.11.2 Containment of Liquid Petroleum Product Leaks and Spills. TI1e Contractor shall 
deploy environment equipment and place the Contractors' fuel absorbent material on all leaks and 
spills that occur in the AJRSTA, Sacramento or Contractor's operating areas (regardless of cause 
or fault). 

6.0 APPLICABLE DOCUMENTS. 

6.1. TI1e Contractor shall comply with all federal, state, and local environmental protection 
statutes and regulations, as well as applicable US Coast Guard policies, instrnctions, directives, 
attachments, and exhibits listed in the table below pertaining to the services required herein and to 
the conduct and qualifications ofpersollllel in perfonnance of this contract. 

6.2. TI1e Government will provide all Coast Guard publications listed upon request of the 
Contractor. For Other Reference Documents the Coast Guard will provide a source for or the 
document itself upon request. Supplements or amendments to listed publications may be issued 
during the life of the contract. TI1e Contractor shall immediately implement those changes, which 
result in a decrease, or no change in the contract price. Upon completion of the contract, the 
Contractor shall retum to the Govenunent all issued publications. 

Publication Number Title 

COMDTINSTM11240.9D U.S. Coast Guard Motor Vehicle Manual 

COMDTINST M5100.47D U.S. Coast Guard Safety and Environmental Health 
Manual 

COMDTINST M5000.3B U.S. Coast Guard Re1rnlations 
COMDTINST M5100.47 Safetv and Occupational Health Manual 
COMDTINST 16478.18 Hazardous Waste Management 
COMDTINSTMll000.7 Facilities Enerl!V Manual 
Other Reference Documents 

FAA NC 150-5300-13 FAA Airport Design Advisory Circular www.faa.gov 
49 CFRPart 171 and Following 
14 CFRPart 77, subpart C, Obstruction Standards 
14 CFRPart 170, subpartB-Airport Traffic Control Standards 
29 CFR 1910 (OSHA) 
49 CFRPart 171 and Following 
California Occupational Safetv and Health Act 
Clean Air Act 
Comprehensive Environmental Response Compensation and Liability Act (CERCLA) 
Federal Insecticide, F11n1ticide and Rodenticide _Act (FIT• RA) 
Federal Facilities Compliance Act 
Hazardous Materials Transportation Uniform Safety Act (HMTUS) 
National Electrical Code 

Page 24 of31 

Page 66 of74 

P164 



PERFORMANCE WORK STATEMENT (PWS) 
AIRFIELD OPERATION AND MANAGEMENT SERVICES AND AffiCRAFT RESCUE AND 

FmE FIGHTING SERVICES 
CONTRACT/RFP/1: 70Z08424RALAM0001 

NFPA 403 Standard for Aircraft Rescue and Fire-Fighting Services at Aiiports 
NFPA 412 Standard for Evaluating Aircraft Rescue and Fire-fighting Foan1 Equipment 
NFPA 414 Standard for Aircraft Rescue and Fire-Fighting Vehicles 
NFPA 1003 Standard Aimort Fire Fiehtine Professional Qualifications 
NFPA 1976 Standard for Protective Clothes for Proximity Fire Fighting 
NFPA 1981, Standard for Open-Circuit Self Contained Breathing Apparah1S for Emergency 
PersonneVFire Fiehters 
McClellan Emergency Action Plan 
Occupational Safety and Health Act 
Resource Conservation and Recovery Act 
Safe Drinking Water Act 
Superfund Amendments and Reauthorization Act (SARA) 

7.0 DELIVERABLES. 
TI1e Contractor shall develop and submit all required deliverables as specified in this PWS and the 
following table to the COR and Contracting Officer. Deliverables must be submitted 
electronically, preferably in MS Word or Abode (current versions) fonnat, ensuring compatibility 
with PC systems when applicable. 

Deliverable PWS Distribution Due by 
Reference 

Commllllity Good Neighbor 2.3 COR Ongoing - Advise COR if noise complaints 
Plan - Noise Complaint originate from Coast Guard. 
L OI! 

Continuous Point of 2.4.1 KO &COR Update as Occurs- Submit with proposal 15 
Conlact days prior to contract start dale; submit 

uncl•tes as reouired. 
Licenses and Penn its 2.7.1 KO Annually or as Required - Submit 15 days 

prior to contract start date; submit updates as 
reouired. 

Safety Data Sheets (SDSs) 2.6.2.1 COR Update BS Occur- Submit 15 days prior to 
contract start date· uodates as they occur. 

Airfield Emails 5.2.1.2.5 COR Ongoing - When new infonnation or 
nertinent items of interest occur. 

Airfield Inspection Reports 5.2.1.3 COR Ongoing - Available for review by the COR 
orKO. 

Airport Operations Manual 5.3 KO &COR Annually and as Occur - Submit 15 days 
prior lo contract slart date; Annual updates 
and whenever uncl•lcs arc made. 

Published Inslrument 5.3.1 KO &COR Update as Occur - Submit 15 days prior to 
Aooroaches rontract start date· Submit uodates as needed. 
Airport Emergency Plan 5.4, 5.4.5, KO&COR Update as Occur - Submit 15 days prior to 

and 5.4.5.5 contract start date, Annual review of plan; 
Annual drill with tenants (Level II) and Tri-
annual Drill (Level ill) 

Wildlife Hazard Remedial 5.7 KO&COR Update as Occur- Submit 5 days al\er event 
Plan(s) occurrence· Submit uodates BS thev occur. 

Page 25 of31 

Page 67 of 74 

P165 



PERFORMANCE WORK STATEMENT (PWS) 
AIRFIELD OPERATION AND MANAGEMENT SERVICES AND AIRCRAFT RESCUE AND 

FIRE FIGHTING SERVICES 
CONTRACT/RFP#: 70Z08424RALAM0001 

ARFF Response 5.10.4 and COR Update as Occur - Log in when Below 
Log/Documentation and 5.10.5 Required Response Capability (Vehicle or 
Notification Personnel) and Notify COR within 15 

minutes. 
Administrative Reporting 5.10.8 (a) Daily 
(a)Daily Journal (aXbXc)(d) COR (b) Each Response Run 
(b) Response Report (c) Record of times not Able to Respond 
(c) Non Response Record (d) Ongoing 
(d) Fire Fighter 
Certifications At the close of each option year period. Hold 

records for contract duration. 
Environmental Plan to 2.9and5.II KO&COR Update as Occur- Submit 15 days prior to 
include Fuel Spill Response contract start date; Submit updates as needed 
Plan 
Quality Control Plan (QCP) 8.0 KO&COR Annually - Submit 15 days prior lo contract 

start date· Submit updates as needed. 
Service Contract Report I I.I System for Annually, by 31 October. 
(ONLY IF AWARD IS Award 
OVERS500K) Management 

(SAM), 
Contracting 
Officer 

Insurance Certificate I I.I and I 1.2 KO Annually; during post award conference for 
Clause Section, HSAR Base year and fifteen (15) business days 
3052.228-70 and FAR prior lo beginning work wider an option 
Clause 52.228-5 vcar. 

8.0 CONTRACTOR QUALIT Y CONTROL REQUIREMENTS. 

8.1 General. The Contractor is required to develop a comprehensive program of inspections 
and monitoring actions which comprise a Quality Control Plan (QCP). The Contractor shall 
provide adequate quality control, management, and supervision to ensure that the Contractor's 
perfonuance meets all the requirements of this contract. 

8.2 Contractor QC Pinn (QCP). The Contractor shall submit with.in 15 days prior to contract 
start date for review and approval a QC Plan describing the Contractor's QCP program inspection 
system that monitors, controls, and ensures that the perfonnance requirements of this contract are 
met. 111e plan shall establish and explain in detail how the Contractor shall sustain the quality 
standards for Airfield services, Navigational Aids and Instrnment Approaches and Aircraft Rescue 
and Fire Fighting services. (See PWS 7.0, Deliverables). 

8.3. QC Prognun/bispcction System. TI1c QC system shall encompass all ftmctions of the 
contract. It must specify areas to be inspected on both a scheduled and unscheduled basis and list 
the title(s) of the individual(s) conducting the inspection. TI1e Contractor shall develop and 
implement quality control procedures addressing the areas identified in the PWS and implement 
procedures to identify, prevent, and ensure non-recurrence of defective services. TI1e QC 
program/Inspection System shall be designed to keep the Contractor's management and the Coast 
Guard informed of all issues affecting quality of service to include timely and effective corrective 
actions. TI1e QC records shall, in part, consist of checklists of inspections and shall indicate the 

Page 26 of31 

Page 68 of74 

P16 6 



PERFORMANCE WORK STATEMENT (PWS) 
AIRFIELD OPERATION AND l\1ANAGEMENT SERVICES AND AIRCRAFT RESCUE AND 

FmE FIGHTING SERVICES 
CONTRACT/RFP/1: 70Z08424RALAM0001 

nature, frequency and number of observations made; the number and type of deficiencies found, 
and the nature of corrective action taken as appropriate. TI1e Contractor shall ensure that QC 
includes timely and effective corrective action for all deficiencies identified by the Govemment. 
The Contractor shall make available to the Govemment all records of inspection. 

8.4. Perfomumce Evaluation Meetings. The Contractor may be required to meet with the 
COR. Meetings thereafter will be as often as necessary as detennined by the COR. Time and place 
of the meetings will be mutually agreed upon between the Coast Guard and the Contractor. TI1e 
minutes of the meetings shall be prepared by the contractor and signed by the COR w1d the 
Contractor. If the Contractor does not concur with the minutes, any areas of non-concurrence shall 
be stated in writing and submitted to tJ1e COR within five calendar days of receipt of the signed 
minutes. 

8.5. Contract Dlscrcpnncy Repoit (CDR). When a discrepw1cy exists, tJ1e Contractor Officer 
or COR shall complete a CDR, which will be submitted, at the time of issuance, to tJ1e Contractor 
for completion. TI1e Contracting Officer will evaluate ilie Contractor's explanation and detennine 
the next course of action. TI1e Contractor may request a meeting whenever a Contract Discrepancy 
Report (CDR) is issued. Appropriate contractual remedies may be applied in accordw1ce witJ1 the 
PWS as indicated in the Contract. 

9.0 GOVERNMENT QUALITY ASSURANCE REQUIREMENTS. 

9.1 Quality Assurance Surveillance Plan. TI1e Government's Quality Assurance 
Surveillance Plan (QASP) is independent of tJ1e Quality Control Program Plan managed by the 
Contractor and is not a substitute for tJ1e Quality Control by the Contractor. All fmdings of 
unsatisfactory or non-perfonned work will be administered under tJ1e tenns and conditions of this 
contract. To facilitate the Government's (QASP), the COR will verify Contractor compliance with 
designated perfonuance requirements. TI1e Contracting Officer's Representative (COR) will 
provide appropriate surveillance to detennine whether the Contractor's perfonnance meets the 
contract requirements. Government perso1mel will record all surveillw1ce observations, including 
reported inadequate or defective perfom1nnce. TI1e COR will periodically update tJ1e surveillance 
approach when tJ1e need arises. In addition, for noncompliant or untimely corrective action of 
identified deficiencies of specific tasks, tJie Contractor maybe required to re-perfonn the task. All 
costs associated with rework are the responsibility oftJ1e Contractor. 
9.2. Govemment Observers. Govenunent perso1mel, other than tJ1e Contracting Officer and 
the COR may, from time to time, observe Contractor operations. 

10.0 GLOSSARY. 

Alrfldd McClellan Air Force Base (or its successor) IMC Instrument Meteorological Conditioos 

AIRSTA US Coost Guard Air Station at Sacramento, CA NAVAIDS Navigational Aids 

ALP Airport Layout Plan NFPA National Fire Protection Association 

ARC Airport Reference Code NOAA National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration 

ARFF Aircraft Rescue and Fire Fighting NOTMl Notice to Ainnen 

ARP Airport Reference Point 
Page27obii 

Obstruction Fee Area 

AWOS Automated Weather Observation System OFL Obstruction Free Zone 

DRAC Base Realignment and Oosure Commission OGE Office ofGovemment Ethics 

Page 69 of74 

P167 



PERFORMANCE WORK STATEMENT (PWS) 
AIRFIELD OPERATION AND J'11ANAGEMENT SERVICES AND AIRCRAFI' RESCUE AND 

FIRE FIGHTING SERVICES 
CONTRACT/RFP#: 70Z08424RALAM0001 

Page28 of31 

Page 70 of74 

P168 



. . . . JECliNICAL~XHiaUl . . . . . 
i,JRFlELD OPERATIOO ANQMANi\(;~MEl'f~· S~RVJCES ,AND AIRCRAFT RESCUE :AND 

. . .•. • • - • FiRE.FIGHTiI'iC SE.RVIGES • • • • • • 
cdNtRAcr!i&Pli:}lizoS421RA11s1soo . ~ -. . .. ·. . . . . . . • : ·. 

llhitolll. Opl(~ll/n)I (!Jl~N• n'lll lllOli.1 iln~ /lfr~ltll\Jlts( l,".lOt;O, ~---~~ 

~ii::i-'i:t::.~"'" • 1 TJCJ 
!itl~~~f~~~I l . • ;II 

i 
.?- ' -• ltw 

. 
l . • o 

~ 1~. 

♦.iri•·j.,. . 

I 

L .... ~t 
.,,1 
,. 

Pege.29 cif31 

McCl~ll~it}'al'k~ 
Jet Services Qir 

liD1A7ti\~j~-nr 
• 7,.1,111 .. , ' 

Page 71 of74 

P169 



TECHNICAL EXHIBIT 3 
AIRFIELD OPERATION AND MANAGEMENT SERVICES AND AIRCRAFT RESCUE AND 

FIRE FIGHTING SERVICES 
CONTRACT/RFP#: 70Z08421RA1152800 

GOVERNMENT FURNISHED PROPERTY 

TI1e Govenunent will furnish the following equipment. Changes in equipment will made under 
the Government Property clause of this contract. 

Equipment Item Acquisition (ACO) Cost 
One (1) 2001 Model Pl50 Air Rescue and Firefighting (ARFF) Vehicle $316,000 
when New Emergency One Titan, Serial/Vehicle Nmnber 4ENBAA8Xl 10003122 

ARFF VEHICLE SUBSTITUTION GUIDELINES 

A. Every reasonable effort should be made by the contractor to meet the ARFF response 
requirements in Section 5.10.3 of the contract. TI1e Contractor shall submit an ARFF Vehicle 
Substitution Plan (see 5.10.4.2) identifying and seeking Coast Guard approval of specific 
potential substitute vehicles prior to the need for their assignment as initial response vehicles in 
accordance with the contract as per PWS 5.10.4.1 and 7.0 Deliverables. TI1e Contractor shall 
submit, and the Govenunent shall approve the Plan for the C-27J requirements prior to 
commencement of performance. The COR and Contractor shall maintain a list of substitute 
vehicles approved by the Coast Guard and update the list as changes occur. 

B. In the event an unavoidable shortage of government furnished ARFF apparatus (GFP) and 
Coast Guard approved vehicles precludes meeting the response requirements in Section 5.10.3 of 
the contract, the contractor shall be capable of responding to emergencies in the time intervals 
specified in Section 5.10.3.1 of the contract as follows: 

1. TI1e contractor shall respond with one or more vehicles otherwise meeting the 
requirements of Section 5.10.3.1 oft he contract that are not GFP or have not been 
preapproved by the Coast Guard. If the ARFF vehicle does not carry a complementary 
agent, the contractor shall also respond ,vith an additional vehicle with the complementary 
agent required in Section 5.10.3.2 of the contract. When vehicles meeting the 
requirements of Section 5.10.3. l of the contract are intended for initial response, the 
contractor shall notify the Coast Guard no later than 0800 of the next day following its 
designation as an initial response vehicle. 

C. Notification. Except as described in paragraph B. l, above, notification requirements in 
Section 5.10.5 of the contract remain in effect. 

D. Staffing. When response capability is being provided in accordance with paragraphs B. l, 2, or 
3, above, all vehicles required to satisfy the minimum agent quantities shall be staffed and 
trained in accordance with Section 5.10.6 ofthe contract, Safety and Environmental Health 
Manual COMDINSTM5100.47 (D) and NFPA 1003. 

Page JO of31 

Page 72 of74 

P170 



PERFORMANCE WORK STATEMENT (PWS) 
AIRFIELD OPERATION AND MANAGEMENT SERVICES AND AffiCRAFT RESCUE AND 

FmE FIGHTING SERVICES 
CONTRACT/RFP#: 70Z08424RALAM0001 

E. Perfom1ance-bnsed Remedies. If response capabilities described in paragraph B. l do not 
comply with Section 5.10 of the contract, perfomiance may be subj ect to appropriate contractual 
remedies in accordance with Attaclnnent 2. 

Page31 of31 

Page 73 of74 

P171 



EXHIBIT C 
Annual Costs 

SACRAMENTO METROPOLITAN FIRE DISTRICT 
MCCLELLAN ARFF COSTS 

For the Years Ending September 30, 2025 through 2027 

LABOR SECTION 

Salaries 

Benefits 

Retirement Costs 

FICNMedlcare Costs 

Group Health Insurance Costs 

OPEB 

Workers Compensation 
Total Benefits 

Total Salaries and Benefits 
Administrative overhead at 12%: 

Total Labor Section Costs 

OTHER SECTION COSTS 
Dispatch Services 

ARFF station Maintenance/ Insurance 

ARFF Vehicle Maintenance 
ARFF Services and Supplles 
ARFF Support Equipment and Others 
ARFF Training 

ARFF Foam Disposal and Replacement <11 

Total Other Section Costs 

b rAL METRO FIRE cosr 

TOTAL CLIN 00002 COST 

Notes 

BASE 
2024-25 

$ 1,920,621 

1,093,843 
27,849 

321,222 
92,040 
74 024 

1,608,978 

3,529,599 
423 652 

3,953,151 

70,361 

93,996 
62,560 
31,061 
31,263 
10,000 

172 625 

471,866 

4,425,017 

$ 4,425,017 

OPTION 
2025-26 

$ 1,957,525 

1,137,236 
28,384 

338,080 
93,809 
75 447 

1,672,956 

3,630,480 
435 658 

4,066,138 

72,472 

96,816 
64,436 
31,993 
32,201 
10,300 

308,218 

4,374,358 l 
$ 4,374,356 

1 Reimbursement for translUon to PFAS-free firefighUng foam In accordance with slate and federal regulations may 
be de~rred up to Option 2026-27. lf USCG's actual cost for replacement and disposal Is less than slated cost, 
Metro Fire will provide a credit for the difference. 

2 For purposes of costing CUN 00003 for !ruck repairs allowance, the hourly rate fur.step 3 Master F~e M•chanlc Is 
$95.24 as of 10/1/2024 Yolllle admln ov•rh•ad Is set at 12%. 

Assumptions: 
1 ProJ•ct•d salary Increase of3.0'l6 poryoarstarting In January2025 and July 2026, 2027, and 2028 
2 ProJ•cted 3.0% lncr•ase each year on other section costs 

3 Admln Rate computations based on 12%. 

OPTION 
2026-27 

$ 2,016,961 

1,185,631 
29,246 

355,660 
96,657 

77737 
1744932 

S 3,761,893 
461 427 

4,213,320 

74,646 

99,721 
66,369 
32,952 
33,167 
10,609 

317,464 

4,530,785 

$ 4,530,785 

Page 74 of74 

P172 



Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District 
10545 Armstrong Ave., Suite 200 • Mather, CA 95655 • Phone (916) 859-4300 • Fax (916) 859-3702 

ADAM A. HOUSE 
Fire Chief 

DATE: 

TO: 

SUBJECT: 

September 12, 2024 

Board of Directors 

FY2023 State Homeland Security Grant Program (SHSGP) Award 

TOPIC 
Acceptance of a FY2023 State Homeland Security Grant Program Award. 

BACKGROUND 
On December 15, 2023, the Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District (District) submitted four 
applications for funding totaling $589,200 to the Sacramento County Office of Emergency 
Services (SacOES) through the FY2023 State Homeland Security Grant Program (SHSGP). 
$253,000 was requested for a fire station target hardening project to install secure fencing and 
gates at several fire stations; $165,000 was requested for the purchase of hazardous materials 
chemical weapons response equipment to enhance hazardous materials response capabilities; 
$153,000 was requested for the purchase of interoperable communications equipment for the fire 
investigations unit; and $18,200 was requested for the purchase of supplies and equipment for 
the Community Emergency Response Team (CERT). 

DISCUSSION 
On August 19, 2024, the District received an award notification from SacOES in the amount of 
$153,200 to fully fund the CERT supply cache project and partially fund the fire station target 
hardening and HazMat chemical weapons response equipment projects. The fire investigations 
interoperable communications equipment project was not selected for funding. 

The period of performance for the FY23 SHSGP grant ends December 31, 2025. 

FISCAL IMPACT 
Grant funding in the amount of $153,200 has been added to the FY 2024/25 Final Budget. There 
is no match requirement. 

RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends adoption of the attached resolution accepting the FY23 SHSGP grant and 
requests that the Board authorize the Fire Chief or his designee to execute all required documents 
for the administration of the grant award. 

Erin Castleberry, Ad • i ative Analyst 
Planning and Development 

Approved by: __ 

C 
Je elopment Officer 
Pia pment 

ATTACHMENT: Resolution Accepting a FY2023 State Homeland Security Grant from the 
County of Sacramento 

SeNing Sacramento and Placer Counties 

P173 



ADAM A. HOUSE 
Fire Chief 

Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District 
10545 Armstrong Ave., Suite 200, Mather, CA Phone (916) 859-4300 Fax (916) 859-3700 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-XXX 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING A FY2023 STATE HOMELAND SECURITY GRANT 
FROM THE COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO 

WHEREAS, the Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District ("District") is a political subdivision 
of the State of California and is duly organized and existing pursuant to the State constitution and 
laws; and 

WHEREAS, on December 15, 2023, the District submitted a FY2023 State Homeland 
Security Grant Program (SHSGP) application to the County of Sacramento's Office of Emergency 
Services (SacOES) totaling $589,200 for projects including fire station target hardening, 
hazardous materials (HazMat) chemical weapons response equipment, Community Emergency 
Response Team (CERT) supply cache, and fire investigations interoperable communications 
equipment; and 

WHEREAS, on August 19, 2024, the District received an award notification from SacOES 
in the amount of $153,200 to fully fund the CERT supply cache project and partially fund the fire 
station target hardening and HazMat chemical weapons response equipment projects. 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District, a public 
entity established under the laws of the State of California, does hereby: 

1. Accept the grant award from the County of Sacramento in the amount of $153,200 through 
the FY2023 State Homeland Security Grant Program. 

2. Authorize the Fire Chief or his designee as its Authorized Agent(s) to enter into and 
execute the agreement with the County of Sacramento and further, authorizes the Fire 
Chief or his designee to execute the required and necessary documents to administer the 
funds awarded. 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 12th day of September, 2024. I, MARNI 
RITTBURG, BOARD CLERK OF SACRAMENTO METROPOLITAN FIRE DISTRICT HEREBY 
CERTIFY the foregoing Resolution was introduced and passed at a regular meeting of the 
Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District Board by the following roll call vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

ATTEST: 

Marni J. Rittburg, CMC, CPMC 
Clerk of the Board 

SACRAMENTO METROPOLITAN FIRE DISTRICT 

By:-------------
President, Board of Directors 

Serving Sacramento and Placer Counties P174 



Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District 

10545 Armstrong Ave., Suite 200 • Mather, CA 95655 • Phone (916) 859-4300 • Fax (916) 859-3702 

ADAM A. HOUSE 
Fire Chief 

DATE: September 12, 2024 

TO: Board of Directors 

SUBJECT: FY2024 Economic Development Initiative - Community Project Funding Award 

TOPIC 
Acceptance of a FY2024 Economic Development Initiative - Community Project Funding Award. 

BACKGROUND 
In support of the ongoing development efforts for the Zinfandel First Responder Training Facility, 
the Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District (District) submitted a $3,000,000 Congressionally 
Directed Spending request through Sacramento County's United States Congressional 
Delegation for the funding of an emergency vehicle operations course at the site. In June 2023, 
Congressman Ami Bera visited the Zinfandel site to hear more about the project, and ultimately 
endorsed the project as one of his community project requests for Fiscal Year 2024. 

DISCUSSION 
On March 9, 2024, the Consolidated Appropriations Act of 2024 was signed into law by the 
President of the United States (Public Law No. 11 8-42), which appropriated $1,000,000 for the 
Zinfandel First Responder Training Facility Emergency Vehicle Operations Course through the 
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD). On August 27, 2024, the District 
received a notice of award from HUD through the FY 2024 Economic Development Initiative -
Community Project Funding (CPF) grant program totaling $1,000,000 for the Zinfandel First 
Responder Training Facility Emergency Vehicle Operations Course, with a period of performance 
through August 31, 2032. 

FISCAL IMPACT 
Grant funding in the amount of $1,000,000 has been added to the FY 2024/25 Final Budget. There 
is no match requirement. 

RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends adoption of the attached resolution accepting the FY24 Economic 
Development Initiative - Community Project Funding Grant from the U.S. Department of Housing 
and Urban Development, and requests that the Board authorize the Fire Chief or his designee to 
execute all required documents for the administration of the grant award. 

Erin Castleberry, Ad • • ative Analyst 
Planning and Development 

Approved by: _ 

C 
Je elopment Officer 
Pia pment 

ATTACHMENT: Resolution Accepting a FY2024 Economic Development Initiative-Community 
Project Funding Grant from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 
Development 

Serving Sacramento and Placer Counties 

P175 



ADAM A. HOUSE 
Fire Chief 

Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District 
10545 Armstrong Ave., Suite 200, Mather, CA Phone (916) 859-4300 Fax (916) 859-3700 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-XXX 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING A FY2024 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT INITIATIVE -
COMMUNITY PROJECT FUNDING GRANT FROM THE U.S. DEPARTMENT OF 

HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT 

WHEREAS, the Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District ("District") is a political 
subdivision of the State of California and is duly organized and existing pursuant to the 
State constitution and laws; and 

WHEREAS, on March 15, 2023, the District submitted a $3,000,000 
Congressionally Directed Spending request through Sacramento County's United States 
Congressional Delegation for the funding of an emergency vehicle operations course at 
the Zinfandel First Responder Train ing Facility; and 

WHEREAS, on March 9, 2024, the Consolidated Appropriations Act of 2024 was 
signed into law by the President of the United States (Public Law No. 118-42), which 
appropriated $1,000,000 for the Zinfandel First Responder Training Facility Emergency 
Vehicle Operations Course through the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 
Development (HUD); and· 

WHEREAS, on August 27, 2024, the District received a notice of award from HUD 
through the FY 2024 Economic Development Initiative - Community Project Funding 
(CPF) grant program totaling $1,000,000 for the Zinfandel First Responder Training 
Facility Emergency Vehicle Operations Course. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Sacramento Metropolitan Fire 
District, a public entity established under the laws of the State of California, does hereby: 

1. Accept a grant award from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 
Development totaling $1,000,000 through the FY 2024 Economic Development 
Initiative - Community Project Funding program. 

2. Authorize the Fire Chief or his designee as its Authorized Agent(s) to enter into 
and execute an agreement with the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 
Development, and further authorize the Fire Chief or his designee to execute the 
required and necessary documents to administer the funds awarded. 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 12th day of September, 2024. I, 
MARNI RITTBURG, BOARD CLERK OF SACRAMENTO METROPOLITAN FIRE 
DISTRICT HEREBY CERTIFY the foregoing Resolution was introduced and passed at a 
regular meeting of the Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District Board by the following roll 
call vote: 

Serving Sacramento and Placer Counties Pl76 



RESOLUTION NO. 2024-:XXX 
Page2 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

ATTEST: 

Marni J. Rittburg, CMC, CPMC 
Clerk of the Board 

SACRAMENTO METROPOLITAN FIRE DISTRICT 

By: ____________ _ 
President, Board of Directors 

P177 



Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District 
10545 Armstrong Ave., Suite 200 • Mather, CA 95655 • Phone (916) 859-4300 • Fax (916) 859-3702 

ADAM A. HOUSE 
Fire Chief 

DATE: September 12, 2024 

TO: Board of Directors 

SUBJECT: Opioid Remediation Activities Agreement - County of Sacramento 

TOPIC 
Request to authorize the execution of an agreement with Sacramento County Department of 
Health Services (OHS) to provide opioid remediation activities. 

BACKGROUND 
In response to the opioid epidemic, state, local, and tribal governments brought several lawsuits 
against pharmaceutical and drug distribution companies. On July 21, 2021, a $26 billion 
settlement offer was made by opioid manufacturer Janssen Pharmaceuticals and distributors, 
McKesson, AmerisourceBergen, and Cardinal Health to resolve their liabilities in over 3,000 opioid 
crisis-related lawsuits nationwide, including with the State of California. The County of 
Sacramento was able to secure a portion of these settlement funds from the State for local opioid 
remediation activities. 

DISCUSSION 
On August 11, 2023, the County of Sacramento Department of Health Services (OHS), Division 
of Behavioral Health Services issued Request for Proposals (RFP) SUPT/067 to solicit qualified 
organizations to develop and implement opioid remediation activities, utilizing funding allocated 
from the State of California's opioid crisis-related settlement funds. 

On October 3, 2023, the Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District (District) submitted a proposal to 
provide opioid remediation activities in response to RFP SUPT/067, and a contract award was 
subsequently approved by the Sacramento County Board of Supervisors on February 6, 2024 
(Resolution #2024-0085). Since then, the County and the District have been working to finalize 
the agreement. 

The proposed scope of work includes targeted public education as well as direct services to 
individuals with opioid use disorders, with a term ending on June 30, 2026. Public education 
efforts will be coordinated between the District's Community Relations and Mobile Integrated 
Health (MIH) teams and will include prevention-focused social media campaigns for the general 
population and youth specific programming. Direct services to be provided by the District's MIH 
team include linkage to treatment services, expansion of medication-assisted treatment, and 
implementation of a naloxone (Narcan) leave behind program. 

FISCAL IMPACT 
The District's total anticipated cost to provide the proposed services is $1,100,000. The proposed 
agreement reflects a 100% reimbursement of this cost. 

Serving Sacramento and Placer Counties 

P178 



Page 2 

RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends the Board adopt a resolution to authorize Fire Chief or his designee to execute 
and administer an agreement with the County of Sacramento for opioid remediation activities. 

Submitted by: 

S<.ot~ (S.p s, 2024 16:54 PDTI 

Scott Perryman. Battalion Chief 
MIH Program Manager 

ATTACHMENTS: 

Approved by: 

,]OM 'Rud.Micki 
Jon Rudnkki (S•p S, 2024 16:S6 POTI 

Jon Rudnicki. Assistant Chief 
EMS Division 

Attachment 1: Resolution Authorizing the Execution of an Agreement with the County of 
Sacramento for Opioid Remediation Activities 

Attachment 2: Opioid Remediation Activities Agreement - County of Sacramento 

Serving Sacramento and Placer Counties 

P179 



ADAM A. HOUSE 
Fire Chief 

Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District 
10545 Armstrong Ave., Suite 200, Mather, CA Phone (916) 859-4300 Fax (91 6) 859-3700 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-XXX 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF AN AGREEMENT WITH THE 
COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO FOR OPIOID REMEDIATION ACTIVITIES 

WHEREAS, the Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District ("District") is a political subdivision 
of the State of California and is duly organized and existing pursuant to the State constitution and 
laws; and 

WHEREAS, the County of Sacramento Department of Health Services issued Request 
for Proposals ("RFP") SUPT/067 for the development and implementation of opioid remediation 
activities; and 

WHEREAS, the District submitted a proposal to provide opioid remediation activities in 
response to RFP SUPT/067; and 

WHEREAS, the Sacramento County Board of Supervisors adopted Resolution 2024-0085 
on February 6, 2024 which approved a contract award to the District to provide the proposed 
services. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the Sacramento 
Metropolitan Fire District does hereby delegate authority to the Fire Chief or his designee to 
execute and administer an agreement with the County of Sacramento for opioid remediation 
activities. 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 12th day of September, 2024. I, MARNI 
RITTBURG, BOARD CLERK OF SACRAMENTO METROPOLITAN FIRE DISTRICT 
HEREBY CERTIFY the foregoing Resolution was introduced and passed at a regular meeting 
of the Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District Board by the following roll call vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

ATTEST: 

Marni J. Rittburg, CMC, CPMC 
Clerk of the Board 

SACRAMENTO METROPOLITAN FIRE DISTRICT 

By: ___________ _ 
President, Board of Directors 

Serving Sacramento and Placer Counties P180 



COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO COST REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT NO. 7206000-24/26-151 

CONTRACT ANALYST: _____ J=a=n=et__,T=o=ro.__ ____ __,8~7=5-~9~84-'-'7'------------------

DHS AGREEMENT SUMMARY 

CONTRACTOR's NAME: _______ ....,S=a=c=ra=m=e=n=t=o..e.M=e=t=ro=-<p=o=l=ita=n.a...F"--1=·r=e=D=is=t=ri=ct=--------------- ----

Subject of Agreement: __________ O=p=io~id~R=e=m=e=d=ia=ti=o=n~A=c=t~iv=it=ie=s~------------------

Contract Term: -------=F=eb=r=u=ary,._.___6=·~2=0=2~4 _______ through ------~J=u=n=e=3=0~2=0=2=6~--- ---

Maximum Payment to Contractor through this Agreement: __________ __,$""'1,_,_.""'10""'0'-'-.0"'0"-'0=·=00"------------

County Counsel Approval: ___ ______ ________ Date ____________ ___ ___ _ 
or 

County Counsel Approval Not Required: _ ___________ ______ __ (Sacramento County Code Section) 

Authorized by: --~2=0=2=4~-0=0~8=5 _ _______ _ _ (Sacramento County Resolution Number or County Code Section) 

□ 

~ 
□ 

Tax Waiver Granted 

Standard Agreement CA Agency Agr 
Five or more employees letter on file 

□ 

□ 

Risk Management has approved waiver to insurance requirements D 
Risk Management has approved indemnification modifications D 

Tax Waiver Denied 

Non Standard Agreement 
Exhibit D 

This is a contract that must be reviewed and ap.proved of County Counsel in accordance with Section 2.61.014 of the Sacramento County 
Code: 

D 2.61.014 (a): Contract requires Board approval including but not limited to Section 71-J 
<, 

D 2.61.014 (b ): Contract approved in concept or otherwise authorized by Board with the exception of those reviewed from the 
prior fiscal year. 

D 2.61.014 (c): Contract for services not previously provided by or to the deparhnent 

D 2.61.014 (d): Contract does not utilize the standard format developed by County Counsel 

D 2.61.014 (e): Contract with another governmental entity 

D 2.61.014 (f): Contract involving an acquisition or grant of an interest in real property 

D 2.61.014 (g): Contract requiring waiver of withholding 

D 2.61.0 14 (h): Retroactive contracts 

FISCAL SUMMARY 

Fund Center: -~7~20~6=0~0=0 __ GIL Account: --=30=3"-'1=2..:.cl O""O'--_ Order #: - - ""'H=S"--'S=UP"'-"-'T'-'O=P,_-.,,_30"----

CONTRACTOR's Federal Tax Identification Number: ___________ ....,6:..e:8__,-0""3:..e:5""8-'-77"'"'9'--- - -------

hllps://insideteamsdhs.saccounly.net/leam/ofca/Conlracls Document Portal/All Current Boilers/Agreement Boilers/General Boilers/CA Agency Agr 3-20-23.docx 

P181 



COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO COST REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT NO. 7206000-24/26-151 

AGREEMENT 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into as of this 6th day ofFebruary, 2024, by and between the COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO, 
a political subdivision of the State of California, hereinafter refeJTed to as "COUNTY", and SACRAMENTO METROPOLITAN FIRE 
DISTRICT, a Political Subdivision of the State of California, hereinafter referred to as "CONTRACTOR". 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, it is the goal of COUNTY to provide a comprehensive program designed to address the treatment of alcohol and other drug 
abuse problems; and 

WHEREAS, CONTRACTOR has appropriate experience and staff to provide opioid remediation activities; and 

WHEREAS, the Sacramento County Board of Supervisors authorized the Department of Health Services to enter into an Agreement 
with CONTRACTOR in Resolution Number 2024-0085 approved on February 6, 2024; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the resolution cited as providing authority to execute this AgreeJrt}nt, the Director of the Department of Health 
Services, or designee, has amendment authority for non-monetary changes, monetaryrdi:creases, to terminate or to assign this contract, 
to extend the terms as needed, and to monetarily increase the total contract amomy,o'y,no.more than 10 percent of the total value of the 
contract, so long as existing budget appropriations are not exceeded; and <._/" '"""' 

WHEREAS, COUNTY AND CONTRACTOR desire to enter into this ~g~2nt on the teJh&., ~d conditions set forth herein. 

I / /) ' 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises hereinaft~~ {!~ft· ~ COUNTY and CONTRACTOR agree as follows: 

I. SCOPE OF SERVICES ,~ ~ 

CONTRACTOR shall provide services in the amoun~ ~~atnanner,d scribed in Exhibit A, which is attached hereto and 

II. 

III. 

incorporated herein. \\r ~., 
TERM y \ 
Tu;, Ag«omont sh,11 bo offeoHv, .,4mm'.'J!, , a, of tho a., , fo,t wdtton ,bovo ,od sh, 11 ond on fono 30, 2026. 

'// 
NOTICE /~-.........._ '"""" 
Any notice, demand, reqµe§t( co~~ ~~pprozi;, that either party hereto may or is required to g ive the other pursuant to this 
Agreement shall be in w~ing and shall qe either personally delivered or sent by mail, addressed as follows: 

TO COUNTY • ~- /) TO CONTRACTOR 

~✓;/ DIRECTOR ✓ 
Department of Health Services 
7001-A East Parkway, Suite 1000 
Sacramento, CA 95823-2501 

Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District 
10545 Armstrong A venue, Suite 200 
Mather, CA 95655 

Either party may change the address to which subsequent notice and/or other communications can be sent by giving written 
notice designating a change of address to the other party, which shall be effective upon receipt. 

IV. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS 

CONTRACTOR shall observe and comply with all applicable federal, state, and county laws, regulations, and ordinances. 

V. GOVERNING LAWS AND JURISDICfION 

This Agreement shall be deemed to have been executed and to be performed within the State of California and shall be construed 
and governed by the internal laws of the State of California. Any legal proceedings arising out of or relating to this Agreement 
shall be brought in Sacramento County, California. 

Cost Reimbursement Agreement 
No. 7206000-24/26-151 

Page I of9 CA Agency 
Revised 3/20/23 
DJ-IS Agreement 

P182 



VI. LICENSES, PERMITS, AND CONTRACTUAL GOOD STANDING 

VII. 

VIII. 

IX. 

A. CONTRACTOR shall possess and maintain all necessary licenses, permits, certificates, and credentials required by the 
laws of the United States, the State of California, County of Sacramento, and all other appropriate governmental agencies, 
including any certification and credentials required by COUNTY. Failure to maintain the licenses, pennits, certificates, 
and credentials shall be deemed a breach of this Agreement and constitutes grounds for the termination of this Agreement 
by COUNTY. 

B. CONTRACTOR further certifies to COUNTY that it and its principals are not debarred, suspended, or otherwise excluded 
from or ineligible for, pa11icipation in federal, state, or county government contracts. CONTRACTOR certifies that it shall 
not contract with a subcontractor that is so debatTed or suspended. 

PERFORMANCE STANDARDS 

CONTRACTOR shall perform its services under this Agreement in accordance with the industry and/or professional standards 
applicable to CONTRACTOR's services. COUNTY may evaluate CONTRACTOR's performance of the scope of services 
provided in Exhibit A in accordance with performance outcomes determined by COUNTY. CONTRACTOR shall maintain 
such records concerning performance outcomes as required by COUNTY and provide the records to COUNTY upon request. 

OWNERSHIP OF WORK PRODUCT /~/ ~---~ All technical data, evaluations, plans, specifications, reports, documents(~jf'other°" mk products developed by CONTRACTOR 
hereunder shall be the exclusive prope11y of COUNTY and shall ~~,...cJelivered to' GO\JNTY upon completion of the services 
authorized hereunder. CONTRACTOR may retain copies thereoffp( its files and inte0al use. Publication of the information 
directly derived from work performed or data obtained in comf~etion witltfervices rend~red under this Agreement must first 
be approved in writing by COUNTY. COUNTY recognizes 1h~t' a!!J,cbn'1cal data, evaluations, plans, specifications, reports, 
and other work products are instruments ofCONTRACTOR's service{fud are not designed for use other than what is intended 
by this Agreement. \\ ~ 

STATUS OF CONTRACTOR / 

-..... ,/ 
A. It is understood and agreed that COJ TOR (including CONTRACTOR's employees) is an independent contractor 

and that no relationship of employ.er-e p e exists b tween the parties hereto. CONTRACTOR's assigned personnel 
shall not be entitled to any bene(ifs:layabtcd o employees of COUNTY. COUNTY is not required to make any deductions 
or withholdings from the compeil~'<!lt,aYable to ~ONTRACTOR under the provisions of this Agreement; and as an 
independent contractor, CQ_!;:ff~C'f-.Q]t hereby indemnifies and holds COUNTY harmless from any and all claims that 
may be made against ,9~'CJN~ based-~0~ any contention by any third party that an employer-employee relationship 
exists by reason of\hi!!✓Agreement. v 

B. It is further understS~1ld,.agreed b)i t e parties hereto that CONTRACTOR in the performance of its obligation hereunder 
is subject to the controR-0r direction of COUNTY as to the designation of tasks to be performed, the results to be 
accomplished by the servi~e!!_ hcieu~der agreed to be rendered and performed, and not the means, methods, or sequence 
used by CONTRACTOR for accomplishing the results. 

C. If, in the performance of this Agreement, any third persons are employed by CONTRACTOR, such person shall be entirely 
and exclusively under the direction, supervision, and control of CONTRACTOR. All terms of employment, including 
hours, wages, working conditions, discipl ine, hiring, and discharging, or any other terms of employment or requirements 
of law, shall be detern1ined by CONTRACTOR, and COUNTY shall have no right or authority over such persons or the 
terms of such employment. 

D. It is further understood and agreed that as an independent contractor and not an employee of COUNTY, neither 
CONTRACTOR nor CONTRACTOR's assigned personnel shall have any entitlement as a COUNTY employee, right to 
act on behalf of COUNTY in any capacity whatsoever as agent, nor to bind COUNTY to any obligation whatsoever. 
CONTRACTOR shall not be covered by workers' compensation; nor shall CONTRACTOR be entitled to compensated 
sick leave, vacation leave, retirement entitlement, participation in group health, dental, life, and other insurance programs, 
or entitled to other fringe benefits payable by COUNTY to employees of COUNTY. 

E. It is further understood and agreed that CONTRACTOR must issue W-2 and 941 Forms for income and employment tax 
purposes, for all ofCONTRACTOR's assigned personnel under the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 

Cost Reimbursement Agreement 
No. 7206000-24/26-15 I 

Page 2 of9 CA Agency 
Revised 3/20/23 
DHS Agreement 

P183 



X. CONTRACTOR IDENTIFICATION 

XI. 

CONTRACTOR shall provide COUNTY with the following information for the purpose of compliance with California 
Unemployment Insurance Code Section 1088.8 and Sacramento County Code Chapter 2.160: CONTRACTOR's name, 
address, telephone number, social security number or tax identification number, and whether dependent health insurance 
coverage is available to CONTRACTOR. 

COMPLIANCE WITH CHILD, FAMILY, AND SPOUSAL SUPPORT REPORTING OBLIGATIONS 

A. CONTRACTOR's fai lure to comply with state and federal child, family, and spousal support reporting requirements 
regarding a contractor's employees or fai lure to implement lawfully served wage and earnings assignment orders or notices 
of assignment relating to child, family, and spousal support obligations shall constitute a default under this Agreement. 

B. CONTRACTOR's failure to cure such default within ninety (90) days of notice by COUNTY shall be grounds for 
termination of this Agreement. 

XII. BENEFITS WAIVER 

XIII. 

XIV. 

xv. 

If CONTRACTOR is unincorporated, CONTRACTOR acknowledges and agr~tJrnt CONTRACTOR is not entitled to receive 
the following benefits and/or compensation from COUNTY: medical, dentaJ;~ision and retirement benefits, life and disability 
insurance, sick leave, bereavement leave, jmy duty leave, parental leave;~l\ _any other similar benefits or compensation 
otherwise provided to permanent civil service employees pursuant to 11-ct6nmlj'G:ha1ier, the County Code, the Civil Service 
Rule, the Sacramento County Employees' Retirement System apdlj>r any and'all ~emoranda of understanding between 
COl!NTY and its employee organizations. Should CONTRAS?:? R or ~ny empl~t~r agent of CONTRACTOR seek to 
ob tam such benefits from COUNTY, CONTRACTOR agre~s' o mdeny~ and hold harmless COUNTY from any and all 
claims that may be made against COUNTY for such benefits.'\ / ,.-, 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST ~ 

CONTRACTOR and CONTRACTOR's officers and ~~11.fot have a .financial interest, or acquire any financial 
interest, direct or indirect, in any business, ~NI!erty or\lu:,c76f~me which could be financially affected by or otherwise 
conflict in any manner or degree with t~,-§ffo - >nee of~e{Vices required under this Agreement. 

LOBBYING AND UNION ORGANii'ATIO icrIVIt~s 

A. CONTRACTOR shall c~112p}Y~~~!~~io1; ~: d!sclosure requirements prescribed by Section 319, Public Law 
101-12 1 (3 1 U.S.C. § }3.52)·and__an~ 1mR1~1)Jentmg regulat10ns. 

/.7 '\' v 
B. If services under tlfi!!.?\,greement a1\funded with state funds granted to COUNTY, CONTRACTOR shall not utilize any 

such funds to assist, jitqrnote, or det7r bnion organization by employees performing work under this Agreement and shall 
comply with the provisio s ofGo}:'.eplment Code Sections 16645 through 16649. 

• ~/ / 

C. If services under this Agreenien(are funded in whole or in part with Federal funds no funds may be used to support or 
defeat legislation pending before Congress or any state legislature. CONTRACTOR further agrees to comply with all 
requirements of the Hatch Act (Title 5 USC, Sections 1501-1508). 

NONDISCRIMINATION IN EMPLOYMENT, SERVICES, BENEFITS, AND FACILITIES 

A. CONTRACTOR agrees and assures COUNTY that CONTRACTOR and any subcontractors shall comply with all 
applicable federal, state, and local anti-discrimination laws, regulations, and ordinances and to not unlawfully discriminate, 
harass, or allow harassment against any employee, applicant for employment, employee or agent of COUNTY, or recipient 
of services contemplated to be provided or provided under this Agreement, because of race, ancestry, marital status, color, 
rel igious creed, political belief, national origin, ethnic group identification, sex, sexual orientation, age (over 40), medical 
condition (including HIV and AIDS), or physical or mental disability. CONTRACTOR shall ensure that the evaluation 
and treatment of its employees and applicants for employment, the treatment of COUNTY employees and agents, and 
recipients of services are free from such discrimination and harassment. 

Cost Reimbursement Agreement 
No. 7206000-24/26-15 I 

Page 3 of9 CA Agency 
Revised 3/20/23 
OHS Agreement 

P184 



XVI. 

XVII. 

B. CONTRACTOR represents that it is in compliance with and agrees that it will continue to comply with the Americans 
with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. § 12101 et seq.), the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Government Code 
§ 12900 et seq.), and regulations and guidelines issued pursuant thereto. 

C. CONTRACTOR agrees to compile data, maintain records, post required notices and submit reports to permit effective 
enforcement of all applicable anti-discrimination laws and this provision. 

D. CONTRACTOR shall include this nondiscrimination provision in all subcontracts related to this Agreement. 

INDEMNIFICATION 

A. To the fullest extent permitted by law, for work or services (including professional services), provided under this 
Agreement, CONTRACTOR shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless COUNTY, its governing Board, officers, 
directors, officials, employees, and authorized volunteers and agents, (individually an "Indemnified Party" and collectively 
"Indemnified Parties"), from and against any and all claims, demands, actions, losses, liabilities, damages, and all expenses 
and costs incidental thereto (collectively "Claims"), including cost of defense, settlement, arbitration, expert fees, and 
reaso,rable attorneys' fees, resulting from injuries to or death of any person, including employees of either party hereto, 
and damage to or destruction of any prope1ty, or loss of use or reduction in value thereof, including the property of either 
party hereto, and recovery of monetary losses incurred by COUNTY/airectly attributable to the perfo1mance of 
CONTRACTOR, arising out of, pertaining to, or resulting from the ,9eiligent acts, errors, omissions, recklessness, or 
willful misconduct of CONTRACTOR, its employees, or CONTRA8~'s subconsultants or subcontractors at any tier, 
or any other party for which CONTRACTOR is legally liable und@.,faw. 

/) 
B. The right to defense and indemnity under this indemnity obligation arises up~~ocurrence of an event giving rise to a 

Claim and'. thereafter, upon t~nder in writing to ~ONTRA_GTOR. Ut_r receipt of't€nder, CON:~CTOR shall provide 
prompt wntten response that 1t accepts tender. Failure to ~Rt teI1<ler may be grounds for termmation of the Agreement. 
CONTRACTOR shall control the defense of Indemnified~ift~efs; subject to using counsel reasonably acceptable to 
COUNTY. Both pa,ties agree to cooperate in th<,_,defense of a Cla1h~ 

C. This fodomoity oblig,tion sh,11 oat bo limitod ~ h• 'P,:" rutd'$oonts of iosmaooo o, solf-iosornooo m,int,inod by 

D. :::::~::::::::.::~~::::,::~:,:~::, doty to, ,oy st, od"d of oarn with refo.ooo to, o, '"' 
liability or obligation, contractu~(0'{ otherwi_se,_to_;my third pa,ty. 

·'\~/·:~ J 
E. The provisions of this inde~it;y ob)f~~ shall ;~vive the expiration or termination of the Agreement 

INSURANCE OR SELF{r(s'U~C~ 

Each party, at its sole c:st\_~ expense,)h~ll cany insurance •Or self-insure- its activities in connection with this Agreement, 
and obtain, keep in force an')~rnintai(lnsurance or equivalent programs of self-insurance, for general liability, workers 
compensation, prope1ty, profess·~al'Jiability, cyber liability, and business automobile liability adequate to cover its potential 
liabilities hereunder. Each party agrees to provide the other thiity (30) days' advance written notice of any cancellation, 
termination, or lapse of any of the insurance or self-insurance coverages. Failure to maintain insurance as required in this 
Agreement is a material breach of contract and is grounds for termination of the Agreement. 

XVIII. INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY ASSURANCES 

CONTRACTOR shall take all reasonable precautions to ensure that any hardware, software, and/or embedded chip devices 
used by CONTRACTOR in the performance of services under this Agreement, other than those owned or provided by 
COUNTY, shall be free from viruses. Nothing in this provision shall be construed to limit any rights or remedies otherwise 
available to COUNTY under this Agreement. 

XIX. WEB ACCESSIBILITY 

CONTRACTOR shall ensure that all web sites and web applications provided by CONTRACTOR pursuant to this Agreement 
shall comply with COUNTY's Web Accessibi lity Policy adopted by the Board of Supervisors on Februruy 18, 2003, as well 
as any approved amendment thereto. 

Cost Reimbursement Agreement 
No. 7206000-24/26-15 l 

Page4 of9 CA Agency 
Revised 3/20/23 
OHS Agreement 

P185 



xx. 

XXI. 

XXII. 

XXIII. 

COMPENSATION AND PAYMENT OF INVOICES LIMITATIONS 

A. Compensation under this Agreement shall be limited to the Maximum Total Payment Amount set forth in Exhibit C, or 
Exhibit C as modified by COUNTY in accordance with express provisions in this Agreement. 

B. CONTRACTOR shall submit an invoice on the forms and in accordance with the procedures prescribed by COUNTY on 
a monthly basis. Invoices shall be submitted to COUNTY no later than the fifteenth (15th) day of the month following the 
invoice period, and COUNTY shall pay CONTRACTOR within thirty (30) days after receipt ofan appropriate and correct 
invoice. 

C. COUNTY operates on a July through June fiscal year. Invoices for services provided in any fiscal year must be submitted 
no later than July 31, one ( 1) month after the end of the fiscal year. Invoices submitted after July 31 for the prior fiscal 
year shall not be honored by COUNTY unless CONTRACTOR has obtained prior written COUNTY approval to the 
contrary. 

D. CONTRACTOR shall maintain for four (4) years following termination of this Agreement full and complete 
documentation of all services and expenditures associated with performing the services covered under this Agreement. 
Expense documentation shall include: time sheets or payroll records for each employee; receipts for supplies; applicable 
subcontract expenditures; applicable overhead and indirect expenditures. 2. 

E. In the event CONTRACTOR fails to comply with any provisions o.¼t(~!\greement, COUNTY may withhold payment 
until such non-compliance has been corrected. </.., '\,_ 

LEGAL TRAINING INFORMATION // ~ 
!funder this Agreement CONTRACTOR is to provide trainii1~ou~_pci·sonnel on legal issues, then CONTRACTOR shall 
submit all training and program material for prior review an~' ~tt91/ approval by County Counsel. Only those materials 
approved by County Counsel shall be utilized to provid~ such traini1 g~ 

( \'-,/......... . " SUBCONTRACTS, ASSIGNMENT \ \ ~ ---...._ 

A. CONTRACTOR shall obtain prior wri!!_~1--a~prova\frefm/COUNTY before subcontracting any of the services delivered 
under this Agreement. CONTRASI9Rre~=1~ins leg~~ responsible for the perfonnance of all contract terms including 
work performed by third parties m(~e1· subco Hacts. ~n}\subcontracting will be subject to all applicable provisions of this 
Agreement. CONTRACTOR sh~J-.l?_e he! . r~sponsiblfby COUNTY for the performance of any subcontractor whether 
approved by COUNTY or not. ~ /~~-/ 

✓-, 
B. This Agreement is n~,signab'le b'\CONTRACTOR in whole or in part, without the prior written consent of COUNTY. 

AMENDMENT AND <v AIYER \) 

Except as provided herein, no alteratio ,,amendment, variation, or waiver of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless 
made in writing and signed by both v.9rties. Waiver by either party of any default, breach, or condition precedent shall not be 
construed as a waiver of any other default, breach, or condition precedent, or any other right hereunder. No interpretation of 
any provision of this Agreement shall be binding upon COUNTY unless agreed in writing by DIRECTOR and counsel for 
COUNTY. 

XXJV. SUCCESSORS 

This Agreement shall bind the successors of COUNTY and CONTRACTOR in the same manner as if they were expressly 
named. 

XXV. TIME 

Time is of the essence of this Agreement. 

XXVI. INTERPRETATION 

This Agreement shall be deemed to have been prepared equally by both of the parties, and the Agreement and its individual 
provisions shall not be construed or interpreted more favorably for one pa11y on the basis that the other party prepared it. 

Cost Reimbursement Agreement 
No. 7206000-24/26-151 

Page 5 of9 CA Agency 
Revised 3/20/23 
OHS Agreement 

P186 



XX.VII. DIRECTOR 

As used in this Agreement, "DIRECTOR" shall mean the Director of the Department of Health Services, or his/her designee. 

XX.VIII.DISPUTES 

In the event of any dispute arising out of or relating to this Agreement, the parties shall attempt, in good faith, to promptly 
resolve the dispute mutually between themselves. Pending resolution of any such dispute, CONTRACTOR shall continue 
without delay to carry out all its responsibilities under this Agreement unless the Agreement is otherwise terminated in 
accordance with the Termination provisions herein. COUNTY shall not be required to make payments for any services that 
are the subject of this dispute resolution process until such dispute has been mutually resolved by the parties. If the dispute 
carmot be resolved within 15 calendar days of initiating such negotiations or such other time period as may be mutually agreed 
to by the parties in writing, either party may pursue its available legal and equitable remedies, pursuant to the laws of the State 
of California. Nothing in this Agreement or provision shall constitute a waiver of any of the government claim filing 
requirements set forth in Title I, Division 3.6, of the California Government Code or as otherwise set forth in local, state and 
federal law. 

XXIX. TERMINATION 

A. Either party may terminate this Agreement without cause upon thirty (30),d~s' written notice to the other party. Notice 
shall be deemed served on the date of mailing. If notice of termination t~(9ai'ise is given by COUNTY to CONTRACTOR 
and it is later determined that CONTRACTOR was not in defat1[9rJ ~ default was excusable, then the notice of 
termination shall be ~eemed ~o have been given with~ut cau~e pt~rsQ~nt to.-~~~graph (~)-

B. COUNTY may term111ate tlus Agreement for cause 1mmed1,a# upon g1vin~ rit~n notice to CONTRACTOR should 
CONTRACTOR materially fail to perform any of the cok e.9ants cml'!ined in th~~greement in the time and/or manner 
specified. In the event of such termination, COUNTY'qi_ay, proe~ d with the work in any manner deemed proper by 
COUNTY. If notice of termination for cause is given by 1sd~TY to CONTRACTOR and it is later determined that 
CONTRACTOR was not in default or the default-was excus~e, then the notice of termination shall be deemed to have 
been given without cause pursuant to paragraph ~ j~ove_'---..__ 

C. COUNTY may terminate or amend this Agreement im~a'fely~on giving written notice to CONTRACTOR that funds 
are not available because: I) Sufficiept-fiihds are not ap~ropriated in COUNTY'S Adopted or Adjusted Budget; 2) the 
COUNTY is advised that funds are J:~ avrul'b~e from e~ternal sources for this Agreement or any portion thereof, including 
if distribution of such funds to the·~e>UNT)?il suspended or delayed; 3) if funds for the services and/or programs provided 
pursuant to this Agreement are h~ al?fropriafeab'y'thi;-·State; 4) funds that were previously available for this Agreement 
are reduced, eliminated and/or re-all~ca(ed'by COUNTY as a result of budget or revenue reductions during the fiscal year, 

/~' ' 
D. If this Agreement is,t~lnatecl~ hder Para~raph A or C above, CONTRACTOR shall only be paid for any service 

completed and prov1aed prior to 1'_citice of termination, In the event of termination under paragraph A or C above, 
CONTRACTOR sl~ ll be paid an am0u\1t which bears the same ratio to the total compensation authorized by the Agreement 
as the services actually performed gdat to the total services of CONTRACTOR covered by this Agreement, less payments 
of compensation previou; ly mad,e:')rino event, however, shall COUNTY pay CONTRACTOR an amount which exceeds 
a pro rata portion of the Agreeml)ni total based on the portion of the Agreement term that has elapsed on the effective date 
of the termination. 

E. CONTRACTOR shall not incur any expenses under this Agreement after notice of termination and shall cancel any 
outstanding expense obligations to a third party that CONTRACTOR can legally cancel. 

XXX. REPORTS 

A. CONTRACTOR shall, without additional compensation therefore, make fiscal, program evaluation, progress, and such 
other reports as may be reasonably required by DIRECTOR concerning CONTRACTOR's activities as they affect the 
contract duties and purposes herein. COUNTY shall explain procedures for reporting the required information, 

B. CONTRACTOR agrees that, pursuant to Government Code section 7522.56, CONTRACTOR shall make best efforts to 
determine if any of its employees or new hires providing direct services to the COUNTY are members of the Sacramento 
County Employees' Retirement System (SCERS). CONTRACTOR fmiher agrees that it shall make a report bi-annually 
( due no later than Januaiy 31st and July 31st) to the COUNTY with a list of its employees that are members of SCERS 
along with the total number of hours worked during the previous 6 months. This rep011 shall be forwarded to where Notice 
is sent pursuant to Roman numeral III of this Agreement. 

Cost Reimbursement Agreement 
No, 7206000-24/26-15 l 

Page 6 of9 CA Agency 
Revised 3/20/23 
OHS Agreement 

P187 



XXXI. AUDITS AND RECORDS 

Upon COUNTY's request, COUNTY or its designee shall have the right at reasonable times and intervals to audit, at 
CONTRACTOR's premises, CONTRACTOR's financial and program records as COUNTY deems necessary to determine 
CONTRACTOR's compliance with legal and contractual requirements and the correctness of claims submitted by 
CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall maintain such records for a period of four (4) years following termination of the 
Agreement, and shall make them available for copying upon COUNTY's request at COUNTY's expense. COUNTY shall 
have the right to withhold any payment under this Agreement until CONTRACTOR has provided access to CONTRACTOR's 
financial and program records related to this Agreement. 

XXXII. PRIOR AGREEMENTS 

This Agreement constitutes the entire contract between COUNTY and CONTRACTOR regarding the subject matter of this 
Agreement. Any prior agreements, whether oral or written, between COUNTY and CONTRACTOR regarding the subject 
matter of this Agreement are hereby terminated effective immediately upon full execution of this Agreement. 

XXXIII.SEVERABILITY 

If any term or condition of this Agreement or the application thereof to any person(s) or circumstance is held invalid or 
unenforceable, such invalidity or unenforceability shall not affect other termsf<tefiditions, or applications which can be given 
effect without the invalid term, condition, or application; to this end the ,·qi -~nd conditions of this Agreement are declared 
severable. (7"-

XXXIV.FORCE MAJEURE ~ 
/, 4. "" Neither CONTRACTOR nor COUNTY shall be liable or resp~sible for deiays or failures in performance resulting from events 

beyond the reasonable control of such party and without fault oQie_gl~ .. "" e6ce of such patiy. Such events shall include but not 
be limited to acts of God, strikes, lockouts, riots, act.:' of war, ep~o ics, acts of government, fire, power failures, nuclear 
accidents, earthquakes, unusually severe weather, acf~e1t_orism, or~ ~r disasters, whether or not similar to the foregoing, 
and acts or omissions or fai lure to cooperate of the other arty~hird partts ( except as othe1wise specifically provided herein). 

XXXV. TRANSITION OF CARE -.,.. \ / /~ 

If CONTRACTOR provides services o~ patie1 "clients under the terms of this AGREEMENT, CONTRACTOR shall ',,.,,,-~ \ 

cooperate with COUNTY and a~y( ~er P1~<> i~r-.o.(.~ryices in circumstances where Patient car~ is ~ransferred from 
CONTRACTOR to another Prov1del\, _CSQ,NJR:Ae-TOR.,,understands and agrees that such cooperation 1s necessary for 
coordination of care and will make.all reilso~n ble efforts to make such transfers as seamless for the Patient as is possible. 

/',.---.. "--. '\ 
XXXVI. SURVIVAL OF TERMS/ / '\ 

~II services perfo1med ~)eli~erables l.r)wide_d pursuant_ to !his Agre~~~nt are subje~t to all of the terms, condi~ions, price 
discounts and rates set forth ne~1x nol)v1ilistandmg the exprrat1on of the m1tial term oftlus Agreement or any extension thereof. 
Fmiher, the terms, conditions, an<l wafrafuies contained in this Agreement that by their sense and context are intended to survive 
the completion of the performance;-eifucellation, or termination of this Agreement shall so survive. 

XXXVII. DUPLICATE COUNTERPARTS 

This Agreement may be executed in duplicate counterparts. The Agreement shall be deemed executed when it has been signed 
by both parties. 

Signatures scanned and h·ansmitted electronically shall be deemed original signatures for purposes of this Agreement, with 
such scanned signatures having the same legal effect as original signatures. This Agreement may be executed through the use 
of an electronic signature and will be binding on each party as if it were physically executed. 

XXXVIII. AUTHORITY TO EXECUTE 

Each person executing this Agreement represents and warrants that he or she is duly authorized and has legal authority to 
execute and deliver this Agreement for or on behalf of the parties to this Agreement. Each party represents and warrants to the 
other that the execution and delivery of the Agreement and the performance of such party's obligations hereunder have been 
duly authorized. 

Cost Reimbursement Agreement 
No. 7206000-24/26-l 51 

Page 7 of9 CA Agency 
Revised 3/20/23 
OHS Agreement 

P188 



XXXIX.DRUG FREE WORKPLACE 

XL. 

If the contract is funded in whole or in part with State funds the CONTRACTOR shall comply, and require that its 
Subcontractors comply, with Government Code Section 8355. By executing this contract Contractor certifies that it will 
provide a drug free workplace pursuant to Government Code Section 8355. 

CLEAN AIR ACT AND WATER POLLUTION CONTROL ACT 

CONTRACTOR shall comply with applicable standards of the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401-767lq) and the Federal Water 
Pollution Control Act (33 U.S.C. 1251-1387), as amended. Subcontracts (Subgrants) of amounts in excess of$150,000 must 
contain a provision that requires the non-Federal awardee to agree to comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations 
issued pursuant to the two Acts cited in this section. Violations must be reported to the Federal awarding agency and the 
Regional Office of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). 

XLI. CULTURAL AND LINGUISTIC PROFICIENCY 

To ensure equal access to quality care by diverse populations, CONTRACTOR shall adopt the federal Office of Minority 
Health Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate Service (CLAS) national standards, which can be found at 
http://minorityhealth.hhs.gov/omh/browse.aspx?lvl=2&lvlid=53. /> 

COVID-19 REQUIREMENTS <{, 
CONTRACTOR shall be solely and completely responsible for im,P~menting the apP,licable COVID-19 guidelines from the 
California Division oflndustrial Safety, the Centers for Disease .e'orttrol and Prevention (CDC), and the Occupational Safety 
and Health Administration's (OSHA) non-emergency COVID(.9/prev':,.nfipn regulations. (see Title 8 sections 3205, 3205.1, 
3205.2, and 3205.3 (2023).) ~ ,/ .,, 

XLIII. ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS ~ 

The additional provisions contained in Exhibits A, B~:;,~,, d{ attached hereto are part of this Agreement and are 
incorporated herein by reference. ' ,/ / ---......._. ,,.----- , 

/ ,..-.. 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto~~ tliis Agreerpent to be duly executed as of the day and year first written above. 

COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO, a polit~~ lJj~ on of the SACRAMENTO METROPOLITAN FIRE DISTRICT 

::•_e-of_C_a_li_fu_rn_i_a ___ ( __ /_~ __ ,J✓~:~-----
Timothy W. Lutz, Director, Department of Health Services, or 
designee. Approval delegated pursuant to Sacramento County 
Code Section 2.61.012 (h) 

Date: _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _________ _ 

By --------------------
Adam A. House, Fire Chief 

Date: ___________________ _ 

Cost Reimbursement Agreement 
No. 7206000-24/26-151 

Page 8 of9 CA Agency 
Revised 3/20/23 
DHS Agreement 

P189 



CONTRACT AND CONTRACTOR TAX STATUS 
REVIEWED AND APPROVED BY COUNTY COUNSEL 

By: - - - - ------ Date: ___ ____ __ _ 

Cost Reimbursement Agreement 
No. 7206000-24/26-15 I 

Page 9 of9 CA Agency 
Revised 3/20/23 
OHS Agreement 

P190 



COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO COST REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT NO. 7206000-24/26-151 

EXHIBIT A to AGREEMENT 
between the COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO, 
hereinafter referred to as "COUNTY", and 

SACRAMENTO METROPOLITAN FIRE DISTRICT, 
hereinafter referred to as "CONTRACTOR" 

SERVICE REQUIREMENTS 

I. SERVICE LOCATION(S) 

II. 

III. 

IV. 

Facility Name: Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District 
10545 Armstrong Ave, Suite 200, 
Mather, CA 95655 

Street Address: 
City and Zip Code: 

SERVICE PERFORMANCE MONITOR 

Name and Title: Lori Miller, Human Services Division Manager . 
Substance Use Prevention and Treatment Se~ ices 1/ Organization: 

Street Address: 7001-A East Parkway, Suite 500 • 
City and Zip Codes: Sacramento, CA 95823 //' 

OVERVIEW /1/ ,~ 1/ 0... ', 
In partnership and collaboration with COUNTY, CONTRAeTQR shalrprovide opioid remediation services to residents of 
Sacramento County. Opioid Remediation Activities should addre~jyl~st one of five community priority areas; 1) Prevention 
and/or Treatment Social Media Campaigns for the General P~~t~n, 2) Youth Specific Programming - Social Media 
Campaigns, Prevention for Youth and Families, Pre~i_01,,or Con'l~unities of Color, and/or Awareness and Education, 3) 
Harm Reduction Services, 4) Linkage to County Beha~i?i'al, e~lth.:_freat@ent Se1vices, 5) Expansion of Medication-Assisted 
Treatment. \\ '/....._ . 

SERVICE REQUIREMENrn / ).' . . . . . . 

A. CONTRACTOR shall provide op101d ren1eo_1_!ifto11 .. se1:v..1ces under the followmg community pnonty areas: 
/ / - ·--../ 

I. 

2. 

Prevention Social ~~i11~qtmpaigns for the General Population: CONTRACTOR will leverage their current 
on line platform an<yelations}Jip~ with local media to launch a targeted social media campaign centered on prevention. 
The campaign,wQI present po's~ive role. models, with topics that include identifying opioids, the risks of opioid use, 
and consequenc'e~J> opioid mis,~'.Js. CONTRACTOR will also parh1er with local influencers, healthcare professionals, 
and other commurli~~ganizatio s to enhance credibility and audience engagement. 

~ /' 
Youth Specific Progra"\mji{g- Social Media Campaigns, Prevention for Youth and Families, Prevention for 
Communities of Color, and/or Awareness and Education: CONTRACTOR will leverage established partnerships 
with schools to provide an awareness, education, and prevention programs to middle school students grades 6-8. 
Programming will include live presentations covering communication, peer relationships, self-efficacy, drug 
resistance skills, recognition of an opioid overdose, and what to do in that situation. Programming will align with the 
National Institute on Drug Abuse Preventing Drug Use among Children and Adolescents (2nd Edition) curriculum. 

3. Linkage to Treatment Services, Expansion of Medication-Assisted Treatment, and Make Naloxone Available: 
CONTRACTOR will provide client linkage to County Behavioral Health treatment services for mental health and 
substance use disorders. CONTRACTOR will provide medication-assisted treatment for those with opioid use 
disorders. CONTRACTOR will implement a naloxone (Narcan) leave behind program, in which this overdose reversal 
medication will be provided to those at risk of an overdose and/or struggling with an opioid use disorder. 

V. ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS 

A. Opioid Remediation Activities funding provided under this Agreement is for services to Sacramento County residents 
only. A person is a Sacramento County resident if he/she is currently staying in Sacramento County with the intent to 
remain and live in Sacramento County. Any person who comes to Sacramento County for the express purpose of qualifying 

Cost Reimbursement Agreement 
No. 7206000-24/26-15 l 

Exhibit A, Page I of2 

P1 91 



to receive opioid remediation services from a COUNTY-funded program and intends to leave Sacramento County after 
receipt of services, is not considered a Sacramento County resident. Proof ofresidency can be established by the following: 
1. Any bill or correspondence current to within the previous two weeks showing the individual's name and a Sacramento 

County address. 
2. Written statement by homeless shelter staff (if applicable) verifying that the individual has been in shelter residence 

continuously for the previous two weeks. Homeless beneficiaries will not be denied service if proof of residence is 
unavai lable. 

3. Current State issued identification card reflecting a Sacramento County address. 
4. Other reliable evidence that establishes Sacramento County residency. 

Cost Reimbursement Agreement 
No. 7206000-24/26- I 51 

Exhibit A, Page 2 of2 

P192 



COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO COST REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT NO. 7206000-24/26-151 

EXHIBIT B to Agreement 
between the COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO, 
hereinafter referred to as "COUNTY," and 

SACRAMENTO METROPOLITAN FIRE DISTRICT, hereinafter referred 
to as "CONTRACTOR" 

INSURANCE OR SELF-INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR CONTRACTORS 

Each party, at its sole cost and expense, shall cany insurance -or self-insure- its activities in connection with this Agreement, 
and obtain, keep in force and maintain, insurance or equivalent programs of self-insurance, for general liability, workers 
compensation, property, professional liability, cyber liability, and business automobile liability adequate to cover its 
potential liabilities hereunder. Each party agrees to provide the other thirty (30) days' advance written notice of any 
cancellation, termination, or lapse of any of the insurance or self-insurance coverages. Failure to maintain insurance as 
required in this Agreement is a material breach of contract and is grounds for termin~,,1 of the Agreement. 

/~ 
~/~" 

Cost Reimbursement Agreement 
No.7206000-24/26-l 5 I 

(< 
A<_/ '\ 

Exl1ibit B, Page I of 1 Risk Mgmt. Version 1/27/21 

P193 



COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO COST REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT NO. 7206000-24/26-151 

EXHIBIT C to AGREEMENT 
between the COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO, 
hereinafter referred to as "COUNTY", and 

SACRAMENTO METROPOLITAN FIRE DISTRICT, 
hereinafter refened to as "CONTRACTOR" 

BUDGET REQUIREMENTS 

I. MAXIMUM PAYMENT TO CONTRACTOR: $1,100,000. 

II. BUDGET REQUIREMENTS 

A. 

B. 

C. 

D. 

E. 
F. 

CONTRACTOR shall be reimbursed for services provided to the members in accordance with the se1vice 
categories and rates set forth below in the amounts not to exceed the maximum payment amount of each 
funding source or of all funding sources combined, the maximum total payment amount of the agreement. 
CONTRACTOR shall use the funds provided by COUNTY exclusively for the purposes of performing the 
services described in Exhibit A of this Agreement. 
The budget as described below is subject to revision upon writtp(f;6tice by COUNTY to CONTRACTOR 
as provided in this Agreement. Upon notice of this rev)sioit, CONTRACTOR shall adjust services 
accordingly. Said revisions shall constitute an amendme11}t6lh1(Agreement. 
At the sole discretion of the COUNTY, one or more o~e~nding sbµrces identified below in Section Ill, 
Budget, upon written notice from the COUNTY, ma:9,,be increased' oi:Je~uced to best utilize the funds to 
provide optimal services to the eligible residents 9f~a'cramento County."'-.) 
All fund transfer requests must be approved ~y G'9\!!'lTY,."_) . . . 
Any requests for changes to the budget sechons\v~foJ>,tJ<jmre an amendment must be made 111 wntmg to 
COUNTY by CONTRACTOR prior to March I, 202\ <__ 

\\)/" ~ 
,~~ , 

//) 
/~ 

<! ) 
// 

Cost Reimbursement Agreement 
No. 7206000-24/26-151 

Exhibit C, Page 1 of2 

P194 



III. BUDGET 

A. 

SACRAMENTO METROPOLITAN FIRE DISTRICT BUDGET 

CATEGORY RATE/UNIT 

B. 

Fuel $ 1.00 Perunit 

Vehicle Supplies and Maintenance $ 1.00 Per unit 

Medical Supplies $ 1.00 Per unit 

Electronic Documentation Software $ 1.00 Per unit 

Radios $ 1.00 Per unit 

Telecommunications $ 1.00 Per unit 
A 

Insurance // $ 1.00 Perunit 

Promotional and Educational Materials and Training / ,~'\., 
( / "· $ 1.00 Perunit 

Administrative Overhead 
') V 

/,, ~ ~ 1.00 Per unit 
/ / '-$;> Staff Expenses - Program Coordinator (0.5 FTE) / / /) 1.00 Perunit , < 

Staff Expenses -Advanced Providers (8 PAs and~}✓t,jsFTEs) $ 1.00 Per unit 

Staff Expenses - Paramedic (2 FTEs) 
~-- - ""~ ' $ 1.00 Perunit 

l
~,1 - ' ' Staff Expenses - Medical Director (120 h f ~• approx. 0.06 fTE) $ 1.00 Perunit 

\ \ // -
Staff Expenses - Ove1time ~ 

~ 
$ 1.00 Perunit 

~ / , J}om ~IATION FUNDS - HS SUPTOP-30:1 
'- '\. • ',- (RFP #SUPT/067) $ 

,I 
// 
/ 

BUDGE!' SUMMARY 

OPIOID RF.MEDIATION FUNDS - HS SUPTOP-30 $ 

TOTAL $ 

Cost Reimbursement Agreement 
No. 7206000-24/26-J 5 l 

Exhibit C, Page 2 of2 

1,100,000 

1,100,000 

1,100,000 

P195 



COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO COST REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT NO. 7206000-24/26-151 

EXHIBIT D TO AGREEMENT 

I. 

II. 

between the COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO, 
hereinafter referred to as "COUNTY", and 

SACRAMENTO METROPOLITAN FIRE DISTRICT, 
hereinafter referred to as "CONTRACTOR" 

ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS 

LAWS, STATUTES, AND REGULA TIO NS 

A. CONTRACTOR shall abide by all applicable state, federal, and county laws, statutes, and regulations including but not 
limited to the provisions of Division 10.5 of the Health and Safety Code, beginning with Section 11750 thereof, Title 9 
and Title 22 of the California Code of Regulations, Drug Medi-Cal Policies, the State of California data reporting systems, 
Drug Program Fiscal System Manual, the State of California Department ofHealth Care Services (CA DHCS) Guidelines, 
regulations implementing the above-referenced statutes and regulations, in carrying out the requirements of this 
Agreement. 

./) 
B. CONTRACTOR shall comply with all Policies and Procedures adop~by COUNTY to implement federal/state laws and 

regulations. (, ~ 

C. CONTRACTOR shall comply with the requirements mandatej,fo, cultu~~petent services to diverse populations. 
/ / 

LICENSING, CERTIFICATION, AND STAFFING // /) 
\ . // 

A. CONTRACTOR shall be, and remain certified for both drug and afcohol treatment by the CA DHCS in accordance with 
program standards issued by the State. Drug Medi~Cal ce11ification may be in lieu of program certification. 

B. Notwithstanding the provisions of Section IX ~~µ®!n(lnt, employees who are recent graduates of treatment 
programs must have a minimum of twelve (12) mopl~~/sol>riefy-ifthey are responsible for performing counseling duties 
(e.g. assessment, treatment planning#~~) and g r· fip treatment sessions). 

C. CONTRACTOR agrees to fuml#rofes~dnl Lp~nel in accordance with the regulations, including all amendments 
thereto, issued by the State or ~ O~t)'",.;GQNT_,WACTOR shall operate continuously throughout the term of this 
Agreement with at least ~~f.lli1.!l_mu'.\st{iff required by law for provision of services hereunder; such personnel shall be 
qualified in accordanc/itlrall,1:1pp\ab~S'' including current State counseling certification regulations. 

D. CONTRACTOR s4-..~_rovide o~,-e nise program staff twenty-four (24) hours per day, seven (7) days per week in 
residential and detoxifi at~·on facilitiJs 

/I 
E. CONTRACTOR shall mak a=aiJable upon request to COUNTY, a list of persons who will provide services under this 

Agreement. The list shall state:the name, title, professional degree, and work experience of such persons. 

F. CONTRACTOR shall ensure that its employees providing intake, assessment of need for services, treatment or recovery 
planning, individual or group counseling to participants, clients, or residents in a CA DHCS licensed or certified program 
are certified as defined in CCR, Title 9, Division 4, Chapter 8. 

III. OPERATION AND ADMINISTRATION 

A. CONTRACTOR agrees to furnish at no additional expense to COUNTY beyond the amount identified as the Maximum 
Reimbursable Amount in Exl1ibit C all space, faci lities, equipment, and supplies necessary for proper provision of its 
services under the Agreement. In addition, CONTRACTOR agrees to furnish, for use by up to seven (7) county employees, 
an enclosed, clean area at CONTRACTOR's program site that meets IDPAA confidentiality and security requirements, a 
phone unit, phone service with voicemail, parking space, and internet access for each assigned County employee. 
CONTRACTOR fm1her agrees to furnish access to copiers and fax machines (including copier and fax supplies), janitorial 
service and group rooms as needed. CONTRACTOR shall provide these items at no expense to COUNTY. COUNTY 
agrees to provide such assigned COUNTY staff with furniture, computers, locking file cabinets and all other supplies and 
equipment needed by such assigned COUNTY staff. 

COST REIMBURSEMENT 
No. 7206000-24/26-l 5 l 

Exhibit D, Page I of 10 ADS Treatment Only ExD 
Revised 6/4/2024 
OHS Agreement 

P196 



IV. 

V. 

B. CONTRACTOR, if incorporated, shall be in good standing and operate according to the provision of its A11icles of 
Incorporation and Bylaws. Said documents and any amendments thereto shall be maintained and retained by 
CONTRACTOR and made available for review or inspection by COUNTY. 

C. Upon request, CONTRACTOR shall fo1ward to the DIRECTOR copies of notices of meetings, minutes, and public 
information that are material to the performance of this Agreement. 

D. CONTRACTOR agrees that all materials created for public dissemination shall reflect the collaborative nature of all 
programs and/or projects. All Program Announcement, Brochures, and Press Releases shall reflect Sacramento County, 
Department of Health Services, Division of Behavioral Health Services, Substance Use Prevention and Treatment 
(SUPT) Services as a collaborator in said program and/or project. 

CLIENT'S RIGHTS 

A. CONTRACTOR shall give to all clients written notice of their rights pursuant to and in compliance with: California Code 
ofRegulations Title 9 Section 862 et seq.; Title XIX of the Social Security Act; and Title 42, Code ofFederal Regulations. 
In addition, in all facilities providing the services described herein, CONTRACTOR shall have prominently posted in the 
predominant language of the community a list of the client's rights. 

B. As a condition of reimbursement, CONTRACTOR shall provide the sam¥el of treatment to beneficiaries served under 
this Agreement as provided to all other clients served. /✓"'-,"'-, 

v "' C. CONTRACTOR shall not discriminate against any beneficiaJ'j 'services prbvfo~nder this Agreement in any manner. 

D. CONTRACTOR agrees to provide a system through whip~tecipients·,fservic~II have the opportunity to express and 
hav_e considered their vi~ws,_ grievances, a~d complaints ?egar~i~gJ}ie d_elivery of services, including affording recipients 
nollce of adverse determmatton and a hearmg thereon to the"e~~equ1red by law. 

CONFIDENTIALITY \\~ '--~ 
A. CONTRACTOR is subject to, and agrees. to com~t} an(rf;;;;.re-. is or her employees to comply with the provisions of 

Sections 5328, 10850, and 14100.2,.P'{th~Welfare a~d Institutions Code, Division 19-000 of the State of California 
Department of Social Services MJ1j@1 of P9Hbies and Procedures, Code of Federal Regulations Title 42, Chapter I, Part 
2, Pm196, Sec. 96.132(e), USC{32()(a), U,,So'l320(d)-1320(d)(8), USC 290 dd-2, Code of Federal Regulations Title 45, 
Subtitle A, Part 160-164, Title 22, <;)li.[2lnja Code of.Regulations, Section 51009, California Civil Code Sections 1798.85, 
1798.80 through 1798.82 ru~g 5.(t!hrbiu;1(56.37, California Health and Safety Code Sections 11845.5 and 123110 through 
123149.5, and all ot~applicable' laws't\ gulations to assure that: 

1. All applicatio11~ records~)
1
erning an individual made or kept by CONTRACTOR, COUNTY, or any public 

officer or agency i~'connectionJvjth the Welfare and Institutions Code relating to any form of public social services 
or health services pi·~icled under this Agreement shall be confidential and shall not be open to examination for any 
purpose not directly con(!'ect(d{vith the administration of such public social or health services. 

"~·/ 
2. No person will unlawfully publish or disclose, or use or cause to be unlawfully published, disclosed, or used, any 

confidential information pertaining to an applicant or recipient of services. Applicant and recipient records and 
information shall not be disclosed by CONTRACTOR to th ird parties without COUNTY's consent or the consent of 
the applicant/recipient. 

B. CONTRACTOR agrees to inform all of his/her employees, agents, subcontractors, and partners of the above provision and 
that knowing and intentional violation of the provisions of said State law is a misdemeanor and is subject to fines. 

C. CONTRACTOR agrees to materially assist, and will require its subcontractors to materially assist, COUNTY in any action 
pe11aining to such unauthorized disclosure required by applicable federal or state laws. 

D. CONTRACTOR is subject to and agrees to comply, when applicable, with the Health Insurance Portability and 
Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA)(42 USC§ 1320d) and regulations promulgated thereunder by the U.S. Department 
of Health and Human Services and other applicable laws and regulations. 

E. CONTRACTOR agrees to repo11 any discovery of a breach of confidentiality to COUNTY within 48 hours of said breach. 

COST REIMBURSEMENT 
No. 7206000-24/26-15 I 

Exhibit D, Page 2 of 10 ADS Treatment Only ExD 
Revised 6/4/2024 
OHS Agreement 

P197 



VI. AUDIT/REVIEW REQUIREMENTS 

A. Federal 0MB Audit Requirements (also known as Omni Circular or Super Circular) for Other Than For-Profit Contractors 
2 CFR 200.501 requires that non-Federal entities that expend $1,000,000 or more (from all Federal sources) in a year in 
Federal Awards must have an annual single or program specific Audit in accordance with the 0MB requirements. 2 CFR 
200.512 sets fo11h the requirements for filing the Audit with the Federal Audit Clearinghouse (FAC). 

B. COUNTY Requirements for Non-Profit. For-Profit, Governmental and School District Contractors 
In addition to the 0MB requirements of paragraph A of this section, COUNTY requires CONTRACTOR to provide an 
annual Audited or Reviewed financial statement as follows: 

1. Annual Audited financial statements and accompanying Auditor's report and notes is required from CONTRACTOR 
when DHS has awarded contracts totaling $250,000 or more for any twelve month period. The Audited financial 
statement shall be prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and the Audit 
shall be performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant in accordance with Generally Accepted Auditing 
Standards (GAAS). 

2. Annual Reviewed financial statements are required from CONTRACTOR when DHS has awarded contracts totaling 
less than $250,000, but more than $100,000 for any twelve month perj~p The Reviewed financial statement shall be 
prepared by an independent Certified Public Accountant in accorda11ctwith Statements on Standards for Accounting 
and Review Services issued by the AICPA. Audited financial ~a~~'~ may be substituted for Reviewed financial 
statements. </ "'-. "'--

✓!> "-
3. Should any audit findings be noted in the Audit or Ro/.~ CONTRACTOR )11-,ust submit a Corrective Action Plan 

with the Audit or Review detailing how the audit findings will be' addressed. 

4. If management letters are issued by a Ce11ified Publi:~~~: eparate from the audit CONTRACTOR is required 
to provide copies to COUNTY, and submit~Qr-r~ ive actio'¾_Plans to address findings or recommendations noted in 
the management letters. ~ '---.., 

~------~ 
5. The annual Audited or Reviewed fina cial statell\en(sliaU'iilelude a Summary of Auditor's Results. 

C. Term of the Audit or Review /0 
The Audit(s) or Review(s) shal~~er thee tire le!!'l o the contract(s). If CONTRACTOR'S fiscal year is different than 
the contract term, multiple Auditi .o~r~~:,ws shall be required, in order to cover the entire term of the contract. 

D. Termination ./ -.., ~ \ 
If the Agreement is le inated fo ny reason during the contract period, the Audit or Review shall cover the entire period 
of the Agreement ~ ich service 7ere pl'ovided. 

E. Submittal and Due D:te~or Audit) ot· Reviews 
CONTRACTOR shall pr~v-~ ,tc(p6UNTY 1 copy of the Audit or Review, as required in this section, due six months 
following the end ofCONTR:Ap'TOR'S fiscal year. Audit or Review shall be sent to: 

F. • Request for Extension of Due Date 

Contracts Manager 
County of Sacramento 

Department of Health Services 
7001 - A East Parkway, Suite l 000C 

Sacramento, CA 95823 

CONTRACTOR may request an extension of the due date for the Audit or Review in writing. Such request shall include 
the reason for the delay, a specific date for the extension and be sent to: 

COST REIMBURSEMENT 
No. 7206000-24/26-15 I 

Contracts Manager 
County of Sacramento 

Department of Health Services 
7001 - A East Parkway, Suite l000C 

Sacramento, CA 95823 

Exhibit D, Page 3 of I 0 ADS Treatment Only ExD 
Revised 6/4/2024 
OHS Agreement 

P198 



G. Past Due Audit/Review 
COUNTY may withhold payments due to CONTRACTOR from all past, current and future DHS contracts when past, 
current or future audits/reviews are not provided to COUNTY by due date or approved extended due date. 

H. Overpayments 
Should any overpayment of funds be noted in the Audit or Review, CONTRACTOR shall reimburse COUNTY the amount 
of the overpayment within 30 days of the date of the completion of the Audit or Review. 

VII. CLINICAL REVIEW AND PROGRAM EVALUATION 

VIII. 

A. CONTRACTOR shall permit, at any reasonable time, State or COUNTY personnel to come on CONTRACTOR's premises 
for annual licensing and/or certification review or other inspections and evaluations the State or COUNTY requires. 

B. CONTRACTOR shall also use evaluation questionnaires or other tools (e.g., ASI) for purposes of evaluation by the State 
or COUNTY. 

C. DIRECTOR or his/her designee shall represent COUNTY in all matters pertaining to services rendered pursuant to this 
Agreement, including authorization for admission, care, and discharge of all clients for whom reimbursement is required 
under this Agreement. /? 

RECORDS &/""' 
A. Client Records ~ ~ _ 

//' 
CONTRACTOR shall maintain adequate client records on· fiich individual client during the entire treatment episode that 
includes but is not limited to diagnostic studies (when apJ}~abJel,,~6~ds of client interviews, progress notes, and records 
of services provided by the various professional and paraprofe~iori'al personnel in sufficient detail to permit an evaluation 
of services. Such records shall comply with all \ pp!Lcable fedet'll~ tate, and county record maintenance requirements. 

B. Medi-Cal Client Records /, , 

CONTRACTOR, if providing Drug.-N(ed~~l services, shall keep client records in accordance with Title 22 of the 
California Code ofRegulations§·1{gar/ro'perfonnabce of treatment se1vices and documentation requirements. 

C. Service and Financial Records ""'/. .-' 

CONTRACTOR shalt!~➔mp c~service and financial records that clearly reflect the actual cost of and related 
fe~s. a~?/or Drug ~ecyrCal reimb\t~nentveceived for each type of servi~e for which payment is claimed. ~he client 
ehg1b1hty determ1i1~tro~ and the r~e~ charged to, and collected from clients shall also be reflected therem. Any 
apportionment of costs~hall be made/ in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Narcotic Treatment 
Programs are excluded t1·on)'thisfof1irement due to State established fee for se1vice rates. 

D. Retention of Records 
"'/ 

I. CONTRACTOR shall retain all records for a minimum of seven (7) years not withstanding the provisions of Section 
XX (D) of the Agreement. If this Agreement contains Substance Abuse Treatment Trust Fund {SA TTF) or Substance 
Abuse Treatment and Testing Accountability (SATTA) funds, Section XVII (B) of this Exhibit supersedes this 
paragraph. 

2. CONTRACTOR shall maintain complete financial records that clearly reflect actual costs of staffing, supplies, 
se1vices and activities as they relate to each type of service for which payment is claimed. Narcotic Treatment 
Programs are excluded from this requirement due to State established fee for_se1vice rates. 

E. Review and Inspection of Records 

At reasonable times during normal business hours, the authorized State or Federal Agencies and representatives, COUNTY 
or DIRECTOR, and /or their appropriate audit agency or designees shall have the right to inspect or othe1w ise evaluate the 
cost, quality, appropriateness and timeliness of services performed and to audit and inspect any books and records of 
CONTRACTOR that pertain to services performed and determination of amount payable under this Agreement. Narcotic 
Treatment Programs are excluded from this requirement due to State established fee for service rates. 

COST REIMBURSEMENT 
No. 7206000-24/26-15 I 

Exhibit D, Page 4 of I 0 ADS Treatment Only ExD 
Revised 6/4/2024 
OHS Agreement 

P199 



F. Program Records 

CONTRACTOR shall maintain adequate program records and documentation of activities and services provided by staff 
in sufficient detail to permit an evaluation of se1vices. Such records shall comply with all applicable Federal, State and 
COUNTY record maintenance requirements. 

G. Upon expiration or termination of this Agreement all client records shall be kept for a minimum of seven (7) years from 
the date of discharge and in the case of minors, for at least one (I) year after the minor client's eighteenth (18th) birthday, 
but in no case less than seven (7) years from the date of discharge. Service and financial records shall be retained by 
CONTRACTOR for a minimum of four (4) years after the termination of this Agreement, or until audit findings are 
resolved, whichever is later. 

IX. REPORTS AND MEETINGS 

A. CONTRACTOR shall provide accurate and timely input of services provided in the Avatar System, or any replacement 
system, in accordance with COUNTY protocol so that COUNTY can generate a monthly report of the units of service 
performed. 

B. CONTRACTOR shall provide COUNTY, to the satisfaction of the DIRE~R, with budgets and reports of planned and 
actual expenditures, the units of se1vice with a description and referen_e'kto the appropriate regulation describing such 
service, and revenues for services provided under this Agreement. 1':@(~ti~ Treatment Programs are excluded from this 
requirement due to State established fee for service rates. <✓/ "-

LY " C. In the event that CONTRACTOR is required to file cost set_!Je'lJlent repo1is or pre-payments repo1is with state, federal or 
county agencies, copies of such reports shall be filed with }?9UNTY ¼together with-a reconciliation of all such rep01is and 
amounts covered by this Agreement to CONTRACTOR)'-total ,o6~t? and revenues. Narcotic Treatment Programs are 
excluded from this requirement due to State established fee'f~sef'i'ce rates. 

('--,.....__ '· ' D. CONTRACTOR shall provide COUNTY with a'¥\at::tmcl,£ost selt~fuent report no later than sixty (60) days after the close 
of the fiscal year. Narcotic Treatment Programs ate\''exciu<ft:clirom t1i"is)equirement due to State established fee for service 
rates. ~1/'0 ,.--.. , 

E. If COUNTY determines there i~,{_{, No ~ctivity Ri;port for CONTRACTOR at the end of a reporting month, 
CONTRACTOR shall provid_e c_;,OJJNTY jt~ copie~ of tale CalOMS, if applicable, and associated data within ten (10) 
days of the end of the month 111 \v~~;; Js1on or discharge took place. 

F. CONTRACTOR is requiredlOlnaintain h~ait list in accordance with DA TAR requirements which identifies those clients 
waiting for access to )reltfuent't~t (.lleet tfle. federal priorities and admit those clients with priorities before those clients 
on the wait list wh<(d<filo t have pnqri\Y. PridJ·ity admissions to treatment shall follow the rankings listed in Exhibit A III. 
C. CONTRACTOR~required to st)bfit monthly DAT AR to the State whether or not any client is on the waiting list. If 
CONTRACTOR is unable,_ to eleylronically submit a monthly DATAR due to circumstances qeyond their conh·ol, 
CONTRACTOR shall re~'tlu~,,p~blem in writing before the established data submission deadlines, with a remediation 
plan to the COUNTY and Sta~or State's approval. 

G. CONTRACTOR shall upon reasonable request and, without additional compensation therefore, make further fiscal, 
statistical, program evaluation, and progress reports as required by DIRECTOR or by the CA DHCS concerning 
CONTRACTOR's activities as they affect the contract duties and purposes herein. COUNTY shall explain procedures for 
reporting the required infonnation. 

H. CONTRACTOR's Executive Director or his/her designee shall attend h·eatment services mandatory monthly contractors' 
meetings. 

I. CONTRACTOR agrees that COUNTY has the right to withhold payments until CONTRACTOR has submitted any 
required data and reports. 

X. EQUIPMENT OWNERSHIP 

A. COUNTY shall have and retain ownership and title to all equipment identified to be purchased by CONTRACTOR under 
Exhibit C of this Agreement. CONTRACTOR shall furnish, and amend as necessa1y, a list of a ll equipment purchased 
under this Agreement together with the bills of sale and any other documents as may be necessary to show clear title and 

COST REIMBURSEMENT 
No. 7206000-24/26-15 l 

Exhibit D, Page 5 of 10 ADS Treatment Only ExD 
Revised 6/4/2024 
DHS Agreement 

P200 



XI. 

XII. 

reasonableness of the purchase price. The equipment list shall specify the quantity, name, description, purchase price, and 
date of purchase of all equipment. CONTRACTOR shall make all equipment available to COUNTY during normal 
business hours for tagging or inventory. CONTRACTOR shall deliver all equipment to COUNTY upon termination of 
this Agreement. Narcotic Treatment Programs are excluded from this requirement as equipment is not an allowable 
purchase under Drug Medi-Cal funding regulations. 

B. CONTRACTOR shall submit a written request to purchase any publicly funded equipment over $300 to COUNTY. 
COUNTY shall review the request and forward it to the appropriate State agency for approval when necessary. 
CONTRACTOR shall not purchase the equipment until all necessary approvals are obtained. 

C. For all publicly funded equipment over $300, CONTRACTOR shall provide COUNTY with the manufacturer's name, 
model name or number, serial number, and actual cost, including taxes, within ten (10) days after equipment is received 
and installed. COUNTY retains ownership of this equipment. The equipment may be entered on COUNTY's fixed asset 
inventory, shall be physically inventoried annually, and shall be returned to COUNTY at the end of its useful life or when 
COUNTY funding of the program ends, whichever occurs first. 

D. For all publicly funded equipment over $300, CONTRACTOR shall include the invoice with the claim for reimbursement. 

E. CONTRACTOR shall contact County in writing regarding disposal of a~publicly funded equipment, including leased 
equipment when there is an option to purchase. COUNTY will ta15Y.' p:Ossession of such equipment for surplus sale 
following COUNTY procedures or return to the appropriate State i~~,gency. 

STAFF TRAINING AND EDUCATION d "\, '\ 
A. CONTRACTOR shall provide and document AIDS,,,-AP'A, anp-"9ultural ~petency training to staff and have 

documentation available for COUNTY inspection upon t'6q_tl~ / I'n a'ddition, other specialized COUNTY recommended 
training will be provided in cooperation with sr;::_ Services~ < 

B. CONTRACTOR shall develop and maintain a wr.{tfuri'.'Rr tocol o~l~ng the agency's policy towards special needs clients 
to ensure nondiscrimination of protecte:~~asses o\~,,~ • ' 

TUBERCULOSIS SCREENING FOR EMFfu.YEES,AND CLIENTS 

CONTRACTOR shall fo llow these ll/.{,eq191~J ents: \ \ " / ~ 
A. Employees ......._ 

Employees and vo1111 teei'.~e sc ·eened for tuberculosis within sixty (60) days prior to starting work or within seven 
(7) days after the fit-~~~ day of employment and annually thereafter from the date of the last tuberculosis test. 

B. Clients '~ ~ 
,// 

1. Clients pa11icipating in re idential or outpatient treatment facilities shall be screened for tuberculosis within six (6) 
months prior to entering treatment or within thirty (30) days after the first (1st) day of treatment. Tuberculosis 
screenings are good for one (I) year. 

2. Clients participating in primarily detoxification programs are exempt. 

XIII. CONTRACTOR CLIENT FEES 

A. Clients receiving publicly funded SUPT services shall not be charged a co-payment at any treatment level for treatment 
services rendered by a CONTRACTOR, according to the COUNTY SUPT Co-Payment Policy. 

B. CONTRACTOR shall maintain centra l documentation of records of collections of in-kind donations, fund-raising effo1is, 
and other measures used to offset non-reimbursable costs associated with treatment. This applies only to detoxification 
services' Med-Packs, residential treatment services room and board, and transitional living/sober living environment food 
costs when clients are served at a central dining room, and must be in accordance with the addendum to the COUNTY 
SUPT Co-Payment Policy. 

COST REIMBURSEMENT 
No. 7206000-24/26-15 l 

Exhibit D, Page 6 of 10 ADS Treatment Only ExD 
Revised 6/4/2024 
DHS Agreement 

P201 



C. CONTRACTOR shall not charge fees for Drug Medi-Cal services except where share of cost requirements are noted on 
the Medi-Cal card. CONTRACTOR shall abide by the COUNTY SUPT Services' policy of Co-Payment and Share of 
Cost policy. 

XIV. CLAIMSFORPAYMENT 

A. During the term of this Agreement, COUNTY shall, except as herein provided, make provisional payments for services 
rendered during the preceding month upon the receipt of claims submitted by CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall 
submit a monthly claim in the format and in accordance with the procedures prescribed by COUNTY. Notwithstanding 
the provisions of Section XX (B) of the Agreement, unless otherwise provided, claims shall be submitted to COUNTY no 
later than the tenth (10th) day of the month following the claim period, and COUNTY shall reimburse CONTRACTOR 
within thirty (30) days after receipt of an appropriate and correct claim, except that DlRECTOR may withhold a percentage 
of the final claim until receipt by DIRECTOR of a complete and accurate cost report. 

B. If DIRECTOR finds that CONTRACTOR requires advance payment in order to perform the services required by this 
Agreement and advance payment will not create an undue risk that payment could be made for services which are not 
rendered, the DIRECTOR may authorize a one (!)-time advance in an amount not to exceed ten percent (10%) of the 
Maximum Payment to CONTRACTOR through this Agreement at the time the advance is made. Advanced funds shall 
be offset against actual reported expenditures throughout the year or.)?

1 
other arrangements as approved by the 

DIRECTOR. For Agreements of less than a twelve (12)-month period, theone (1)-time advance amount may not exceed 
ten percent (10%) of a twelve (12)-month equivalent of the Max-i~~ Payment to CONTRACTOR through this 
Agreement at the time the advance is made. Advances may be ap~ved'wimarily for start-up costs of new programs or 
one (l)-time expenses. /", "- , 

C. Fonnat or other changes may be made by COUNTY t9£a~, forp1s from ~~o time as needed and furnished to 
CONTRACTOR for billing purposes. All claims shall cl~afl,r reflecf~nd in reasonable detail give information regarding 
the services for which the claim is being made. ~ONT~q-T6){ and COUNTY agree that COUNTY may withhold 
payment until receipt of billing in the prescribed ~and fo~ 

D. It is understood that the validity of such monthl~~~ terms a f~eir compliance with state regulations, is subject to 
the review of the State of California and COUNTY't~ 'at,,<::0~TY will be making payments on said claims in advance 
of said review and approval by the Sta~-;-a~d in a~van6e of other reimbursement by the State to COUNTY for sums 
expended thereunder. In the eve~tnat'ylUNTY is not reimbursed by the State for any amount it has paid to 
CONTRACTOR hereunder, CO.,NTRACTO - hall reimburse COUNTY in the amount of such overpayment within thirty 
(30) days or, at the sole discretioQ~.tp _;_· C Oit,-G~TY may withhold such amounts from any payments due under 
this Agreement or any successat-"-1i reement. n- the case of Drug Medi-Cal claims disapproved by the State, 
CONTRACTOR shall take aflactionS'ne<c~ssary to obtain such approval. 

/7~ '\_ ~ "' 
E. For corrections to elaims CONTID\,GfOR shall submit a claims correction spreadsheet to COUNTY with the monthly 

claim. '\~ I 

F. If a post-Agreement a~it, cond~~,~n accordance with standard accounting procedures, finds that the actual aggregate 
costs for all services furnished"yursuant to this Agreement are lower than the payments made by COUNTY, or if any 
payments made by COUNTY are not reimbursable in accordance with the terms of the Alcohol Services Reporting System, 
the Drug Program Fiscal System Manual, or Drug Medi-Cal policies or any funds administered through the CA DHCS, 
the difference shall be repaid by CONTRACTOR forthwith by cash payment or at the sole discretion of DIRECTOR as a 
credit on future billings, including future billings on future contracts. If such post-Agreement audit finds that the actual 
cost of any service furnished hereunder are higher than the payments made by COUNTY for that service, then the 
difference will not be paid to CONTRACTOR. 

G. In the event of termination of this Agreement prior to specified duration or in the event of non-renewal of contract services 
between CONTRACTOR and COUNTY, CONTRACTOR shall, within thirty (30) days of termination of this Agreement, 
declare to COUNTY any and all accounts receivables and assign to COUNTY billings to all clients and/or payers for 
services rendered clients for which claims have been or are being made to COUNTY for reimbursement. 

XV. DRUG MEDI-CAL CLAIMS 

A. CONTRACTOR billing for Drug Medi-Cal services shall enter all clients and services as they are provided into the 
COUNTY Avatar system. CONTRACTOR shall submit all the State required forms including but not limited to CA DHCS 
l 00186 and/or CA DHCS 6065 for Drug Medi-Cal billing to COUNTY each month. In addition, CONTRACTOR shall 

COST REIMBURSEMENT 
No. 7206000-24/26-151 

Exhibit D, Page 7 of 10 ADS Treatment Only ExD 
Revised 6/4/2024 
DHS Agreement 

P202 



XVI. 

XVII. 

XVIII. 

identify and record any third party insurance required to enable the COUNTY to successfully seek Drug Medi-Cal 
reimbursement as required by the State. If corrections are required to a previously claimed service CONTRACTOR shall 
submit all COUNTY required forms including, but not limited to, Claims Correction Spreadsheet to COUNTY in 
accordance with the published COUNTY Avatar billing schedule and processes. These requirements are in addition to the 
regular claim requirements discussed in Paragraph XV. 

B. CONTRACTOR shall comply with the requirements imposed by statutes, regulations and rules governing certification, 
coverage and reimbursement by Medi-Cal. 

i. CONTRACTOR shall confirm Medi-Cal eligibility monthly for all clients receiving services. 
ii. CONTRACTOR shall update the COUNTY Avatar system as eligibility status changes for every client. 
iii. CONTRACTOR shall maintain proof of client Drug Medi-Cal eligibility in their records. 

SUBSTANCE ABUSE AND CRIME PREVENTION ACT OF 2000 SERVICES, CLAIMS, GUIDELINES, AND 
FINANCIAL RECORDS 

A. CONTRACTOR shall utilize all applicable treatment funds available in their contract to bill for Substance Abuse and 
Crime Prevention Act of2000 (Proposition 36) services. Proposition 36 is an unfunded mandate at this time. 

B. As required by Title 9, California Code of Regulations, section 9535(g)~$2twithstanding the provisions of Section XX 
(D) of the Agreement, CONTRACTOR shall retain all records docuJneri.fihg the use of all applicable treatment fonds for 
a period of five (5) years from the end of the fiscal year or until co4)pletio --6f~he CA DHCS annual audit and resolution 
of any resulting audit issues if the audit is not resolved within fivel(S) years. ~ 

/,,,/ ' 
USEOFFUNDSANDPAYMENTLIMITATION < / /) ' 

A. Under the SUPT Services' System of Care policies and p~oc~~«s/when applicabl: , CONTRACTOR will be required to 
obtain SUPT Services authorization for treatmer\s-to receive ~~ts for publicly funded treatment services. 

B. Exhibit C is subject to revision upon written notic~~'F-~~NTRACTOR as provided in the basic Agreement. 
Upon notice of revision, CONTRACTOR shall adJ\. st SJJfi~ ac'1ordingly. Said revisions shall constitute ar\ amendment 
to this Agreement. / ,,,- ' . ,.,-

C. None of the funds made availableihrough thiJ contract m,ay be used for any activity that promotes the legalization of any 
drug or other substance includeiF~z1,iuli 1 of Section 202 of the Controlled Substances Act (21 USC 812). 

D. No funds made available_1firou_ h,_thrs~~ntract shall be used to carry out any program of distributing sterile needles or 
syringes for the hypod€rn~ t~i''o 11 ofau'NJlegal drug. 

0 / , \ V . 
E. SAPT Block Grant'f\!\ds may not ':)used to pay a salary in excess of the rate of basic pay Level I of the Executive 

Schedule, as found in litf~ www.op1n.gov/oca. 

ADDITIONAL DRUG MEDI-~EIMBURSEMENT REQUIREMENTS 

A. CONTRACTOR, if providing Drug Medi-Cal services, shall comply with Title 22 and/or Title 9 of the California Code of 
Regulations with regard to performance of treatment services and documentation requirements. 

B. CONTRACTOR assumes all risk for denial of Drug Medi-Cal claims. 

C. For Enhanced Care Management (ECM) authorized contracts, CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for costs associated 
with denied CalAIM ECM claims. CONTRACTOR is responsible to make the appropriate corrections to CalAIM ECM 
denials in accordance with COUNTY policy. 

D. Any CONTRACTOR providing Drug Medi-Cal related services to clients also receiving Drug Medi-Cal Narcotic 
Treatment Program services should ensure that double billing does not take place by subcontracting with Narcotic 
Treatment Program providers for Narcotic Treatment Program services. 

E. Any client of a CONTRACTOR providing Narcotic Treatment Program services is entitled to a pre-termination fair 
hearing. Sacramento County SUPT Services will provide an impatiial fair hearing officer. The fair hearing officer will 
always be someone who is an impartial party, and not involved in patient care. 

COST REIMBURSEMENT 
No. 7206000-24/26-151 

Exhibit D, Page 8 of I 0 ADS Treatment Only ExD 
Revised 6/4/2024 
OHS Agreement 

P203 



XIX. BASIS FOR ADVANCE PAYMENT 

xx. 

XXI. 

A. Pursuant to Government Code § 110 I 9( c) this Agreement allows for advance payment once per fiscal year when 
CONTRACTOR submits a request in writing, and request is approved in writing by DIRECTOR or DIRECTOR's 
designee. 

B. If DIRECTOR finds both that CONTRACTOR requires advance payment in order to perform the services required by this 
Agreement and that the advance payment will not create an undue risk that payment will be made for se1vices which are 
not rendered, DIRECTOR, or DIRECTOR's designee, may authorize, in her/his sole discretion, an advance in the amount 
not to exceed ten percent (I 0%) of the "Net Budget/Maximum Payment to CONTRACTOR" as indicated in Exhibit C. 

C. In the case of Agreements with multiple-year terms, DIRECTOR or DIRECTOR's designee may authorize annual 
advances ofnot more than ten percent (10%) of the "Net Budget/Maximum Payment to CONTRACTOR" for each fiscal 
year as indicated in the Exhibit C. 

D. CONTRACTOR's written request for advance shall include a detailed written report substantiating the need for such 
advance payment, and such other information as DIRECTOR or DIRECTOR's designee may require. 

E. All advanced funds shall be offset against reimbursement submitted during t~ fiscal year. 

F. COUNTY reserves the right to withhold the total advance amount fro1J14nvoice. 
/,, '--

G. These provisions apply unless specified otherwise in Exhibit ~ bii Agreem'e~ 

AMENDMENTS // 

A. DIRECTOR may execute an amendment to this Agreem~t ~~~1fiat: 

1. An increase in the maximum contract amou\tres-!!.!_ting froi'n~~mendment does not exceed the Director's delegated 
authority under Sacramento County Code Sf~io~16.~0 (ql' ~r any amount specified by Board of Supe1visor's 
resolution for amending this Agreement, whio \Ver l§'g,t:!!~!.<p:;~1ta 

\ \,/, ' ~ / 
2. Funding for the increased conL. ~J~lion is v~l, within tho D,p,rtm,nt's ollooat,d bud got fo, th, fiscal yoac 

B. The budget attached to this Agr~em~ s J;xljf bit C is \~ject to revision by COUNTY upon written notice by COUNTY 
to CONTRACTOR as provided'tn thJ.:; fa~e~pon notice, CONTRACTOR shall adjust services accordingly and 
shall within thitty (30) days s_ubmitlo DIRECTOR a revised budget. Said budget revision shall be in the form and manner 
prescribed by DIRE<;:PJan~~~ approved in writing, shall constitute an amendment to this Agreement. 

C. The budget attach/4.._(o' this Agree~~! as Exhibit C may be modified by CONTRACTOR making written request to 
DIRECTOR and wr-~e~ approva\ f such request by DIRECTOR. Approval of modifications requested by 
CONTRACTOR is discr~!f0~~a1y \'.fi~ IRECTOR. Said budget modification shall be in the form and manner prescribed 
by DIRECTOR and, whe1i'a~~oved, shall constitute an amendment to this Agreement. 

'-/ 
NO UNLAWFUL USE OR UNLAWFUL USE MESSAGES REGARDING DRUGS 

A. CONTRACTOR agrees that info1mation produced through these funds, and which pertains to drug- and alcohol-related 
programs, shall contain a clearly written statement that there shall be no unlawful use of drugs or alcohol associated with 
the program. Additionally, no aspect of a drug- or alcohol-related program shall include any message on the responsible 
use, if the use is unlawful, of drugs or alcohol (HSC Section 11999). By signing the contract, CONTRACTOR agrees that 
it will enforce, and will require its subcontractors to enforce, these requirements. 

B. CONTRACTOR shall develop an agency-specific policy that addresses alcohol industry sponsorship and avoids use of 
alcohol as a prima1y component of any organizational event or fundraiser. CONTRACTOR shall not accept funds or in
kind donations from any company whose principal business is the production, marketing or distribution of alcoholic 
beverages, including trade organizations whose primary activity is advocacy or promotion on behalfofthe alcohol industry. 

XXII. INTRA VENOUS DRUG USE (IVDU) TREATMENT 

CONTRACTOR shall ensure that individuals in need ofIVDU treatment shall be encouraged to undergo AOD treatment (42 
USC 300x-23(b) of PHS Act). 

COST REIMBURSEMENT 
No. 7206000-24/26-151 

Exhibit D, Page 9 of I 0 ADS Treatment Only ExD 
Revised 6/4/2024 
DHS Agreement 

P204 



xxm. SYSTEM REQUIREMENTS 

A. CONTRACTOR shall adhere to the guidelines, policies and procedures issued by the County Department oflnformation 
Technology (DTech) for use of COUNTY computers, software and systems. 

B. CONTRACTORS shall utilize the COUNTY Avatar system Jor contracted functions including, but not limited to, client 
demographics, services/charges, assessments, treatment plans, and progress notes. CONTRACTOR has the right to choose 
not to use the COUNTY Avatar system but must comply with all necessary requirements involving electronic health 
information exchange between the CONTRACTOR and the COUNTY. The CONTRACTOR must submit a plan to the 
COUNTY for approval demonstrating how the requirement will be met. 

XXIV. ADMISSION POLICIES 

CONTRACTOR's admission policies (if applicable) shall be in writing and avai lable to the public and shall include a provision 
that clients are accepted for care without discrimination as described in this Agreement. 

XXV. HEALTH AND SAFETY 

A. CONTRACTOR shall maintain a safe faci lity. . f' 
B. If applicable, CONTRACT?R shall store and monitor medication 1!,S~th compliance with all applicable state, federal, 

and county laws and regulations. <_,., 

XXVI. MANDATED REPORTING /// 
// D ,. 

CONTRACTOR shall comply with the training requiremeit\<-fo~· J deritification and reporting of child abuse, adult, and 
dependent adult abuse as defined in Penal Code Section 11165.T'a~ ttfe Welfare and Institutions Code Section 15630-15632. 
All training shall be documented in an individual pprsonnel file. G,O~TRACTOR shall establish procedures for paid and 
volunteer staff for reporting suspected child abuse case~ ""-v 

XXVII. BACKGROUND CHECKS ',-\ //"'---~ 

?~ 
A. For services to minors, CONT~eJOR sh ll~ at a 111· imum, not assign or continue the assignment of any employees, 

agents (including subcontractorv~ $'!udent;J'~y.oh~s ("Assigned Personnel") who have been convicted ofa serious or 
violent felony as defined in the Chlifo~aPenal Go~sections 667.5, 1192.7 and 1192.8 or an analogous conviction from 
another jurisdiction. ,..-------., " ~ 

/ ,,,.-- -~ ' 
B. For services to adutt(eoN~~R s 1~submit reasonable standards for background checks and any acceptable or 

unac~e1~table crimf~ co~wictions 'lo) the COUNTY for review, including the length of time passed from criminal 
conv1ct1ons for all ~signed Pe~91111el. Upon acceptance by the COUNTY of CONTRACTOR's standards, 
CONTRACTOR shall be,~~jili(y1'for maintaining the approved standards in regard to all personnel decisions. 

"' / XXVIII. TRAFFICKING VICTIMS PROTECTION ACT OF 2000 

CONTRACTOR'S services shall comply with the Federal Trafficking Victims Protection Act of2000 and amendments 
thereto. 

XXIX. RUSSIAN ECONOMIC SANCTIONS 

Pursuant to California State Executive Order N-6-22 (Order) imposing economic sanctions against Russia and declaring supp011 
of Ukraine, County shall terminate any contract with any individual or entity that is in violation of the Order or that is subject 
to economic sanctions therein, and shall not enter a contract with any such individual or entity while the Order is in effect. 

If the total amount of this Agreement is $5,000,000 or more, CONTRACTOR shall provide a written report to COUNTY within 
60 days of the effective date of the contract or 60 days upon request regarding compliance with economic sanctions and steps 
taken in response to Russia's action in Ukraine, including but not limited to, desisting from making new investments in, or 
engaging in financial transactions with Russia or Russian entities, and directly providing suppo11 to Ukraine, while the Order 
is in effect. The COUNTY shall keep the report on file as evidence of compliance with the Order. 

COST REIMBURSEMENT 
No. 7206000-24/26-l 5 l 

Exhibit D, Page 10 of 10 ADS Treatment Only ExD 
Revised 6/4/2024 
OHS Agreement 

P205 



COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO COST REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT NO. 7206000-24/26-151 

EXHIBIT E to AGREEMENT 
between the COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO, 
hereinafter referred to as "COUNTY", and 

SACRAMENTO METROPOLITAN FIRE DISTRICT, 
hereinafter referred to as "CONTRACTOR" 

SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL FUNDS 

I. [8J If box is checked, there are no Federal funds in this contract. 

II. D If box is checked, there are Federal funds in this contract. CONTRACTOR is NOT a subrecipient. 

III. D If box is checked, there are Federal funds in this contract. CONTRACTOR IS a subrecipient. 

IV. 

v. 

VI. 

vu. 

Federal funding details for this contract are as follows: 

Assistance Listing Number (ALN): ,/, ', 
ALN Title:< , / "" ·""' / ' 

Award Name and Federal Award Identification Nu~lftii "~ 
A. 

(F.AJN : ' ... 
A ~at<l Year: ,') 

Were funds awarded for research and development a~t-cyit-i~_;,'i' / 

Name of the Federal a~arding age~y"-

Amouvt1n)his~ ontracl'I, ' \ \ "> ..________ V 

Assistance Listing Num,ke1>(AtN):··· 

/ ,,,,_,_ \ \ ~N Title: 
Award Name and Fede;a(tNward1ehtificatlon. Number 

B. 
<. L___ V (FAIN): 
"', / / -----Award Year: 

Were funds awardeff§rrese!!_rch"-11,p"d,development activities? 

/'/ Narne-pr-the F~ileiaI awarding agency: 

<- < \ \ Amount in this contract: 

" )) 
Total Federal Funds in this contract:/ $_0/ 

CONTRACTOR'S UBI Number is: N/ A 

CONTRACTOR shall comply with all Federal requirements including 0MB requirements for Single Audits, in addition to 
COUNTY audit requirements for the purposes of contract monitoring as stated in this agreement, as applicable. 

At the sole discretion of COUNTY, the dollar amount payable under each Federal funding source in paragraph III of this 
Exhibit may be changed upon written notice from the COUNTY to CONTRACTOR so long as payments do not exceed the 
maximum total payment amount in accordance with this agreement. 

Cost Reimbursement Agreement 
No. 7206000-24/26-15 I 

Exhibit E, Page I of I Revised 8/9/22 

P206 



COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO COST REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT NO. 7206000-24/26-151 

EXHIBIT F to Agreement 
between the COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO, 
hereinafter referred to as "COUNTY", and 

SACRAMENTO METROPOLITAN FIRE DISTRICT, 
hereinafter referred to as "CONTRACTOR" 

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION 

CONTRACTOR agrees to comply with 5 U.S.C. 1501-1508, 31 U.S.C. §1352 and 45 CFR Part 76.100 (Code ofFederal Regulations), 
which provides that federal funds may not be used for any contracted services, if CONTRACTOR is debarred, suspended, proposed for 
debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any federal department or agency. 

I (We) certify to the best ofmy (our) knowledge and belief, that CONTRACTOR named below and its principals: 

I. Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared in71igible, or voluntarily excluded from covered 

transactions by any federal department or agency; /4< 
- /'-...__ 

2. Have not within a three (3)-year period preceding this proposal been cinvictfq o( or had a civil judgment rendered against 
them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection witj}>obtaining;"att'en~pting to obtain, or performing a public 
(federal, state, or local) transaction or contract under a public J/4rsaction; violatiffi\ <>( federal or state antitrust statutes or 
commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsiflc~fon or q~struction oh'ecords, making false statements, or 
receiving stolen property; "- , , / / '-..._, ( ,, 

' 3. Are not presently indicted or otherwise criminally 01Yc-i:v.i!!Y charged by a governmental entity (federal, state, or local) with 
commission of any of the offenses enumerated in pai\1I~Pb:(2=).ofthis certification; and ,\ )------.. ____ , 

4. Have not within a three (3)-year period prec~ding th l{R,lfcati;;;yprefposal/agreement had one or more publi~ transactions 

(Federal, State, or local) terminated f7 ~f1efau \ 1/ 

5. Shall notify COUNTY within ten (lOHa:S ofr~_geJlofnoti~ation that CONTRACTOR is subject to any proposed or pending 
debarment, suspension, indictments ol :.termin~n~ofa.pyplic transaction. 

6. Shall obtain a certification/rtfa'rai~ebarmen and suspension from all its subcontractors that will be funded through this 

Agreement. /// \ \ • 

7. Hereby agree to termin~)mediately½~~f,Y subcontractor's services that will be/are funded through this Agreement, upon 
discovery that the subcontracl~i~1jigiole or voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any federal department or 

agency. ~1/ 

SACRAMENTO METROPOLITAN FIRE DISTRICT 

BY: _ _________ _ ____ _ DATE: 

Cost Reimbursement Agreement 
No. 7206000-24/26-15 l 

Exhibit F, Page 1 of 1 Debarment and Suspension 
Revised 4/23/15 

P207 



Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District 
1 I 

lta+;J~ 
10545 Armstrong Ave., Suite 200 • Mather, CA 95655 • Phone (916) 859-4300 • Fax (916) 859-3702 

ADAM A. HOUSE 
Fire Chief 

DATE: September 12, 2024 

TO: Board of Directors 

SUBJECT: Amendment to Capital Improvement Program Plan FY 2024/25 - 2028/29 

TOPIC 
Request to amend the Capital Improvement Program Plan for FY 2024/25 - 2028/29. 

BACKGROUND 
On June 13, 2024, the Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District's (District) Board of Directors 
adopted Resolution 2024-089 to adopt the Capital Improvement Program Plan (CIP) for FY 
2024/25 - 2028/29, which authorized the implementation or continuation of twenty-seven (27) 
capital projects totaling $51,908,513. 

DISCUSSION 
As part of the District's final budgeting process, three (3) projects approved in the FY 2024/25 
CIP have been updated to reflect actual costs. Changes include increases in actual costs of 
Type I Engines and a Ladder Truck; and an update to the Zinfandel Phase 3 Buildout project to 
re-budget unspent project funds from FY 2023/24. 

• FISCAL IMPACT 
The net impact of the changes described above was an increase of $518,959 in CIP project 
costs. All applicable changes are reflected in the proposed FY 2024/25 Final Budget. 

RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends the Board adopt the attached resolution to amend the Capital Improvement 
Program Plan for FY 2024/25 - 2028/29. 

Su~mitted by: 

~ 
Approved by: __ 

1f6r* Jeff( y~ 
Chie~evelopment Officer 

ATTACHMENTS: 

Attachment 1: Resolution Amending the Capital Improvement Program Plan FY2024/2025 -
2028/2029 

Attachment 2: Capital Improvement Program Plan FY2024/2025 - 2028/2029 

Serving Sacramento and Placer Counties 

P208 



l I 

~.;(# 
ADAM A. HOUSE 

Fire Chief 

Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District 
10545 Armstrong Ave., Suite 200, Mather, CA Phone (916) 859-4300 Fax (916) 859-3700 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-XXX 

A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM PLAN 
FY 2024/2025 - 2028/2029 

WHEREAS, the Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District ("District") is a political 
subdivision of the State of California ("State") and is duly organized and existing pursuant to 
the State constitution and laws; and 

WHEREAS, on June 13, 2024, the District adopted Resolution 2024-089 to approve 
the Capital Improvement Program Plan for FY 2024/25 - 2028/29 (CIP Plan), which 
recommended the funding of 28 capital projects; and 

WHEREAS, in accordance with the District's Capital Improvement Program Policy, 
the District has prepared an amended CIP Plan for FY 2024/25 - 2028/29 which reflects 
changes identified during the preparation of the District's Final Budget for FY 2024/25; and 

WHEREAS, the FY 2024/25 Final Budget reflects the funding of the recommended 
capital projects for FY 2024/25. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the Sacramento 
Metropolitan Fire District does hereby adopt the amended CIP Plan for FY 2024/25 -2028/29 
and authorize the funding of the recommended capital projects for FY 2024/25. 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 12th day of September, 2024. I, MARNI 
RITTBURG, BOARD CLERK OF SACRAMENTO METROPOLITAN FIRE DISTRICT 
HEREBY CERTIFY the foregoing Resolution was introduced and passed at a regular meeting 
of the Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District Board by the following roll call vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

ATTEST: 

Marni J. Rittburg, CMC, CPMC 
Clerk of the Board 

SACRAMENTO METROPOLITAN FIRE DISTRICT 

By: --------- ----
President, Board of Directors 

Serving Sacramento and Placer Counties P209 















7J 
N _. 
0, 

FY 2024/25 

FINAL BUDGET 

- August 22, 2024 -

Presented by: 

Dave O'Toole 

Chief Financial Officer 



~'\\'tO MEr.eoA 

. ~~;. ~ -: ~t~ FINAL BUDGET OVERVIEW -~ 
- FIRE 

- --- -

""C 
N ...... 
-.J 

FY 2024/25 Final Budget 
-

General Fund 

Revenues 

Expenditures 

Other Financing Sources 

Change in Fund Balance 

Projected Reserve Transfer 

Projected June 30, 2025 General 

Fund Reserve -AMOUNT 

Projected June 30, 2025 General 

Fund Reserve - PERCENT 

Preliminary 

280/811/108 

304/466/472 

16/842/663 

-6✓ 812/ 701 

$ 6/812/701 

$ 34,669,214 

11.3% 

FINAL 

287,855,942 

309,176,028 

15,440,021 

-5,880,065 

$ 5,880,065 

$ 36,819,935 

11.7% 

All Funds 

Preliminary FINAL 

322/ 106/ 767 330,979,679 

373,991/152 382,493,546 

17,369,542 17,886,251 

-34,514,843 -33,627,616 



~"-\\'\O MEr,90.P. 

~~1 ~=: ~~~ FUND BALANCE SUMMARY _,. 
- F'IR:E: • 

FY 2024/25 FINAL BUDGET OVERVIEW: ALL FUNDS 

""C 
N _.. 
co 

Estimated Beginning Fund 

Balance, July 1, 2024 

Revenues 

Expenditures 

Other Financing Sources 

(Uses) 

Change in Fund Balance 

Estimated Ending Fund 

Balance, June 30, 2025 

GENERAL 

FUND 

$ 42,700,000 

287,855,942 

309,176,028 

15,440,021 

-5,880,065 

$ 36,819,935 

CAPITAL LEASED 

FACILITIES PROPERTIES 

FUND FUND 

$ 5,758,637 $1,477,671 

- 1,193,651 

26,220,343 787,867 

21,345,201 -

-4,875,142 405,784 

$ 883,495 $1,883,455 

DEVELOP-MENT 

GRANTS IMPACTFEES 

FUND FUND 

$ 335,371 $ 9,570,042 

1,752,634 3,000,000 

1,983,418 15,241,918 

4,113 2,671,876 

-226,671 -9,570,042 

$ 108,700 $ -

SPECIAL 

PROJECTS 

FUND-ZINF 

IGTFUND TRNGSITE TOTALS 

$ (385,397) $ 14,035,824 $ 73,492,148 

35,773,820 260,000 329,836,047 

13,813,440 14,126,877 381,349,891 

-21,574,983 - 17,886,228 

385,397 -13,866,877 -33,627,616 

$ - $ 168,947 $ 39,864,532 



~~'\\,o MEr,90.P. 

<1-""#~ ~~0, 

~ m. t. : ,,,,~ FINAL BUDGET- GENERAL FUND REVENUES 

""C 
I',) ...... 
co 

-~ 
• F°IR:E: 

► Projected General Fund Revenue of $287 .9 million, a $13.2 million (4.8%) 
increase from the prior year, FY 2023/24 Budget, including: 

• Property taxes: $213.1 million, a $9.8 million increase 

• Charges for services: $67.7 million, a $5.0 million increase, including: 

o EMS {Medic) fees: $50.4 million, a $929,000 increase 

o CRRD fees: $5.9 million, a $940,000 increase 

► Net IGT revenue transferred to General Fund: $21.6 million, approximately 
$1.8 million more than FY 2023/24. 



~~\\'\O MET.q0.P. 

.$'~# ~ \)."-'% 
... m. ~ : ioo, ~ FINAL BUDGET- GENERAL FUND REVENUES -~ 

• F'IR:E: • 

IGT Fund Programs 

► Voluntary Rate Range Program (VRRP} 

• VRRP is an intergovernmental transfer program, where District funds are transferred to the State 
DHCS, who combines local agency funds to pull down federal funds to provide medical transport 

services for the uninsured and Medi-Cal beneficiaries. 

• FY 2024/25 revenues of $15.4 million, IGT transfer of $6.2 million to DHCS 

■ Net income $8.4 million, $300,000 less than prior year due to exit of one health care plan. 

► Public Provider Ground Emergency Medical Transport (PPGEMT} Program 

--0 
N 
N 
0 

• PPGEMT Program established under AB 1705 (2019). Supports certain Medi-Cal beneficiaries, 
replacing former GEMT program with a flat payment per Medi-Cal transport of $1065 (approximately 

$947 higher than previous rate). 

• FY 2024/25 revenues of $20 million, IGT transfer of $6.8 million to DHCS, 

■ Net income $13.2 million 



~~~,o MET.qo.P. 
-~~#~ ~~/,,, 

~ m. ~ • '"'~ FINAL BUDGET- GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES 

7J 
N 
N ...... 

-~ 
- PIRE 

► Projected General Fund expenditures of $309.2 million, a $28.5 million 

(10.2%} increase from prior year. 

■ Labor Budget (compensation and benefits): $260.4 million, 

$21.1 million (8.8%) higher than FY 2023/24 

o Labor costs will be 84.1% of General Fund revenues and net 

IGT transfers in 

■ Services and Supplies Cost: $44.3 million, $6.4 million (16.7%) 

higher than prior year. 



~'\."Q'tO METRoA 

,t!,-~#~ ~~~ U ES LABOR 
~ m. o- : ,,00

~ GENERAL FUND EXPENDIT R : -~ 
- F'IR:E: • 

""C 
N 
N 
N 

► Total Compensation: $146.0 million, $10.8 million (8.0%) more than prior year. 
Includes: 

■ Wages $9.2 million (11.9%) higher 

o Final Budget property tax estimate increase triggered additional 1% wage 
increase (now 4% wage increase effective 1/1/25) 

■ Constant staffing (overtime) $710,000 (2.7%) higher 

■ Incentive pays for EMT, paramedic, education, haz-mat, and longevity 
$826,000 (5.0%) higher 

■ Employee behavioral wellness incentive continues at $2.9 million annually 

► Total Benefits: $114.4 million, $10.3 million (9.9%) more than FY 2023/24. Includes: 

■ Increased Cal PERS pension contributions (Safety and Misc.) of $8.8 million (16.6%) 

■ Increased employee medical costs of $2.3 million (13.9%) 

■ Decreased workers compensation costs of $533,000 (-11.2%) 



~~\\,o METRoA 

~~~ i:r= : ~:~ GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES: SERVICES & SUPPLIES 

"'tJ 
N 
N 
c..:, 

_._ .. 
PIRE 

► Service and Supplies budget totals $44.3 million. Increases include: 

■ $886,000 for the District's liability and property insurance 
premiums 

■ $354,000 in fire equipment servicing 

■ $461,000 in safety clothing and supplies 

• $975,000 in election services 

■ $418,000 in Dispatch services, mainly related to a new contract 
for Dispatch employees 



~~\\'tO METRoP. 

~~1 ~ = - ~~~ CAPITAL OUTLAY SUMMARY -~ 
~ ~IR:E: 

""'C 
N 
N 
.;:. 

► Total spending of $50.9 million, including $20.5 million committed from the 
Capital Facilities Fund. • 

► Major capital outlay projects funded using capital facilities funds include: 
■ One ladder truck replacement: $1.8 million 
• Four new ambulance replacements: $1.2 million 
■ Five Type I engine replacements: $5.8 million 
■ Four Type Ill engine replacements: $2.2 million 
■ Technology storage appliance replacements: $254,000 

► Major capital outlay facilities projects funded with other funds: 
• Grant Line 220 Land Acquisition: $2.4 million Development Impact Fees Fund 
• Vineyard Springs Station Build: $10.0 million Development Impact Fees Fund 
■ Zinfandel Training Center: $16.8 million Special Projects Fund 



~\,\\'tO METRoA 

~~~~~"½ 
~ m. tt -~ " 0

' ~ FORECAST: General Fund Reserves & Property Tax Growth 
- FIRS 

"'t:J 
N 
N 
01 

$60,000,000 

$50,000,000 

$40,000,000 

$30,000,000 

$20,000,000 

$10,000,000 

$-
2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28 

- Ending General Fund Reserve Balance 

- Target Reserve Ratio 

- General Fund Reserve Ratio 

2028/29 

16.0% 

14.0% 

12.0% 

10.00/4 

8.0% 

6.0% 

4.0% 

2.0% 

0.0% 



P226 



P227 



~~~,o METRo,., 

~~f ~=: ~:.,~ FY 2024/25 FINAL BUDGET SUMMARY _._ ... 
- FIRE •• 

""C 
N 
N 
co 

► District's Genera l Fund budget is balanced by a reserve transfer, reducing 

General Fund reserve by $5.9 million. 

► Final Budget forecasted General Fund reserve declined from 13.4 percent in FY 

2023/24 budget to 11.7 percent in Final Budget. 

► General Fund revenue growth, including net transfers, is budgeted 5.3 percent 

higher than prior year. 

► General Fund expenditure growth budgeted 8.8 percent higher than prior year. 

► PPGEMT and VRRP add a net $21.6 million to the District's budget. 

► Five-year forecast shows reserve borrowing likely one-time and gradual 
property tax growth will lead to steady increase in General Fund reserve
subject to significant changes in property tax trends and labor costs. 



~\\,'\O METno.P. 

~~~a- : ~~~ FY 2024/25 FINAL BUDGET -~ 
- F'lR.E: 

-u 
N 
N 
co 

Recommendation: Approve resolutions 
adopting the Final Budget amendments 
for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2025. 

Questions? 



l I 

lfi•;* 
ADAM A. HOUSE 

Fire Chief 

Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District 
10545 Armstrong Ave., Suite 200, Mather, CA 95655 Phone (916) 859-4300 Fax (916) 859-3700 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-XXX 

A RESOLUTION OF THE SACRAMENTO METROPOLITAN FIRE DISTRICT 
ADOPTING THE FINAL BUDGET FOR THE GENERAL OPERATING FUND 212A FOR 

FISCAL YEAR 2024/2025 

WHEREAS, the Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District ("District") is a political 
subdivision of the State of California ("State") and is duly organized and existing pursuant 
to the State constitution and laws; and 

WHEREAS, hearings have been terminated during which time all additions and 
deletions to the Final Budget for the General Operating Fund 212A for Fiscal Year 
2024/2025 were made, and 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the 
Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District, in accordance with Section 13890 of the Health 
and Safety Code, the Final Budget for General Operating Fund 212A for the Fiscal Year 
2024/2025 will be and is hereby adopted in accordance with the following table, as set 
forth in the attached exhibits: 

FUND COST BUDGET 

OBJECT FUND CENTER CENTER ACCOUNT CATEGORY FY2024/25 

10 212A 2129212 2129212000 SALARIES & EMPLOYEE 
$260,375,832 BENEFITS 

20 212A 2129212 2129212000 SERVICES & SUPPLIES 44,313,140 

30 212A 2129212 2129212000 OTHER CHARGES 4,487,056 

50 212A 2129212 2129212000 
OPERATING TRANSFER OUT 

6,130,826 
To 212D 

OPERATING TRANSFER OUT 
50 212A 2129212 2129212000 

(To 212G) 
4,136 

59 212A 2129212 2129212000 
OPERATING TRANSFER IN 

(From 212M) 
-21,574,983 

i2s3,7361001 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the means of financing the expenditure 
program wi ll be by monies derived from all Revenue Sources, Fund Balance Available 
and Property Taxes. 

Serving Sacramento and Placer Counties P230 



RESOLUTION 2024-:XXX 
Page2 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Final Budget for Fund 212A for Fiscal 
Year 2024/2025 will be and is hereby adopted in accordance with the listed attachments 
which show in detail the approved appropriations, revenues and methods of financing 
attached hereto and by reference made a part hereof. 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 12th day of September, 2024. I, 
MARNI RITTBURG, BOARD CLERK OF SACRAMENTO METROPOLITAN FIRE 
DISTRICT HEREBY CERTIFY the foregoing Resolution was introduced and passed at a 
regular meeting of the Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District Board by the following roll 
call vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

ATTEST: 

Marni J. Rittburg, CMC, CPMC 
Clerk of the Board 

Attachments: 

SACRAMENTO METROPOLITAN FIRE DISTRICT 

By: --------------
President, Board of Directors 

Exhibit A: 212A Final Budget Summary for FY2024/25 Schedule 
Exhibit B: 212A Revenue Detail Schedule 
Exhibit C: 212A Expenditure Detail Schedule 

Serving Sacramento and Placer Counties P231 



l I 

~1;1~ 
ADAM A. HOUSE 

Fire Chief 

Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District 
10545 Armstrong Ave., Suite 200, Mather, CA Phone (916) 859-4300 Fax (916) 859-3700 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-XXX 

A RESOLUTION OF THE SACRAMENTO METROPOLITAN FIRE DISTRICT 
ADOPTING THE MIDYEAR BUDGET FOR THE CAPITAL FACILITIES FUND 212D 

FOR FISCAL YEAR 2024/2025 

WHEREAS, the Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District ("District") is a political 
subdivision of the State of California ("State") and is duly organized and existing pursuant 
to the State constitution and laws; and 

WHEREAS, hearings have been terminated during which time all additions and 
deletions to the Midyear Budget for the Capital Facilities Fund 212D for Fiscal Year 
2024/2025 were made, and 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the 
Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District, in accordance with Section 13890 of the Health 
and Safety Code, the Midyear Budget for the Capital Facilities Fund 212D for the Fiscal 
Year 2024/2025 will be and is hereby adopted in accordance with the following table, as 
set forth in the attached Exhibit A: 

OBJECT FUND FUND COST ACCOUNT CATEGORY BUDGET 
CENTER CENTER FY2024/25 

10 2120 2123000 2123000000 SALARIES & EMPLOYEE BENEFITS $ 

20 2120 2123000 2123000000 SERVICES & SUPPLIES 

30 2120 2123000 2123000000 OTHER CHARGES 5,674,949 

41 2120 2123000 2123000000 CAPITAL ASSETS-LAND 

42 2120 2123000 2123000000 CAPITAL ASSETS-STRUCTURES 139,230 

43 2120 2123000 2123000000 CAPITAL ASSETS-EQUIPMENT 20,406,164 

44 2120 2123000 2123000000 CAPITAL ASSETS-SOFTWARE 

59 2120 2123000 
OPERATING TRANSFER IN 

2123000000 
(From 212A) 

-6,130,826 

$20,089,517 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the means of financing the expenditure 
program will be by monies derived from all Revenue Sources and Fund Balance 
Available. 

Serving Sacramento and Placer Counties 
P232 



RESOLUTION 2024-XXX 
Page2 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Midyear Budget for Fund 212D for Fiscal 
Year 2024/2025 will be and is hereby adopted in accordance with the listed attachments 
which show in detail the approved appropriations, revenues and methods of financing 
attached hereto and by reference made a part hereof. 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 12th day of September, 2024. I, 
MARNI RITTBURG, BOARD CLERK OF SACRAMENTO METROPOLITAN FIRE 
DISTRICT HEREBY CERTIFY the foregoing Resolution was introduced and passed at a 
regular meeting of the Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District Board by the following roll 
call vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

ATTEST: 

Marni J. Rittburg, CMC, CPMC 
Clerk of the Board 

Attachments: 

SACRAMENTO METROPOLITAN FIRE DISTRICT 

By: ____ ________ _ 
President, Board of Directors 

Exhibit A: 212D Final Budget Summary for FY2024/2025 Schedule 

Serving Sacramento and Placer Counties P233 



ADAM A. HOUSE 
Fire Chief 

Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District 
10545 Armstrong Ave., Suite 200, Mather, CA 95655 Phone (916) 859-4300 Fax (916) 859-3700 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-XXX 

A RESOLUTION OF THE SACRAMENTO METROPOLITAN FIRE DISTRICT 
ADOPTING THE FINAL BUDGET FOR THE GRANTS FUND 212G FOR FISCAL YEAR 

2024/2025 

WHEREAS, the Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District ("District") is a political 
subdivision of the State of California ("State") and is duly organized and existing pursuant 
to the State constitution and laws; and 

WHEREAS, hearings have been terminated during which time all additions and 
deletions to the Final Budget for the Grants Fund 212G for Fiscal Year 2024/2025 were 
made, and 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the 
Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District, in accordance with Section 13890 of the Health 
and Safety Code, the Final in the Grants Fund 212G for the Fiscal Year 2024/2025 will 
be and is hereby adopted in accordance with the following table, as set forth in Exhibit A: 

FUND COST BUDGET 

OBJECT FUND CENTER CENTER ACCOUNT CATEGORY FY2024/25 

10 212G 2126000 2126000000 
SALARIES & EMPLOYEE 

$ 1,699,461 
BENEFITS 

20 212G 2126000 2126000000 SERVICES & SUPPLIES 337,612 

30 212G 2126000 2126000000 TAXES, LICENSES, DEBT SRVC & 
OTHERS 

42 212G 2126000 2126000000 
CAPITAL ASSETS-NON-

1,000,000 
STRUCTURES 

43 212G 2126000 2126000000 CAPITAL ASSETS-EQUIPMENT 90,000 

59 212G 2126000 2126000000 OPERATING TRANSFER IN 
-4, 136 (From 212A) 

$ 3,122,937 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the means of financing the expenditure 
program will be by monies derived from all Revenue Sources and Fund Balance 
Available. 

Serving Sacramento and Placer Counties 
P234 



RESOLUTION 2024-XXX 
Page2 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Final Budget for Fund 212G for Fiscal Year 
2024/2025 will be and is hereby adopted in accordance with the listed attachments which 
show in detail the approved appropriations, revenues and methods of financing attached 
hereto and by reference made a part hereof. 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 12th day of September, 2024. I, 
MARNI RITTBURG, BOARD CLERK OF SACRAMENTO METROPOLITAN FIRE 
DISTRICT HEREBY CERTIFY the foregoing Resolution was introduced and passed at a 
regular meeting of the Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District Board by the following roll 
call vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

ATTEST: 

Marni J. Rittburg, CMC, CPMC 
Clerk of the Board 

Attachments: 

SACRAMENTO METROPOLITAN FIRE DISTRICT 

By:-------------
President, Board of Directors 

Exhibit A: 212G Final Budget Summary for FY 2024/25 Schedule 

Serving Sacramento and Placer Counties 
P235 



ADAM A. HOUSE 
Fire Chief 

Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District 
10545 Armstrong Ave., Suite 200, Mather, CA Phone (916) 859-4300 Fax (916) 859-3700 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-XXX 

A RESOLUTION OF THE SACRAMENTO METROPOLITAN FIRE DISTRICT 
ADOPTING THE FINAL BUDGET FOR THE DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEES FUND 

2121 FOR FISCAL YEAR 2024/2025 

WHEREAS, the Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District ("District") is a political 
subdivision of the State of California ("State") and is duly organized and existing pursuant 
to the State constitution and laws; and 

WHEREAS, hearings have been terminated during which time all additions and 
deletions to the Final Budget for the Development Impact Fees Fund 2121 for Fiscal Year 
2024/2025 were made, and 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the 
Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District, in accordance with Section 13890 of the Health 
and Safety Code, the Final Budget for the Development Impact Fees Fund 2121 for the 
Fiscal Year 2024/2025 will be and is hereby adopted in accordance with the following 
table, as set forth in the attached Exhibit A: 

FUND COST BUDGET 

OBJECT FUND CENTER CENTER ACCOUNT CATEGORY FY2024/25 

20 2121 2129000 2129000000 SERVICES & SUPPLIES $ 90,000 

41 2121 2129000 2129000000 CAPITAL ASSETS-LAND 2,400,000 
ACQUISITION 

42 2121 2129000 2129000000 CAPITAL ASSETS-STRUCTURES 12,751,918 

$ 15,241,918 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the means of financing the expenditure 
program will be by monies derived from all Revenue Sources and Fund Balance 
Available. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Final Budget for Fund 2121 for Fiscal Year 
2024/2025 will be and is hereby adopted in accordance with the listed attachments which 
show in detail the approved appropriations, revenues and methods of financing attached 
hereto and by reference made a part hereof. 

Serving Sacramento and Placer Counties 
P236 



RESOLUTION 2024-XXX 
Page2 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 12th day of September, 2024. I, 
MARNI RITTBURG, BOARD CLERK OF SACRAMENTO METROPOLITAN FIRE 
DISTRICT HEREBY CERTIFY the foregoing Resolution was introduced and passed at a 
regular meeting of the Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District Board by the following roll 
call vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

ATTEST: 

Marni J. Rittburg, CMC, CPMC 
Clerk of the Board 

Attachments: 

SACRAMENTO METROPOLITAN FIRE DISTRICT 

By: ___________ _ 
President, Board of Directors 

Exhibit A: 2121 Final Budget Summary for FY 2024/25 Schedule 

Serving Sacramento and Placer Counties 
P237 



ADAM A. HOUSE 
Fire Chief 

Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District 
10545 Armstrong Ave., Suite 200, Mather, CA 95655 Phone (916) 859-4300 Fax (916) 859-3700 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-XXX 

A RESOLUTION OF THE SACRAMENTO METROPOLITAN FIRE DISTRICT 
ADOPTING THE FINAL BUDGET FOR THE LEASED PROPERTIES FUND 212L FOR 

FISCAL YEAR 2024/2025 

WHEREAS, the Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District ("District") is a political 
subdivision of the State of California ("State") and is duly organized and existing pursuant 
to the State constitution and laws; and 

WHEREAS, hearings have been terminated during which time all additions and 
deletions to the Final Budget for the Leased Properties Fund 212L for Fiscal Year 
2024/2025 were made, and 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the 
Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District, in accordance with Section 13890 of the Health 
and Safety Code, the Final Budget in the Leased Properties Fund 212L for the Fiscal 
Year 2024/2025 will be and is hereby adopted in accordance with the following table, as 
set forth in the attached Exhibit A: 

FUND COST BUDGET 

OBJECT FUND CENTER CENTER ACCOUNT CATEGORY FY2024/25 

10 212L 2127000 2127000000 
SALARIES & EMPLOYEE 

$ BENEFITS 

20 212L 2127000 2127000000 SERVICES & SUPPLIES 543,061 

30 212L 2127000 2127000000 OTHER CHARGES 244,806 

41 212L 2127000 2127000000 CAPITAL ASSETS-LAND 

42 212L 2127000 2127000000 CAPITAL ASSETS-STRUCTURES 

59 212L 2127000 2127000000 OPERATING TRANSFER IN 
(From 212A} 

$ 787,867 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the means of financing the expenditure 
program will be by monies derived from all Revenue Sources and Fund Balance 
Available. 

Serving Sacramento and Placer Counties P238 



RESOLUTION 2024-XXX 
Page2 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Final Budget for Fund 212L for Fiscal Year 
2024/2025 will be and is hereby adopted in accordance with the listed attachments which 
show in detail the approved appropriations, revenues and methods of financing attached 
hereto and by reference made a part hereof. 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 12th day of September, 2024. I, 
MARNI RITTBURG, BOARD CLERK OF SACRAMENTO METROPOLITAN FIRE 
DISTRICT HEREBY CERTIFY the foregoing Resolution was introduced and passed at a 
regular meeting of the Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District Board by the following roll 
call vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

ATTEST: 

Marni J. Rittburg, CMC, CPMC 
Clerk of the Board 

Attachments: 

SACRAMENTO METROPOLITAN FIRE DISTRICT 

By:--------------
President, Board of Directors 

Exhibit A: 212L Final Budget Summary for FY2024/25 Schedule 

Serving Sacramento and Placer Counties 
P239 



ADAM A. HOUSE 
Fire Chief 

Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District 
10545 Armstrong Ave., Suite 200, Mather, CA 95655 Phone (916) 859-4300 Fax (916) 859-3700 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-XXX 

A RESOLUTION OF THE SACRAMENTO METROPOLITAN FIRE DISTRICT 
ADOPTING THE FINAL BUDGET FOR THE IGT FUND 212M FOR FISCAL YEAR 

2024/2025 

WHEREAS, the Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District ("District") is a political 
subdivision of the State of California ("State") and is duly organized and existing pursuant 
to the State constitution and laws; and 

WHEREAS, hearings have been terminated during which time all additions and 
deletions to the Finai Budget for the IGT Fund 212M for Fiscal Year 2024/2025 were 
made; 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the 
Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District, in accordance with Section 13890 of the Health 
and Safety Code, the Final Budget in the IGT Fund 212M for the Fiscal Year 2024/2025 
will be and is hereby adopted in accordance with the following table, as set forth in the 
attached Exhibit A: 

FUND BUDGET 
OBJECT FUND CENTER COST CENTER ACCOUNT CATEGORY FY2024/25 

20 212M 2121100 2121100000 SERVICES & SUPPLIES $ 13,813,440 

50 212M 2121100 2121100000 
OPERTING TRANSFER OUT 

21,574,983 
(To 212A) 

$ 35,388,423 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the means of financing the expenditure 
program will be by monies derived from all Revenue Sources and use of Fund Balance; 
and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Final for Fund 212M for Fiscal Year 
2024/2025 will be and is hereby adopted in accordance with the listed attachments which 
show in detail the approved appropriations, revenues and methods of financing. 

Serving Sacramento and Placer Counties P240 



RESOLUTION 2024-:XXX 
Page2 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 12th day of September, 2024. I, 
MARNI RITTBURG, BOARD CLERK OF SACRAMENTO METROPOLITAN FIRE 
DISTRICT HEREBY CERTIFY the foregoing Resolution was introduced and passed at a 
regular meeting of the Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District Board by the following roll 
call vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

ATTEST: 

Marni J. Rittburg, CMC, CPMC 
Clerk of the Board 

Attachments: 

SACRAMENTO METROPOLITAN FIRE DISTRICT 

By: ----------- ---
President, Board of Directors 

Exhibit: 212M Final Budget Summary for FY 2024/25 Schedule 

Serving Sacramento and Placer Counties P241 



ADAM A. HOUSE 
Fire Chief 

Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District 
10545 Armstrong Ave., Suite 200, Mather, CA 95655 Phone (916) 859-4300 Fax (916) 859-3700 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-XXX 

A RESOLUTION OF THE SACRAMENTO METROPOLITAN FIRE DISTRICT 
ADOPTING THE FINAL BUDGET FOR THE SPECIAL PROJECTS FUND 212S FOR 

FISCAL YEAR 2024/2025 

WHEREAS, the Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District ("District") is a political 
subdivision of the State of California ("State") and is duly organized and existing pursuant 
to the State constitution and laws; and 

WHEREAS, hearings have been terminated during which time all additions and 
deletions to the Final Budget for the Special Projects Fund 212S for Fiscal Year 
2024/2025 were made; 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the 
Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District, in accordance with Section 13890 of the Health 
and Safety Code, the Final Budget in the Special Projects Fund 212S for the Fiscal Year 
2024/2025 will be and is hereby adopted in accordance with the following: 

OBJECT FUND 

20 212S 

42 212S 

FUND 

CENTER COST CENTER ACCOUNT CATEGORY 

2128000 2128000000 SERVICES & SUPPLIES 

2128000 2128000000 CAPITAL ASSETS-BUILDINGS 

$ 

BUDGET 
FY2024/25 

14,126,877 

$ 14,126,877 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the means of financing the expenditure 
program will be by monies derived from all Revenue Sources and use of Fund Balance; 
and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Final for Fund 212S for Fiscal Year 
2024/2025 will be and is hereby adopted in accordance with the listed attachments which 
show in detail the approved appropriations, revenues and methods of financing . 

Serving Sacramento and Placer Counties P242 



RESOLUTION 2024-XXX 
Page2 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 12th day of September, 2024. I, 
MARNI RITTBURG, BOARD CLERK OF SACRAMENTO METROPOLITAN FIRE 
DISTRICT HEREBY CERTIFY the foregoing Resolution was introduced and passed at a 
regular meeting of the Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District Board by the following roll 
call vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

ATTEST: 

Marni J. Rittburg, CMG, CPMC 
Clerk of the Board 

Attachments: 

SACRAMENTO METROPOLITAN FIRE DISTRICT 

By: ------ ----- ---
President, Board of Directors 

Exhibit A: 212S Final Budget Summary for FY 2024/25 Schedule 

Serving Sacramento and Placer Counties P243 




